NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES LIMITED
GROUP BOARD MEETING
Date:

THURSDAY 24 JUNE 2021

Time:

5.30 PM

Place:

VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS *

Directors of the Board are requested to attend the above meeting on the date and at the time and
place stated to transact the following business:

George Pashley
Head of Governance and Compliance

AGENDA
Time

1

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS
1.1

WELCOME

1.2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.3

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

1.4

ITEMS FROM THE CHAIR

1.5

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 MARCH 2021

1.6

MATTERS ARISING

1.7

FEEDBACK FROM:
- ALMO Board
- NCHEL
- NCH RP
- G&SC
- ARCC
- Partnership Forum

2

Attached

5.30

Attached

5.30

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION
2.1

2020/21 FINANCIAL OUTTURN
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance and Procurement

Attached

5.45

2.2

2020/21 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance and Procurement

Attached

5.55

2.3

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH NOTTINGHAM CITY
HOMES REGISTERED PROVIDER LIMITED

Attached

6.10

Report of the Executive Assistant
2.4

HEALTH AND SAFETY APRIL 2020 - MARCH 2021 ANNUAL
REPORT
Report of the Head of Corporate Health and Safety

Attached

6.20

2.5

REVIEW OF PROGRESS AGAINST EQUALITY, DIVERSITY
AND INCLUSION STRATEGY OBJECTIVES FOR 2019 – 2022
Report of the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Manager

Attached

6.35

2.6

GOVERNANCE INFORMATION REPORT
Report of the Head of Governance and Compliance

Attached

6.55

3

ITEMS TO NOTE AND FEEDBACK
3.1

COVID-19 BUSINESS RECOVERY AND RE-INVENTION PLAN
Report of the Head of Governance and Compliance

Attached

7.05

3.2

CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2021 REVIEW
Report of the Business Improvement and Performance Manager

Attached

7.15

3.3

THE HOUSING REGISTER AND SUPPLY AND DEMAND 2020
ANNUAL REPORT
Report of the Head of Housing Options

Attached

7.30

3.4

NEW GOVERNMENT PROPOSALS AND EXTERNAL POLICY
DEVELOPMENTS WITH AN IMPACT ON NOTTINGHAM CITY
HOMES

Attached

7.45

Report of the Policy and Planning Manager
3.5

4

ITEMS TO FEEDBACK TO:
- ALMO Board
- NCH RP
- NCHEL
- ARCC
- G&SC
CLOSING ITEMS

4.1

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

4.2

DATE OF NEXT MEETING AND AGM – 30 SEPTEMBER 2021
INCLUDING AGM

Report of the Assistant Director of Development
Members wishing to raise matters under Any Other Business should note that items will only be
accepted if referred to and agreed by the Chair of the Board prior to commencement of the
Meeting. Members wishing to submit their apologies should do so by contacting Corporate
Services on 0115 746 9485. This agenda was issued by SharePoint on 18 June 2021
Distribution List:
All Group Board Members:
Bill Blincoe, Andrew Dickinson, Vicky Evans, Mike Khouri-Bent, Rebecca Langton, Georgia
Power, Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall, Michael Savage, and Malcolm Sharp, MBE,
George Pashley, Sam Whitworth, Graham de Max, and Mark Lowe
All EMT Members
Report Authors: Di Brown, Rebecca Dennis, Jo Hill, Mark Lawson, Dan Lucas, George Pashley,
Darren Phillips and Phil Saunders and Cath Stocks

* Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting should email
boardmeetings@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk for joining details

ITEM: 1.5
THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021
NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES LIMITED
THE BOARD
MINUTES of the PUBLIC MEETING held on 18 MARCH 2021 via Microsoft Teams.
Board Members
Bill Blincoe
Andrew Dickinson
Vicky Evans
Rebecca Langton
Georgia Power
Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall
Michael Savage
Malcolm Sharp, MBE (Chair)
Also in Attendance:
Adrian Cheetham
Jo Clifford
Cathy Dobb (Minute Taker)
Stephen Feast
Kay Frankson (Item 10)
Dan Lucas (Item 13)
Nick Murphy
George Pashley (Items 8 & 9)
Darren Phillips (Item 11)
Phil Saunders (Item 12)

1

Director of Property
Director of Corporate Resources
Governance Manager
Director of Housing
Head of Rents
Policy and Planning Manager
Chief Executive
Head of Governance and Compliance
Assistant Director of Finance and
Procurement
Business Improvement and Performance
Manager

WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS & CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed everyone to the meeting. The meeting
was held via Microsoft teams due to Covid-19.

2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
None.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

4

ITEMS FROM THE CHAIR

4.1

The Chair provided Board with an update on Covid-19. Board were informed that
Nottingham City Homes (NCH) are currently running almost all of its frontline
services to residents as normal including a full repair service. It is likely that a
number of the communal areas in the Independent Living Schemes will be able to
open in a restricted capacity from the 12 April. Time is being made available for staff
to get vaccinated and tested where required. A Testing Centre for staff and
residents is opening at Highwood House at the end of this month. Work to prepare
for staff returning to work has commenced, although a return to work date has yet to
be set by the Government. The Board thanked all staff for their continued efforts
during the pandemic.

4.2

It was with great sadness that the Chair informed Board Members that we have had
our first Covid related death of a member of staff. The Chief Executive (CE) has
written to the family offering our condolences. The Board also expressed their
condolences during the meeting.

4.3

The Chair announced that he and the CE have approved the final draft of the
Corporate Plan as agreed via the delegation at the previous Board meeting. This
includes a forecast of later years financial arrangements following the publication of
the City Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Medium Term Financial Plan.

5

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 JANUARY 2021
The minutes were agreed as a true record. The Chair electronically approved the
signing of the minutes.

6

MATTERS ARISING

6.1

It was noted that the Chair has not received any further information on the timetable
for Nottingham City Council’s (NCC) Recovery Plan. The Board were reminded that
the review is looking at other NCC companies ahead of the NCH review. Board will
be informed when a timetable has been issued.

7

FEEDBACK FROM BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

7.1

ALMO BOARD

7.1.1

The Chair of the ALMO Board updated Board on the meeting that was held on 4
March as follows:
• The ALMO Board strongly supported the Chair’s proposal to write to the
Leader of the Council to request further information on the nature, timing and
process of the review of NCH as part of its recovery plan. A member of the
ALMO Board suggested that it may be appropriate to contact Councillors at
an appropriate time to highlight tenants’ views that NCH has been
fundamental in delivering improved services to tenants.
• ALMO Board Members welcomed the support and development to be
provided by the Tenant Participation Advisory Service (TPAS) to ensure that
the tenants’ voice is heard effectively and acted upon by NCH and NCC.
TPAS are also working with the Board to empower them in making their own
decisions which are already within the powers of their delegated authority.

7.2

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES ENTERPRISES LIMITED BOARD

7.2.1

The Chair of Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited (NCHEL) updated Board
on the meeting that was held on 22 February as follows:
• The Council’s budgets do not currently include lending to NCH for the
refurbishment of Arboretum Phases 2, 3 & 4. Discussions are due with NCC
on how to continue with the regeneration of this area and build on the Phase
1 work we are currently delivering. In the absence of an agreed approach,
we do not intend to proceed with a Gateway review for the time being as it is
not clear whether Phase 2 will happen.
• Construction of Midland House, the former Meadows Police Station site, has
started. NCHEL has requested a license from NCH Ltd (who currently own
the site) to undertake these works as an interim measure prior to formal
transfer.

7.3

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES REGISTERED PROVIDER BOARD

7.3.1

Homes Registered Provider (NCH RP) Board Member, Vicky Evans, updated Board
on the NCH RP meeting that was held on 2 March as follows:
• Board agreed the budget in line with approved Group budgets and noted that
NCC had requested that we pause the acquisition of any further properties
for temporary accommodation.
• NCC is still keen to proceed with the conversion of Laura Chambers Lodge
into family hostel accommodation and discussions are ongoing on the
possible financial model.
• NCH RP requested development of a Service Level Agreement (SLA) to
provide clarity between Group Board and NCH RP’s role in maintenance and
management of the 120 affordable properties owned by the main NCH
Group.
• It was noted that there were only three Board Members at the meeting and
the need for Board recruitment was reiterated.

7.4

GOVERNANCE AND SELECTION COMMITTEE

7.4.1

Board Member, Andrew Dickinson updated the Board on the Governance and
Selection Committee (G&SC) meeting that was held on 3 March as follows:
• G&SC considered the next steps in the Board recruitment process. This will
be to advertise vacancies through social media, individual contacts and
organisations who might employ suitable Board candidates. G&SC also
agreed to appoint a company who can provide a more in depth search of
potential candidates.
• The Committee also noted the completion of the Governance Action Plan.
Work has now started to implement the plan.
• The Chair of the G&SC stated that following the meeting on the 27 January,
the Chair of G&SC and the Chair of the Group Board met to discuss and
agree an exit process for Board Members. This is to ensure that we are able
to learn from Board Members on what works for them and how we can make
meetings more accessible.

7.4.2

Board Members requested a copy of the Governance Action Plan, and the Head of
Governance and Compliance (HOGC) agreed to issue the Governance Action Plan
link to Board Members.

7.5

AUDIT RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

7.5.1

The Chair of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) updated Board on
the meeting that was held on 9 February as follows:
• ARCC met in February with Andrew Dickinson as the new Chair and
approved Bishops Fleming as our new External Auditors. Selection of our
new Internal Auditors is underway.
• Sam McGrady from DTP presented her Risk Management & Audit Report.
The recommendations were approved and will be progressed through the
Governance Action Plan and a new Risk Management Action Plan.

7.6

Board Members agreed that the revised method of providing feedback from
subsidiary Boards and Committees is the preferred option.

8

COMPLAINTS POLICY

8.1

The HOGC informed Board that The Housing Ombudsman issued a new Complaint
Handling Code in July 2020. The Code was a forerunner to new complaints
provisions set out in the White Paper on Social Housing.

8.2

The Code requires landlords to resolve complaints raised by their residents quickly
and to use the learning from them to drive service improvements. Landlords should
also look to create a more positive complaint handling culture amongst staff and
residents, and take the learning from complaints to further improve and develop
their services.

8.3

In response, NCH has introduced a new Complaints Policy that complies with the
Code’s requirements, puts residents first and the onus on staff to resolve concerns
at the first point of contact.

8.4

If concerns can’t be resolved at the first point of contact, the proposed complaints
policy includes a two stage process in line with the Housing Ombudsman’s Code;
“Stage 1 Investigation” will involve a formal investigation of the complaint. This will
be undertaken within 10 working days by a “resolution officer” appointed by the
relevant Department. If a complaint cannot be resolved at Stage 1 to the resident’s
satisfaction, and the resident is still seeking redress, it will move to Stage 2, “The
Review of Complaint”. Stage 2 will be led by a senior officer and completed in 20
working days.

8.5

Staff training is ongoing to ensure people are aware of the new arrangements and
prepared for what is expected. There has been ongoing tenant consultation with
involved tenants including through the ALMO Board who provided feedback on the
draft policy.

8.6

Board were informed that an annual Complaints Monitoring Report will be brought to
the Group Board, whilst the reporting on council tenants’ trends and analysis will be

reported quarterly to the ALMO Board. The policy will be amended to reflect that
Council tenancy complaints will also be reported quarterly to the ALMO Board.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. The proposed Complaints Policy.
9

GOVERNANCE INFORMATION REPORT

9.1

GOVERNANCE REVIEW AND BOARD RECRUITMENT

9.1.1

The HOGC informed Board that the G&SC met on 2 March to discuss recruitment to
existing Board Member vacancies. It agreed to advertise the vacancies through
social media, networking and relevant local organisations at the earliest opportunity.
The Committee also agreed to appoint an organisation to work with us pro-actively
to find the right people to populate our governance structures. The HOGC has now
spoken to four external agencies that could assist in the recruitment – EMA
Consultancy, Peridot, Altair and Campbell Tickell. An advert will be issued in the
next few days for Board Members to promote on their social media accounts.

9.1.2

Board Members agreed to support and feed into the recruitment strategy to help
NCH cultivate relationships locally and to ensure a diverse set of candidates. Board
are keen to reflect the diversity of Nottingham City in the Board membership.

9.1.3

A Governance Action Plan has been developed which incorporates actions arising
from the DTP report on risk, the new National Housing Federation (NHF) Code of
Governance, the White Paper on Social Housing and NCC’s response to the
collapse of Robin Hood Energy (RHE). Work has also started on the Assurance
Framework. Andrew Dickinson has been appointed to the G&SC temporarily to
support the work being undertaken on the Plan. Julia Townsend has also stepped
down as a Tenant Board Member of the ALMO Board.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To note the Governance Review and Board recruitment update.

9.2

BOARD MEMBER APPROVALS

9.2.1

NCH reviewed its governance and compliance arrangements to find ways of
reducing the risk of people contracting the Covid-19 virus which included the
execution of official documents that require a wet signature from a Board Member.
The Board approved the arrangement at the Group Board Meeting on 7 October
2020 and requested that this approval be reassessed in six months.

9.2.2

Board are now asked to again waive related Standing Orders and agree to make all
approvals electronically and to delegate the final execution of official documents to
the EMT, where necessary. If agreed, all Board Member approvals will be recorded
and reported to the next Board Meeting in line with the Group Scheme of
Delegation.

9.2.3

The arrangements have not been used since the last Board meeting and therefore
there are no instances to report to Board.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To approve the delegation of the execution of official documents to the
Executive Management Team for an additional six month period.

9.3

FORTHCOMING EVENTS

9.3.1

Board Members were advised of events planned for the following 12 months and
were advised to contact either the Head of Governance and Compliance or the
Governance Team for further information.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To note the use of the forthcoming events.

10

NCH LEASEHOLDER MAJOR WORKS RECHARGES POLICY

10.1

The Head of Rents (HOR) informed Board that it is necessary that NCH has a policy
in place that sets out our aims and approach to the recovery of major works costs
from Leaseholders where NCH is the freeholder. A draft policy has therefore been
created for consideration. We already manage 1300 leaseholder properties where
NCC is the freeholder, and the proposed policy for NCH has been modelled on
NCC’s policy, however there are some differences as NCH is not a local authority.

10.2

A leaseholder owns the inside of the premises, but the actual building is owned by
the freeholder. The freeholder has responsibility to repair the fabric of the building
and the leaseholder has to reimburse for those costs. Repairs, maintenance, or
improvements that cost more than £250 per property are deemed Major Works and
must be consulted upon in accordance with the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as
amended). The recovery of major works costs is separate to the annual service
charge through which leaseholders pay for day-to-day repairs of £250 or below.

10.3

Board Members thought that the end users of the document may need more support
to understand the policy, and suggested including an organigram, or more
contextual information to help leaseholders to fully understand the policy.
Flowcharts and case studies may also be of use to help understand the policy.
Board were informed that user friendly information was provided to individual
leaseholders and that the Rents Team make individual contact to offer support prior
to the bills being issued.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To approve the NCH Leaseholder Major Works Recharge Policy.

11

FINANCE REPORT 2020/21 – QUARTER 3 (END OF DECEMBER 2020)

11.1

The Assistant Director of Finance and Procurement (ADFP) informed Board that the
report provides an update to the Board on the Group’s current financial position at
the end of Quarter 3 (QR3), which includes income and expenditure up to the end of
December 2020. The key items brought to the Board’s attention were:
• The Group’s consolidated management accounts show an underspend
against budget of £154k at the end of QR3. This underspend is less than 1%
of the profiled budget at QR3 (£61 million).
• The Group position for the full year is forecast to be an overspend by £625k
against the budgeted surplus of £305k, resulting in an initial deficit of £320k
prior to allocation of furlough monies received.
• Government grant totalling £426k has been received from furloughing staff in
Property Services. If Covid-19 does not contribute to a further deterioration in
the position, then the outturn with the grant included is anticipated to be a
surplus of £106k.
• The pandemic has given rise to additional and unbudgeted costs. The largest
costs this year relate to Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and additional
cleaning. We have also absorbed the significant costs of inactivity during the
first lockdown and then later in the year, reduced productivity of some repairs
colleagues due to the introduction of Covid safe working practices.
• NCHEL has achieved a surplus of £18k to date, which is below the profiled
budget of £116k.
• NCH RP has achieved a surplus of £34k to date, which is below the budget
of £113k. This is due to the number of homes available to let being below that
assumed in the budget and higher than anticipated voids numbers and void
periods given lower demand under Covid-19 restrictions.
• All Directorates remain in budget and are underspending both in relation to
the budget position at the end of QR3 and the forecast for the full year with
the exception of Property Services, whose budgets have been significantly
affected by the impact of Covid-19.
• Commercial Services has been the service area in Property whose financial
performance has been most affected.
• Elsewhere within Property Services similar cost pressures have been
experienced within Voids and Mechanical & Electrical, notably as variable
capital income forms a substantial part of those service area budgets.
• 2020/21 Priority Based Budget (PBB) savings included a targeted reduction
in accommodation costs by closing the Bestwood Office, occupying less
desks at Loxley House and making improvements to Harvey Road, which are
now complete. Having agreed to NCC’s request to defer changes in Loxley to
next year in recognition of the impact of Covid-19 on its capacity to
consolidate accommodation, the associated PBB saving has not been
provided to NCH this year.

11.2

Board Members discussed the payments to NCC for accommodation and the
Garden Assistance Scheme. It was confirmed that discussions are ongoing with
NCC in regard to both the accommodation strategy and the Garden Assistance
Scheme. Conversations are ongoing with regard to finalising the SLA for the Garden
Assistance Scheme. The aim is for the service to get back up to standard starting in
April. It was acknowledged that it has been an exceptionally difficult year for the

service. The financial issues and payments requested by NCC will be discussed at
the Partnership Forum.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To note the financial position at the end of Quarter 3 and the forecast
outturn position for the 2020/21 financial year.
12

GROUP QUARTER THREE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020-2021

12.1

The Business Improvement and Performance Manager (BIPM) informed Board that,
in line with our Corporate Plan, NCH has a set of Corporate Performance measures
which are monitored quarterly. Reports are now provided to the relevant Boards on
their individual performance with a selection of measures reported to Group Board.
The report provides the Board with an overview of NCH’s progress against Key
Performance Indicators (KPI) identified in the Corporate Plan which are not reported
to the ALMO Board, NCH RP or NCHEL, as those Boards receive their own
performance reports. The key items brought to the Board’s attention were:
• Five measures are exceeding target with five under target. The impact of
Covid-19 will make it a challenge to meet our final corporate targets in certain
areas.
• Our customer satisfaction is amongst the best in the sector. The cost per
property for management and repairs in 2019-20 was £1075, compared to a
sector average of £1357, which means that NCH can show an efficiency of
£282 per property. Across the stock as a whole this represents an efficiency
of £7.2m.
• Our intake of new apprentices was paused during the pandemic due to
restrictions. However we have already met the three year corporate target for
this measure. Target was 22 and result achieved is 31. NCH is 30th in the top
100 apprentices for employers.
• The measures for private customers using community alarms and delivering
additional supported living dwellings have also met their three year plan
target. The target was 2,300 and the result achieved is 2,796.
• Sickness for QR 3 has only fractionally missed its quarterly target of six days
with a result of 6.75 days and is at its lowest level for three years. The
expected outturn is nine days overall. Stress and Mental Health are still the
key issues around sickness absence.
• Turnover of staff measure is lower than expected but this may change when
lockdown ends.

12.2

Board Members discussed operational data in relation to delivery of items, number
of planned repairs and productivity. It was confirmed that such data is reported to
the ALMO Board on a quarterly basis, including repairs information, number of
voids, rent collection and customer satisfaction. Board Members requested sight of
the information on productivity. The BIPM will issue this to Board Members.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:

1. To note the contents of the report.
2. For the BIPM to issue to Board Members information on productivity
data reported to the ALMO Board.
13

NEW GOVERNMENT PROPOSALS AND EXTERNAL POLICY DEVELOPMENTS
WITH AN IMPACT ON NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES

13.1

The Policy and Planning Manager (PPM) informed Board of the following key
issues:
• The Social Housing White Paper sets the Government’s policy focus, with
emphasis on safety, quality, performance, fairness, respect and
strengthening the voice of residents. NCH has incorporated appropriate
objectives within the new Corporate Plan in response to this.
• Right to Regenerate would enable the public to require councils and public
sector bodies to sell unused land and assets. The public would then have first
right of refusal to purchase such land, which would be sold by default, unless
there is a compelling reason not to sell it.
• Charted Institute of Housing (CIH) along with the See the Person campaign,
have published a guide to tackling stigma in social housing. The guide
outlines different ways in which residents in social housing suffer from
stigmatisation, and what contributes to that. This includes how actions by
social landlords, their processes and sometimes their staff can occasionally
as well as inadvertently contribute to that stigmatisation.

13.2

The CE noted that the Social Housing White Paper will lead to the introduction of
significantly enhanced regulation and inspection of social housing services. The
White Paper was published in time for its objectives to be weaved into the Corporate
Plan which will help us prepare for the new regulatory regime, and provide
assurance to NCC in advance of inspection.
RESOLUTION:
The Board agreed:
1. To note the contents of the report.

14

FEEBACK TO OTHER BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

14.1

Board Members were asked to feedback the key items to their relevant Boards and
Committees.

15

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

15.1

Board were informed that the 29 April meeting would not be a formal Board Meeting,
and Board Members were asked to keep the date in their diaries as the meeting
could be utilised for other purposes. Board Members were asked to provide
suggestion on what to use the session for to either the Chair or the Governance
Team.

16

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled meeting will be on the 24 JUNE 2021.
The meeting closed at 18:53

SIGNED………………………………………………… DATE ……………………..

ITEM: 2.1

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

2020/21 FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report provides an update to the Board on the Group’s financial
outturn position for the 2020/21 financial year, which includes income
and expenditure between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021.

1.2

The Group has achieved a surplus against its original budgeted
position and made significant contributions to reserves. The surplus
has been earmarked within the subsidiary Companies it has arisen in.

1.3

The report includes capital monitoring information which sets out
Nottingham City Homes’ (NCH) current spend, planned investment and
proposed funding over the life of the Corporate Plan. A number of
development schemes have been removed from the programme
following decisions by Nottingham City Council (NCC).

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Notes the financial outturn position for 2020/21.

2.2

Approves that Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited (NCHEL)
take the audit exemption in section 479a of the Companies Act 2006.

2.3.

Guarantees all outstanding liabilities of NCHEL at 31 March 2021 until
those liabilities are satisfied in full.

3

REPORT

3.1

The Group’s management accounts show a surplus against budget of
£85k for the financial year 2020/21 with the inclusion of Furlough grant
funding income received during the year. This underspend is less than
1% of the full year budget (£74m). The surplus has been earmarked
within the subsidiary Companies it has arisen in.

3.2

A summary of the financial outturn position together with the budget
and position forecast for the financial year is shown in Appendix 1.
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3.3

A summary of the financial position split by the Company’s Boards is
also provided in Appendix 2 (a to d). An explanation of the current and
forecast financial position for each Board as shown in Appendix 2 are
set out below.

3.4

ALMO (HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT)

3.4.1

The outturn position is a positive variance to the full year budget of
£361k. The outturn is in line with that forecast for the year and both
show an improved position to the budget. Coronavirus has impacted
on service delivery, the timing of works and required changes to ways
of working. These costs of the pandemic though have either been
absorbed within budgets or offset by underspending and budget
savings during periods of reduced activity e.g. freeze on recruitment,
release of agency.

3.4.2

Contributions to reserves and the return to NCC total £4.450million in
line with the budget and the forecast position. These contributions are
split as follows:
Contributions to NCH reserves
- General (New Build)
- Laura Chambers Lodge
- Arboretum (Ph1)
- Other
NCC return

£1.500m
£1.225m
£0.125m
£0.108m
£1.492m

3.5

Non-ALMO

3.5.1

The outturn position is an adverse variance to the full year budget of
£729k. The outturn is in line with the forecast for the year but below
that budgeted, hence the adverse variance. This position is mainly due
to the under-achievement of surplus targets within Property Services
on commercial activities, with both existing and new work streams
being impacted by the Coronavirus.

3.5.2

The position has though been offset by savings on loan interest
charges and lower than budgeted costs on homes leased, and
services provided, to Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider
(NCH RP).

3.6

Market Rent – Shadow NCHEL

3.6.1

A surplus of £12k has been achieved to date which is below the
budgeted surplus of £155k and includes interest on loans from NCC.
Without this interest charge, at a market rate rather than that agreed in
the original NCC loan facility (PWLB+0.4%), the surplus would have
been £120k.

3.6.2

The majority of market rented homes were finally transferred to
NCHEL during the year and respective loans provided by NCC. Once
the drawndown of a loan for the 10 homes on Forest Road West is
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agreed, these will also be transferred to NCHEL. The NCHEL 2020/21
accounts include only those market rented transactions and balances
that occurred within the subsidiary company and show a surplus for the
year of £74k.
3.7

NCH RP

3.7.1

A surplus of £15k has been achieved to date which is below the
budgeted surplus of £150k. This is due to the number of homes
available to let being below that assumed in the budget and higher
than anticipated voids numbers and void periods given lower demand
under Covid-19 restrictions. The pandemic has also impacted on
completing acquisitions and the refurbishment of these homes.

3.7.2

Homes leased from NCH, NCC (Highwood House) and private sector
landlords having experienced these higher void rates, which has led
to reduced rental income. This has been as a direct result of Covid-19
and a reduction in overall referrals for temporary accommodation from
Housing Aid. Due to more availability in temporary accommodation,
Highwood House has been used as triage to assess families before
moving them onto other temporary accommodation. This is a positive
in terms of supporting these families, but has, in turn, created higher
than normal turnover.

3.7.3

Covid-19 has also impacted on completing acquisitions and the
refurbishment of these homes so far this year within NCH, reducing
the supply through leases to NCH RP to provide housing. NCC also
put the final tranche of these acquisitions on hold just before
Christmas with only 11 homes purchased against an approved plan of
70.

3.7.4

The surplus generated by NCH RP is taxable and a provision of £14k,
subject to the final tax computation, has been included in the outturn
position.

3.8

Directorates

3.8.1

All Directorates remained within budget during the year with the
exception of Property Services, although the final position showed an
improvement in Quarter 4 in relation to that forecast. Property
Services’ budgets have been significantly affected by the impact of
Covid-19. As well as absorbing additional expenditure to directly
combat Covid-19 (e.g. Personal Protective Equipment) the Directorate
budget has also been hit by staff costs incurred during periods of
inactivity during the first lockdown. The Company did though secure
government grant of £426k which related to Property Services
employees who were furloughed whilst this happened.

3.8.2

Commercial Services has been the service area whose financial
performance has been most affected. Notably as Covid-19 not only
led to staffing costs not being recovered through income earned
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during lockdown restrictions in Quarter 1, but then significantly
reduced turnover has also inhibited it from achieving surpluses set
within the budget. In addition to incurring losses on existing activities,
Commercial Services ability to start new activities or expand current
ones as planned has been affected and where surpluses were
targeted within the budget but have not been achieved.
3.8.3

The HRA Capital Programme has experienced significant slippage and
although the programme has been re-profiled for 2021/22 and future
years, the lower level of activity has meant that NCH’s capital fees for
Asset Management and Development have been reduced too with this
income falling below budget. The Directorate overspend has largely
been managed within the overall company position though, which is
shown in the outturn.

3.9

NCH Budgets supporting NCC

3.9.1

As reported to Board in December, in addition to creating additional
costs and budget pressures as set out above, Covid-19 has also
impacted on the delivery of some of the Priority Based Budgets (PBB)
savings, services from NCC and may lead to abortive costs on new
build/renovation/acquisition schemes put on hold by NCC.

3.9.2

Savings included a targeted reduction in accommodation costs
charged by NCC. Having agreed to NCC’s request to defer changes in
Loxley to 2021/22 in recognition of the impact of Covid-19, the
associated cost of the PBB savings has been absorbed in year.

3.9.3

Related charges, the impact on the General Fund and the Value for
Money (VFM) provided to NCH have been raised with NCC. Potential
abortive costs are being reviewed for further discussion with NCC,
notably as we await NCC’s approval for NCH RP to go ahead with the
Laura Chambers Lodge (LCL) scheme.

3.10

Financial Statements

3.10.1

The final outturn forms the basis of the draft 2020/21 Financial
Statements for each of the three Companies in the Group. The
financial statements signed by the Boards shall be submitted to
Companies House in line with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006. NCH RP accounts shall also be submitted to Homes England
and the Regulator of Social Housing (RoSH).

3.11

Capital Expenditure

3.11.1

NCH continues to make progress in relation to its Corporate Plan goal
to build high quality and affordable homes for local people, albeit some
elements have been impacted by NCC decisions and uncertainty over
the provision of future loans. At the end of 2020/21 the total investment
made by NCH was just over £61 million (515 homes) and Appendix 3
sets out how this is split across the Group and individual schemes.
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3.11.2

Elements of the Group’s planned capital investment have been
impacted by NCC requesting acquisitions are put on hold and
removing its commitment to further phases of the Arboretum project.
All loans drawn down during the year have therefore been to the full
cost of homes or the amount approved by NCC. The programme and
allocation of reserves is being reviewed and revised to reflect this and
will be brought back to Board at the next meeting.

3.11.3

Loan agreements to finance NCHEL market rented activities were
drawn down in March 2021 as shown in Appendix 3. During the year,
100 market rented homes were transferred to NCHEL. Further loans
for Forest Road West (10 homes to be transferred to NCHEL), Moveon (eight homes in NCH RP) and 11 homes (final homes to be leased
to NCH RP) are anticipated to be drawn down this summer.

3.11.4

In 2021/22, even when all loans are drawn down, NCHEL will require
support from NCH in relation to its cash balances. This is mainly due to
the additional interest (above PWLB+0.4%) charged on NCC loans and
that any reduction in the NCC return shall remain in NCH’s reserves.
NCH RP will require cash support / a loan from NCH in relation to the
LCL scheme, which will provide NCH with a return (interest charge) on
its reserves.

3.11.5

NCH also holds revenue reserves created by prior year surpluses
which are allocated against agreed priorities. These total £0.8 million at
the end of 2020/21 and with priorities reviewed by EMT on a monthly
basis, currently include a contingency reserve of £0.434 million. All
reserves, including this contingency, have been carried forward into
the current 2021/22 financial year.

3.12

Audit Exemption

3.12.1

The level of income and expenditure and transactions within NCHEL
are still relatively low. As in previous years, the Board is asked to
approve that the audit exemption in Section 479a of the Companies
Act 2006, is taken by NCHEL to confirm that no audit is required in
relation to the 2020/21 accounts.

3.12.2

In order for NCHEL to take the audit exemption, NCH Ltd must
guarantee all outstanding liabilities of both companies at 31 March
2021 until those liabilities are satisfied in full, as it did in the prior year.

3.12.3

NCH RP’s 2020/21 report and financial statements have been audited
by the Group’s external auditors Bishop Fleming.

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

The financial implications are set out above.
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4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

There are no direct legal implications of this report.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

There are limited risks in relation to final 2020/21 outturn position given
now the external audit is complete, as follows:
•
•

•

Degree to which provisions in the accounts are sufficient to
provide for final settlements (provisions total £328k).
Any further contact or revised claim from Vodafone over liability
for material data costs arising on stolen NCH door entry sim
cards.
Abortive costs on schemes put on hold or not yet approved by
NCC.

4.3.2

The claim from Vodafone against the Company in the sum of £492k
remains outstanding. All charges have consistently been disputed by
the Company as previously reported to Board. A letter was received
from Vodafone's lawyers in December 2019 indicating they would
respond, however, to date no further correspondence has been
received. Vodafone had indicated that they wished to resolve the
matter but again, to date, have not contacted us further.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

A robust financial budget and effective monitoring process to ensure
the budget is tightly managed and controlled is essential to support the
achievement of all the Corporate Plan objectives.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1
7.2

Appendices 1 & 2 - Management Accounts.
Appendix 3 - Capital Expenditure: Land & Buildings and Debt

Contact officers:

Date: 17 JUNE 2021
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Name: Darren Phillips
Address: Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham NG2
3NJ
Tel: 0115 746 429
E-mail: darren.phillips@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

NCH GROUP WIDE SUMMARY
BUDGET
Full Year

I&E

PERIOD 12
ACTUAL
Full Year

31st March 2021
VARIANCE Full
Year

FORECAST
Full year

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Total

49,533
31,838
81,371

49,533
25,065
74,598

0
6,773
6,773

49,533
25,820
75,353

Total

41,530
35,086
4,450
81,066

38,932
31,557
4,450
74,939

(2,598)
(3,529)
0
(6,127)

39,621
31,608
4,450
75,678

TOTALS

(305)

341

646

325

Income
HRA Revenue Fees
Other Income
Less :
Expenditure
Employee Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Other Contributions

Furlough Grant Funding

OUTTURN

(426)

(426)

(305)

(85)

220

(101)

NCH BOARD

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

NCH GROUP
FULL GROUP
ALMO (HRA)

(247)
0
247

482
368
(114)

729
368
(361)

509
396
(114)

NCHEL

(155)

(12)

143

(29)

NCHRP

(150)

(15)

135

(41)

(305)

341

646

325

TOTALS

ALMO (HRA)

PERIOD 12
BUDGET
Full Year

ACTUAL
Full Year

31st March 2021

VARIANCE
Full Year

FORECAST
Full year

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

AL10
AL11
AL13
AL12
AL1

22,649
26,884
1,623
6,201
3,184
60,540

22,649
26,884
1,140
5,596
3,259
59,528

0
0
483
605
(75)
1,013

22,649
26,884
1,223
5,328
3,208
59,292

AL2

35,333
21,005
56,337

34,156
20,808
54,964

(1,176)
(196)
(1,373)

34,402
20,327
54,729

####

4,450

4,450

0

4,450

(Surplus) / Deficit Position AL

247

(114)

(361)

(114)

Income
Management Fee
Repairs Fee
Capital Fee
Capital Works
Other Income
Total
Less :
Expenditure
Employee Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total
Other contributions (NCC and reserves)

Non ALMO

PERIOD 12
BUDGET
Full Year

ACTUAL
Full Year

31st March 2021

VARIANCE
Full Year

FORECAST
Full year

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

GP12
GP15
GP16
GP17
GP1

7,721
1,727
4,173
669
510
14,800

4,970
487
3,116
685
409
9,667

2,751
1,240
1,057
(17)
101
5,133

5,332
575
3,343
677
480
10,407

GP2

6,079
8,474
14,553

4,665
5,483
10,149

(1,414)
(2,991)
(4,404)

5,107
5,810
10,916

(Surplus) / Deficit Position GP

(247)

482

729

509

Income
NCC - Capital Works
NCC - Other Income
Inter-Company
Rental Income
Other Income
Total
Less :
Expenditure
Employee Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total

NCH EL *

PERIOD 12
BUDGET
Full Year
£'000

ACTUAL
Full Year
£'000

31st March 2021
VARIANCE
Full Year
£'000

FORECAST
Full year
£'000

Income
Rents Collected
Rents - Intercompany

6E+06
6E+06

933
244
1,177

869
234
1,103

64
10
74

862
236
1,098

6E+06
60093
6009547G
Total

118
182
669
53
1,022

110
222
728
30
1,091

(8)
40
59
(22)
69

113
184
733
40
1,069

(Surplus)

(155)

(12)

143

(29)

Total
Less :
Expenditure
Management
Lease, Repairs & Property
Loan Interest
Admin & Other Costs

* - presentation includes transactions within NCHEL and those within NCH that relate to market rented homes during the financial year.

NCH RP

PERIOD 12
BUDGET
Full Year
£'000

ACTUAL
Full Year
£'000

31st March 2021
VARIANCE
Full Year
£'000

FORECAST
Full year
£'000

Income
Rental Income
Other

S175A
S1

4,810
44
4,854

4,384
165
4,549

426
(121)
305

4,369
187
4,556

Management (SLA)
SZ
Lease, Repairs & Property
S3
Loan Interest
S547g
Admin & Other Costs
Total

1,647
2,663
132
263
4,704

1,565
2,737
108
124
4,534

(82)
74
(24)
(138)
(170)

1,546
2,715
110
144
4,515

(150)

(15)

135

(41)

Total
Less :
Expenditure

(Surplus)

Capital & Debt
Actual Position at Period 12
Scheme

(End of March 2021)
No of
Properties

Value
£'000

Debt
£'000

Comments

NCH Main Company
Eddlestone & Wendover

6

635

0

Radford

52

6,591

6,279

Lenton

62

9,901

6,593

Homes for Homeless Families & Housing Led

161

15,914

Market rent - Forest Road West

10

880

Arboretum

27

2,025

Meadows Police Station - Land

0
318

241
36,187

Church Square

17

2,673

2,193

Martin's Reach

14

1,140

1,106

Move-on

8
39

1,137
4,950

0 HE Grant of £400k received to date (£13k after Y/E).
3,299

Market Rent

100

11,520

Masson House - Arkwright Walk

16

1,998

1,976 Final payment shall be for sprinklers.

Fairham House - Clifton Triangle

24

3,228

3,202 Final payment shall be for retention.

Ryehill House - Arkwright Walk

18

2,601

2,403 Final payment shall be for retention.

Meadows Police Station - construction

0
158

853
20,200

0 Final payment shall be for retention.
18,989

Group Summary

515

61,336

14,323 Properties owned by NCH & leased to NCHRP.
0 Due to be transferred to NCHEL.
0 Re-configuration is reducing from 31.
0 Due to be transferred to NCHEL.
27,196

NCH RP

NCH EL
11,407

49,484

ITEM: 2.2

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR
OF FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT
2020/21 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1

SUMMARY

1.1

Attached to this report as Appendix 1 are the final Nottingham City Homes
(NCH) Report and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 for which recommendation for approval has been sought
from the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) (14 June 2021).

1.2

Following Board approval and formal sign-off of the audit opinion from the
external auditors, the statements shall be submitted to Companies House
in line with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Accepts the Financial Statements as a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial affairs at 31 March 2021 and that the Company is a
going concern.

2.2

Authorises the Chair and Director of Corporate Resources to sign the
accounts at the Board meeting.

2.3

Authorises the Chair to sign a letter of representation requested by the
Company’s external auditors Bishop Fleming, at the Board meeting.

2.4

Authorises the Chair to sign a letter of assurance to Nottingham City
Homes Registered Provider (NCH RP) at the Board meeting.

2.5

Members Guarantee all outstanding liabilities of Nottingham City Homes
Enterprises Limited (NCHEL) at 31 March 2021 until those liabilities are
satisfied in full.

3

REPORT

3.1

Financial Statements

3.1.1

The NCH Group delivered an underlying surplus of £85k against the
2020/21 budgeted surplus of £305k included and monitored within the
management accounts. This position includes amounts set aside to make
contributions to reserves of £2.958million but excludes spend on items
funded by reserves and the annual leave carried forward accrual. The
consolidated accounts also need to comply with the mandatory accounting

requirements of FRS 102, which includes accounting requirements for
defined benefit pension schemes which significantly affect the disclosed
performance.
3.1.2

The impact of making all the above accounting entries is that the
Consolidated Income Statement shows a reported loss of £4.077 million.
The final contributions to reserves resulted in a refund to Nottingham City
Council (NCC) of £1.492million A reconciliation between the net surplus
outturn position and the loss shown in the financial statements, is set out in
the table below:
TABLE 3.2

£000

SURPLUS REPORTED IN THE MGT ACCOUNTS

85

Revenue spend against reserves
Contributions to reserves deducted from NCC refund
Contribution to New Build reserves
TOTAL SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

(128)
1,458
1,500

OTHER ACCOUNTING ADJUSTMENTS
Increase in the Annual Leave C’fwd Adjustment
Net pension movements
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS LOSS

£000

2,915

(652)
(6,340)
(4,077)

3.1.3

The pension movements do not reflect any actual cash transactions and
the key to the Company’s true financial performance against the budgeted
deficit is the surplus outturn position. The pension movements are also
highly volatile and based on a number of actuarial assumptions but
financial reporting standards require their inclusion, and hence a loss, in
financial statements. As stated in NCC’s Letter of Confirmation (required
annually by the external auditors – see Appendix 3), NCC shall assist NCH
in meeting its pension fund liabilities as and when they fall due.

3.1.4

The annual leave accrual is an estimated cost of the leave not taken by
staff each year and hence carried into the following financial year. In most
financial years it would not be expected that the difference between the
amounts brought forward and carried forward would be significant. The
impact of Covid-19 has though significantly increased the carry forward in
2020/21, as show in the table above. It is anticipated that this will
substantially reverse in 2021/22 i.e. the adjustment that year will reduce
expenditure.

3.1.5

It is anticipated that a zero tax charge and liability will be incurred for the
NCH and NCHEL companies for financial year and has been disclosed in
the respective financial statements. For NCH RP an estimated tax liability
of £14k has been estimated and included in the financial statements. The
tax position for all three companies is subject to the completion of tax
computations by Bishop Fleming, the outcome of which will determine the
final tax charge.

3.2

Audit Findings

3.2.1

The Financial Statements have been audited by the Company’s external
auditors Bishop Fleming and reviewed by the ARCC together with Bishop
Fleming’s audit findings and key issues report.

3.2.2

Bishop Fleming shall be providing an unqualified audit opinion on the
Company’s accounts following approval by the Board. The audit opinion is
expressed in more detail in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 23
and 25 of the Financial Statements (see Appendix 1). The ARCC at its
meeting on 14 June, was asked to recommend the 2020/21 Financial
Statements and NCH Letter of Representation (see Appendix 3) to the
Board for approval.

3.2.3

Financial Statements and Reports have been compiled for NCH RP and
NCHEL. ARCC has also recommended these for approval by the
respective subsidiary Boards.

3.2.4

NCH RP’s Report and Financial Statements have also been audited by
Bishop Fleming. NCHEL’s accounts have not been audited. Any changes
or amendments which arise before the accounts are approved by the
respective Boards shall be agreed by the Director of Corporate Resources
and Chair of the ARCC and highlighted to the respective Board.

3.2.5

The NCH Consolidated Financial Accounts show the financial position
across NCH Group and include all transactions and balances within NCH
RP and NCHEL. The table below shows how the management accounts
outturn position, shown at the top of table 3.2, is split within the three
companies:
COMPANY

£000

NCH Ltd *
NCH RP Ltd
NCH EL

(4)
15
74

TOTAL
85
* - excludes contributions and spend on reserves highlighted in table 3.2.
3.3

Going Concern

3.3.1

As part of the approval of the annual Financial Statements, the Board
confirms that NCH shall continue to operate as a Going Concern i.e. NCH
shall continue to operate and will be able to meet its liabilities for a period
of at least 12 months. Although this is still the case, recent events
continue to impact on NCH or may have previously been brought to the
attention of Board Members i.e. Covid-19, NCC’s financial position.

3.3.2

Attached to the report as Confidential Appendix 5 is a paper that provides
Board with assurance that NCH shall continue to operate as a Going
Concern.

4

FINANCE, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

The 2020/21 financial outturn position for each company was reported to
respective Boards in June. The work of the external auditors has been
completed within the agreed audit fees of £20.5k (NCH) and £5.5k (NCH
RP). A fee of £4.5k has been set aside for the tax computation work for all
three companies, as per the agreement with Bishop Fleming.

4.1.2

In their audit report, Bishop Fleming raised a proposed adjustment in
relation to the NCC refund, amending it to a reduction to income rather
than, as included in the draft accounts reported to ARCC, included as
expenditure. This adjustment has now been made in the accounts
(attached as Appendix 1) and has reduced income and expenditure by
£1.492million, but has had no impact on the bottom line loss reported in
the Income Statement.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

It is a statutory requirement of the Companies Act 2006 for audited annual
financial statements to be produced and submitted to Companies House.
This shall be done following approval of the accounts at the respective
Board meetings and receipt of Bishop Fleming’s signed audit opinion for
the companies audited (NCH Ltd and NCH RP). NCH RP’s accounts shall
also be submitted to Homes England and the Regulator of Social Housing
(RoSH).

4.2.2

As it has done in previous years, NCHEL has taken the audit exemption
allowed within section 479 of the Companies Act 2006, so that no audit
was required for in relation to the 2020/21 accounts. In order for NCHEL to
take the audit exemption NCH Ltd Board Members must guarantee, as
they have done in past years, all outstanding liabilities at 31 March 2021
until those liabilities are satisfied in full. This represents limited risk to NCH,
notably as the majority of NCHEL’s short-term liabilities at the balance
sheet date and NCC loans are supported by investment properties with an
increased fair value.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

As part of the annual audit of the Company’s financial statements, NCH
request a Letter of Confirmation from NCC. In addition to enabling the
respective Boards to be assured that each company is a going concern,
this letter enables Bishop Fleming to obtain the assurance in relation to a
number of material balances of audit matters and hence provide their audit
opinions. The letter is attached to this report – see Appendix 2.

4.3.2

As part of their audit procedures, Bishop Fleming require a Letter of
Representation from the NCH Board in relation to the NCH 2020/21 Report
and Financial Statements. The Groups investment properties were valued
at the end of March 2021 which led to an increase of £1.757million of those
property assets, which is included in the NCH consolidated and NCHEL

accounts. The majority of these assets were transferred from NCHEL to
NCH during the year and management is satisfied that the material part of
the increase (over two thirds) occurred after the transfer (October 2020).
This is included in the representation letter.
4.3.3

A letter from the NCH Board to provide assurance to NCH RP Board is
also attached as Appendix 4. This supports the NCH RP Board in reaching
its confirmation on the Going Concern basis given the services, properties
provided by and hence reliance on NCH.

4.3.4

Board is asked to authorise that both letters are signed by the Chair of the
NCH Board and provided to Bishop Fleming so that their final audit
opinions and the accounts can be signed by the external auditors.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES OBJECTIVES

5.1

It is a requirement of the Companies Act 2006 to produce annual audited
financial statements.

6

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)
The full set of accounts and annual report will be available to residents on
request. Translations will also be available on request.

7
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7.1

Appendix 1 - Audited 2020/21 NCH Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Appendix 3 - NCH Letter of Representation to Bishop Fleming.
Appendix 4 - NCH Letter of Assurance to the NCH RP Board.
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Nottingham City Homes Limited
(Company limited by guarantee)
STRATEGIC AND DIRECTORS’ REPORTS
For the year ended 31st March 2021
The directors present their reports and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Nottingham City Homes is a group of housing companies working together to deliver our
vision of creating homes and places where people want to live. The Group comprises
Nottingham City Homes Ltd (NCH), Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Ltd
(NCHRP) and Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Ltd (NCHEL). The NCH Group (‘The
Group’) manages homes on behalf of the City Council, as well as its own homes, and homes
owned by other landlords, and provides a range of services to support people in the
communities we serve. There are 27,513, homes under our management and/or to which
services are provided to, including 1,366 leasehold properties. Around a fifth of Nottingham
households live in the homes we are responsible for. The main NCH Company is a wholly
owned local authority company limited by guarantee.
As a not for profit company, the Group reinvests any surpluses we achieve for the benefit of
local people. Through this reinvestment, the local staff we employ and the local businesses
we support, Nottingham City Homes makes a major contribution to the Nottingham
economy.
As well as our core housing services, we help people into work through learning and skills
programmes, support health and wellbeing programmes and play an important part in
tackling crime and anti-social behaviour. We work closely with a range of partner
organisations in all these areas to deliver better outcomes for Nottingham people. We work
in partnership with others to transform the prospects of people we serve.
The year ending 31st March 2021 was the final year of our 2018 to 2021 Corporate Plan,
with the NCH Group continuing to deliver the five goals set out in that plan:
•
•
•
•
•

listen to our residents and deliver an excellent housing service
make all our estates great places to live
build high quality, affordable new homes for local people
diversify our services, re-investing in our communities
be a great place to work.

The Company’s core business over the year included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Managing the city’s housing register
Re-letting empty homes
Rent collection and arrears recovery
Tenant and leaseholder involvement
Supported housing services, including Nottingham On Call
Helping to sustain tenancies and reduce homelessness
Tenancy and estate management
Caretaking services
Repairs and maintenance
3
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•
•
•

Managing the programme of investment in council housing including new build
In-house construction of New Build housing
Actively progressing our market rent ambitions through both the development of new
build housing and the acquisition of properties.

Having signed a new 30-year Partnership Agreement with NCC to continue managing
council housing in the city, we were able to look ahead and draw up our new three year
Corporate Plan during 2020, which commenced in April 2021. Our partnership with the
Council is at the heart of our work, and their support rests on the the outcomes we’ve
delivered, looking after existing homes and building new ones as well as managing a
whole host of services to create homes and places where people want to live.
Under s172 of the Companies Act 2006, Nottingham City Homes has a duty to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, having regard to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintaining a high standard of business conduct
Acting fairly between the members of the business
The interests of employees
Fostering business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
The impact of operations on the community and the environment
The likely consequence of any decision in the long term.

The Board also needs to address the following:
•
•
•

The issues, factors and stakeholders the directors consider relevant in complying with
the above and how we have formed that opinion
The methods the directors have used to engage with stakeholders and understand
the issues to which they must have regard
The effect of that regard on the company’s decisions and strategies during the year.

As a 100% owned subsidiary company of Nottingham City Council, our primary objective is
to deliver our core services – managing, maintaining and delivering additional social rented
homes. Working on behalf of the Council, delivering landlord functions to thousands of
tenants and leaseholders and supporting the Council in the delivery of its housing and
homelessness duties.
We consider the needs and expectations of our interested parties. These include
Nottingham City Council, tenants and leaseholders, housing applicants including the
homeless, staff and trades unions, commercial partners, the Regulator of Social Housing,
National Government, the local community and our suppliers. Consulting with and working
in collaboration with all these groups, enables NCH to deliver services that meets their
expectations. To this end NCH has achieved the following Standards and is independently
certified to them.
Quality

ISO9001

This framework supports our objective to deliver improved
services, efficiently, and meeting the requirements of our
customers. By having clear documented procedures, and a
robust management system, covering recruitment, training and
development, customer focus, the engagement of our staff,
improvement initiatives and evidence based decision making.
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Health & Safety

Environmental

OHSAS18001 To support our employees and customers by ensuring our

ISO14001

working practices are safe and that our tenants can be assured
that the homes in which they live are safe and secure. In 2021 we
shall be transitioning to the new ISO45000 Standard for Health &
Safety.
We are committed to protecting the environment and by adopting
this Standard we have demonstrated that we do what we say we
will do. From the introduction of electric vehicles, to solar panels
on our tenanted and commercial properties, to charging points at
our Harvey Road site and ground breaking energy efficiency
measures across many parts of our tenanted properties we are
having a positive impact on our local environment whilst at the
same time reducing energy bills for our customers and for NCH
itself.

Our interested parties and their primary needs are:
Interested Party
Focus
Nottingham City Council

External

Tenants & Leaseholders

External

Housing Applicants

External

Staff & Trades Unions

Internal

Nottingham City Homes
Board/Executive Management
Team

Internal

Suppliers

External

The Social Housing Regulator

External

National Government

External

Commercial customers(inc.PA
Housing, Zedra, H&G)

External

Local Community

External

Need

Maintained housing stock, New build, Regulatory
Compliance and to support its environmental
objectives to become a carbon neutral city by 2028.
Quality Repairs completed right first time/Clean
neighbourhoods/low levels of ASB. Ensure effective
involvement. And to provide energy efficient homes
that help to reduce fuel poverty.
Housing available to rent which is affordable and a
safe place to live.
Continued employment, good terms and conditions,
including excellent pension provision, and a safe
working environment.
The Board which decides on the strategic direction of
the Company agrees the Strategies and key policies
of the company. It agrees the strategic 3 year
Corporate Plan which highlights the main
programmes and KPI's relevant to the business,
ensuring that the company meets the needs and
expectations of all of its stakeholders. To transform
the business, ensuring it complies with legislation,
policies and procedure.
Continued Business with NCH, based on
performance, trust and partnership.
The Regulators focus is to ensure that NCH meets its
regulatory and legal duties with a focus on delivering
value for money, quality services and homes that are
safe for tenants to live in.
Continued tight control on budgets within the public
sector. To support the objectives set out in 2020’s
Social Housing White Paper around the provision of
safe and good quality social housing, with quality
service provision for residents.
Properties advertised in a timely manner to enable
early letting. Delivery of high quality management
services. offering value for money
Clean Neighbourhoods/Low levels of ASB and
provide local employment. Maintain high
environmental standards
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We consider the interests of our employees who benefit from stable employment prospects
and a defined benefit pension scheme which allows employees to plan for their future. We
undertake staff surveys and operate forums for Health and Safety and Equalities to ensure
that views are taken into account. We formally recognise staff Trades Unions and meet
regularly with them.
Our detailed approach to meeting our objectives is set out in our Service Plans which are
reviewed annually. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chair of the Board attend the
Partnership Forum quarterly with the senior elected and staff representatives of the City
Council to discuss various matters relating to our services including funding, policies and
strategies across the whole housing service and where Nottingham City Homes can add
value to the Council. Discussion of the long term ability to finance new homes, supporting
tackling homelessness and sustain a good level of service and rents for Council tenants
feature in these discussions.
Funding levels, staffing resources, support from the Council, opportunities to deliver new
Council homes and national policies with respect to Council and other affordable housing all
influence our decisions.
Emergency legislation was enacted in March 2020, the Coronavirus Act 2020, going on to
have a significant impact across various areas of public policy and national life over the last
year. This was supported by government guidance over a range of aspects of service
provision pertinent to NCH’s work. This included matters relating to the continued provision
of core and vital services, including safe access to carry out repairs, work to tackle
homelessness and provide urgent accommodation for rough sleepers, support for those at
risk of domestic violence, and various alterations to social security benefit entitlements. This
was alongside government intervention to support employees through such schemes as
furlough, and support for the self-employed. The legislation also restricted powers of eviction
from rented homes during the pandemic. As matters progressed during the year, the
legislation was extended and associated arrangements renewed.
In November 2020 the government published its long awaited Social Housing White Paper:
‘The Charter for Social Housing Residents’. This built on 2018’s Social Housing Green Paper
and the commitments made in the Conservative’s 2019 General Election Manifesto. There
is no doubt that the White Paper will set the key themes for social housing over the
foreseeable future.
The White Paper focuses on the following areas:
• Resident and building safety
• Landlord performance, and the clear publication of performance information
• Prompt and fair complaints processes
• A strong consumer regulator, supporting tenants to be treated with respect
• Residents voices being heard by their landlord
• Good quality homes and neighbourhoods, including the prospect of a new Decent
Homes Standard
• Helping tenants take their first steps into home ownership.
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Certain aspects of the proposals are subject to further consultation and continuing dialogue
with the sector, such as a new Decent Homes Standard, and sector wide comparable
performance indicators. Others, such as stronger consumer regulation, were already under
preparation. The ongoing commitment to the Right to Buy is clear, along with proposals for
extended arrangements relating to shared ownership, particularly with new housing
developments supported by government finance.
During the year, the government also progressed legislation on building safety and fire
safety, as well as the Domestic Abuse Bill 2020, all of relevance to the NCH Group’s work.
Emissions and Energy Consumption and Carbon Reporting
NCH is committed to reducing the impact of our activities on the environment. Over the last
number of years, we have invested over £15m on deep energy retrofit projects to our homes,
and are currently undertaking extensive energy efficiency interventions on 200 of our
poorest performing properties.
Transport accounts for approximately 75% of our carbon emissions and this transport is a
key factor in our service delivery and has remained operating over the last year even with
the impact of Covid. Therefore, the reduction in CO2 emissions within the fleet is significant
at 59 Tonnes less CO2 produced.
NCH is embarking on a Fleet Replacement project and has 10 Electric Vehicles now in the
fleet, which are all pool vehicles, with a further 2 on trial through NCC’s EVE (Electrical
Vehicle Experience) project. It is planned to replace the entire fleet in the summer of 2022
and this will include the purchase a number of additional EV vehicles. Any new nonelectric vehicles in the new fleet will also reduce our carbon emissions due to vehicle
performance improvements.
NCH's strategy is to support Nottingham City Council in its commitment to become the first
carbon neutral city in the country by 2028, where financial viable and meeting business
need, maximising the number of its electric vehicles.
To minimise the impact of staff travelling to and from our offices, we offer the cycle to work
scheme, and even before COVID19 we offered flexible and home working. As a result we
have been able to rationalise our office requirements over the last couple of years. Following
the COVID19 working changes, we expect to see a greater reduction in office use.
To reduce the impact of our office premises we have installed solar panels on the roof of our
main office building, which have saved approximately 96,000 kWhs of electricity over the
year. We have also installed EV charging points for both our own fleet, and to encourage
staff to use EVs to drive to and from work.
Our main office has undergone partial improvement with new office space created to
accommodate the transfer of staff from other offices. The energy savings experienced
reflect less office staff onsite, NCH will be reviewing the impact of additional staff at our main
office in line with our property rationalisation and Covid impacts.
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2020/21 saw an increase in Gas consumption at both our main offices, this was due to the
impacts of Covid and the age of the system not taking into account office numbers and
changes. In 2021 we will vacate one of our main offices and will be replacing the antiquated
Gas boilers with more efficient electrical systems. This will significantly impact our carbon
emissions for the better.
We have focused on reporting our carbon emissions from the buildings we have control
over. A proportion of our staff are based in offices where we are not responsible for energy,
such as joint service centres, or the City Council Head Office, Loxley House. The energy
consumption of these buildings is reported by others. For this reason, we are reporting on
progress against the previous year, rather than carbon emissions per property managed.
Our total GHG generation for our offices in 2020/21 was 241 tonnes, which is a reduction of
2 tonnes from 2019/20. Fuel used by fleet vehicles has reduced meaning we emitted 59
tonnes less CO2. We expect this to fall in future years as some of the fleet is replaced with
electric vehicles. During the year, in the delivery of the service, NCH consumed an
estimated 1,021 carbon tonnages and 1,227,207 KWH in gas, electricity and water. This is
detailed in the table below:
Type of resource

Diesel used in van fleet
Petrol used in van fleet
LPG used in van fleet
Gas used in offices & common rooms
Electricity used in offices & common rooms
Water used in offices & common rooms
Total properties – owned & managed
Usage per 1,000 properties

Carbon
tonnage

KWH

2020/21
762
18
0
182
987,564
55
235,574
4
4,069
1,021 1,227,207
26,147
39
46,935

Carbon
tonnage

KWH

2019/20
811
27

-

158
857,783
81
316,096
4
4,014
1,083 1,177,893
26,003
41
45,304

The information does not include fuel claimed for travel by team members when using
their own vehicles.

Housing regulation
Regulation of social housing is carried out by The Regulator of Social Housing, based on a
model of co-regulation, which sees the focus on governance, financial viability and value for
money, with organisations held accountable for service delivery through effective tenant
scrutiny arrangements.
NCH is committed to embracing co regulation wholeheartedly. We have an ALMO Board,
which includes a majority of tenant members, and is designed to give tenants a bigger say
in how NCH operates. The role of the ALMO Board is to scrutinise the services we provide
to all tenants and leaseholders and they play a vital role in supporting our service
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improvement programme. Our Tenant and Leaseholder Involvement Strategy supports
engagement at all levels, with residents taking on roles from Street and Block Champions
to Tenant Board Members. Residents are also actively involved in scrutinising our services
through our Customer Excellence Panel and our ACE Inspector programme. In support of
its work the Customer Excellence Panel has been provided with resources to enable the
panel to undertake their work effectively, leading to challenge of the organisation and
improvement of services. The regulatory approach is changing as a result of the Social
Housing White Paper in which the Regulator will have a greater role in scrutinising larger
landlords. Regular inspections will be introduced every 4 years and the serious detriment
test will be dropped.
The Regulator will review the Consumer Standards to ensure they are fit for purpose and
will be working more closely with the Housing Ombudsman and the Building Safety
Regulator to ensure that Landlords are meeting their obligations.
The Building Safety Bill will place further regulation on the housing sector going forward and
NCH will need to ensure that it meets any additional requirements placed upon it.
The Regulator of Social Housing treats NCHRP slightly differently, by virtue of its status as
a Registered Provider with fewer than 1,000 properties. The Regulator reviews the NCHRP
based on both the economic and consumer standards.
Investing in the housing stock
The total housing stock managed by the Group as at 31st March 2021 is 27,513 homes as
detailed here.

Managed on behalf of Nottingham City Council
Managed on behalf of other social landlords
Leasehold properties (NCC Freeholder)
NCH owned (social rent)
NCH owned (housing homeless families)
NCH owned (major refurbishment or reconfiguration)
NCH RP owned
NCH RP leased (private)
NCH EL owned

25,393
155
1,366
120
161
37
39
84
158
27,513

Our Asset Management Strategy will invest resources in both council owned and Group
owned stock continues to seek to reduce the level and cost of future responsive repairs,
provide greater value for money, and minimise future investment needs.
We have continued to maintain 100% Decency with the housing stock and we are committed
to continued investment in our stock to maintain 100% decency. We have achieved 100%
in relation to valid Gas Safety Certificates.
We are committed to reducing fuel poverty and reducing carbon emissions, through
improved energy efficiency measures such as insulation and innovative building retrofit
schemes. We have continued to achieve certification to the ISO14001:2015 Standard.
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We have continued with the modernisation of Independent Living Schemes through our
‘Grander Designs’ programme, and we will continue to invest in this initiative, completing
work at the remaining three schemes by Autumn 2021.
We are continuing to acquire more market rent properties through our market rented arm,
ensuring that there is more choice for the people of Nottingham to rent within the city.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Performance continues to be a priority for the Group and we have continued to improve
performance in a number of areas, notably around customer satisfaction. However, there
have also been some challenges, particularly in relation to income collection and voids which
has been impacted by the coronavirus pandemic in 2020. These areas have been impacted
across the sector.
NCH is reviewing its performance management framework in 2021 with the intention of
further enhancing our approach with the aim of NCH continuing to perform well for its
customers and relatively to its peers.
The Boards receive quarterly reports of key performance indicators against targets and
performance. The ALMO Board received a report from Housemark, the nationally
recognised benchmarking provider for social housing, which provided analysis of its costs
and performance in relation to other housing organisations.
More detailed performance statistics are also monitored at directorate and service area level
to ensure that targets are being met and where problem areas are identified that remedial
action is taken at the earliest opportunity.
Summarised below are the key performance indicators which focus on the key areas of the
Group’s business, impact on financial performance and by which the development and
position of the business is measured:

Performance Indicators

2020/21

2019/20

Satisfaction with the service

89.7%

88.6%

Satisfaction with the repairs & maintenance service

83.7%

81.1%

Satisfaction with neighbourhood as a place to live

86.8%

86.3%

Repairs completed right first time

95.9%

95.65%

Number of lettable voids
Percentage of rent collected (rent due up to 31st March)
Gas & Solid Fuel annual servicing completed
Average re-let time in days

279
100.39%
100%
37.8

179
100.2%
100%
32.5
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%. of properties with an EPC rating of E or below

2.04%

1.94%

NCH has maintained high levels of customer satisfaction, with all main customer satisfaction
measures being in the top 2 quartiles when compared with all housing organisations, using
HouseMark data.
SUCCESSES
In 2020/21 our successes included:
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

drawing up a Recovery and Reinvention Plan as a key part of the response to the
coronavirus pandemic.
continuing to deliver emergency repairs throughout the coronavirus pandemic, and
puts systems in place to check in on its most vulnerable tenants.
Housing First, delivered by NCH in partnership with NCC, Framework and
Opportunity Nottingham, is established, and goes on to turn around the fortunes of
35 former rough sleepers in its first year of operation.
Residents move into new homes in Top Valley.
The Hospital to Home initiative delivers record savings for all partners involved –
NCC, the NHS, and NCH – and is held up as a national exemplar by the Chartered
Institute of Housing.
NCH being named a Top 100 Apprenticeship employer, the only organisation in
Nottingham to make the list.
Tenants move into new homes on Tunstall Drive that have been built by the NCH
in-house team.
Innovative inspection techniques using drone technology are trialled in Nottingham
by NCH, and are showcased at a national conference.
Work starts on the Eastglade site, where 106 new homes will be built for
Nottingham people.
The project to install new lifts in all 13 high-rises managed by NCH is completed.
The NCH Corporate Plan 2021-24 is launched, to commence in April 2021, and
includes the new NCH Tenants’ Charter, a set of commitments arising from the
requirements of the Social Housing White Paper.

How we have engaged with our tenants and residents
Nottingham City Homes welcomes and actively promotes customer feedback.
•

Feedback is collected in both quantitative and qualitative forms and in a variety of ways
such as:
•
•
•
•
•

Tenant led Operational Board – ALMO Board
Tenant membership on Group Board
Quarterly STAR Surveys
Transactional Customer Surveys
Bespoke Consultations
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Complaints, Comments and Compliments
Focus groups
Support Plans
Customer Excellence Panel - Scrutiny
Tenant ACE Inspectors – 5 Star estates evaluations
Tenant representatives in procurement exercises
Opportunities for residents to get involved by volunteering as Street and Block
Champions

We encourage further feedback from our customers by frequently demonstrating that we
have listened and acted on their feedback through various media channels. We advertise
and promote all feedback mechanisms though publication of our regular newsletter, the
website and social media channels. We regularly publish articles in our newsletter inviting
residents to come and discuss services and performance as well as listen and respond to
feedback through social media platforms in a timely and informative manner.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS
Our new three year Corporate Plan commences in April 2021 and sets out clear objectives
for Nottingham City Homes,
This plan commits to improving the core housing services we provide, helping keeping a
roof over people’s heads, keeping people safe in their homes and supporting the community
spirit so evident across the city. The Plan can be read in full at:
www.nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk/about-us/corporate-documents/our-corporate-plan/
The plan sets out our goals over the next three years, which are:
• To deliver the NCH Tenants’ Charter:
• to be safe in your home
• to have a good quality home and neighbourhood to live in
• to have a home you can afford
• to have your voice heard and to be treated with respect
• to know how we are performing
• to have your complaints dealt with promptly and fairly
• To diversify and grow the NCH Group
• To pursue organisational excellence.
This focus on safety, quality, performance scrutiny, listening to residents and ensuring
access to clear and easy to access complaints processes is designed to ensure that we
meet and embrace the requirements of 2020’s Social Housing White Paper.
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The plan further outlines steps we will take to diversify and grow the NCH group by
undertaking managed growth and diversification across our services, building on areas of
strength and expertise to provide services for the people of Nottingham and generate an
income for the benefit of the city. This will involve delivering additional affordable housing in
Nottingham where we can, growing our in-house delivery teams, managing homes for other
landlords, improving services to leaseholders, providing specialist supported housing and
developing our assistive technology offer, helping people live in their homes for longer. We
will further develop our partnership working with Nottingham City Council, and continue to
work to help the council meet its aims and objectives across a range of areas, such as
helping to support the city’s carbon neutral ambitions through our investment in reducing
energy use, both as a business, and for those who live in the homes we manage.
We aim for organisational excellence in our governance, culture and to be an employer of
Choice that is a great place to work. We will review the effectiveness of governance, risk,
compliance, performance management and administrative policies and processes as part
of the objectives set out in our Corporate Plan.
We will continue to be an efficient organisation, with a robust set of financial procedures and
internal controls in place to make sure that resources are carefully managed and
demonstrate value for money.
There will be no doubt that the impact of the coronavirus pandemic will be at the forefront of
the challenges faced as we look to the future, both for NCH and other organisations we work
in close partnership with, as well as for the residents we serve. We will use our Recovery
and Re-invention Plan to address these challenges as our orderly route out of the pandemic.
We will react appropriately to the wider economic impacts of the pandemic, especially as
these become apparent over the longer term.
COVID-19
Across the financial year the most dramatic events surrounded the spread of the global
Covid-19 pandemic. Around early March 2020 the Government made a series of rapid policy
announcements and enacted emergency measures covering a wide range of areas not least
in health, housing and social security policy. Along with all similar organisations NCH group
rapidly focussed its activities in relation to this, working within the constraints of the wider
‘lock down’ to deliver core and vital services.
The short, medium and long term impact of the pandemic on wider economic issues are
certain to be significant, and have direct and indirect impact on NCH Group activity, as well
as on its employees, customers and on partner organisations.
NCH established its Covid-19 Recovery and Reinvention Plan intended to smooth the
transition to a return to ‘normal’ business. The financial impact of Covid 19 has been on the
significant, restricting NCH’s operations and access to tenants, their homes and our own
offices. The potential impact was reported to Audit, Risk and Compliance (ARC) Committee
during the financial year along with NCH’s claims for grant through the Government’s Job
Retention Scheme. The impact on budgets was significant but prompt actions and
commitment of resources to those areas impacting on services and tenants has managed
this. Significant process was made in reducing the backlog of repairs that arose due to
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lockdown restrictions with a target to have all non-urgent repairs completed by the end of
September. We are now also close to getting back to delivering all services to tenants that
have been impacted and restricted.
Although there exists a real threat of the risk of a second spike, further restrictions and a
second lockdown, the financial impact of Covid 19 has largely been, and is anticipated to
continue to be, managed within budgets and Furlough grant received (£426k).
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Company’s Corporate Risk Register sets out the risks deemed to most adversely impact
on its ability to achieve its Corporate objectives. The register is being reviewed this year.
The principal risks and those which reflect uncertainties facing the business are highlighted
below:
We aim to identify, control and manage all risks within a culture of risk management. The
key corporate risks to the group are listed below. Each risk is assessed for likelihood and
severity of impact. Mitigating actions are agreed to reduce or eliminate these factors, and
progress is monitored by both management and the Board.
1. Governance: Weaknesses in the leadership provided by Board and senior management,
or in our governance arrangements or planning processes lead to financial mismanagement,
poor performance, lack of confidence or breach of statutory requirements.
2. Financial: Financial mismanagement, or variations in assumptions made for business
planning purposes create a shortfall in funding levels and potential failure to operate as a
going concern.
3. Health and safety: A failure to identify and manage health and safety risks or comply with
statutory requirements results in fatality, injury, ill-health or legal action.
4. Fire safety: A failure to identify and manage fire risk results in multiple fatalities, injury, illhealth, loss of or damage to assets or buildings, or legal action.
5. Emergency planning: A failure to plan for emergencies and have disaster recovery plans
in place results in threats to residents' welfare (including loss of accommodation or
belongings) or an inability to deliver continuous services.
6. Stakeholder engagement: Poor performance or lack of effective engagement with key
stakeholders results in declining relationships/ loss of confidence in our ability to meet our
objectives.
7. Employee engagement: Poor employee relations and high absence levels lead to loss of
employee confidence & morale, increased costs & an inability to retain or recruit competent
people.
8. Delivery: Failure to plan, manage or monitor major projects or day to day operations
results in financial mismanagement, poor quality outcomes or loss of confidence in our ability
to deliver.
9. Information Communication Technology [ICT]: Loss of data, failure of networks or
operating systems, insufficient data security or a failure to invest in technological
improvements prevents efficient delivery of services or results in loss of confidence and legal
action.
10. Business development: NCH fails to diversify, compete effectively in open markets or
manage the risks associated with new business activities, resulting in a reducing core
business, poor investments and loss of confidence in the organisation.
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11. Changes in policy: Adverse changes to government or NCC housing policy or legislation
reduces capability to meet Corporate Plan objectives, creates additional burdens, an inability
to plan effectively for the future, or loss of income or assets.
The Covid-19 pandemic presents a number of unprecedented risks to NCH group. The
Group will assess these risks and put in place processes to mitigate them as far as is
possible to achieve.
FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Group and Company complies with the accounting requirements for defined benefit
pension schemes under FRS102 which significantly affects the disclosed performance. The
Consolidated Income Statement includes these accounting entries and shows a reported
deficit of £4.077 million for the 2020/21 financial year compared with a deficit of £6.070
million in the prior year.
The actuarial valuation has allowed for the estimated impact of the recent McCloud/Sargeant
judgement as a past service cost. There was no capitalised cost of additional benefits
awarded during the year (calculated at £2.149million in 2019/20). In 2019/20 this was an
estimate of the potential impact on NCH’s defined benefit obligation based on analysis
carried out by the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) and NCH’s liability profile. The
key assumption is the assumed rate of future salary increases and it is not yet clear how this
judgement may affect LGPS members’ past or future service benefits.
The pension liability on the Group and Company’s Balance Sheet has increased from
£87.188 million at the end of 2019/20 to £139.354 million in the 2020/21 financial year. The
Company has to make annual cash contributions to the pension fund at a rate agreed with
the fund’s trustees. Budgets and forecasts, including the actual payments to the pension
scheme, have been prepared that show that the Company will be able to meet its liabilities
as they fall due, notwithstanding that an accounting loss may be reported.
The fixed asset value has increased across the year as the Group continues to purchase
land and buildings in line with the proposals in its Corporate Plan. The increase in loans,
bank overdraft and creditors show how the addition investment is currently supported. The
level of debtors has remained relatively consistent across the year, with a rise at the yearend due to the timing of NCC receipts.
With fees and other income remaining relatively static, turnover has been largely due to
rental income growing across the year as the number of Homes owned by the Company has
steadily increased. Landlord activity across the Group contributes to the annual surplus
through the net income and expenditure position delivered and the absorption of costs within
the Group.
GOING CONCERN
At its meeting on 24th June 2021, the Board of Nottingham City Homes Limited approved
that, in their opinion, the Nottingham City Homes Limited Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, defined as a period not less
than 12 months following the signing of the financial statements. The Board’s assessment
is that this continues to be the case at the date the final 2020/21 statements were signed.
Accordingly it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing financial statements.
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This is based on the new 30 year Partnership Agreement which is in place with Nottingham
City Council to pay management and repairs fees in return for delivery of housing
management and maintenance services as set out in the current Partnership Agreement.
In addition, the Council recognises that, following the processing of accounting transactions
for defined benefit pension schemes under FRS102, the Company does not have sufficient
reserves to offset the resultant deficit. It therefore undertakes to provide continuing support
to enable the financial statements of NCH to be prepared on a going concern basis.
Nottingham City Council confirms annually that it will continue to assist NCH in meeting their
pension fund liabilities as and when they fall due, to the extent that money is not otherwise
available to NCH to meet such liabilities.
NCH has a £50milion loan facility and NCHEL a facility of £24million, with the City Council
so that loans required to support the cost of NCH owned new build schemes under
construction in 2021/22 and future years, shall be made available to ensure NCH can
continue as a going concern and has adequate cashflow.
TAXATION
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of NCC and the majority of NCH’s income is
derived from services provided to NCC as an agent and other associated local government
organisations. Under the non-trading arrangements, all income and expenditure arising from
trading with NCC is outside the scope of Corporation Tax. Non-government organisations
related income amounted to £7,230k (2019/20: £5,026k) and represented, in the main,
income from NCH’s rented properties and Nottingham City tenants and residents for
landlord, rechargeable works and other services. Where such income arises, it is offset in
the main by respective eligible expenditure. There is however a tax charge and liability
included in the 2020/21 Group accounts which has arisen within the subsidiary NCHRP
Limited.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
The Group owns fleet vehicles, land (purchased from Nottingham City Council for
Development) and 478 dwellings Homes are let to social housing and market rent tenants
as well as to Homeless families on behalf of the City Council.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s business is entirely based in the UK and all activities are conducted with UK
based counterparties in sterling. The Group does not use or trade in any derivative financial
instruments. Surplus cash balances are held with NCC as bank deposits. Credit risk is
managed by NCC Treasury in line with its approved policies.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
The Group shall require further loans from the City Council in 2021. The financing of loans
is supported by the rental income stream from landlord activity and secured against the
value of the assets. Post balance sheet events that could have a material effect on the Group
which have arisen before the date these Financial Statements are approved by Board and
disclosed in the notes.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONSTITUTION
The Company is incorporated as a private company limited by guarantee under the
Companies Act 2006. As such it has no share capital. The Company’s sole member is
Nottingham City Council (‘NCC’).
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are to act as the managing agent of NCC’s housing
stock and some commercial properties, and to provide a repairs and maintenance service
to the landlord in respect of these properties. The Company also manages and maintains
its own housing stock for both social housing and market rented housing. In addition to those
of the Company, the Group’s activities include the provision of housing for homeless
families.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Our Risk Management Framework sets out the Group’s approach to risk management and
how the organisation’s key risks are identified, monitored and reported through the Risk
Management Group, Executive Management Team and ARC Committee. It is held under
review by the NCH Full Board. A full review of the risk management process is being
undertaken this year. This will include new risk management framework and processes
being introduced for the Group Board, NCH RP and NCHEL.
The Corporate Risk Register outlines the existing counter measures in place to mitigate
each corporate risk as well as the additional controls identified and developed to manage
risk to an acceptable level. Separate Risk Registers are also in place for NCHRP and
NCHEL.
NCH is certified to BS OHSAS 18001: 2007, the national standard for occupational health
and safety management systems, and is independently audited by an external certification
body annually in order to ensure compliance with the standard. The current certificate runs
to September 2021. Maintenance of this certification provides independent assurance that
health and safety is effectively managed throughout the Group and can be advantageous
when seeking new business, especially within the construction sector. In addition to the
certification against BS OHSAS 18001:2007, NCH also hold external Safe Contractor
certification which is part of the National Safety Schemes in Procurement aimed at the
construction and supply chain sectors.
The NCH occupational health and safety management system is currently being reviewed
and updated in readiness for the transition from BS OHSAS 18001:2007 to the International
Standard ISO 45001:2018. The target date for transition is now September 2021 where the
BS OHSAS standard will be withdrawn.
NCH holds monthly building and corporate health and safety meetings, which is attended
by Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service and helps promote NCH as a proactive local
partner for NFRS.
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EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION
The Group has a high level of commitment to equality of opportunity. NCH is committed to
promoting equality and embracing and celebrating the diversity of our customers and
employees. NCH will ensure that no resident, service user, employee or job applicant is
discriminated against unfairly or receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of a
protected characteristic defined by the Equality Act 2010.
Nottingham City Homes is fully compliant with the Public Sector Equality Duty and uses the
Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) as a tool of self-appraisal, and action
planning.
We recognise that an organisation that reflects and values the diversity of its community will
be a better employer and deliver better services. We provide inclusive, accessible services,
increasingly tailored to individual need. We are committed to continually improving our
approach to equality and diversity issues in partnership with our tenants, employees and
Board. Our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Strategy ensures that we take an inclusive and
empathetic approach to managing people and delivering services.
We have established a strategic Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering group to ensure
effective and coordinated action, to reduce inequality and promote equality and inclusion.
We host and support a range of staff led equality forums which play a key role in helping us
to shape our policies and strategies. Each forum is supported directly by an executive
management sponsor and our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Manager. Our forums include,
Ethnically Diverse Forum, Disabled Employees and Carers Forum and Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual, Transgender + forum (LGBT+).
A combination of equality frameworks are used to enhance equality and inclusion for our
employees and customers:
•
•
•

Stonewall Workplace Equality Index
Race at Work Charter
Disability Confident Employer level 2

Nottingham City Homes continues to report on the Gender Pay Gap each year and is now
in the planning stages to also produce an Ethnicity Pay Gap Report and a Disability Pay
Gap Report.
All NCH posts are evaluated the same way using the same job evaluation scheme. We also
provide a number of opportunities and initiatives to encourage internal development and
external recruitment for underrepresented and minority groups. This includes and is not
limited to our dedicated Women in Construction scheme and various other employability
schemes, award winning apprenticeship scheme and our in house Aspire to Manage
programme. In addition, we support Positive Action initiatives such as coaching, mentoring
and the Future Leaders of Nottingham programme
The Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) mandatory training for all employees has recently
been refreshed and we are now in the process of designing additional EDI training for
managers.
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Nottingham City Homes recognise the responsibility that we share with our suppliers, to buy
materials and deliver our services in a transparent and ethical manner. As part of this
commitment we continue to produce our Modern Day Slavery Statement each year in line
with the Ethical Trading Initiative (ETI) framework and Modern Slavery Act 2015.
EMPLOYEES
The Board pursues policies to encourage employees to play an active part in the
development of the Company and use their knowledge and skills actively towards its
success. At the same time people are kept aware of the financial and economic
circumstances that impact on both their employment and the Company's performance.
The Company is committed to informing, involving and engaging its employees and
consulting them in relation to key issues. We have a number of forums at which staff can
raise issues that are of concern and have a number of means to keep staff informed of the
business. As well as the EDI Forums referenced previously, we hold regular Trades Unions
consultation meetings at companywide and departmental levels, local engagement
arrangements, Team Brief circulars, staff social media platforms and the NCH intranet which
is a very successful communication medium for news and events within the Company and
across the Group.
NCH’s company-wide employee group ‘Your Forum’ is run for all employees by a diverse
group of individuals from all levels and areas across the business. The forum members act
as a consultation group but also champion change initiatives, helping to support and deliver
the implementation of creative and innovative solutions adopted in response to
organisational assessments, feedback and surveys.
We have a good relationship with our recognised trade unions, GMB, UNISON, and UNITE
and will continue to promote effective engagement between unions and management.
We are currently using the “Best Companies” framework to enhance our employment
practices and make NCH a great place to work.
Our cross Company Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering group will ensure this remains
a key priority for us. Nottingham City Homes believes in the value of a diverse workforce
and this includes the representation of staff with disabilities. It, therefore, creates an
accessible physical environment and an inclusive culture. More specifically, it aims to ensure
that:
•

•

•

We work in partnership with the Access to Work Scheme and Occupational Health to
ensure that employees with disabilities have full access to available support which is
tailored to individual needs.
We regularly review our practices/procedures and ensure that we network with
external groups such as the Nottingham Digital Inclusion Group and Nottingham
Disability Inclusion Group in order to share best practice and implement suggested
improvements.
We support a range of mental health and wellbeing initiatives such as the employee
assistance programme (PAM Assist) and our in house Peer to Peer Support offer for
employees who are experiencing challenges with their mental health.
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•

•

•
•
•
•
•

We have now included a dedicated section to mental health on our in house Learning
Zone and staff Intranet where employees can access a wide range of free support
materials and resources.
Applications for employment are assessed on the basis of objective & relevant criteria
that do not discriminate against disabled people. We are a “Disability Confident
Employer” and we promote this during the recruitment process to encourage
applications from people with a disability.
Reasonable adjustments are offered to candidates with disabilities, where
appropriate, during the selection process.
The views of staff with disabilities are taken into account and their concerns for
confidentiality are respected.
We continue to review our on-line recruitment processes with a view to providing
more employment opportunities in-house.
Reasonable adjustments are offered to staff with disabilities to enable them to
undertake their work effectively.
People who become disabled during their time at the Nottingham City Homes are
enabled to continue in employment where this is practicable and in line with their
wishes.

We continue to review our sickness absence processes and continue to add to our
comprehensive health and well-being programme in order to continue to reduce our
sickness absence rates.
Finally, we ensure that Equality Impact Assessments are carried out on new or updated
policy, procedures and services.
GOVERNANCE
A full review of the Company’s governance arrangements is currently being undertaken in
response to
•
•
•
•

The publication of the White Paper on Social Housing,
The NCC Recovery Plan which has arisen out of the collapse of Robin Hood Energy
The new NHF Code of Governance published in December 2020 and
A recent review of risk management processes.

The Company has previously adopted the National Housing Federation's Excellence in
Governance Code launched in 2010 to encourage the highest standards of governance,
accountability and probity while responding to change and increased risk. The Governance
and Selection Committee assessed its compliance against the Code of Governance during
2020, and was satisfied that overall it meets the standards of the Code. NCH complies with
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 and the Data Protection
Act 2018.
DIRECTORS
Under the Articles of Association the directors, all of whom are non-executive, represent the
local community:
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•
•
•

2 NCC nominees
2 city council tenants and leaseholders
4 independent members

The non-executive directors who served during the year are shown on page 1. The nonexecutive directors have no interests in the shares of the Company, receive no remuneration
for their services to the Group and no contribution is paid towards their retirement
arrangements. Under the Articles of Association, there are also 2 co-opted Board Members,
who are entitled to attend and speak if permitted to do so by the Chair, but are not entitled
to vote or count as part of the quorum.
THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISION FOR DIRECTORS
Insurance cover has been established for all directors to provide cover against their
reasonable actions as officers of the Company. The cost in 2020/21 was £4,480 (2019/20 £4,480).
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE STRATEGIC
REPORT, THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. Company law
requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the group and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the group and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the group and the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Company made charitable donations in the year of £50 to Young Minds (2019/20: £583
to Nottingham Blood Banks). In 2019/20 we incentivised completion of our Best Companies
Survey by offering £1 donation to the staff charity of the year for every staff survey
completed.
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE TO THE AUDITORS
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditors are not aware. Additionally the directors have taken all the necessary
steps they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
AUDITORS
The Company's articles require annual reappointment of the auditors. Bishop Fleming were
appointed in 2021. In accordance with s485(4) of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution to
appoint the Company’s auditors will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 30th September 2021.
The Strategic and Directors’ reports approved by order of the board.

Joanne Clifford
Director of Corporate Services
24th June 2021
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OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of Nottingham City Homes (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries
(the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes
in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March
2021 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group or parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
OTHER INFORMATION
The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•
•

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors'
Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•
•
•
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
•
•
•

We have considered the nature of the sector, control environment, business performance and key
drivers for directors’ remuneration and performance targets;
We have considered the results of enquiries with management in relation to their own identification
and assessment of the risk of irregularities within the entity;
We have reviewed the group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
Identifying, evaluation and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware
of any instances of non-compliance;
o
Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud;
o
The internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or noncompliance with laws and
regulations;
We have considered the matters discussed among the audit engagement team regarding how and
where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.
o

•

As group auditors, our assessment of matters relating to non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud
encompassed all entities within the group.
As a result of these procedures, we have considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and identified the highest area of risk to be in relation to revenue recognition, with a
particular risk in relation to year-end cut off and significant estimates such as the pension assumptions used
in valuing the year end pension deficit and the valuation gain of the investment properties transferred in year.
In common with all audits under ISAs (UK) we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override.
We have also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in,
focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material
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amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this
context included the UK Companies Act, FRS 102 and UK tax legislation. In addition, we considered the
provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or avoid a material penalty,
including landlord health and safety laws and regulations covering fire risks, gas safety, water hygiene,
electrical safety and asbestos.
Our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;
Performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
Reviewing board meeting minutes;
Enquiring of management in relation to actual and potential claims or litigations or areas of noncompliance with laws and regulations;
Performing detailed testing in relation to the recognition of revenue, with a particular focus around
year-end cut off, including the agreement of year end balances with Nottingham City Council;
Performing a benchmarking summary of the assumptions used by the actuary and comparing to local
government pension schemes across various counties and across different actuaries;
Reviewed the latest valuation report and the uplift in the property valuation, ensuring the gains have
been recognised appropriately;
In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness
of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgments made in accounting
estimates are indicative of potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all members of the
engagement team and remained alert to possible indicators of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations throughout the audit.
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from an error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in
the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.
USE OF OUR REPORT
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Nathan Coughlin FCA (Senior statutory auditor) for and on behalf of
Bishop Fleming LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Salt Quay House
4 North East Quay, Sutton Harbour
Plymouth
PL4 0BN
Date:
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Year to
31 March
2021

Year to 31
March
2020

£’000

£’000

Notes
TURNOVER

2

68,287

67,029

Operating expenses

3

(71,173)

(71,657)

Other operating income

2,129

1,788

OPERATING LOSS

(757)

(2,840)

Interest payable

5

(3,306)

(3,213)

Interest receivable

5

0

0

(4,063)

(6,053)

(14)

(17)

(4,077)

(6,070)

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION
Taxation
LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION AND LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

7

The accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis and relate to continuing activities.
The accounting policies and notes on pages 32 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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Year to 31 Year to 31
March 2021 March 2020
Notes
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

£’000

£’000

(4,077)

(6,070)

32,560

(21,325)

(78,386)

34,195

(45,826)

12,870

(49,903)

6,800

PENSION SCHEME GAINS AND (LOSSES)
Return on Fund assets in excess of / (below) interest 22
Actuarial (losses) / gains

22

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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For the year ended 31st March 2021

Notes
BALANCE AT 1st APRIL 2019
Loss for the year

Group Company
Profit &
Profit &
loss
loss
account
account
£’000
£’000
(78,699)

(78,635)

(6,070)

(6,130)

(21,325)

(21,325)

34,195

34,195

(71,899)

(71,895)

(4,077)

(4,166)

32,560

32,560

(78,386)

(78,386)

Other comprehensive income
-

Loss on fund assets below interest

-

Actuarial gains

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 2020

24

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
-

Loss on fund assets in excess of interest

-

Actuarial losses

BALANCE AT 31st MARCH 2021

24

(121,802) (121,887)

The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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Company Registration
Number: 05292636

Notes

Group
2021
£’000

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible Assets
Tangible Assets
Investment Properties

8
9
10

37,274
25,104

35,264
20,079

32,454
3,116

31,398
13,955

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks and work in progress
Debtors due within one year
Current Asset Investment
Cash at bank and in hand

12
13
14
16

1,053
1,192
15,674

1,038
2,225
5

1,053
3,414
15.273

1,038
9,315
5

17,919

3,268

19,740

10,358

(10,615)

(16,391)

(10,449)

(17,292)

7,304

(13,123)

9,291

(6,934)

69,682

42,220

44,861

38,419

(50,045)
(328)

(26,763)
(168)

(27,066)
(328)

(22,958)
(168)

19,309

15,289

17,467

15,293

(139,354)

(87,188)

(139,354)

(87,188)

(120,045)

(71,899)

(121,887)

(71,895)

1,757
(121,802)

(71,899)

(121,887)

(71,895)

(120,045)

(71,899)

(121,887)

(71,895)

CREDITORS:
amounts falling due within one year 17
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors: Amounts falling due after
more than one year
18
Provisions for liabilities
21
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING
PENSION ASSET LIABILITY
Defined benefit pension scheme
liability

22

NET LIABILITIES INCLUDING
PENSION LIABILITY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account
TOTAL EQUITY

24
24

Group
2020
£’000

Company Company
2021
2020
£’000
£’000

The Company’s loss for the year and total comprehensive income for the year were
£4.166 million (2019/20: £6.130m) & £(49.992) million (2019/20: £6.740m), respectively.
As disclosed in note 23, members derive no financial interest from their shareholding and
accordingly all capital and reserves are classed as non-equity. The financial statements
on pages 26 to 50 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 24th June
2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Malcom Sharp

(Board Chair)
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As at 31st March 2021

Notes

2021

2020

£’000

£’000

11,444

(1,668)

11,444

(1,668)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (outflow) / inflow generated from operations

25

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of tangible fixed assets

9

23

-

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

9

(2,673)

(5,476)

Purchase of investment properties

10

(3,225)

(5,225)

(5,875)

(10,701)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of new borrowing

19

23,913

6,392

Repayment of borrowing

19

(1,154)

(946)

NET CASH IN FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

22,760

5,446

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

28,329

(6,923)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

(12,655)

(5,732)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

15,674

(12,655)

15,674

(12,655)

Relating to:Bank balances, overdrafts and short term deposits
included in cash at bank and in hand and current
assets investments

NCC helds funds on behalf of the Group in 2019/20 and hence the above includes
the cashflows paid by NCC on behalf of the Group, as set out in note 17, as well as
cash shown on the face of the Statement of Financial Position.
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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For the year ended 31st March 2021

Notes

2021

2020

£’000

£’000

16,800

(8,952)

16,800

(8,952)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash inflow generated from operations

25

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of fixed assets & investment properties

10

11,503

-

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

9

(2,360)

(3,890)

Purchase of investment properties

10

(641)

(1,882)

8,502

(5,772)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of new borrowing

19

4,810

5,277

Repayment of borrowing

19

(1,011)

(928)

NET CASH IN FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3,799

4,349

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

29,101

(10,376)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

(13,828)

(3,452)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

15,273

(13,828)

15,273

(13,828)

Relating to:Bank balances and short term deposits included in
cash at bank and in hand and current assets
investments

NCC helds funds on behalf of the Company 2019/20 and hence the above includes
the cashflows paid by NCC on behalf of the Company, as set out in note 17, as well
as cash shown on the face of the Statement of Financial Position.
The notes on pages 37 to 50 form part of the accounts.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31st March 2021
GENERAL INFORMATION
Nottingham City Homes Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company domiciled and
incorporated in England. The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place
of business is disclosed on page 2. The Company’s principal activities and the nature of the
Company’s operations are set out in the Director’s report on pages 17 to 22.
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (FRS
102).
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, including the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, and under the historical cost
convention.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000,
except where otherwise indicated.
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of the Group and all of its
subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the Group controls through its power to govern the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits). All financial statements are made
up to 31 March 2021. As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not
presented its own statement of comprehensive income as it prepares group accounts and
the Company’s individual statement of financial position shows the Company’s profit or loss
for the financial year”.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated on consolidation.
Included in the Group structure are NCHRP which is limited by guarantee and NCHEL which
is limited by ordinary share capital and both are controlled by NCH Ltd.
TURNOVER
Turnover includes property management fees and associated income and is stated net of
value added tax. Management fees are included within turnover on a time apportioned basis.
Associated income is included in turnover on the basis of work done.
Turnover includes rental income due to the Company from tenants in relation to the letting
of its social housing, market rented and homes for homeless families properties.
Other operating income consists of funding and income for assisted technology services,
grant income and income for received for services outside the Company’s core business.
Operating income and turnover from construction contracts (set out in note 15) are
recognised on the basis of work done.
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INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets purchased other than in a business combination are recognised when
future economic benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured
reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are
amortised to profit and loss on a straight line basis over their useful lives, as follows:Asset Type

Years

Purchased IT systems and software

3

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Tangible fixed assets are included in the balance sheet at historical cost less depreciation,
where appropriate. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets’
less the estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Cost for housing properties includes the cost of acquiring land and building, construction
costs including internal equipment and fittings, directly attributable development
administration costs, cost of capital employed during the development period and
expenditure incurred in respect of improvements and extension of existing properties to the
extent that it enhances the economic benefit derived from the assets.
The following depreciation rates have been used in 2020/21. The accounting policy for
vehicles has been changed, with 7 years used in the 2019/20 financial year.
Asset Type
Vehicles
Boilers
Heating Systems
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Doors
Windows
Re-wiring
Roofs
Structure

Years
9
15
30
20
20
30
30
40
70
80

Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated and going forward the
useful life of components will be reassessed annually. The accounting policy for
depreciation is that charges are applied in the year construction was completed or the year
properties were purchased. IT and equipment assets less than £5k are not capitalised.
IMPAIRMENT
The company will undertake impairment reviews where there is an indication that impairment
may have occurred. Fixed Assets that are considered to be permanently impaired shall be
written down to their recoverable amounts.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value
whilst a reliable measure of fair value is available without undue cost or effort. Changes in
fair value are recognised in the profit or loss.
CAPITAL GRANTS
Grants due from Government organisations or received in advance are included as current
assets or liabilities. Grants are amortised to the Consolidated Income Statement over 80
years and the remaining grant is split between Creditors less than and more than, one year.
We adopt the accruals method of accounting for capital grants.
OPERATING LEASES
Payments under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight
line basis over the period of the lease.
STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of finished goods and work in progress includes overheads appropriate to the stage of
manufacture. Net realisable value is based upon estimated selling price less further costs
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and
slow-moving items where required.
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable
that the contract will be profitable, turnover and costs are recognised over the period of the
contracts. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract turnover,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
When the outcome of construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract turnover
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs that are recoverable and the contract costs
are expensed as incurred.
BORROWING
All borrowing costs, including costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction
of freehold properties, where asset costs cannot be funded by the Company’s cash
reserves, are expensed as incurred.
TAXATION
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense.
Current tax assets are recognised when tax paid exceeds tax payable.
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from total
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other periods. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing difficulties that exist at the
reporting date. Timing differences between taxable profit and total comprehensive income
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that arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in different periods
from their recognition in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits.
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense,
unless those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or are
capitalised as an intangible fixed asset or a tangible fixed asset.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
For defined benefit schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect
of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the estimated regular cost of providing
the benefits accrued in the year, adjusted to reflect variations from that cost. The interest
cost and expected return on assets are included within other finance costs. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from new valuations and from updating valuations to the balance sheet
date are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held separately from the Company in
separate trustee administered funds. Full actuarial valuations, by a professionally qualified
actuary, are obtained at least every three years, and updated to reflect current conditions at
each balance sheet date. The pension scheme assets are measured at fair value. The
pension scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit method and discounted at
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency.
A pension scheme liability is recognised to the extent that the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation to settle the liability.
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Liquid resources are cash balances held by NCC which the Group can draw against on
demand.
CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
NCC holds funds on behalf of the Group. The Company maintains petty cash balances as
required.
GOING CONCERN
The Group does not currently have sufficient reserves to meet the net liabilities on the
balance sheet, after accounting for defined benefit pension schemes under FRS102.
However, the ultimate parent Nottingham City Council undertakes to provide continuing
support and trading and cash flow forecasts have been prepared by the Group. These
forecasts show that the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as
they fall due from the date that these financial statements were approved.
Accordingly the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and have
concluded that forecasts show the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
obligations as they fall due for a period of not less than 12 months from the date that these
financial statements were approved.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group has chosen to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’
and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102, in full, to all its financial
instruments.
Financial instruments and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, and are offset only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and liability simultaneously.
Financial assets
Trade debtors
Trade debtors which are receivable within one year and which do not constitute a financing
transaction are initially measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any
amounts settled and any impairment losses.
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities and equity instruments according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Trade creditors
Trade creditors payable within one year that do not constitute a financing transaction are
initially measured at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
being the transaction price less any amounts settled.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at the transaction price, including transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest
payable and other similar charges.
PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and that
obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
amounts required to settle the obligation.
FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Company
In the separate accounts of the company, interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
Interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are assessed for
impairment at each reporting date. Any impairments losses or reversals of impairment
losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable in the circumstances. The Company makes estimates
and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are limited to those made by the pension fund actuaries, as set out
in note 22.
2. TURNOVER
Management fees
Repairs, Maintenance and Capital Fees
Fee adjustment for return to Parent undertaking
Property rental income
Other income

2021
£’000
22,629
38,934
(1,492)
5,939
2,257
_________

2020
£’000
22,374
38,406
3,975
2,274
_________

68,287

67,029

Turnover represents the value, net of Value Added Tax of goods services
provided to third parties. Other operating income comprises grant from NCC for
Independent Living and charges to tenants and NCC departments for
rechargeable works and services.
3. OPERATING EXPENSES
Staff costs
Other employee costs
Supplies and services
Premises
Administration
Other

4. EMPLOYEES
Wages and salaries
Redundancy
Social security costs
Pension costs – past service costs (see note 22)
Pension costs – current service cost (see note 22)

2021
£’000
40,934
2,822
17,064
3,727
3,097
3,529
__________

2020
£’000
40,795
2,973
16,161
2,810
3,112
5,806
__________

71,173

71,657

2021
£’000
29,218
2,700
9,016
_________

2020
£’000
27,291
53
2,559
2,149
8,743
__________

40,934

40,795
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4. EMPLOYEES - continued
The average monthly number of employees
(including non-executive Directors) employed by
the Company during the year was:
Housing and Customer Services
Property Services
Corporate services
Total

2021

2020

386
527
89

496
368
145

1,001

1,009

Property services employee numbers includes all voids employees who were
transferred from Housing services in 2020/21.
5. INTEREST RECEIVABLE / (PAYABLE)
Interest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities
Interest on defined benefit pensions scheme assets
Interest receivable
Short term investment overdraft interest
Interest arising on intercompany loans

6. LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated
after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 8)
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
- owned (note 9)
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed asset (note 9)
Stock (note 12)
- amounts expensed to cost of sales
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings
- plant and machinery
Fees payable to Bishop Fleming and its associates
in respect of both audit and non-audit services are
as follows:
- Statutory audit of the company
- Statutory audit of NCHRP
- Taxation compliance services
- Other audit services
Other services
- Internal audit services (Council)

2021
£’000
(5,932)
3,939
(88)
(1,225)

2020
£’000
(6,583)
4,448
(243)
(835)

(3,306)

(3,213)

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

-

-

639
2

920
2

1,528

1,812

1,242
19

284
27

21
6
4
6

25
6
2

21

32
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7. TAXATION
Analysis of charge in the year:
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Current tax reconciliation
Loss on ordinary activities before tax
Current tax at apportioned standard
rate for the year – 19% (2019/20 19%)
Affected by:
- Corporation tax exemption
Total current tax charge

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

0
0

0
0

0

0

(4,063)

(6,053)

(772)

(1,150)

786

1,167

14

17

IT Systems
and
software
£’000

£’000

Cost
At 1st April 2020

489

489

At 31st March 2021

489

489

Depreciation
At 1st April 2020
Charge for the period

(489)
-

(489)
-

At 31st March 2021

(489)

(489)

At 31st March 2020

-

-

At 31st March 2021

-

-

8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
GROUP AND COMPANY

Total

Net book value

The IT system intangibles relate to the Customer Relations Mgt system.
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9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
GROUP

Assets Under
Construction
£’000

Freehold
Land and
Buildings
£’000

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

£’000

67
(67)

35,379
2,543
67

4,852
130
(64)

40,298
2,673
(64)

At 31st March 2021

-

37,989

4,918

42,907

Depreciation
At 1st April 2020
Charge for the period
Disposals

-

(1,267)
(482)
-

(3,767)
(157)
40

(5,034)
(639)
40

At 31st March 2021

-

(1,749)

(3,884)

(5,633)

Net book value
At 31st March 2020

67

34,112

1,085

35,264

At 31st March 2021

-

36,240

1,034

37,274

Assets Under
Construction
£’000

Freehold
Land and
Buildings
£’000

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
At 1st April 2020
Additions
Disposals

-

31,503
1,565
-

4,852
130
(64)

36,355
1,695
(64)

At 31st March 2021

-

33,068

4,918

37,986

Depreciation
At 1st April 2020
Charge for the period
Disposals

-

(1,190)
(458)
-

(3,767)
(157)
40

(4,957)
(615)
40

At 31st March 2021

-

(1,648)

(3,884)

(5,532)

Net book value
At 31st March 2020

-

30,313

1,085

31,398

At 31st March 2021

-

31,420

1,034

32,454

Cost
At 1st April 2020
Additions
Disposals

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
COMPANY

The company has pledged land, buildings and vehicles having a net book value of £32.243
million (2019/20: £27.176m), to secure its loans (note 19) by way of a fixed charge.
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
GROUP AND COMPANY
Group
2021
Fair value
£’000
At 1st April 2020
20,079
Additions relating to external acquisitions
125
Additions relating to Assets under
construction
3,143
Transfers from Tangible fixed assets
Sales to NCHEL
Revaluation
1,757

Group
2020
£’000
11,891
1,863

Company
2021
£’000
13,955
125

3,524
2,801

516
(11,480)
-

At 31st March 2021

20,079

3,116

25,104

Company
2020
£’000
11,891
1,863

201

13,955

Investment property comprises freehold land and buildings. The fair value of the Group’s
investment property at 31 March 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of the acquisition and
refurbishment costs. Investment properties are initially measured at cost and revalued to fair value
at each reporting date as appropriate. At 31 March 2021, the fair value of investment properties
reflects the independent valuation carried out at that date. The Company holds in its investment
properties, four 999 years leases with the City Council on five buildings acquired at a capital cost
of £1.734m (2019/20: Three 999 years leases – £1.609m).
11. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The Company’s subsidiary undertakings are:
Name of undertaking
Nottingham City Homes
Enterprises Limited

Class of shareholding
Ordinary Two
1p shares

Nottingham City Homes
N/A – Limited
Registered Provider Limited by guarantee

Nature of Business Address
Property lettings
Loxley House
(market rent)
Station Street
Nottingham NG2 3NJ
Property lettings
As above
(social housing)

The financial statements of Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Limited and Nottingham
City Homes Enterprises Limited are prepared to 31st March 2021. Nottingham City Homes
Enterprises Limited has taken the exemption in section 479 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act)
from the requirements of the Act for their accounts to be audited. The guarantee given by the
Company under section 479 is disclosed in note 26.
12. STOCKS
GROUP AND COMPANY
Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

2021
£’000
615
438

2020
£’000
646
392

1,053

1,038
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13. DEBTORS: amounts falling due within one year

Trade debtors
Amounts owed by parent undertaking (note 30)
Amounts owed by subsidiaries (note 30)
Other taxes and social security
Prepayments and accrued income

Group
2021
£’000
619
45
528
1,192

14. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENT

Cash held by NCC

Group
2021
£’000
-

Group Company Company
2020
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
£’000
1,196
450
1,029
406
460
2,436
7,239
233
243
390
528
344
2,225
Group
2020
£’000
-

3,414

9,315

Company Company
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
-

The balance held by NCC in separate bank accounts to the order of the Group in
2019/20, was overdrawn (see Note 17 below).
15. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
GROUP AND COMPANY
Contracts in progress at the reporting date:
Gross amounts due from contract customers
Gross amounts due to contract customers

Contract turnover recognised during the year

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

209
(360)

163
(180)

(151)

(17)

1,434

163

16. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
The figures disclosed on the balance sheet represent petty cash balances of
£1k (2019/20 £5k) and cash held in bank accounts of £15,673k. Cash held in
bank accounts for the Company total £15,272k.

17. CREDITORS: amounts falling due within 1 year
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to parent undertaking (note 30)
Amounts owed to subsidiaries (note 30)
Other taxes and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Grants
Overdrawn cash (account held by NCC)

Group
2021
£’000
2,945
3,104
554
3,997
15
10,615

Group Company Company
2020
2021 s 2020
£’000
£’000
£’000
1,117
2,874
1,098
234
17
3,089
448
554
448
2,144
3,688
1,914
5
10
12,660
13,832
16,391

10,449

17,292
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18. CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Intercompany loans (note 19)
Grants

Group
2021
£’000
49,187
858

Included in creditors are :
Amounts repayable in instalments falling due
after more than five years

19. BORROWING

50,045

26,763

27,066

22,958

46,606

24,448

25,259

21,173

Group
2021
£’000

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
- Intercompany Parent loans
Creditors: amounts due after more than 1 year
- Intercompany Parent loans

Group Company Company
2020
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
£’000
26,245
26,994
22,932
518
72
26

Group
2020
£’000

Company Company
2021
2020
£’000
£’000

333

516

202

502

49,187

26,245

26,994

22,932

49,520

26,761

27,196

23,434

Included in creditors are :
Annuity loans from NCC are repayable over 30, 40 & 50 years with interest set at
fixed rates between 2.87% and 4.94%. Loan principal and accrued interest on the
outstanding balances are repaid every 6 months. Borrowings are secured against
the land, buildings & vehicles of the Company (as detailed in notes 9 and 10).
20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group and Company holds trade debtors, cash and accrued income financial
assets and trade creditors, accruals and loan financial liabilities that are all
measured at amortised cost. The balances are disclosed in the respective notes.

21. PROVISIONS
GROUP AND COMPANY
Employment Tribunals
Disrepair Cases

Opening Utilised
Balance
in the
Year
£’000
£’000
168
(55)
168

(55)

Charge
for the
Year
£’000
135
80
215

Released Closing
as Balance
Unused
£’000
£’000
248
80
-

328

Employment Tribunals
Potential obligations from pending employment Tribunals. The provision reflects
an estimate of the transfer of economic benefits which will occur in 2021.
Disrepair Cases – Potential obligations & costs from claims by tenants.
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GROUP AND COMPANY
As from 1st April 2005, the Company became an admitted member of the Local
Government Superannuation Scheme, a funded defined benefit scheme. A full
actuarial valuation was undertaken as at 31st March 2004 and a triennial actuarial
valuation as at 31st March 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. The principal
actuarial assumptions used by the actuaries for the purposes of the FRS 102
calculations are as follows:
2021
% p.a
RPI increases
3.2
CPI increases
2.9
Salary increases
3.9
Pension increases
2.9
Discount rate
2.0
ASSETS

2020
% p.a
2.7
1.9
2.9
1.9
2.4

2019
% p.a
3.4
2.4
3.9
2.4
2.4

The set of demographic assumptions adopted are consistent with those used for
the most recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31st March 2019. The
post retirement mortality tables adopted are the S3PA tables with a multiplier of
110% for males and 105% for females. These base tables are then projected
using the CMI 2020 Model, allowing for a long term rate of improvement of 1.25%
p.a., smoothing parameter of 7.5 and an initial addition to improvement of 0.5%
p.a. and a 2020 weighting of 25%.
The assumed life expectancy of a male member retiring on 31st March 2021
and reaching age 65 in 2041 is 21.6 and 22.9 years respectively (2019/20 –
21.8 years for someone retiring on 31st March 2020 and 23.2 years for
someone reaching 65 in 2040). The life expectancy of female members retiring
on 31st March 2021 and reaching age 65 in 2041 is 24.3 and 25.7 years
respectively (2019/20 – 24.4 years for someone retiring on 31st March 2020 and
25.8 years for someone reaching 65 in 2040). It has been assumed that:
•
•
•

Members will exchange pension to get 50% of the maximum available
cash on retirement;
Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which
will be the pension weighted average tranche retirement age; and
The proportion of membership that had taken up the 50:50 option at the
previous valuation date will remain the same.

The amounts charged or (credited) to profit, or loss, are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service costs
Net interest on defined liability
Administration expenses

2021
£’000
9,016
1,993
73
______________

Total

_____________

11,082

2020
£’000
8,743
2,149
2,135
75
_________

__________________

13,102
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS – continued
The amounts charged or credited in profit or loss were included in operating
expenses – staff costs i.e. within operating profit, with the exception of interest
on obligation and the expected return on Scheme assets which were netted off
and charged to interest payable. The expected return on assets is based on the
discount rate.

Actual return on Scheme assets

2021
£’000
36,499

2020
£’000
16,877

In 2021/22 it is anticipated that the expected pension scheme employer
contributions will be £5.287 million. The major categories of Scheme asset, as
a percentage of the total Scheme assets, are as follows:

Equities
Gilts
Other Bonds
Property
Cash
Other

2021
%
64
4
7
11
5
9
______________________

Total

100

2020
%
64
3
9
13
2
9
-_________________

100

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Service cost
Interest cost
Change in financial assumptions
Change in demographic assumptions
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation
Estimated benefits paid (net of transfers in)
Past service costs, including curtailments
Contributions by Scheme participants
Unfunded pension payments

2021
£’000
254,344
9,016
5,932
84,080
(2,723)
(2,971)
(5,578)
1,755
(3)
_______

Closing defined benefit obligation

343,852

2020
£’000
276,784
8,743
6,583
(31,809)
(4,677)
1,569
(6,619)
2,149
1,624
(3)
_______

254,344
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS – continued
Changes in the fair value of Fund assets:
Opening fair value of Fund assets

2021
£’000
167,156

2020
£’000
185,831

3,939
32,560
4,742
(73)
1,755

4,448
(21,325)
(722)
3,997
(75)
1,624

Interest on assets
Return on assets less interest
Other actuarial losses
Contributions by employers including unfunded benefits
Administration expenses
Contributions by Fund participants
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of
transfers in
Fair value of assets at end of period

(5,581)

(6,622)

_______

_______

204,498

167,156

The overall change in the pension scheme deficit is therefore as follows:

Deficit brought forward
Current service cost
Employer contributions
Past service costs, including curtailments
Unfunded pension payments
Net interest on the defined liability
Administration Expenses
Re-measurement of the
net assets (defined liability)
Deficit at end of period

2021
£’000
(87,188)
(9,016)
4,739
3
(1,993)
(73)

2020
£’000
(90,953)
(8,743)
3,994
(2,149)
3
(2,135)
(75)

(45,826)

12,870

(139,354)

(87,188)

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
2021
2020
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

2017
£’000

Fair value of Scheme assets 204,498 167,156 185,831 168,066 162,976
Present value of the
defined benefit obligation
(343,852) (254,344) (276,784) (266,206) (259,081)
_____________________

Net defined benefit liability
Return on Fund assets
less interest

____________

__

________ ____ __

__________ __ __

____________

__

(139,354) (87,188) (90,953) (98,140) (96,105)

32,560

(21,325)

12,594

(197)

25,481

The cumulative actuarial losses recognised in the statement of changes in equity
at 31 March 2021 are £98.279 million (2020: £52.453m).
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
The Company is limited by guarantee and the liability of members to contribute
to any deficiency of assets is £1 per member. The members have no rights to
the income or assets of the Company.

At 1st April 2020
Total comprehensive income
Revaluation of Investment properties

Group
Group Company Company
Total
Profit and
Total Profit and
loss
loss
reserve
reserve
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
(71,899) (71,899) (71,895) (71,895)
(49,903) (49,903) (49,992) (49,992)
1,757
1,757
-

At 31st March 2021

(120,045) (120,045) (121,887) (121,887)

24. RESERVES

25. RECONCILIATION OF LOSS AFTER TAX
TO NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS
Loss after tax

Group
2021
£’000

Group CompanyCompany
2020
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
£’000

(4,077) (6,070)

(4,166)

(6,130)

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets

-

-

-

-

639

920

585

878

4,347

6,970

4,347

6,970

160

47

160

47

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

2

2

2

2

Interest receivable

-

-

-

(52)

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Defined benefit pension schemes
Increase in provisions

Interest payable
Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in stock & work in
progress

3,306

________

3,213

________

2,786

_______

3,085

________

4,377

5,082

3,714

4,800

(15)

(339)

(15)

(339)

Decrease / (Increase) in debtors

1,033 (1,502)

5,901

(8,550)

Increase / (Decrease) in creditors

6,049 (4,909)

7,200

(4,863)

CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATIONS 11,444 (1,668)

16,800

(8,952)
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26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Single status aims to make sure all employees are rewarded equally for work done
of equal value. As a result of the single status exercise undertaken by the Company,
some employees have seen an increase or decrease in their pay and the latter
received some pay protection. All employees have now moved onto their new pay
scales under the new pay scheme and there are no outstanding appeals or claims for
compensation or back-dated pay.
A claim against the Company for costs of £492k has been made by a supplier in
relation to charges levied for the period August and September 2018. These charges
are refuted and disputed by the Company and the dispute is currently being handled
by NCH legal and has been referred to both the Police and the Regulator.
In order for the subsidiary company Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited to
take the audit exemption in section 479 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company
has guaranteed all outstanding liabilities of both subsidiary companies at 31 March
2021 until those liabilities are satisfied in full.
27. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
GROUP
The Group as a lessee is committed to total future
minimum lease payments as follows:

Amounts due:
- Within one year
- between one & five years

Land and
buildings
2021 2020
£’000 £’000
1,235
838
341 1,635
1,576

2,473

Plant and
machinery
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
6
11
6

11

The Company has no Land & Building lease commitments.
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided for in the financial statements

2,553

2,361

The Group has capital commitments relating to the construction of 21 homes on
the Meadows Police Station site. This contract total cost is £3.240m against
which expenditure of £0.687m have been made or accrued up to 31st March
2021. The Company has no capital commitments.
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29. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING
The Company is a subsidiary limited by guarantee and controlled by NCC, a
local government organisation. Under the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, NCC appoints one quarter of the board (2 of the 8 Members), with
the balance of directors being drawn from Council tenants, or leaseholders, and
members of the wider community. NCC’s Group accounts can be obtained from
the NCC Information Governance department at the Council’s address on page
2.
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group has related party transactions with NCC. The majority of the turnover
and other income is invoiced to NCC (or its agents) and NCC provides a range
of services to the Company. During the year, £62.476 million, (2019/20:
£63.229m) was invoiced to NCC for housing stock management, the repair of
homes and recharges for services. An amount of £12.856 million (2019/20:
£13.717m) was charged by NCC for services provided to the Company and
repayment of loans.
The balance of the turnover in the main represents amounts invoiced to tenants
for rechargeable works and services. The net amount owed by NCC as at the
year-end is shown in the analysis of creditors and is further analysed
below. All operational building assets used by the Company are owned
by NCC and a rent is charged by NCC to the Company in respect of these.
The amount due to the parent undertaking, as shown in the analysis of debtors
is a net figure. The Company has related party transactions with its subsidiaries,
NCH RP Ltd and NCH EL. The individual balances are presented below.

Trade and other debtors
Intercompany loans (due within 1 year)
Trade and other creditors
Intercompany loans (due within 1 year)
Grant (due within 1 year)

Group (NCC) NCH balances
Balances with
with
NCH
subsidiaries
2021
2020
2021
2020
£’000
£000
£000
£000
11,325
5,248
2,553
7,402
500
(10,945)
(4,319)
(117)
(663)
(333)
(516)
(2)
(7)
-

Intercompany loans (due after 1 year)
Grant (due after 1 year)

45
(49,188)
(117)

406
(26,245)
(145)

2,436
-

7,239
-

(49,260)

(25,984)

2,436

7,239
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The directors have elected not to disclose any further details of transactions and
balances with its subsidiary companies under the exemptions for local government
controlled groups of companies set out in paragraph 33.11 of FRS 102.
31. REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The total remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Group and Company,
who are considered to be the key management personnel, was £444k (2019/20
£639k). These costs reflect only those of the Directors and Company Secretary
of the Executive Management Team, a set out on page 1.
None of the non-executive directors received any remuneration or taxable
benefits for their services to the Group and none were members of the NCH
pension scheme.
The only transactions between the Company and key management personnel
were salaries and the reimbursement of employee expenses, as disclosed in
this note. No amounts were owed at the balance sheet date.
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For the attention of Nottingham City Homes’ Board
Nottingham City Homes
Loxley House
Nottingham
NG2 3NJ

Tel: 0115 876 3649
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

C.C. Nathan Coughlin – Partner Bishop Fleming

17th June 2021
Dear Sirs,

Nottingham City Homes Limited (Group): Period ended 31st March 2021
We are writing to the Nottingham City Homes Group of Companies (NCH) in relation to
the consolidated financial statements and reports for the period ended 31st March 2021
and assurance from the City Council to enable the NCH Board to form its opinion on
NCH being able to continue as a going concern. We understand that your external
auditors will also be relying on this letter for the purposes of their audit.
Deficiency of assets
Due to the requirements of FRS102 Section 28 ‘Employee Benefits’ the financial
statements of NCH show a loss for the financial year and an overall deficit of members
funds. We understand that NCH will continue to record such deficits for the foreseeable
future.
We confirm that Nottingham City Council will continue to assist NCH in meeting their
pension fund liabilities as and when they fall due, but only to the extent that money is not
otherwise available to NCH to meet such liabilities. We confirm that we will provide the
financial support outlined above for a period up to 31st July 2022 which, based on the
proposed signing date of the NCH financial statements for the year end 31st March 2021,
shall cover a 12 month period. We will also take this into account when assessing the
appropriate level of Housing Revenue Account balances. We undertake to inform NCH
immediately in the event that circumstances change in a manner such that it would or
might no longer be open to us to continue to provide such financial support.
The Partnering agreement between the Council and NCH gives the Council the right to
determine the agreement in certain circumstances. We confirm, however, that the
Council will not exercise its rights under the Partnering agreement to determine the
contract as a result of the deficiency of assets in this year’s accounts. To the extent that

we also confirm that the Council does not intend to exercise its right to determine the
contract as a result of any future deficits arising from the requirements of FRS102.
Partnership agreement
A 30 year Partnering agreement between Nottingham City Council and NCH is in place
and was signed on 1st September 2020.
Management fee
Housing Revenue Account NCH management and repairs fees of £22,649,000 and
£26,884,000 were confirmed by the Council’s Executive Board on the 18th February 2020
and was invoiced by and paid to NCH during the financial year. Management and repairs
fees have been derived in the manner required in accordance with the management
contract between the Council and NCH.
We can confirm that the management and repairs fees stated above have been
accounted for as intra-group transactions within the Council’s 2020/2021 group
accounts.
We confirm that the management fee payable under the management agreement will be
set at an adequate level to enable NCH to continue to provide the services under the
Partnership agreement. The level of the management fee will be arrived at through joint
process, taking into account the financial needs of NCH, the resources adjudged to be
available within the Council’s Housing Revenue Account and the Council’s medium term
financial strategy.
The management fee for the 2021/22 financial year is £22,852,000 confirmed by the
Council’s Executive Board on 16th February 2021 and the repairs fee agreed is
£26,739,000.
Other fees
In addition to the management and repairs fees above, further fees have been paid to
NCH during the financial year relating to:
Capital Fees and Works
Recharges for services & other funding

£12,050,350
£ 2,385,000

Charges of £12,856,222 were levied by NCC in 2020/21. Of these charges £10,210,412
were in relation to services provided or managed by NCC during the period, £1,492,000
was a refund and £1,153,810 was for repayment of loans.
We can confirm that the fees and charges stated above have been accounted for as
intra-group transactions within the Council’s 2020/2021 group accounts.
Provision of support
The Council will ensure that NCH continues to enjoy unrestricted access to the funds
held on its behalf within the Council’s banking arrangements.

Funds held on behalf of NCH
At 31st March 2021, the Council held no cash funds on behalf of NCH.
Amounts due from NCC
General
As at 31st March 2021 NCC owed NCH £46,755 relating to net trade creditor related
balances.
We can confirm that the net amount owed to NCH above has been accounted for as
intra-group balances within the Council’s 2020/2021 group accounts, consisting of
£11,325k that NCC owed NCH and £11,278k that NCH owed NCC or NCC paid in
advance.
Loan Amounts due to NCC
Loans
As at 31st March 2021, NCH has borrowing from the City Council of £49,520,288. The
original terms of repayment of the 14 loans were 30 (2 loans), 40 (6 loans) and 50 (6
loans) years
The City Council has a loan balance in respect of NCH loans of £49,483,603 and this
includes an invoice raised late March which has been accounted for in NCH creditors.
We can confirm that the loan amount above has been accounted for as an intra-group
balance within the Council’s 2020/2021 group accounts.
Grants
NCH holds grant from NCC of £118,614 which has yet to amortised to the I&E.
Post Balance Sheet Events
We confirm that loans required by NCH from the City Council to support the cost of
Landlord activity and New Build schemes under construction in 2021/22 across the NCH
Group, shall be made available as approved by NCC to ensure NCH and its subsidiary
companies can each continue as a going concern and have adequate cashflow
For and on behalf of Nottingham City Council

Corporate Director, Finance & Resources

Nottingham City Homes Limited
Loxley House
Nottingham
NG2 3NJ
Bishop Fleming LLP
Salt Quay House
4 North East Quay
Sutton Harbour
Plymouth
Devon
PL4 0BN

Company number: 05292636

Date: 24th June 2021

Dear Sirs
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant
knowledge and experience such as we consider necessary in connection with your audit of Nottingham
City Homes Limited (the company’s) financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021. These
enquiries have included inspection of supporting documentation where appropriate and are sufficient
to satisfy ourselves that we can make each of the following representations. All representations are
made to the best of our knowledge and belief.

1. Responsibility for the financial statements
We have fulfilled our responsibilities as directors under the Companies Act 2006 for preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.
2. Completeness of information
All the transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the
accounting records. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of
your audit. We have provided you with unrestricted access to all appropriate persons within the
company, and with all other records and related information requested, including minutes of all
management and shareholder meetings.
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.
3. Internal control and fraud
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control systems to prevent and detect fraud and error. We have disclosed to you the results of our
assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
We have disclosed to you all instances of known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving
management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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We have also disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.
4. Laws and regulations
We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.
5. Legal claims
We have disclosed to you all claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to
be, received and such matters, as appropriate, have been properly accounted for and disclosed in
the financial statements.
6. Transactions with directors and other related parties
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed
in the financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant information concerning such
relationships and transactions and are not aware of any other matters which require disclosure in
order to comply with the requirements of company law or accounting standards.
In addition, the company has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on behalf
of, directors other than those disclosed in the financial statements.
7. Control
We confirm that Nottingham City Council is the immediate and ultimate controlling party.
8. 51% Group companies
Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited is the only 51% related company for tax purposes.
We understand that companies are part of a ‘51% group’ where they, directly or indirectly, own
more than 50% of a company or are owned more than 50% by a company for any part of the period.
We also understand that a 51% group also applies to companies that are each owned more than
50% by the same company. For these purposes, ownership is determined by ownership of the
ordinary share capital.
9. Going concern
We believe that the company's financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis
on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for
the company's needs. We also confirm our plans for future action required to enable the company
to continue as a going concern are feasible. We have considered a period of twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements.
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the company's ability to continue as a going
concern need to be made in the financial statements.
10. Accounting Estimates and Fair Values
The methods, data and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, and
their related disclosures, are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that
is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.
11. Subsequent events
All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or disclosure
have been properly accounted for and disclosed.
12. Assets and liabilities

The company has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the
company’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
All actual liabilities, contingent liabilities and guarantees given to third parties have been recorded
or disclosed as appropriate.
We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value and, where relevant, the
fair value measurements or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial
statements.
13. Stock
The value of the stores stock at the year-end was £615k. We confirm that all relevant information
has been made available to you concerning the quantity and value of stock. In our opinion, all stock,
wherever situated, has been accurately counted and appropriately valued. We have considered the
need for provisions in respect of obsolete or damaged stock, making provision as necessary. All
stock belongs to the company.
14. Transfer of properties in year
We confirm that in our opinion the valuation of the investment properties held on the balance sheet
at year end are appropriate. We also confirm that, for the assets transferred from Nottingham City
Homes to Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited during the year, the gain on the revaluation
has been allocated appropriately between the entities pre and post transfer.

We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as auditors and
confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information needed by you in connection
with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.
Each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are aware of that information.

Yours faithfully

.....................................................................

.....................................................................

Signed on behalf of the board of directors.

Malcolm Sharp
Chair of the Board
Director

Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham NG2 3NJ

Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Ltd
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NJ
24th June 2021

Dear Sirs
We confirm that NCH as parent company of Nottingham City Homes Registered
Provider Ltd (NCH RP) will provide financial support to NCH RP as required for a
period of at least 18 months from the date of this letter.
The financial support includes, but is not limited to provision of working capital
funding through intercompany balances and any other funding required to settle in
full and by the due date all valid creditors or claims and ensure that the company
remains a going concern.
We acknowledge that this letter will also be relied upon by Bishop Fleming LLP the
company’s auditors when considering their proposed audit report for the year ended
31 March 2021 in respect of going concern.
Yours faithfully
Signed on behalf of the board of Nottingham City Homes Limited

Malcolm Sharp
Chair of the Board
Director
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ITEM: 2.3
NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES LIMITED

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES REGISTERED
PROVIDER LIMITED
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

A Management Agreement between Nottingham City Homes Limited (NCH) and
Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider (NCH RP) is proposed. It will be for a
renewable five year term and details the services that NCH delivers to NCH RP in
managing the RP’s homes. It also prescribes the NCH RP Board oversight of the
120 NCH-owned homes let at sub-market rents in accordance with the Board
structure property and tenancy management accountabilities that were approved
by the Group Board on 30 January 2020.

1.2

Fees for services to be delivered to NCH RP in 2021/22 were agreed by the NCH
RP Board on 2 March 2021. The Management Agreement proposes that fees and
charges are reviewed and agreed annually and are index-linked to the Regulator of
Social Housing’s Rent Standard.

1.3

The Management Agreement was approved by the NCH RP Board on 9 June
2021. This report seeks approval of the NCH Group Board to formalise this
Management Agreement.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Considers and comments on this report.

2.2

Approves the Management Agreement between NCH and NCH RP for a
renewable five year term.

2.3

Delegates signing of the Management Agreement to the Chief Executive of NCH.

3

REPORT

3.1

NCH provides landlord services, repair and maintenance services and intensive
housing management to NCH RP and its residents, but to date there has not been
a formal Management Agreement in place.

3.2

The proposed Management Agreement in Appendix 1 clarifies the responsibilities
of both parties, the services provided, the performance expected and monitoring
measures in place. It has four parts and three appendices:
• Part A; Services delivered by NCH to NCH RP
• Part B; Services delivered by the NCH RP Board to NCH
• Part C; Lease rental and fee review
• Part D; Administration

•
•
•

Appendix 1; Properties to which this agreement applies
Appendix 2; NCH Group governance structure chart
Appendix 3; NCH Service Standard links.

3.3

On 30 January 2020, the NCH Group Board approved property and tenancy
management accountabilities for the new Board structure, with effect from April
2020. This is detailed in Appendix 2 of the Management Agreement. The report
stated “the NCH RP Board will be responsible for all Registered Provider business
– those owned by NCH RP under freehold or managed by NCH RP under
leasehold agreements. It is also proposed that the NCH RP Board will take
responsibility for the ‘social rent’ homes owned by NCH. This proposal was agreed
in principle at the NCH RP Away Day on 4 December 2019. A Management
Agreement will be written with clear responsibilities for NCH RP and NCH”.

3.4

The NCH RP Board will perform an oversight role for the 120 NCH homes under
Part B of the agreement, specifically; “to monitor and comment on all aspects of
performance delivered by NCH, including but not limited to financial, key
performance indicators and legislative compliance……. . and to report any
concerns as they find them” (to the Group Board).

3.5

These 120 homes are not owned or managed by NCH RP and no legal or financial
rights or obligations are conferred by this Agreement. The NCH Group Board has
asked the NCH RP Board to oversee these homes because they have a closer fit
to the NCH RP portfolio of affordable rent homes than either the ALMO Board
(Council-owned homes only) or Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited
(NCHEL) Board (commercial market rent homes). We are actively exploring ways
for NCH RP to purchase the 120 NCH owned homes to increase the stock-holding
of the RP.

4.0

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

All fees for services to be delivered by NCH to NCH RP in 2021/22 have been
approved by the NCH RP Board at their meeting of 2 March 2021.

4.1.2

Annual increases in fees and charges are indexed to those prescribed by the
RoSH’s Rent Standard and associated Policy Statement. A collar is proposed to
provide no reduction in fees should the Regulator require a rent reduction in the
future. Provision has been made for considering the remission of fees, or part fees,
where an aspect of the service has not been delivered due to outside factors on the
agreement of both parties.

4.1.3

Fees and charges are proposed to the NCH RP Board annually in advance with a
recommendation for approval.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

This Management Agreement is supplementary to the NCH Intra-Group
Agreement, dated 1 April 2016.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

The Management Agreement provides for NCH RP to identify and manage the
risks that present to 120 NCH owned homes. Where unacceptable risks present in
relation to these homes, the NCH RP Board will notify the NCH Group Board.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

This Management Agreement formalises the arrangements that currently exist
between NCH and NCH RP, enabling the safe occupation of NCH tenants and of
NCH RP tenants and licensees.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
No (An EIA will be considered during the running of the pilot scheme, should
that be agreed.)

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN
COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

NCH Group Board of 30 January 2020.

7.2

The Nottingham City Homes intra-group agreement, dated 1 April 2016.

7.3

Appendix 1 – NCH RP Management Agreement with NCH Ltd

Contact officers:

Date: 10 JUNE 2021

Name: Mark Lawson, Executive Assistant
Address: Loxley House Nottingham NG2 3NJ
Tel: 0115 7469411
E-mail: mark.lawson@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

Management Agreement:
between

Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Limited
and

Nottingham City Homes Limited
Management
Agreement

Between Nottingham City Homes (NCH) Limited and
Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider (NCHRP)
Limited

Period Covered

1 July 2021 to 30 June 2026

Service(s) to be
provided

A. Provision of housing management services, repairs and
maintenance services and support services by
Nottingham City Homes (NCH) Limited to Nottingham
City Homes Registered Provider (NCHRP) Limited
B. Provision of NCHRP Board oversight of 120 homes
owned and let by NCH for sub-market rent

Lead Officer(s)

NCH Ltd:

………………..

NCHRP Ltd: ………………..
Review

Annually

Version

25/05/2021

THIS AGREEMENT is made the

day of

2021

BETWEEN NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES REGISTERED PROVIDER LIMITED Company
Number 09810057, registered address at Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham,
Nottinghamshire NG2 3NJ (called the "NCHRP" in this Agreement)
AND NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES LIMITED, Company Number 5292636, registered
address at Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire NG2 3NJ (called the
"NCH" in this Agreement)
In this Agreement, NCHRP delegates management and maintenance responsibilities of its
homes to NCH and appoints NCH as its Agent to manage the properties listed in the
Appendix 1 to this Agreement.
In addition, NCHRP agrees to undertake a Board oversight role of 120 homes owned by
NCH and let at sub-market rent.
NCHRP and NCH agree to abide by the terms of this Agreement which are set out in Parts
A, B, C and D and associated appendices that detail the arrangements agreed between
NCHRP and NCH and form part of this Agreement.
Signed .........................................................................................
for and on behalf of Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider limited
Name …………………………………………………………………
Position…………………………………………………………………
Date ..........................................................................................
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Signed .........................................................................................
for and on behalf of Nottingham City Homes Limited
Name …………………………………………………………………
Position…………………………………………………………………
Date ..........................................................................................
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Introduction
This Management Agreement (Agreement) is made between Nottingham City Homes
Limited (“NCH”) and Nottingham City Homes Limited Registered Provider Limited,
(“NCHRP”) for the provision of housing management services, repairs and maintenance
services and support services ad monitoring arrangements, as set out in this Agreement, for
the period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2026.
NCHRP is a Private Registered Provider of Social Housing, Registration Number 4862. It is
part of the NCH Group of companies that also includes NCH Limited; an Arms-length
Management Organisation and landlord in its own right, and NCH Enterprises Limited; a
commercial subsidiary.
NCHRP has a mixed portfolio of permanent and temporary homes (listed in Appendix 1),
some owned, some leased, some on a Licence or Tenancy at Will basis. There are further
prior approvals to secure more properties that will be covered by this Agreement.
NCH provides all landlord services on behalf of NCHRP to their tenants and licensees, with
some specific exceptions; where temporary accommodation is sourced through the Private
Sector Leasing scheme, the provider is responsible for repairs over £500 per annum and in
Corporate Serviced Leasing accommodation where the provider is responsible for all
repairs, building safety compliance, void turnaround and furniture provision.
NCH owns a portfolio of 120 homes let at sub-market rents which the NCHRP Board
oversees on behalf of the NCH Group Board.

Management Agreement Contents
Part A

Responsibilities delivered under this agreement by NCH to
NCHRP

Page 3

Part B

Responsibilities delivered under this agreement by NCHRP to
NCH

Page 13

Part C

Lease Rental and Fee Review

Page 13

Part D

Administration

Page 13

Appendix 1

Properties to which this agreement applies

Page 15

Appendix 2

NCH Group governance structure chart

Page 27

Appendix 3

NCH Service Standard links

Page 28
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Part A; Responsibilities delivered under this agreement by NCH to NCHRP
NCH will undertake all landlord functions, including but not limited to activities detailed in (a)
to (w) below and read in conjunction with tables 1 to 7 that follow. The tables detail the
differing responsibilities in accordance with the various sourcing arrangements of temporary
accommodation.
1. NCH will:
a) Maintain the homes, ensuring they are safe and legislatively compliant;
i. where maintenance of homes is an NCH responsibility
ii. where NCH does not have the responsibility to undertake legislatively checks (gas,
electricity, smoke and CO detectors, fire safety checks, water checks), NCH will
monitor compliance and documentation to ensure NCHRP is compliant
b) Keep the property in good repair, maintaining homes to the NCH Group Repair Service
Standards, where maintenance of homes is an NCH responsibility
c) Advertise, shortlist and allocate NCHRP assured tenancies
d) Complete CORE returns
e) Receive nominations of households in housing need to allocate to temporary
accommodation
f) Explain tenancy and licence agreements and housing and support services provided
g) Provide advice and assistance so residents are able to meet their tenancy or licence
obligations and sustain their occupation
h) Charge, collect and recover rent
i) Assist residents to claim Universal Credit, Housing Benefit & deal with benefit enquiries
to ensure the rent is paid
j) Provide a dedicated Customer Contact Centre to deal with all enquiries, including 24/7
repair reporting, complaints and comments
k) Provide a dedicated Housing Patch Manager as a key contact for assured tenants for all
aspects of housing management
l) Provide a dedicated Temporary Accommodation Officer as a key contact for licensees
living in NCHRP temporary accommodation and to deliver an intensive housing
management service that will;
i. Help licensees sign up for utility accounts for gas, electricity, water and Council Tax
ii. Provide budgeting advice to licensees
iii. Assist licensees in reporting repairs promptly
iv. Check that the property and furniture are kept in good condition
v. Provide signposting to additional services and statutory agencies as required
vi. Advise and assist with permanent housing options, enabling a throughput of
temporary accommodation and reducing repeat homelessness
vii. Keep records of advice and assistance provided to assist licensees.
m)Provide and maintain/ replace as necessary, furniture and kitchen appliances in
temporary accommodation leased from NCH Limited (dispersed) and leased from private
landlords through the Private Sector Leasing scheme
n) Promptly undertake void works (where responsible) to ensure a quick turnaround
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o) Deliver all services to NCHRP and its residents in accordance with all NCH Group
service standards and policies (see Appendix 3)
p) Manage risk and monitor key performance indicators and report to the NCHRP Board on
a quarterly basis
q) Monitor NCHRP budgets and report forecast and outturn to the NCHRP Board
r) Act as data processor for NCHRP data and comply with its obligations under the General
Data Protection Regulations
s) Manage customer feedback and complaints and undertake all statutory or non-statutory
consultation with NCHRP tenants and/ or licensees
t) Ensure compliance with all regulatory and statutory returns to the Regulator of Social
Housing, Homes England or the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government
u) Ensure NCHRP remains compliant with the Regulator of Social Housing’s Regulatory
Standards and lead on any audits or inspections
v) Complete all monitoring and money claim documentation as required by Homes England.
w) Actively look for opportunities to further the aims and ambitions of NCHRP, including new
housing provision
2. The varied property streams covered by this Agreement can be categorised as follows;
NCHRP
Ownership
Freehold

Freehold
Owner
NCHRP

Operational
Reference
NCHRP Assured

Table
Reference
1

NCHRP

Permanent
Use
or Temporary
Permanent
General
Needs
Temporary
Move-On

Freehold

NCHRP Move-On

1

Long Leasehold

NCC

Permanent

NCHRP Housing Led

1

Lease

NCH
Limited
NCH
Enterprises
Ltd
NCC

Temporary

NCHRP Dispersed
TA
NCHRP Serviced TA

2

Private
Sector
Landlords
Corporate
Landlords
Corporate
Landlords

Temporary

NCH
Limited

Permanent

Lease

Lease
Lease

Lease
Licence to
occupy/
Tenancy at Will
None;
Oversight only

Temporary

Temporary

Temporary
Temporary

Housing
Led
Homeless
TA
Homeless
TA

Homeless NCHRP Highwood
TA
Homeless NCHRP Private
TA
Sector Leasing
scheme (PSL)
Homeless NCHRP Serviced
TA
Leasing
Homeless NCHRP Serviced
TA
Licencing
General
Needs

120 NCH owned submarket rental homes

3

4
5

6
7

NA

Detailed responsibilities for each property stream are contained in tables 1 to 7 below;
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NCHRP holds a varied property portfolio; freehold and long lease, together with temporary
accommodation sourced from a number of different providers with specific lease or licence
obligations. The following tables detail responsibilities under the different property streams;
1.0

Permanent homes owned by NCHRP Freehold or long-term Lease from
Nottingham City Council

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

1.1

Advertising vacant NCHRP owned homes

NCH

In NCH fee

1.2

Shortlisting applicants and allocating NCHRP
assured tenancies

NCH

In NCH fee

1.3

Tenancy management

NCH

In NCH fee

1.4

CORE returns

NCH

In NCH fee

1.5

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

1.6

Dealing with breaches of tenancy

NCH

In NCH fee

1.7

Responsive repairs

NCH

NCHRP

1.8

Planned maintenance

NCH

NCHRP

1.9

Building safety compliance checks

NCH

In NCH fee

1.10 Provision of furniture for a furnished tenancy

NCH

NCHRP

1.11 Terminating assured tenancies

NCH

In NCH fee

1.12 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

1.13 Void repairs

NCH

NCHRP

1.14 Council Tax liability on Void

NCHRP

NCHRP

1.15 Void rent loss

NCHRP

NCHRP

1.17 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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2.0

Temporary accommodation Leased by NCHRP from NCH Limited (Dispersed)

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

2.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

2.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

2.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

2.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

2.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

NCH

In NCH fee

2.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

2.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

2.8

Responsive repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

2.9

Planned maintenance

NCH

In NCH fee

2.10 Building safety compliance checks

NCH

In NCH fee

2.11 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

2.12 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

2.13 Void repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

2.14 Council Tax liability on Void

NCHRP

NCHRP

2.15 Void rent loss

NCHRP

NCHRP

2.16 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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3.0

Temporary accommodation Leased by NCHRP from NCH Enterprises Limited
(Fairham House)

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

3.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

3.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

3.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

3.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

3.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

NCH

In NCH fee

3.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

3.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

3.8

Responsive repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

3.9

Planned maintenance

NCH

In NCH fee

3.10 Building safety compliance checks

NCH

In NCH fee

3.11 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

3.12 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

3.13 Void repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

3.14 Council Tax liability on Void

NCH

In NCH fee

3.15 Void rent loss

NCH

In NCH fee

3.16 Bad debt provision

NCH

In NCH fee
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4.0

Temporary accommodation Leased by NCHRP from Nottingham City Council
(Highwood)

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

4.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

4.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

4.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

4.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

4.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

NCH

In NCH fee

4.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

4.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

4.8

Responsive repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

4.9

Planned maintenance

NCH

HRA fee

4.10 Building safety compliance checks

NCH

In NCH fee

4.11 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

4.12 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

4.13 Void repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

4.14 Council Tax liability on Void

NCHRP

NCHRP

4.15 Void rent loss

NCHRP

NCHRP

4.16 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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5.0

Temporary accommodation Leased by NCHRP from Private Sector Landlords

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

5.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

5.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

5.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

5.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

5.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

NCH

In NCH fee

5.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

5.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

5.8

Responsive repairs up to £500 per annum

NCHRP

NCHRP

5.9

Responsive repairs over £500 per annum

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

5.10 Planned maintenance

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

5.11 Building safety compliance checks

NCH

LANDLORD

5.12 Building safety compliance monitoring

NCH

In NCH fee

5.13 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

5.14 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

5.15 Void repairs

NCH

In NCH fee

5.16 Council Tax liability on Void

NCHRP

NCHRP

5.17 Void rent loss

NCHRP

NCHRP

5.18 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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6.0

Temporary accommodation Leased by NCHRP from Corporate Landlords
(Serviced Leasing)

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

6.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

6.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

6.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

6.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

6.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

6.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

6.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

6.8

Responsive repairs

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

6.9

Planned maintenance

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

6.10 Building safety compliance checks

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

6.11 Building safety compliance monitoring

NCH

In NCH fee

6.12 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

6.13 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

6.14 Void repairs

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

6.15 Council Tax liability on Void

NCHRP

NCHRP

6.16 Void rent loss

NCHRP

NCHRP

6.17 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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7.0

Temporary accommodation taken by NCHRP from Corporate Landlords
(Serviced Licencing) on a Tenancy At Will or Licence basis

Ref

Responsibility

Responsible Responsible
Party
for Costs

7.1

Payment of lease rental

NCHRP

NCHRP

7.2

Allocating NCHRP daily licences to nominations
from households to whom Nottingham City Council
owes a housing duty under Part VII, Housing Act 96

NCH

In NCH fee

7.3

General licence management

NCH

In NCH fee

7.4

Provision of intensive housing management

NCH

In NCH fee

7.5

Provision of furniture and kitchen appliances

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.6

Rent and arrears management

NCH

In NCH fee

7.7

Dealing with breaches of licence conditions

NCH

In NCH fee

7.8

Responsive repairs

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.9

Planned maintenance

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.10 Building safety compliance checks

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.11 Building safety compliance monitoring

NCH

In NCH fee

7.12 Terminating licence agreement

NCH

In NCH fee

7.13 Void management

NCH

In NCH fee

7.14 Void repairs

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.15 Council Tax liability on Void

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.16 Void rent loss

LANDLORD

LANDLORD

7.17 Bad debt provision

NCHRP

NCHRP
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Part B; Responsibilities delivered under this Agreement by NCHRP to NCH
NCHRP will;
a) Pay NCH Limited the annual sums agreed, by the agreed instalments for;
i. Lease rentals for properties leased by NCH to NCHRP (dispersed homes)
ii. Lease rentals for properties leased by NCH Enterprises Limited to NCHRP (Fairham
House)
iii. Agreed fees and costs incurred by NCH in the delivery of its responsibilities under
this Management Agreement.
b) Monitor and comment on performance delivered by NCH for NCHRP owned, leased and
licenced accommodation under this agreement
c) Monitor and comment on building safety compliance as reported by NCH
d) Monitor, comment on and approve the NCHRP Risk Register at least annually
e) Monitor and comment on regulatory compliance as reported by NCH
f) For the 120 NCH owned sub-market rent homes, monitor and comment on all aspects of
performance delivered by NCH, including but not limited to financial, key performance
indicators and legislative compliance. These homes are not owned or managed by
NCHRP and no legal or financial rights or obligations are conferred by this Agreement,
but the NCH Group Board has asked that the NCHRP Board undertakes an oversight
role for the Group Board and to report any concerns as they find them.

Part C; Lease Rental and Fee Review
a) Both parties agree to review the lease rental and fees annually during the budget
preparation process.
b) If, on review, an aspect or extent of the proposed service has not been delivered (due to
lower than anticipated demand, for example) then consideration shall be given to
remitting the fees, or part fees, on agreement of both parties.
c) Annual increases should be no less than the prevailing September Consumer Prices
Index (CPI) value prior to the increase being applied the following April, with a collar to
prevent a reduction and a cap of CPI plus 1%, unless otherwise agreed by both parties.
d) Where new services are required, these will be subject to an additional charge to be
agreed.

Part D; Administration
a) Data Protection
NCHRP as data owner and NCH as data processor, agree to abide by the provisions of
General Data Protection Regulations and will sign a data sharing agreement.
b) Governance, Finance and Risk
NCH will ensure NCHRP conforms to the appropriate financial standards required by
company law, legislation and the Regulator of Social Housing’s Governance and
Financial Viability Standard and associated code of practice.
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c) Termination
i. This agreement may be terminated as follows:
a. By either party forthwith by written notice if the other should be formally
dissolved or cease operation, or in the case of NCHRP have its registration
withdrawn by the Regulator of Social Housing.
b. On the expiry of six months written notice given by either party to the other.
c. In the event of gross or fundamental breach of this Agreement by the service of
one week’s written notice by one party on the defaulting party.
d. By NCH forthwith upon written notice upon the failure by the NCHRP to pay any
sums due to NCH within 90 days of demand.
ii. Upon termination there shall be a full accounting between the parties hereto and
apportioned payments or repayments shall be made of all money paid in advance or
arrears on a time basis.
d) Indemnity
i. NCH shall indemnify NCHRP against any action, claim or demand against NCHRP
arising out of any failure of NCH to fulfil its responsibilities herein set out or imposed
upon it by statute or otherwise PROVIDED ALWAYS that the liability of NCH
hereunder (save for liability for negligence resulting in personal injury or death) to
NCHRP in respect of any such action, claim or demand shall not exceed the
aggregate of the management fee paid by NCHRP to NCH within the period of 12
months expiring upon the date of such action, claim or demand.
ii. NCHRP shall indemnify NCH against any action, claim or demand against NCH arising
out of any failure of NCHRP to fulfil its responsibilities herein set out or imposed upon
it by statute or otherwise.
e) Review
This Agreement and all its constituent parts will be reviewed annually or when otherwise
required by an urgent need; changes to legislation for example. Any changes or
alterations to the services provided which will affect the Agreement during the length of
the Agreement must be agreed by all parties.
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NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES REGISTERED PROVIDER PROPERTY PORTFOLIO AS AT 25/05/2021
Full Address

Ownership

1 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent or
Temporary
Permanent

2 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

3 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

APPENDIX 1

General Needs

Responsibility
Table Ref.
1

Permanent

General Needs

1

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

4 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

5 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

6 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

7 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

8 Maxwell Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1UR

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

1 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

2 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

3 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

4 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

5 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

6 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

7 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

8 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

9 Francis Court, Lenton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 1US

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

47 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

49 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

51 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

53 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

55 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

57 Badger Vale, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FG

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

11 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

13 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

15 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

17 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1
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Use

Full Address

Ownership

21 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent or
Temporary
Permanent

General Needs

Responsibility
Table Ref.
1

23 Greenhouse Gardens, Wollaton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 2FF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

16 Pond Way, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2BF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

18 Pond Way, Wollaton, Nottingham, NG8 2BF

Freehold

Permanent

General Needs

1

245 Gordon Road, Thorneywood, Nottingham, NG3 2LG

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

101 Harcourt Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6PX

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

23 Tissington Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6PY

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

72 Beauvale Road, Meadows, Nottingham, NG2 2ES

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

112 Sneinton Boulevard, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FJ

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

30 Trent Road, Nottingham, Sneinton, NG2 4FH

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

7 Chard Street, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7GU

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

18 Cedar Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6NS

Freehold

Temporary

Move-On

1

3 Anderson Court, Birkdale Way, Top Valley, Nottingham, Notts, NG5 9EQ

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

12 Anderson Court, Birkdale Way, Top Valley, Nottingham, Notts, NG5 9EQ

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

56 Cinderhill Walk, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8RW

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

25 Camomile Gardens, Bobbersmill, Nottingham, Notts, NG7 5GB

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

35 Eddleston Drive, Clifton, Nottingham, NG11 8QA

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

63 Eddleston Drive, Clifton, Nottingham, Notts, NG11 8QA

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

11 Walgrave Walk, Bestwood Park, Nottingham, Notts, NG5 5NT

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

27 Woodgate Court, Canning Circus, Nottingham, NG7 3GF

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

6 Helmsdale Gardens, Top Valley, Nottingham, NG5 9NB

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

73 Winterton Rise, Bestwood Park, Nottingham, Bestwood Park, NG5 5NU

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

14 Woodgate Court, Holden Street, Canning Circus, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 3GF

NCC Long Lease

Permanent

Housing Led

1

22 Ealing Avenue, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0BB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

14 Birrell Road, Nottingham, Forest Fields, NG7 6LL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

6 Chandos Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Notts, NG3 3LG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

71 Ena Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, Notts, NG2 4NA

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

18 Minerva Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8GR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

13 Acourt Street, Hyson Green, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5AH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2
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Use

NCH Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Dispersed TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
2

54 Anstey Rise, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 2BQ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

16 Athorpe Grove, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0AJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

7 Bankwood Close, Aspley, Nottingham, NG8 5SG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

26 Bestwood Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 9JP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

38 Bestwood Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 9JP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

7 Bilby Gardens, St. Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 2GU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

18 Bleasby Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

24 Brushfield Street, Hyson Green, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5LJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

107 Bulwell Lane, Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG6 0BS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

151 Burford Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6AY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

187 Burford Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6AY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

5A Cedar Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6HZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

16 Cedar Road,Forest Fields,Nottingham,Nottinghamshire,NG7 6HZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

22 Cedar Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6HZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

3 Chandos Street,St. Anns,Nottingham,Nottinghamshire,NG3 3LG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

2 Cheyny Close, Meadows, Nottingham, NG2 2NR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

32 Cheltenham Street, Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG6 0ES

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

6 Chelmsford Terrace, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7EN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

23 Colmon Walk, Top Valley, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG5 9HH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

78 Constance Street, Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7BG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

30 Cope Street, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5AB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

63 Cranwell Road, Strelley, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 6NQ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

49 Egypt Road,New Basford,Nottingham,NG7 7GN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

18 Ekowe Street, New Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7GS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

82 Elford Rise, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG3 2BN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

87 Ena Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4NA

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

37 Ewart Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6HE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

45 Ewart Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6HE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

Full Address

Ownership

19 Acourt Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 5AH
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Full Address

Ownership

148 Ewart Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6HH

NCH Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Dispersed TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
2

20 Exeter Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6LQ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

22 Exeter Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6LQ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

54 Exeter Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6LQ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

117 Exeter Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6LR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

128 Exeter Road, Forest Field, Nottingham, NG7 6LS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

5 Falcon Grove, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7NB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

16 Falcon Street, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7ND

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

152 Forster Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 3DD

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

156 Forster Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 3DD

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

157 Forster Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 3DH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

98 Gawthorne Street, New Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7JW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

100 Gawthorne Street, New Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7JW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

10 Gayhurst Green, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0LZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

238 Gladstone Street, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6HY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

27 Glentworth Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5QN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

69 Glentworth Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5QN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

31 Grimston Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5QX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

11 Goodliffe Street, Nottingham, NG7 6FZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

37 Goodliffe Street, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6FZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

2 Gordon Grove,New Basford,Nottingham,NG7 7GP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

396 Gordon Road, Thorneywood, Nottingham, NG3 2LL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

21 Harewood Avenue, Highbury Vale, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG6 9EF

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

5 Harcourt Terrace, St Anns,, Nottingham, NG3 1GW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

22 Harcourt Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6QA

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

33 Harcourt Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6PZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

47 Hardstaff Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4HR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

62 Lord Nelson Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4AJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

108 Harcourt Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6PX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2
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Ownership

66 Hazelwood Road , Hyson Green , Nottingham, NG7 5LB

NCH Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Dispersed TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
2

19 Hendon Rise, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 3AN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

52 Hilcot Drive, Aspley, Nottingham, NG8 5HS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

7 Hogarth Street, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 2GA

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

23 Holborn Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4LY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

34 Holborn Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4LZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

9 Hogan Gardens, Top Valley, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG5 9JE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

9 Hudson Street, St. Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 3DY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

8 Ivy Grove, New Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7LZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

102 Kentwood Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

13 Kentwood Road,Sneinton,Nottingham,NG2 4FL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

14 Kentwood Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

62 Kentwood Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

10 Kimberley Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4AY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

19 Kimberley Street,Sneinton,Nottingham,NG2 4AY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

32 Leighton Street, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 2FZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

50 Leighton Street, St. Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 2FZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

58 Leighton Street, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 2FZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

4 Leslie Avenue, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6PW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

131 Leslie Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6PS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

61 Linton Rise, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 7DB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

18 Lonsdale Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 3DU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

42 Loughborough Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4LP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

53 Loughborough Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4LN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

64 Loughborough Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4LP

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

75 Lyndhurst Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

95 Lyndhurst Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

31 Mafeking Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4AW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

2 Marlow Avenue, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0HL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

Page 19 of 28

Use

NCH Lease
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Temporary
Temporary

Dispersed TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
2

38 Montague Street, Bulwell, Nottingham , NG6 8EU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

26 Norwood Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 3FJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

28 Norwood Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 3FJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

166 North Gate, Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7FT

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

469 Nottingham Road, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0FB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

27 Osbourne Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 5LY

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

10 Patterson Road, Hyson Green, Nottingham, NG7 6AF

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

89 Pearmain Drive, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 3DL

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

68 Port Arthur Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4GE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

24 Randall Gardens, Hyson Green, Nottingham, NG7 5GF

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

53 Ransom Road, Mapperley, Nottingham, NG3 3LH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

83 Ransom Road, St. Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 3LH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

9 Roberts Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4QD

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

13 Roker Close, Aspley, Nottingham, NG8 5RA

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

43 Rossington Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4HX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

7 Sandringham Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4HH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

14 Scotholme Avenue, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6FB

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

65 Shrewsbury Road, Sneinton, Nottiingham, NG2 4HN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

13 Silverdale Road, New Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7EZ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

123 Sneinton Boulevard, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

1 St Christophers Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

14 St Georges Drive, Meadows, Nottingham, NG2 1NX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

72 St Stephens Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4JS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

81 St Stephens Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4JR

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

109 Thorneywood Rise, Thorneywood, Nottingham, NG3 2PE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

115 Thorneywood Rise, Thorneywood, Nottingham, NG3 2PE

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

5 Thurgarton Avenue, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FF

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

23 Thurman Street, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 5AU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

Full Address

Ownership

77 Maud Street, New Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7AP
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Ownership

16 Trent Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FH

NCH Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Dispersed TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
2

18 Trent Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

12 Tunstall Crescent, Aspley, Nottingham, NG8 5QX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

444 Vernon Road, Old Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG6 0AT

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

15 Warton Ave, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 3AH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

65 Wellington Street, St Anns, Nottingham, NG3 1DX

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

13 Westwood Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

5 Whitworth Rise, Top Valley, Nottingham, NG5 9AG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

22A Whitechapel Street, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0HG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

24 Whitechapel Street, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0HG

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

112 Whittier Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Sneinton, NG2 4AS

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

46 Wimbourne Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5PD

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

18 Windermere Road, Forest Field, Nottingham, NG7 6HN

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

185 Windmill Lane, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 2BH

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

24 Wordsworth Road, Radford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 5QT

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

20 Denstone Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG3 2AW

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

190 Vernon Road, Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0AD

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

67 Wordsworth Road, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 5QU

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

23 Bradgate Road, Forest Fields, Nottingham, NG7 6HJ

NCH Lease

Temporary

Dispersed TA

2

Fairham House, APARTMENT 1 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 2 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 3 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 4 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 5 Green Lane, Clifton, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 6 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 7 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 8 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 9 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 10 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3
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Ownership

Fairham House, APARTMENT 11 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Serviced Lease

Responsibility
Table Ref.
3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 12 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 14 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 15 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 16 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 17 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 18 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 19 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 20 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 21 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 22 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 23 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 24 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Fairham House, APARTMENT 25 Green Lane, Clifton, Nottingham, Clifton, NG11 9BF

NCHEL Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

3

Flat 1, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 2, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 3, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 4, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 5, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 6, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 7, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 8, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 9, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 10, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 11, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 12, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 13, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 14, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 15, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Page 22 of 28

Use

Full Address

Ownership

Flat 16, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Highwood TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
4

Flat 17, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 18, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 19, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 20, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 21, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 22, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 23, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 24, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 25, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 26, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 27, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 28, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

Flat 29, Highwood House, 39-59 Cranmer Street, St Anns, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG3 4HD

NCC Lease

Temporary

Highwood TA

4

652 Nuthall Road, Stockhill, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG8 6AQ

NCC Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

13 Lord Nelson Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4FA

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

24 Brooklyn Road, Highbury Vale, Nottingham, Notts, NG6 9EE

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

26 Brooklyn Road, Highbury Vale, Nottingham, NG6 9EE

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

22 Chelmsford Road, New Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7EJ

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

125 Colwick Road, Colwick, Nottingham, NG2 4AN

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

48 Ekowe Street, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7GQ

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

33 Faulconbridge Close, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8DW

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

30 Gladstone Street, Forest Fields, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 6GA

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

3 Granby Villas, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4LD

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

9 Grundy Street, Bobbersmill, Nottingham, NG7 5JJ

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

85 Ingram Road, Highbury Vale, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG6 9GP

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

81 Isandula Road, Basford, Nottingham, NG7 7ER

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

59 Lord Nelson Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4AJ

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

27 Lyndhurst Road, Sneinton, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG2 4FW

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5
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39 Mafeking Street, Sneinton, Nottingham, NG2 4AW

Private Sector Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

PSL TA

Responsibility
Table Ref.
5

69 Merchant Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8GT

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

88 Mickleborough Avenue, Mapperley, Nottingham, NG3 3EL

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

14 Plantagenet Court , St Anns , Nottingham , Nottinghamshire , NG3 1HJ

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

25A Rosetta Road, Basford, Nottingham, Nottinghamshire, NG7 7GX

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

12 St Georges Drive, Meadows, Nottingham, NG2 1NX

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

9 Thornbury Way, Top Valley, Nottingham, NG5 9AR

Private Sector Lease

Temporary

PSL TA

5

Flat 1, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 2, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 3 , 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 4, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 5, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 6, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 7, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 8, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 9, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 10, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 11, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 12, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 13, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 14, 230 Cinderhill Road, Bulwell, Nottingham, Bulwell, NG6 8SB

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 1, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 2, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 3, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 4, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 5, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 6, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 7, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 8, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Page 24 of 28

Use

NCTA Lease
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Temporary

Serviced Lease

Responsibility
Table Ref.
6

Flat 10, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 11, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 12, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 13, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 14, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 15, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 16, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 17, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 18, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 19, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 20, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 21, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 1, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

FLAT 2, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 3, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 4, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 5, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 6, 3 The Cliff, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 7, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 8, 3 The Cliff, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 9, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 10, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 11, 3 The Cliff, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 12, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 13, 3 The Cliff, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 14, 3 The Cliff, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 15, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 16, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Full Address

Ownership

Flat 9, 1 Gilead Street, Bulwell, Nottingham, NG6 8NA
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Flat 17, 3 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Lease

Permanent or
Temporary
Temporary

Serviced Lease

Responsibility
Table Ref.
6

Flat 1, 561 Valley Road, Basford, Nottingham, NG5 1JG

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 2, 561 Valley Road, Nottingham, Basford, NG5 1JG

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 3, 561 Valley Road, Nottingham, Basford, NG5 1JG

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 5, 561 Valley Road, Nottingham, Basford, NG5 1JG

NCTA Lease

Temporary

Serviced Lease

6

Flat 1, 5 The Cliff, Cinderhill , Bulwell , Nottingham , NG6 8SA

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

FLAT 6, 561 Valley Road, Basford, Nottingham, NG5 1JG

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

78 Lamcote Grove, Nottingham, NG2 2GY

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

47 Lonsdale Road, Radford, Nottingham, NG7 3DU

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

23 Mickledon Close,Meadows,Nottingham,NG2 1LE

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

FLAT 1, 4 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

FLAT 2, 4 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

FLAT 3, 4 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

FLAT 4, 4 The Cliff, Cinderhill, Nottingham, NG6 8SA

NCTA Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence
Housing Network
Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

7

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

Temporary

Serviced Licence

9 The Stoneyard, Plumper Street, Nottingham, NG1 1JL
93 The Habitat, Nottingham, NG1 1GJ
40 Chandos Street, Nottingham, NG3 3LG
14 Ryder Street, Nottingham, NG6 0BL
6 Caporn Close, Nottingham, NG6 9BE
27 Hadbury Road, Nottingham, NG5 1JZ
127 Mosswood Crescent, Nottingham, NG5 5SU
23 Kingfisher Close, Nottingham, NG6 0BE
70 Rossington Road, Nottingham, NG2 4HY
72 Rossington Road, Nottingham, NG2 4HY
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7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7

NCH GROUP BOARD STRUCTURE & ACCOUNTABILITIES

ALMO
BOARD

APPENDIX 2

NCH GROUP
BOARD
AUDIT, RISK &
COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE

NCHRP
BOARD

NCHEL
BOARD

> Council housing [25,449]
> Council leaseholders
[1,333]
> Council garages [3,846]
> Council HRA-owned
shops [128]
(In conjunction with the
Main Group Board)
> TOTAL STOCK; 26,782
[Plus 3,974 non-residential]

> NCHRP owned homes
[39]
> NCHRP leased homes &
temporary accomm.
[407]
> NCH Ltd owned "Social
Rent" homes [120]

> Market Rent homes [126]
> External contract
& commercial business;
> PA Housing [115]
> Zedra Trust [31]
> Hanley &
Gellestrope [9]

> TOTAL STOCK; 566
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> TOTAL STOCK; 281

Appendix 3

List of NCH Group Service Standards, Strategies and Policies that apply to this Agreement
 Repairs Service Standards: https://www.nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk/repairs/repairs-service-standards/
 New Home Standard: https://nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk/your-home/your-tenancy/what-to-expect-when-you-move-in/
 Customer Services Strategy: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7870
 Compliments, Comments and Complaints procedure: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/8662
 Tackling ASB and Crime Strategy http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7874
 Tenant and Leaseholder Involvement Strategy: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7872
 Equality, Diversification and Inclusion Strategy: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7871
 Health and Safety Policy: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7886
 Data Protection Policy: http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/7941
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ITEM: 2.4
NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES

REPORT OF HEAD OF CORPORATE HEALTH
AND SAFETY

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

HEALTH AND SAFETY APRIL 2020 - MARCH 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report provides an annual overview of health and safety across the
organisation including key statistical information. Progress against
Health and Safety Policy objectives over the past two years is attached
at Appendix 1.

1.2

The Board has overall responsibility for setting the Health and Safety
Policy and objectives, and seeking assurance on health, safety and
welfare activity and risk. New Policy details are set out at Appendix 2
and are in line with provisions set out in new or proposed legislation such
as the White Paper on Social Housing published in November 2020.
Health and Safety will be a key component of new risk registers being
compiled for Group Board, Nottingham City Homes Enterprises Limited
(NCHEL) and Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider (NCH RP).
Policy Tracker is also attached as Appendix 3.

1.3

Nottingham City Homes (NCH) is certified to BS OHSAS 18001:2007
Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series, which is a widely
endorsed recognition. The process is externally audited and validated
annually by a third party certification body. Migration to the new ISO
45001 Health and Safety Management system is being progressed.

1.4

Key health and safety statistics for 2020-21 are included in the report at
Appendix 4. This includes a summary of the major incidents.

1.5

The Covid-19 Pandemic has had a significant impact on the organisation
for the past 16 months. Risk assessments have been prepared to
ensure staff can work safely where possible. This has had an impact on
the other health and safety work undertaken across the organisation.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board

2.1

Considers the content of the report and, in accordance with Standing
Orders para. 3.4, matters reserved for the Board, determines that this
report reflects the overall values and strategic direction of the group, or
make such amendments as appropriate, and thus satisfied approves the
contents of this report.
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2.2

Agrees the adoption of the Health and Safety Policy, Statement of intent
and objectives 2021-24 (Appendix 2) (and the Health and Safety Manual
and Management System and subsidiary documents at Appendix 5).

2.3

Delegates authority to the Chief Executive to agree final amendments to
the policy, manual, health and safety system and subsidiary documents
as required.

3

REPORT

3.1

Health and Safety performance

3.1.1

Keeping people safe in their homes and ensuring the health, safety and
wellbeing of our tenants, employees and stakeholders is of paramount
importance to NCH. Our new Tenants Charter sets this out as a clear
priority and health and safety will be a key component of new Risk
Registers being compiled for Group Board, NCHEL and NCH RP. This
report provides Board with key information on the management of health
and safety across all aspects of the organisation including key statistical
data.

3.1.2

Incident statistics for 2020/21 are shown at Appendix 4. These include
the number of injuries, ill health and close calls reported by employees,
residents or contractors and the number of reported fires in dwellings.
The number of violent incidents reported by employees and contractors
is also shown. There were four major incidents of which two were fires,
one was a “close call” and one was involving damage in an NCH
property: details are contained in appendix4.

3.1.3

The number of accidents continues to reduce year on year as does the
number of reportable incidents. This indicates that the likelihood of
having an accident and being seriously harmed continues to reduce.
The number of days lost to injury has decreased in the last 12 months
from 214.5 in the previous reporting period, to 13.3. The team is
investigating this large discrepancy which is likely to be due to a change
in reporting systems. The overall number of violent incidents, where
residents or members of the public abused NCH employees or
contractors, remains at 90 incidents. This is consistent with previous
years.

3.1.4

A number of key health and safety objectives show significant progress,
such as the drive to fit sprinkler systems in all the high rise buildings and
the fitting of hard-wired smoke detectors. Such a detector was cited by
the Nottingham Fire and Rescue Service (NFRS) as the primary reason
why a significant fire is detected early and loss of life /damage is
prevented.

3.1.5

The number of reported fires in dwellings managed by NCH has
increased to 42 from 31. There was one fatality caused by a fire. The
main cause of fires and unwanted fire alarms is related to cooking.
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Analysis by the fire safety officer indicates that there is no identifiable
root cause for the increase in fire incidents.

3.2

ISO 45001

3.2.1

In its new Corporate Plan, NCH has committed to transition from the
Occupational Health and Safety Management Standard BS EN 18001 to
the new international standard ISO 45001. The broad differences
between the 18001 and 45001 regime are:
a.A greater understanding of the health and safety impact of NCH’s
operations on those “interested parties”: people and
organisations, which interact with NCH as part of its delivery of its
services, such as tenants and contractors.
b.A greater assessment of the risks and opportunities arising from health
and safety.
c. Greater participation of workers (rather than just employees) in the
various aspects of health and safety from policy development to
hazard identification and risk assessment.
d.Emphasis on the role of “top management” in shaping health and
safety policy and directing and supporting the management of health
and safety.
Much of the core procedures and processes are shared by both 18001
and 45001, therefore many existing procedures remain within the new
management system, either in their entirety or with some small
modification.

3.2.2

The transition to ISO 45001:2018 requires the Board to approve the
following documents at Appendix 2 and Appendix 5:
a) OHS01 NCH Occupational Health and Safety Policy, Statement of
Intent and Objectives 2021-24
b) OHS02 Occupational Health and Safety Manual and Management
System (including any subsidiary documentation referred to
therein).

3.2.3

NCH is currently audited annually on BS OHSAS 18001. This provides
external reassurance that health and safety is managed to a defined
standard using an approved methodology. The last surveillance audit
was undertaken in November 2020 and found two minor nonconformances. The first was gaining assurance that incident
investigations are investigated and closed off in a timely manner; the
second was to ensure that objectives were managed appropriately
according to the principles of good project management. Both issues are
being addressed.
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3.3

Evaluation of legal and other requirements 2020/21

3.3.1

The Health, Safety and Emergency Control Policy currently includes the
arrangements for managing health and safety, fire safety and emergency
planning. The current policy was approved on 26 April 2018 and is
currently being reviewed.

3.3.2

The Health and Safety Policy, Statement of Intent and Objectives 202124 are presented for consideration: The policy and the objectives reflect
the changing regulatory landscape in social housing arising from the
Hackitt Review and the Grenfell Inquiry. It includes stronger
engagement with residents, investment in training, the adoption of
challenging targets and the implementation of the “gold standard” ISO
45001 Health and Safety Management System. These all underpin the
organisation’s commitment to ensure the health, safety and well-being of
tenants, employees and all those people and organisations that interact
with NCH on a daily basis.

3.3.3

NCH continue to monitor the outcomes from the Grenfell tragedy and will
implement additional recommendations as they are introduced.

3.3.4

Covid-19 continues to be a priority and over the period 2020/21 had a
significant impact on the Health and Safety Team in respect to the
provision of work related Covid-19 secure risk assessments and the
implementation of significant site controls and restrictions at the Harvey
Road site. A Task Force exists to monitor the progression of the
pandemic and how it is affecting the business operations, adjusting
operational controls and communicating to colleagues. In the last few
months the emphasis has moved to assessing the return of staff to NCH
offices in line with government and scientific guidance (see separate
report on NCH Business Continuity and Recovery).

3.4.

Fire Safety Act 2021

3.4.1

In April 2021, the Fire Safety Act became law. This Act amends the
Fire Safety Order 2005. The Home Office has set out clarification to
who is accountable for reducing the risk of fires – that is the dutyholder/building owner for multi-occupied, residential buildings. They
must manage the risk of fire for:
•
•

The structure and external walls of the building (e.g. cladding,
balconies and windows)
Entrance doors to individual flats that open into communal areas.

The fire risk assessment for a building/premises will therefore be
required to cover both of these two areas. The Bill is likely to affect
around 1.7m residential properties in England and Wales.
3.4.2

The Fire Safety Act is also designed to provide a foundation for
secondary legislation which won’t require another Act of Parliament,
based upon the recommendations made from the Grenfell Tower Inquiry.
Extra measures may include responsibility for lift inspections, the
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reviewing of evacuation plans and fire safety instructions to residents.
3.5

The building regulations 2010 Document B, Fire Safety (2020)
Amendments

3.5.1

The amendments focus on the following fire safety provisions in blocks
of flats:
a. Sprinklers: A reduction in the height at which sprinklers become
mandatory from 30m to 11m. Sprinklers should be provided within the
individual flats, they do not need to be provided in the common areas
such as stairs, corridors or landings when these areas are fire sterile.
b. Wayfinding signage for the Fire Service: A new recommendation for
floor identification and flat indication signage within blocks of flats with
storeys over 11m. The regulations lay out the basic requirements for
wayfinding signage including design and location of the signs.

3.6

Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH)

3.6.1

The directive introduces new legally binding controls over the level of
exposure to Hardwood dust, Chromium and Crystalline Silica (CRS).
This will involve activity related to grinding, drilling, demolition etc. of
hardwood, silica (brick and concrete etc.) and chromium containing
substances (commonly used as coating in household objects). New
exposure limits may affect operations by way of:
Cessation of certain types of operation
Higher rated / new Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
New health monitoring requirements
Changes to risk assessments.
This will affect operations undertaken by Trades Colleagues. The limits
will be referenced in NCH’s on-going COSHH review.

3.7

Legislation and Enforcement

3.7.1

A number of proposals have arisen from the 53 recommendations of
Dame Judith Hackitt’s Independent review of Building Regulations and
Fire Safety. NCH response to these changes has previously been
reported to the board and include forming a Building Safety Team led
by a recently recruited Building Safety Manager. NCH’s new Tenant’s
Charter has a focus on making sure that tenants are safe in their
homes.

3.8

Internal Audit

3.8.1

Although responsibility for the day to day management of health and
safety lies with managers, NCH employ a professionally qualified Health
and Safety team to develop policies, procedures and guidance, provide
advice and training, and monitor and report on performance.
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3.8.2

In addition to the external BS OHSAS 18001 surveillance audits, the
Health and Safety Team will develop an audit plan to review the
performance of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System in line with the requirements of ISO 45001:2018 throughout a
rolling 12 month programme. The Building Safety team is responsible for
delivering the internal fire risk assessment programme. A total of 288 fire
risk assessments were undertaken during the reporting period.

3.9

Insurance

3.9.1

Claims handling and insurance services are provided by the NCC
Insurance and Risk Management team. NCH pays an annual
contribution towards the NCC insurance fund, based on its claims
history. Variations in the actual cost of claims are then either retained in
or paid out from the fund. This fund effectively works as a self-insurance
scheme, but disasters are underwritten by Zurich Municipal.

3.9.2

The total cost of claims increased from £405,413.33 to £435,584.73
compared to the previous 12 month period with the number of claims
decreasing from 182 to 158. Repudiation success rates have decreased
from 52.68% to 31.25% across the overall claims / insurance provision,
however this is believed to be due to a lower rate of closure and it is
predicted that the repudiation rate will rise as the closures increase. The
number of claims closed during the period was 109 with a cost of
£251,367.78. A repudiation rate of 73.39% was achieved across the
claims closed.

3.10

Participation and consultation

3.10.1

Consultation and participation with colleagues, trade unions and
residents continue to develop with several avenues facilitating
involvement including management meetings and the Health and Safety
Committee, which currently meets monthly.

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

The cost of undertaking the ISO 45001 audit is approximately £10,000.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

A Health and Safety Policy is required under Section 2(3) of the Health
and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. The policy must define the employer’s
Health and Safety Policy, and the organisation and arrangements in
place to carry out the policy. BS OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO
45001:2018 requires that the policy is approved and endorsed by EMT.

4.2.2

Although there is no legal requirement to report on health and safety
arrangements and performance, current good practice in the Institute of
Directors / HSE guide ‘Leading Health & Safety at Work’ recommends
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that Board at least annually receive a health and safety performance
report and review health and safety performance. Furthermore, BS
OHSAS 18001 and the forthcoming ISO 45001:2018 places specific
responsibilities on Top Management to review the suitability and
performance of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System. A programme for review is to be developed and subsequently
integrated into the EMT quarterly reports.
4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

Health and safety is currently included in the Corporate Risk Register
and will form part of new risk registers currently being drawn up as part
of a companywide review of risk management. The use of an accredited
Occupational Health and Safety Management system is NCH’s primary
mitigation against the risks arising from Health and Safety matters.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

Good Health and Safety and Fire Safety Management are integral to
achieving the Corporate Plan goals and objectives. In particular, the
Corporate Plan states:
“Just as the safety of those who live in the homes we are responsible for
is a top priority, so is the safety, health and wellbeing of our workforce.
We will make sure the support is in place to build the resilience people
need in the face of the challenging situations that can be part of the work
we do, often helping the most vulnerable in society with the difficult
situations they face. Our target is a zero harm workplace supported by
100% compliance with all statutory health and safety requirements. “

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

NCH Corporate Plan 2021-21.
Appendix 1 - Progress against Health and Safety Policy Objectives
Appendix 2 – OHS01 Policy Statements
Appendix 3 - Policy Tracker
Appendix 4 – Health and Safety Statistics 2020-21
Appendix 5 – OHS02 Health and Safety Manual

Contact officers:

Date: 9 June 2021
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Name: Phillip Wright
E-mail: phillip.wright@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

Appendix 1
Progress against Health and Safety Policy Objectives
1.

Incident management

1.1 Reduced overall accident rates: “to continue to reduce the overall number of
accidents caused by NCH activity on a year-by-year basis”
Analysis of table 4 in Appendix 2 shows that there has been a sustained
reduction in both number of accidents /incidents and a substantial reduction in
RIDDOR reportable incidents since 2018/19 (from 180 to 152). RIDDOR
incidents tend to be those which result in more significant harm and this is a
key indicator in the measurement of health and safety performance. Violent
incidents remain constant within a small margin of variation. On the whole this
objective can be considered to be achieved though we would like to reduce the
figures further.
The number of close calls /near misses remains below desirable levels and
remains a focus of the health and safety team.
1.2 Reduction in slips, trips and falls: “to reduce the incident rate of slips, trips and
falls sustained by employees when at work or members of the public on
housing land”.
Slips, trips and falls remain an area of concern and was in the top three types
of incident this year (appendix 2 table 3). Further investigation will be carried
out in 2021/22.
1.3 Reduction in reversing incidents: “to reduce the incident rate of vehicles
causing damage and sustaining damage whilst reversing”.
The driver’s handbook is currently under revision, to be completed and
approved for new fleet rollout 2022. The New fleet procurement is scheduled
for 2022, new vehicles will be specified with appropriate reversing / camera
systems.
1.4 Zero tolerance of violent behaviour: “to implement a zero tolerance policy
toward violence to NCH employees, contractors or partners”.
Violent Incidence rates are similar to previous years. A further focus on
progressing the lone working arrangements for trade colleagues is currently
underway. In addition to this the health and safety committee has agreed to
support an improvement initiative to review violent incidents.
Access to electronic reporting has also been implemented and is now directly
monitored by the ASB Officer.

Hand-held personal alarms have also been issued to field based colleagues in
2020.
2.

Management arrangements

2.1 Transition to ISO 45001: “to transition to ISO 45001 by 2021”.
Progress is ongoing with the review and revision to the Occupational Health
and Safety Management System and associated processes. The requirements
of ISO 45001:2018 has been presented to both the EMT and the Health and
Safety Committee. NCH will be audited with a view to accreditation in the first
weeks of August 2021. The health and safety team have been supported by the
Health and Safety committee who have been a crucial resource whilst the
organisation has been impacted by covid. However, the team has also been
focusing on the pandemic, and this has hampered preparation for the IS0
45001 audit.
2.2 Review our health and safety risk assessment process: “to update, improve and
streamline our health and safety risk assessment and risk assessment
processes, making best use of ICT and mobile working technology”.
The Risk Assessment process is now integrated into the new Corporate Filing
System so that managers are able to view and update them. The revised
process has been reviewed and streamlined and is now electronic thereby
allowing for the access via mobile, tablets or computers.
The content of the risk assessment process is under review with a view to
making the process easier to use, less bureaucratic and more effective.
A number of Risk Assessments have been produced successfully to support
the safe working of employees during the pandemic.

2.3 Adopt PAS 7 standard for our fire risk management system: “to ensure that our
fire risk management system is up to date and meets the requirements of PAS
7, which is the relevant national standard”. N.B. PAS7 will eventually be
replaced by BS9997 once the outcomes from the consultation that ended in
May 2019 has been considered.
Following the enactment of the Fire Safety Bill and the recent recruitment of a
Building Safety manager, a joint review with the Head of Health and Safety will
commence in 2021/22 in order to consider the adoption of the BS9997
Standard.
2.4 Improved control of internal asset checks: “to examine the benefits of
establishing a dedicated team to carry out the in house asset checks currently
undertaken by various teams across NCH”.
A review was completed and EMT agreed the creation of a compliance team to
bring together statutory compliance testing and the roles and responsibilities

emerging from the Hackitt enquiry following the Grenfell fire. Hence the Building
Safety Team has been created which also incorporates fire safety and asbestos
management, the new team are busy setting up new compliance modules up in
the Northgate data management system.
3.

Resident safety

3.1 Review our process for managing water hygiene risks: “to review our current
processes, and to develop a strategy to ensure that on-site inspections of all
high risk domestic properties are completed alongside a proportion of low risk
properties within reasonable timescales”.
A review of this objective was completed as part of the Pennington Review of
Compliance noting that appropriate arrangements are in place and
implemented.
3.2 Annual high rise health and safety days: “for NCH to hold annual high-rise
health and safety days across the 13 high-rise buildings”.
High rise safety days have not taken place within the reporting period due to
the ongoing pandemic, these will not be re-commenced until it is determined
safe and legal to do so.
3.3 Sprinklers in all high rise buildings: “we shall install sprinklers into the
communal areas and flats of the 13 high-rise blocks”.
At the time of writing, with exception to Bentinck Court and Victoria Centre
(VC), all installations are complete and commissioned.
Bentinck Court has had a new water tank installed. The installation is functional
and will be commissioned in due course. Re-inspection and commission date to
be confirmed.
Nearly all of the communal areas at VC are now reaching completion with the
communal works and lift lobby risers having been a massive task due to the
size of the building. The full Sprinkler works are scheduled to be completed at
Victoria Centre in June. The new water tanks are being installed and final
connections made and tested and commissioned. Our project liaison team is
continuing to work with TEM, Leaseholder team and partners to address the
non-access properties.
At Victoria Centre there are currently 26 no access properties and city wide 3
further properties where residents have refused access. There are then 12
leaseholders within Victoria Centre, and one at Southchurch Court where again
the project liaison team is supporting access along with the leaseholder team.
3.4 Hard wired smoke alarms in all dwellings: “for NCH to ensure hard wired smoke
alarms are installed in all NCH managed dwellings”.

There are currently 39 properties outstanding, which will be picked up as part of
the on-going EICR programme.
4.

Training

4.1 Accredited health and safety training for directors and senior managers: “to
ensure all EMT and SMT managers have completed recognised accredited
health and safety training”.
A proposal for the delivery of this training will be submitted to the EMT for
consideration. The recommendation will be for external certificated health and
safety training to be provided. An example being, the 1 day (5 hour) IOSH
Leading Safely. The Learning and Development Team are leading on this
initiative.
Acting on government, scientific and professional guidance, NCH restricted a
number of operational matters, including restrictions on staff working within
NCH offices, room occupancy and prioritising of certain duties /initiatives as a
consequence of this all classroom based initiatives were suspended and
pressures on resources prevented the development of online training
resources.
4.2 Internal health and safety training for managers: “to develop and roll out
appropriate health and safety training for all managers with responsibility for
employees or premises”.
Health and safety training has been provided to employees in the new Repairs
and Voids Service Manager posts. Further reviews are being undertaken to
address all colleagues.
Acting on government, scientific and professional guidance, NCH restricted a
number of operational matters, including restrictions on staff working within
NCH offices, room occupancy and prioritising of certain duties /initiatives as a
consequence of this all classroom based initiatives were suspended and
pressures on resources prevented the development of online training
resources.
4.3 Improved health and safety training for employees: “to make the most of the
Learning Zone to deliver good quality interactive health and safety training to
employees, while also ensuring that employees also benefit from regular
classroom training delivered by our Risk Management team”.
All health and safety e-learning training courses have been reviewed and
brought up-to-date in line with legal requirements.
Acting on government, scientific and professional guidance, NCH restricted a
number of operational matters, including restrictions on staff working within
NCH offices, room occupancy and prioritising of certain duties /initiatives as a
consequence of this all classroom based initiatives were suspended and

pressures on resources prevented the development of online training
resources.
A review of Health and Safety Management Training will be conducted this
year.
4.4 Basic medical emergency preparedness: “to provide basic information and
instruction to NCH employees who are likely to have regular contact with
residents about what to do in a medical emergency via the Learning Zone”.
Acting on government, scientific and professional guidance, NCH restricted a
number of operational matters, including restrictions on staff working within
NCH offices, room occupancy and prioritising of certain duties /initiatives as a
consequence of this all classroom based initiatives were suspended and
pressures on resources prevented the development of online training
resources.
4.5 Basic fire extinguisher training for employees: “to equip employees with the
skills to use fire extinguishers in emergency situations to complement their
compulsory fire awareness training”.
The use of fire extinguishers is now incorporated into the fire safety training
delivered internally and also detailed within the annual e-learning refresher
training.
5.

Employee Wellbeing

5.1 Occupational health checks: “to examine ways of using existing occupational
health budgets to pre-emptively reduce sickness absence”.
Mental Health First Aiders have been trained and introduced into the workplace
and over the 2018-2019 period offered Health MOT from the Occupational
Health team at NCC to provide health tests in a proactive approach.
The team continued to search for free sources of support for instance:
Nottingham Medical School in January 2020-March 2020 provided free health
tests and Diabetes UK and Prostate UK provided free webinars to raise
awareness and educate during the pandemic.

5.2 Defibrillators at NCH workplaces: “to provide defibrillator and trained personnel
at Harvey Road and Bestwood Office due to the increase in numbers of
employees at these sites”.
Defibrillators were installed in 2019.and training in their use has been provided
to key personnel. The unit at the former office of Bestwood has now been
handed back to NCC for sale including the defibrillator can remain a community
asset

5.3 In house operation of lone working technology: “to implement an in-house lone
working solution that can be accessed by all persons at risk”.
The lone working app has been rolled out to those deemed to be high risk
within the Housing Services. Further embedding and review is required and the
team from the Health and Safety Committee has been set up to manage this.
This system still needs to be implemented for Construction, Repairs and
Maintenance trade operatives. Repair Service Managers will be trained to
facilitate and manage this process with the trade colleagues. A review as to the
next steps is underway. A review of lone working is to be undertaken as part
of the 2021/22 review programme.
6.

Emergency planning

6.1 Deliver a value for money out-of-hours service: “to rationalise out-of-hours
services by bringing as many of them as possible under one roof, without
detriment to the range or quality of the services provided”.
A proposal for an out-of-hours service is being developed by Construction,
Repairs and Maintenance Services. This is due for implementation in October.
A review of out of hours Caretaking services is also under way.

HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY
Statement of Intent, General
Arrangements and Objectives
2021-24

Document title

Issue date
Version/Issue number
Document status
Effective from date

HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY
Statement of Intent, General Arrangements and
Objectives
2021-24
May2021
5.0
Draft
1st MAY 2021

Nottingham City Homes Health and Safety Policy v5.0
Uncontrolled when printed.

Date to be reviewed
Scope of document

Applicable to
Author/Reviewer

Verifier

Teams Affected
Consultation
Revision History

1 or 2 year from issue dependent on document
All operations, policies and procedures falling
within the scope of the of Nottingham City Homes
Health and safety Policy (HS 01),
All of
NCC
NCH
Market rent
group
property
property
and other
tenants
tenants
property
Name Phil Wright
Job Title Head of Corporate Health and Safety
Section
Name
Job Title
Section
All teams
Aligned with 2021-2024 corporate plan and new
objectives

Nottingham City Homes Health and Safety Policy v5.0
Uncontrolled when printed.

1.0

Introduction

This is Nottingham City Homes' Group Health and Safety Policy.
This is a Nottingham City Homes Group policy and its contents apply to any
subsidiary company within the Nottingham City Homes Group, incorporating but not
exclusive to Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Limited and Nottingham
City Homes Enterprises Limited (NCH Enterprises). Any reference in this policy to
‘the Group’, ‘the Company’, ‘Organisation’, ‘We’, ‘Our’ and ‘Us’ refers to the
Nottingham City Homes Group, unless otherwise stated.
This Health and Safety Policy applies to Nottingham City Homes Ltd (NCH) and its
subsidiaries. We operate from our head office at Loxley House, Nottingham, as well
as other premises across Nottingham.
Our core business is to manage and maintain tenanted and leasehold homes under
an agreement with Nottingham City Council, but we also carry out other work both as
a contractor and on our own behalf, including the maintenance of existing buildings
and the construction and management of new NCH homes.
Many people are affected by the way that we carry out our business, including
around 1,000 employees; 27,500 tenancies including leaseholders and their families,
friends and visitors; our sub-contractors and people who visit our premises, as well
as other members of the public who may come into contact with us from time to time.
This document is a statement of how Nottingham City Homes' (NCH) intends to meet
its legal obligations with regards to the management of health and safety, the
general arrangements and key health and safety objectives for the period covered by
this policy.
The Policy
The NCH Health and Safety Policy encompasses the following documents:
1. OHS01Health and Safety Policy: Statement of Intent, General arrangements
and objectives 2021-24 (This document)
2. OHS02 The ISO 45001 Health and Safety Manual and Management System
3. FS01 Fire Risk Management System
4. EC01 Emergency Control Management System
This policy is developed alongside our Corporate Plan, and remains in force for the
same period as that plan (2021-24). It contains our health and safety, fire safety and
emergency control objectives for that period, although any of these objectives are
subject to change following Board decisions depending on our circumstances,
including changes in policy, legislation or financial arrangements.
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General Arrangements
NCH aspires to be a quality organisation, to that end NCH has adopted ISO 45001:
2018 as its Occupational Health and Safety Management System. The
organisational arrangements are set out in document OHS02: The ISO 45001 Health
and Safety Manual.
2.0

Equality and Diversity Statement

In line with the Equality Act 2010 Nottingham City Homes will make sure the
application of this policy does not discriminate against anyone because of any
protected characteristics. The protected characteristics in the Equality Act 2010 are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Race
Age
Sex
Disability
Sexual Orientation
Religion and Belief
Gender Re-assignment
Marriage and Civil Partnerships
Pregnancy and maternity

An equality impact assessment has been carried out on this policy and is available
on request. There have been no adverse impacts highlighted as a result of this policy
but managers must make sure equality impact is considered in its day-to-day
application.
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3.0

Policy: Statement of Intent

This is the statement of Nottingham City Homes, it is our policy to make sure that we
identify and manage risks to the health, safety or welfare of our employees, visitors,
contractors and residents, as well as those that may give rise to an emergency
situation or cause disruption to the delivery of our services. To do this, we will:
• Assess and prioritise risks so that resources are appropriately allocated.
• Regularly review our operations to make sure that we comply with relevant
legislation and keep up to date with best practice.
• Regularly audit our higher risk premises and work activities.
• Carry out any necessary tests and inspections of equipment or installations that
are designed to protect life, or which are likely to become dangerous if not
properly maintained.
• Consult our employees about health and safety, fire safety and emergency control
arrangements.
• Train our employees and appoint competent contractors, so that work is carried
out safely, to a safe standard.
• Make sure that our employees and contractors have properly planned their work
and know what to do in the event of an emergency.
• Provide clear information to our tenants and residents about health, safety and
emergency control matters that affect them.
• Be prepared for emergencies and implement arrangements that will allow
continuous delivery of core services during and immediately after an emergency.
We will regularly review how well we manage health, safety and emergency control
issues, with the aim of continually improving our arrangements and performance.
We expect all our employees and contractors to work safely in accordance with the
law and the instructions that they have been given, and to be considerate of the
needs of people who may be affected by our work. We also expect them to promptly
report any incident where somebody has been, or could have been injured, and
anything that they see that they consider likely to cause harm to any person.
Likewise, we expect that tenants and residents act responsibly by abiding by their
tenancy agreements and any health, safety or emergency control arrangements that
apply to the places where they live.

Signed on behalf of the Executive Management Team:

………………………………….

Chief Executive of Nottingham City Homes
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Nick Murphy

4.0 Health and Safety Objectives
Our Health and Safety objectives are taken from our Corporate Plan 2021-24 which
states “Just as the safety of those who live in the homes we are responsible for is a
top priority, so is the safety, health and wellbeing of our workforce”.
We will make sure the support is in place to build the resilience people need in the
face of the challenging situations that can be part of the work we do, often helping
the most vulnerable in society with the difficult situations they face.
Our target is a zero harm workplace supported by 100% compliance with all statutory
health and safety requirements. Alongside health and safety, we will also make sure
we take all reasonable measures to ensure business continuity in the event of
unforeseen service disruption, through appropriate planning and adequate
preparation.
Our commitment is that we will:
1. Prepare for and implement the new international standard for occupational health
and safety management (ISO45001)
2. Make sure 100% compliance with all statutory health and safety training
requirements
3. Review our lone working policies and procedures to make sure the best
protection for staff
4. Involve residents and other relevant partners in the Health and Safety Committee
5. Promote health and safety across NCH to make sure it is always embedded as
part of the organisational culture
6. Review and implement all necessary health, safety and environmental training
7. Further develop and implement the dedicated interactive health and safety
sections of our intranet
8. Continue to develop and deliver a programme of audits and inspections across
all areas of the company, including the Big Six building compliance obligations
9. Revise and practice our business continuity and emergency planning
preparedness.
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Appendix 4
Health and Safety Policy - Tracker 2021-24
The table below sets out the health and safety objectives for the period 2021-24, a
broad overview of the objectives, the timescales, measures of success and the
responsible officer(s).

Objective

Detail

Time scales

1.
Prepare
for and
implement the
new
international
standard for
occupational
health and
safety
management
(ISO45001)

Prepare
policies ,
procedures
and processes
to satisfy
requirements
of ISO45001
and gain
accreditation
to the
standard

Accreditation
by external
body by
September
30th 2021
Annual Audits
from 2022
onwards

2.
Make
sure 100%
compliance with
all statutory
health and
safety training
requirements

Prepare
organisational
training plan
for statutory
safety training

3.
Review
our lone
working policies
and procedures
to make sure
the best
protection for
staff

Lone working
policies and
procedures to
be reviewed.
Performance
to be
benchmarked
and KPIs to be
set
To establish
mechanisms
that interested
parties may be
involved in the
work of the
Health and

4.
Involve
residents and
other relevant
partners in the
Health and
Safety
Committee

Measures of
success
1. Gain
ISO
45001
accredi
tation
2. Pass
annual
audits

Responsible
Officer
Head of Health
and Safety

Plan to be
prepared and
implemented
by April 2022

Implementatio
n achieved by
April 1st 2022.
100%
compliance
achieved by
April 1st 2023

Head of Health
and Safety /
Building Safety
Manager

Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2022

Review
complete by
April 1st 2022,
KPIs set for
performance,
regular
performance
review by
April 1st 2023
Review
complete by
April 1st 2023

Head of Health
and Safety

Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2023

Head of Health
and Safety /
Head of
marketing and
Communication

Objective

5.
Promote
health and
safety across
NCH to make
sure it is always
embedded as
part of the
organisational
culture

6.
Review
and implement
all necessary
health, safety
and
environmental
training

7.
Further
develop and
implement the
dedicated
interactive
health and
safety sections
of our intranet
8.
Continue
to develop and
deliver a
programme of
audits and
inspections
across all areas
of the company,
including the
Big Six building
compliance
obligations

Detail
Safety
Committee
Create
promotion plan
based on key
health and
safety issues
and
objectives,
based around
the
communicatio
n, consultation
and
participation
matrix
Prepare
organisational
training plan
for general
health and
safety and
environmental
management
training
Interactive
health and
safety page to
be designed,
tested and
implemented

Annual Audit
and Inspection
plans to be
prepared and
implemented

Time scales

Measures of
success

Responsible
Officer

Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2023

Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2023

Head of Health
and Safety /
Head of
marketing and
Communication

Plan to be
prepared and
implemented
by April 2022

Implementatio
n achieved by
April 1st 2022.

Head of Health
and Safety /
Building Safety
Manager

Implementatio
n by April 1st
2024

Implementatio
n achieved by
April 1st 2024

Head of Health
and Safety

Implementatio
n by April 1st
2022

Implementatio
n achieved by
April 1st 2022.

Head of Health
and Safety /
Building Safety
Manager

Objective

Detail

Time scales

9.
Revise
and practice
our business
continuity and
emergency
planning
preparedness.

Review of
business
continuity and
emergency
planning.
Implement
programme of
emergency
planning
exercise

Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2023

Measures of
success
Review to be
completed by
April 1st 2023

Responsible
Officer
Head of Health
and Safety

Appendix 4
Health and Safety Statistics 2020/21
All tables show statistics between 01/04/2020 and 31/03/2021.

Table 1. Injuries, ill-health and dangerous occurrences 2020/21
Reports

Employee,

Resident

Contractor

Member of

including

the General

Agency

Public /

Workers

Other

Total

Accidents

45

7

1

0

53

Incidents

7

2

0

0

9

Total

52

9

1

0

62

Close call

10

2

0

2

14

Violent

86

1

3

0

90

13.3

-

-

-

13.3

1

0

0

0

1

Accidents
and
Incidents

Incidents
Days Lost*
RIDDOR

Table 2: Accident profile by quarter
Reports

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Total

Accidents

10

13

15

15

53

Incidents

4

4

0

1

9

Close Call

0

6

1

7

14

Violent

31

9

18

32

90

45

32

34

55

166

Days Lost*

0

13.3

0

0

13.3

RIDDOR

1

0

0

0

1

Incidents
Total

(all

events)

Table 3:Top 3 causes of accidents
2020 / 2021

2019 / 2020

Cause

occurrences

Hit by Moving Object

Cause

occurrences

10 Fall from height.

3

Manual Handling

9 Slip / Trip on same level

3

Slip / Trip on same level

7 Vehicle Injuries (RTAs)

2

Table 4: Accidents: year on year analysis

Non RiDDOR Accidents etc.
RIDDOR reportable
Accidents
Total adverse events
Violent Incidents
Total events and incidents
Close Calls

2016/17
77

2017/18
83

2018/19
70

2019/20
75

2020/21
61

16
93
89
182
30

8
91
89
180
35

7
77
94
171
25

6
81
90
171
30

1
62
90
152
14

Table 5. Fires in Dwellings (previous years in brackets [ ])

Fires

High Rise
/
Sheltered

Other Flats

Houses

TOTAL

Fatality

0

[0]

1

[0]

0

[0]

1

[0]

Other injury

3

[0]

1

[0]

2

[0]

6

[0]

Damage
only

5

[9]

8

[14]

22

[14]

35

[31]

Trend





TOTAL

8

[9]

10

[14]

24

[14]

42

[31]



Table 6: Top 3 causes of fires
2019 / 2020

2020 / 2021
Cause

No

Cause

No

Arson

12

Cooking

19

Cooking

10

Arson

7

Electrical

10

Electrical

6

Unwanted Fire Signals
There have been a total of 233 unwanted fire signals in the reporting period with
faulty equipment (68) and cooking (53) being the main contributory factors.
Work continues with NFRS and internal colleagues to try and reduce the number of
unwanted fire signals going forward.

NFRS Audits and Inspections.
There were a total of 14 audits by the Nottingham Fire & Rescue Service.
They were all in Independent Living Schemes.
There was 1 documented NFRS intervention.
The written Notice of deficiency was issued at The Cornfields in respect to an
identified aspect of inadequate fire stopping in the service cupboards caused by
previous penetration works, gaps in a fire door, inadequate mean of escape outside
2 fire exit doors because they were grassed and inadequate fire alarm in the main
electrical service cupboard and the bin stores. The remedial works were undertaken
and the NFRS notified accordingly.
Insurance Claims & Costs:
NCH Claims notified between 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021.
The figures in brackets are the totals for the previously reported period (01/04/1931/03/20)
Table 7: Claims, costs and repudiation rates

No. of
Claims

No. of
Claims
Closed

Repudiation
Rate

Paid So Far

Outstanding
Estimate

Total Cost

Employers Liability

2
(2)

0
(0)

0.00%
(0.00%)

£1,019.50
(£0.00)

£46,980.50
(£19,000.00)

£48,000.00
(£19,000.00)

Own Property Damage

2
(1)

1
(0)

50.00%
(0.00%)

£0.00
(£0.00)

£10,000.00
(£0.00)

£10,000.00
(£0.00)

Motor

58
(87)

44
(64)

22.72%
(48.44%)

£70,433.07
(£93,057.35)

£36,457.88
(£34,253.10)

£106,890.95
(£127,310.45)

Public Liability

96
(92)

35
(48)

40.00%
(58.33%)

£33,531.63
(£14,639.00)

£237,162.15 £270,693.78
(£244,463.88) (£259,102.88)

Total

158
(182)

80
(112)

31.25%
(52.86%)

£104,984.20 £330,600.53 £435,584.73
(£107,696.35) (£297,716.98) (£405,413.33)

Policy Type

NCH Additional Claims closed between 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020
Below figures are for claims that were originally notified before 01/04/20-31/03/21
and so the claims in the above table are not included
The figures in brackets are the totals for the previously reported period (01/04/1931/03/20)

Table 8: Additional claim statistics

No. of
Claims
Closed

Repudiation
Rate

Total Cost

0
(8)

0.00%
(37.50%)

£0.00
(£248,536.37)

Motor Vehicle

24
(4)
44
(39)

91.66%
(25.00%)
56.81%
(53.85%)

£57,489.16
(£138,895.87)
£189,092.84
(£52,131.87)

Public Liability

41
(48)

80.48%
(64.58%)

£4,785.78
(£123,075.63)

Total

109
(99)

73.39%
(62.62%)

£251,367.78
(£562,639.74)

Policy Type
Employers Liability
Own Property
Damage

Major Adverse Event Investigations:
Morley Court:
Solar Panel Battery Pack fire:

The battery pack of the solar panel system caught fire. Reports indicate that there is
no evidence of tampering with the unit and that a failure of the battery caused by a
manufacturing defect is the most likely cause.

Kingston Court:
Roof level louvre failure:
A corner piece of the decorative louvre at roof level became detached from the
brackets supporting it and fell to the ground landing close to the car park on the
south side of the block.
A specialist contractor was engaged to undertake a full inspection of the louvres in
March 2021. A decision regarding the future of the louvres is currently under
consideration.
Kennington Road (tenant broke leg falling through floor)
The investigation is now complete. A defect in the IT system allowed a job sheet to
repair a faulty floorboard to be closed off in error. This meant the floorboard was not
repaired as quickly as may have been expected. The tenant fell through the
floorboard injuring their leg. The IT system has been reviewed and the error has
been resolved.

Explosion at 103 Skipton Circus, Sneinton:
The property was significantly damaged following an act of arson by the tenant. The
tenant was subsequently charged and found guilty of Arson and is subject to an
internal review.
Petrol was confirmed to be the source of the explosion.

Fire at Angell green, Clifton
The fire was caused when the resident took their own life by way of self- immolation.
At the inquest, the Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service noted that the working
fire alarm (installed by NCH) raised the alarm and prevented the fire from reaching
the neighbouring flats.
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1.

Introduction and scope

Nottingham City Homes Ltd (NCH) has developed and implemented an Occupational
Health and Safety Management System (OHSMS), which uses ISO 45001 as a
framework that allows our organisation to document and improve our practices in order
to better satisfy the needs and expectations of our customers, stakeholders and
interested parties.
This manual describes the Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
describes authorities, inter relationships and responsibilities of personnel operating
within the management system. The manual also provides references to procedures
and activities that also comprise our Occupational Health and Safety Management
System.
The manual is used to familiarise workers and other stakeholders with the controls that
have been implemented and to assure them that the integrity of our Occupational Health
and Safety Management System is maintained and is focussed on ensuring a safe
working environment and continual improvement.
Our Occupational Health and Safety Management System meets the requirements of
ISO 45001and uses the Plan, Do, Check and Act approach to process planning. Our
OHSMS addresses and supports our strategies.
This manual represents an Occupational Health and Safety Management system that is
based on iso 45001: 2018, it is written at a point of transition from the previous OHMS
standard BS EN 18001. A number of the key processes and procedures from BS EN
18001 are compatible with slight modification or in their entirety with ISO 45001.
Therefore in some cases reference to certain positions, roles or titles contained in those
(18001) documents may be inconsistent with current structures, however,
responsibilities, permissions and authorities are deemed to be novated to those
positions, roles or titles that have been created to assume the duties previously carried
out under 18001.

2.

Normative References

In addition to ISO 45001 reference is also made to other relevant British and/or
international standards, as well as customer specifications appropriate to our products
and services.
Standard

Title

BS EN ISO 9001:2005

Quality Management Systems

BS EN ISO 14001:2004

Environmental Management System

ISO 45001: 2018

Occupational Health and Safety Management
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3.

Terms and definitions

This document introduces new definitions set out in the table below and also relies on
the following:
1. Definitions typically used by our customers, stakeholder or marketplace;
2. Terms typically used in standards and regulations as they relate to our OHSMS
or services;
3. Standard business terminology;
4. Terms and vocabulary commonly used in health and safety practices.
Term

Definition

NCH

Nottingham City Homes

NCC

Nottingham City Council

CE

Chief Executive

OHSP/MS

Occupational Health and Safety Policy / Management System

Quality

The degree to which a set of inherent characteristics fulfils
requirements or enhancement of customer satisfaction

The Company / Organisation

Nottingham City Homes

The Standard

BS ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems

Process

A set of interrelated or interacting activities which transforms
inputs into outputs

Procedure

A specified way to carry out an activity or a process

Work Instruction / Standard
Operating Procedure /
Method Statement

A detailed set of instructions that describe exactly how a lowlevel activity must be carried out

Executive Management /
Top Management

The most senior management of the Company which includes
the Chief Executive and the 3 Directors.

BSM/T : Building Safety
Manager / Team

The team delegated with managing the health and safety
matters relating to buildings within the NCH estate

Health and Safety Team
(HST)

The team delegated with managing the Occupational Health
and Safety Management System on behalf of NCH,
interchangeable with Risk Management Team

In this manual, the use of the following words has special meaning:
Term

Definition

Shall

Indicates a mandatory requirement, usually based on some published
standards

Should

Indicates a requirement for good practice, which should be implemented
whenever possible

May

Indicates a desirable requirement.
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4.

Nottingham City Homes

4.1

Understanding the organisation and its context

Nottingham City Homes is an arm’s length management organisation (ALMO) that
became operational on 1st April 2005 and transferred over 1,400 staff from Nottingham
City Council to do this. The ALMO is a company limited by guarantee created and
wholly owned by the Nottingham City Council to manage its homes and make them
decent.
NCH is responsible for the day to day management of over 27, 000 council properties
and approximately 1,000 leasehold properties. The Company is subject to the
provisions of the Companies Act and operates under the terms of Part V of the Local
Government and Housing Act and was set up under Section 2 of the Local Government
Act 2000.
Nottingham City Homes is a non-profit making company, run by a Board of nonexecutive directors. The board is made up from tenants, leaseholders, Councillors and
independent members. Operational control is managed by the Chief Executive and 3
Directors, supported by assistant directors, heads of service and other senior managers
covering the following areas: Diagram 1: Senior management structure:
Chief Executive

Director of
Corporate
Resources

Director of
Housing

Director of
Property

Digital Futures

A.D. Customer
and Tenancy

A.D. Development

A.D. Finance and
Procurement

Head of
Supported
Housing

A.D. Asset
Management

Head of
Organisational
Development

A.D. Housing
Operations

A.D. Construction
Repairs &
Maintenance

Head of
Governance and
Compliance

Head of
Commercial
Services

Head of Health
and Safety

Nottingham City Homes also owns its own stock of more than 70 properties in addition
to managing the properties owned by Nottingham City Council and other Registered
Social Landlords in the city.
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In 2016 Nottingham City Homes set up two new subsidiaries Nottingham City Homes
Enterprises Limited and Nottingham City Homes Registered Provider Limited. These
subsidiaries together with Nottingham City Homes Limited form the Nottingham City
Homes Group.
The success and reputation of the Company may be measured by the high customer
satisfaction rating as assessed by its customers.
NCH has documented its analysis of its organisational context and will continue to
monitor and maintain this document. The Company has implemented an Occupational
Health and Safety Management System (this document and any related documentation)
to demonstrate its ability to provide a consistent, safe service that meets stakeholder
and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.
This enables the Company to address and achieve Health and Safety matters through
the effective application of the system, including processes for continual improvement
and the prevention of nonconformity.
To ensure that our OHSMS is aligned with our strategy, whilst taking account of relevant
internal and external factors; we initially collate and analyse pertinent information in
order to determine potential impact on our context and subsequent business strategy.
NCH then monitors and reviews this information to ensure that a continual
understanding of requirements is derived and maintained. To facilitate the
understanding of our context, we regularly consider issues that influence our context
during management review meetings and are conveyed via minutes and business
planning documents.
We have identified any internal and external factors that drive our business, and these
are updated in our Interested Parties Framework: Context, risks and opportunities
matrix (OHS37).
The output from this activity is evident as an input to the consideration of risks and
opportunities, and the actions that we take to address them. Refer to Section 6.1 for
more information about our risk and opportunity management framework.
The company currently employs approximately 1,000 staff.
Our vision is to create homes and places where people want to live.
Our values are that we are:
1. Passionate about Delivering outstanding services
2. Respectful towards our colleagues, our customers and our communities
3. Always looking for ways to Improve
4. Keen to provide great Value for money
5. An Effective team, working with each other, our customers and our partners.
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Legislative Context. This manual is written in the context of the following legislation (not
exhaustive).
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
Construction Design & Management Regulations 2015
Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999
C.O.S.H.H. Regulations 2002
Asbestos at Work Regulations 2012
Clean Air Act 1993
Environmental Protection Act 1990
Town & Country Planning Act 2015
Landfill Tax Regulations 1996
Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999
Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993
Controlled Waste Regulations 1993
Waste Electrical & Electronic Equipment 2013
Waste Management Licensing Regulations 2005
Water Act 2003
Anti-Pollution Works Regulations 1999
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005
Environment Act 1995
Waste Minimisation Act 1998
Environmental Protection Act 1990
Flood & Water Management Act 2010
Climate Change Act 2008
Climate Change & Sustainability Energy Act 2006
Energy Act 2010
Equal Pay Act 1970
Sex Discrimination Act 1975
Race Relations Act 1976
Trade Union & Labour Relations (Consolidated) Act 1992
Disability Discrimination Act 1995
Employment Tribunals Act 1996
Employments Rights Act 1996
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998
Data Protection Act 1998
National Minimum Wage Act 1998
Humans Rights Act 1998
Employment Relations Act 1999
Employment Act 2002
Employment Relations Act 2004
Disability Discrimination Act 2005
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4.2

Understanding the needs and expectations of interested parties

NCH recognises that we have a unique set of interested parties whose needs and
expectations change and develop over time as we continually improve. Such needs and
expectations broadly include those shown in the table below.
Table 1: Interested parties

Interested Parties
(4.2)

External /
Internal (4.2)

Needs / Expectations (4.2)

External

To share critical information and co-ordinate key plans and
strategies

Internal

Has a legal responsibility to direct the organisation safely
and a commitment through the health and safety policy

Regulators - Health
and Safety

External

Need to comply with health and safety legislation

Tenants and their
representatives

External

Ensure that tenants and their visitors are safe within their
properties

Contractors, suppliers
and visitors

External

NCH has a duty to protect all persons visiting or working on
sites within their operational control

Non-operational
stakeholders

External

To ensure that the needs of those people / organisations
within NCH scope of operations are represented and
addressed

Tenants

External

To live within the NCH estate without undue fear for their
health, well-being and safety

Visitors / general public

External

To travel within the NCH estate without undue fear for their
health, well-being and safety

Staff

Internal

Trade Unions

External /
Internal

Nottingham City
Council

External /
Internal

Strategic Operational
Partners
Executive
Management Team /
Board

To work within the NCH scope of operations in an
environment where risks are maintained at acceptable
levels.
To ensure that those who work within the NCH scope of
operations do so in an environment where risks are
maintained at acceptable levels.
To share critical information and co-ordinate key plans and
strategies, to meet its obligations under health and safety
legislation

To ensure that all of our services, products and processes continue to meet all relevant
requirements, we identify and assess the potential impact of any relevant needs and
expectations that may be elicited from any interested parties.
Where appropriate, to ensure that our processes are aligned to deliver the requirements
of our interested parties; we convert relevant needs and expectations into requirements
which become inputs to our OHSMS and to our Health and Safety Objectives.
4.3 Determining the scope of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System
Based on the analysis of the requirements identified in Sections 4.1 and 4.2, this Health
and Safety Manual provides specifics on policies and procedures used by Nottingham
City Homes to meet ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System
requirements:
OHSo2, Issue 1, May 2021
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The scope of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System consists of the
following:
Property Services: Construction, building maintenance and repair; building services
and new building contract work.
Housing Services – including area housing management; rents; voids, lettings and
allocations; estate and caretaker management; supported housing management and
tenant and leaseholders involvement management.
Corporate Services: Including health and safety, risk management, business
transformation, financial services, learning and development, payroll, HR and ICT.
The scope of this Manual addresses our business aim and shows how Nottingham City
Homes’ OHSMS meets the requirements of ISO45001:2018. It is used to support our
process approach and applies risk-based considerations to allow the integration of
preventive measures within the OHSMS and our day to day operations. Risks have
been identified and are reviewed periodically to reflect any possible changes which
could affect our operation and how to avoid, eliminate, minimise or mitigate them. The
requirements of the management system are integrated into the organisation’s business
processes.
Continuous improvement can only be sustained if properly embraced, monitored and
supported by the Management team. Continuous measurement will therefore play a
significant role in achieving corporate objectives. The Organisation has a policy of
continuous improvement driven and enforced by a management team with focused
objectives, and with a management culture able to react to the modern-day standards
and techniques.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

OHS37

Interested Parties Framework: Context, risks and
opportunities matrix
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4.4 Occupational Health and Safety Management System and its processes
Figure 1. Outline NCH OH&SMS

Leadership

Legal
Requirements
6.1.3

Context
and Scope
4.0

Hazards
and risks
6.1.2

Evaluate
Risks
6.1.4

OH&S
Policy
5.2

OH&S
Objectives
6.2.1

Compliance

Worker participation

Compliance
audit
9.1.2

Control
Risks

Review
adequacy
8.1.2

Develop
Controls
8.0

OH&S
Programmes
6.2.2

Safe Work Place

Executive management of the Company has established, documented and implemented
an Occupational Health and Safety Management System, which will be maintained and
continually improved in accordance with the requirements of the International Standard
ISO 45001. To implement the Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
the Executive Management Team has:
•
•
•
•

Identified the processes needed for the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and their application throughout the organisation.
Determined and applied the sequence and interaction of these processes.
Determined and applied criteria and methods required to ensure the effective
operation and control of these processes.
Ensured the availability of information that is necessary to support the operation
and monitoring of these processes.
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•
•

Put procedures in place to manage, monitor, measure (where applicable), and
analyse these processes.
Implemented action necessary to achieve planned results and continual
improvement.

The overall process model of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System
is given in section 4.4 and is operated by the application of the “Plan-Do-Check-Act”
method, described below.

Plan: Establish the objectives and processes
necessary to deliver results in accordance with
customer requirements and the Company’s policies

PLAN

DO

Do: Implement the processes
Check: Monitor and measure processes and service
against policies, objectives and requirements for the
service and report the results.

ACT

CHECK

Act: Take actions to continually improve process
performance

Where NCH identifies the requirement to outsource any process, or part thereof, which
affects conformity with the stated requirements; NCH identifies control criteria such as;
the competence of personnel, inspection regimes, the provision of product conformity
certificates, adherence to specifications and works.
The controls identified do not absolve us of the responsibility to conform to client,
statutory and regulatory requirements but instead they enhance our capacity to
effectively manage safety through our supply chain. The controls adopted are influenced
by the potential impact of outsourcing on meeting customer or stakeholder requirements
and the degree to which control of the process is shared. Outsourced processes are
controlled via purchasing and contractual agreements. They may also be assessed by
audits and performance data reviews where appropriate.
OUR MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND ITS PROCESSES
Integration of our management system and its processes

NCH currently operates the following management systems:
BS EN ISO 9001:2005

Quality Management Systems

BS EN ISO 14001:2004

Environmental Management System

ISO 45001: 2018

Occupational Health and Safety Management
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The organisation is responsible for the planning and management of our management
systems. We work closely with our workers, clients, suppliers, tenants and stakeholders
in order to satisfy mutual requirements. We have a list to illustrate the interaction of our
core business processes as identified below.
ALL
-

Organisation Risk Assessment

-

Internal Audit

-

Non-Conformance/Corrective Action

-

Purchasing/Supplier Management

-

Management Review

-

Training & Awareness

-

Communications

-

Management of Change

QUALITY
-

Operational Processes (e.g. Enquiry, Project Planning, Project Delivery,
Project Completion etc.)

-

Customer Satisfaction Process

ENVIRONMENTAL
-

Aspects & Impacts Evaluation

-

Waste Management Process

-

Emergency Preparedness & Response

-

Risk Assessment

-

Safe Working Procedures/Method Statements

-

Outsourcing/Procurement Procedure

-

Contractors Procedure

-

Emergency Preparedness & Response

OH&S

Documented Information
This Health and Safety Manual has been established, which includes the scope of the
Occupational Health and Safety Management System, including details of and
justification for any exclusions, with documented procedures describing the sequence
and interaction of the processes included in the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System. Executive Management has defined the documentation needed
to support the needs of the Company and the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System. The defined documentation provides for implementation,
maintenance and improvement of the system and includes:
• Policy documentation
OHSo2, Issue 1, May 2021
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• Documentation for control of processes
• Standard formats for collection and reporting of data
• Health and Safety records.
The primary purpose of documentation is to express the Health and Safety policy and to
describe the Occupational Health and Safety Management System . This
documentation serves as a basis for the implementation, effective operation and
maintenance of the system.
The Health and Safety Manual is under the control of the Health and Safety Manager.
Control of documents
Control of quality records
NCH operates the Quality Management System ISO 9001: 2005:- All documentation
and records are managed in accordance with this system. Records required for the
Occupational Health and Safety Management System are controlled, maintained, and
protected to provide evidence of conformance to requirements and of effective operation
of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System . Records are analysed to
provide inputs for corrective and preventive action, improvements to process control and
the Occupational Health and Safety Management System .
Records shall remain legible, readily identifiable and retrievable. NCH ISO 9001 “Quality
Manual” defines the controls needed for identification, storage, protection, retrieval,
retention time and disposition of records. Quality Records may be in any form or type of
medium suitable for the needs of the Company including computer data. Back-ups are
made of all NCH databases at least every 48 hours by the NCC ICT team.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

QMS -Procedure-02

Control of Records

5.

Leadership

5.1

Leadership and commitment

5.1.1 General

Executive Management of Nottingham City Homes is responsible for the Occupational
Health and Safety Management System (OHSMS) defined in this Manual and the
statements of policy, objectives, responsibilities, and authority.
Executive Management provides the leadership and governance to all activities related
to the lifecycle processes including defining the strategic direction, responsibility,
authority and communication to assure the safe and effective performance.
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NCH’s governance structure provides necessary support for creating and establishing
appropriate processes that are important for maintaining and achieving our quality
objectives and policies. In addition, governance activities include systematic verification
of the effectiveness of our OHSMS by undertaking internal audits and analysing
performance data.
All personnel are hereby instructed to fully comply with this system and to cooperate
with the Executive Management Team in a unified effort to ensure that the services we
provide meet or exceed our regulatory and legal health and safety requirements, and
the requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System
described in this manual.
We are committed to management reviews of performance, to the Health and Safety
Policy and Objectives we have established and to ensure the availability of necessary
resources, and the improvement of health, safety and well- being outcomes.
The CE and Executive Management have provided evidence of this commitment to the
development and improvement of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System by:
• Communicating to staff the importance of meeting corporate health and safety
objectives as well as statutory and regulatory requirements
• Communicating our Health and Safety policies, processes and procedures to all
staff
• Establishing a Health and Safety culture.
• Encouraging commitment to continuous improvement
• Providing people with the required resources, training and authority to act with
accountability
• Establishing the Health and Safety policy and objectives
• Ensuring that the Health and Safety policy be communicated, understood and
applied within the organisation
• Establishing an internal audit function
• Promoting awareness of risk based thinking
• Conducting management reviews
• Ensuring the availability of necessary resources.
In addition, our policies, objectives and targets are communicated and deployed
throughout the Company via individual performance objectives which are established
and discussed during employee performance reviews.

5.2

Policy

5.2.1 Establishing the Occupational Health and Safety policy
The NCH Occupational Health and Safety Policy (OHS01) is issued as a separate
document and published to the intranet and the company website.
Supporting documentation:
Ref
OHSo2, Issue 1, May 2021
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OHS01

Policy Statement of Intent, General Arrangements and
Objectives 2021-23

The Occupational Health and Safety policy acts as a compass by providing the direction
and framework for establishing key corporate level performance measures, as well as
related objectives and targets. Executive Management ensures that our corporate
policies are well established, documented and implemented and that the policies are
available to all interested parties via our website.
The Head of Health and Safety has overall responsibility for defining, documenting,
implementing and reviewing our Health and Safety policy in consultation with the
management teams and other personnel, or their representatives. The policy is
reviewed at least annually, as part of the management review programme or at a
frequency determined by:
1. The changing needs and expectations of relevant interested parties, (Section 4.3.)
2. The risks and opportunities that are presented through the risk management
process, (Section 6.1.)
5.2.2 Communicating the OH&S Policy
The OH&S policy is communicated to all employees at all levels throughout the
Company via training, regular internal communications and reinforcement during annual
employee performance reviews. Employee understanding of our policies and objectives
is determined during internal audits and other methods deemed appropriate.
The policy is published on the intranet and internet and forms part of the awareness
training given to employees and suppliers and is publicly available and maintained on
the internet or upon request.
NCH is committed to an operating philosophy of openness in communication, integrity in
serving our customers, fairness and concern for our employees and responsibility to the
communities within which we operate. Our vision is to exceed customer expectations for
quality, safety, sustainability, cost, delivery and value. The aim of our business
management system is to ensure that:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
5.3

We deliver a safe service to maintain excellent customer relations
Customer satisfaction remains inherent to our business
Our customer’s requirements have been fully understood and met
All work is carried out consistently to a defined standard
We have the skills and resources to fulfil our customer requirements
Our staff are fully trained and involved in business improvement • We strive to
improve our systems, procedures and processes and the effectiveness of the
Occupational Health and Safety Management System as a whole
Any complaints are dealt with efficiently and within agreed timescales.
Organisational roles, responsibilities and authorities
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Our organisational structure is outlined in OHS38: Organisation Structure: Roles,
responsibilities and authorisations. The organisation chart shows the interrelation of
personnel within NCH, whilst job descriptions define the responsibilities and authorities
of each role. Job descriptions and the Organisational structure are reviewed and
approved by Executive Management for adequacy as determined by the changing
needs and expectations of the interested parties identified in section 4.3, and any risk
and opportunities presented through the risk management process in section 6.1.
Members of Executive Management are ultimately responsible for the management of
Occupational Health and Safety of NCH’s operations since they control the resources,
systems and processes by which conforming work is accomplished. Executive
Management are responsible for planning, development and the communication of our
Health and Safety policies, the establishment and deployment of objectives, the
provision of resources needed to implement and improve the Occupational Health and
Safety Management System and for undertaking management reviews. Executive
Management has assigned the responsibility and authority to the management teams
and departments to:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Ensure that OHSMS processes are delivering their intended outcomes;
Report on the operation of the OHSMS and identifying any opportunities;
Ensure that improvement is taking place;
Ensure that customer focus is promoted throughout the organisation;
Ensure that whenever changes to the OHSMS are planned and implemented;
Ensure the integrity of the system is maintained during changes;
Ensure that responsibilities and authorities relating to the OHSMS are
communicated and understood.

All managers demonstrate their commitment to the development and improvement of
the Occupational Health and Safety Management System through the provision of
necessary resources, through their involvement in the internal audit process and
through their proactive involvement in continual improvement activities. Emphasis is
placed on improving both the effectiveness and efficiency of key system processes.
All managers are responsible for execution of the OH&S Policy and the implementation
of the policies, processes and systems described in this manual. All managers are
responsible for planning and controlling the management system processes within their
area of responsibility, including the establishment and deployment of operational level
objectives and the provision of resources needed to implement and improve these
processes.
All employees are responsible for their Health and Safety and that of their colleagues
whilst at work and the implementation of the OH&S policies and procedures applicable
to them. Employees are motivated and empowered to identify and report any known or
potential problems and recommend related solutions to aid the corrective and
preventative action process.
The responsibilities, authority and the interrelation of all personnel who manage,
perform and verify work affecting quality are defined and communicated in order to
facilitate effective health and safety management.
All people have been given the relevant authority and responsibility to enable them to
assist in the achievement of the health and safety objectives. This assignment of
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authority and responsibility helps to establish involvement and commitment of people
throughout the organisation.
The responsibility of personnel is assigned. An individual may be assigned with dual
roles, in such cases he/she will be responsible for fulfilling the tasks assigned to both
roles.
Whilst health and safety is the responsibility of all NCH employees, the high level
organisational responsibilities and specific health and safety authorities are laid out in
OHS38 table 1.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

OHS37

Interested parties Framework, context, risk and
opportunities

OHS38

Organisation Structure: Roles, responsibilities and
authorisations

OHS39

Communication, Consultation and Participation
Framework

5.4 Consultation and participation of workers
With regards to health and safety, the organisation has considered all the relevant
interested parties who may affected by the operations of the organisation that fall within
the scope of this manual. The identification of those parties and the risks and
opportunities relating to consultation and participation have been evaluated and are
contained in OHS37: Interested parties framework, context risk and opportunities.
The organisation has considered each of the groups of interested parties and has
determined minimum standards of communication and participation, these standards
are set out in OHS39 table 3.
The organisation has numerous channels by which it communicates and participates
with interested parties, the most commonly used are set out in OHS39 Table 2.
The organisation has determined that its principle vehicle for employees participation
will be the Health and Safety Committee. This body is comprised of NCH managers,
Union and Safety representatives and members of the Health and Safety Team.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

OHS39

Communication Consultation and Participation
Framework

6

Planning
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6.1

Actions to address risks & opportunities

6.1.1 General
Executive management is responsible for incorporating risk-based thinking into our
organization's culture. This includes the establishment of risk management procedures
and processes to ensure the effective risk and opportunity management principles are
undertaken throughout the lifecycle of our operations, processes, health and safety
management system, products, services, and activities by:
1. Providing sufficient resources to carry out risk and opportunity management
activities;
2. Assigning responsibilities and authorities for risk and opportunity management
activities;
3. Reviewing information and results from audits and risk and opportunity
management activities.
NCH considers the risks and opportunities arising business planning (4.1), workers and
interested parties (4.2). our management system and its processes (4.3), our operations
and supply chain (8.1) and takes action to ensure that our health and safety
management system meets its intended outcomes, reduces undesired effects and
achieves continual improvement.
Once the significant hazards (6.1.2.1), safety risks and other management system risks
(6.1.2.2), safety opportunities and other OHSMS opportunities (6.1.2.3), legal and other
requirements (6.1.3) are identified, our organisation then plans actions to avoid or
mitigate the perceived risks, or to take advantage of opportunities that improve safety.
NCH uses the Risk Registers to identify and evaluate risks associated with our health
and safety management system, and specifically, changes in the organisational context,
strategy, and legal requirements that relate to the needs and expectations of our
workers and other interested parties. Action is taken in a variety of ways using
management review meetings, Health and Safety committee meetings, design review
meetings, setting objectives, reviewing risk assessments and policies, improving
operational control, emergency preparedness planning, supplier evaluation, and other
appropriate processes.
NCH uses risk registers to help record, assess, respond, review, report, monitor and
plan for the risks and opportunities that we perceive to be relevant. The registers allow
our organisation to methodically assess each risk and to study each opportunity
associated with our organisational context, and the needs and expectations of our
interested parties. The register records the controls and treatments of risks and
opportunities and preserves this knowledge as documented information. Opportunities
can lead to the adoption of new practices, adoption of new processes, opening new use
of new technology and other desirable and viable possibilities to address our
organisation’s health and safety needs.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description
NCH Group Risk Register 2021

OHS40
OHSo2, Issue 1, May 2021
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OHS44

NCH Health and Safety Risk Assessment Master List

OHS37

Interested Parties context, risks and opportunities

6.1.2

Hazard identification and assessment of risks

The Company has an established policy, procedure and guidance for hazard
identification, risk assessment and the determination of necessary controls: (HS20 Risk
Assessment) the scope of this policy takes into account:
• routine and non-routine activities;
• activities of all persons having access to the workplace (including
contractors and visitors);
• human factors, including behaviour and capability;
• identified hazards originating outside the workplace;
• infrastructure, equipment and materials at the workplace, whether
provided by the organisation or others;
• changes or proposed changes in the organisation, its activities, or
materials;
• modifications to the OH&S management system, including temporary
changes, and their impacts on operations, processes, and activities;
• applicable legal obligations relating to risk assessment and
implementation of necessary controls;
• the design of work areas, processes, installations,
machinery/equipment, operating procedures and work organisation.
The Company’s procedure for hazard identification and risk assessment focusses on
being proactive rather than reactive and provides for the identification, prioritisation and
documentation of risks, and the application of controls, as appropriate.
The Company acknowledges that change within the organisation can have a
detrimental health effect on employees and the implications of change shall always be
considered and assessed.
When determining controls the procedure shall stipulate that consideration should
always be given to the following hierarchy:
a) elimination;
b) substitution;
c) engineering controls;
d) administrative controls including information, instruction, training,
signage and warnings;
e) personal protective equipment.
The company shall document the identification of hazards, risk assessments and
controls in line with the requirements of the risk assessment procedure. The procedure
also includes a formal review process to ensure information is kept current and up-todate.
For higher risk activities managers shall demonstrate they have planned work by
following the HS01a Plan Work Procedure and documenting it as appropriate.
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Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS01A

Plan Work Procedure

HS20

Risk Assessment

OHS41

Health and Safety Change Impact Assessment

6.1.3

Determination of Legal and other requirements

The company maintains a list of relevant health and safety legislation that applies to the
company’s activities in HS01-2 Register of Legislative & Procedure for Evaluation of
Compliance supported by the Guide to Acts, Regulations, Approved Codes of Practice
and Guidance Notes, Levels of Statutory Duty and Applicable Legislation booklet. The
HS01-2 list shall be maintained and documented by the company’s Health and Safety
Team and requirements shall be communicated and implemented through the
company’s Health and Safety objectives, Executive Management Team (EMT) and the
Board, divisional Health and Safety Committees, 45001 Management Review Meetings
and general management meetings appropriate to the risk and resources needed to
address the risk as decided by the Head of Health and Safety (HOHS) in line with this
management system procedure.
The company’s Health and Safety Committee Constitution and Terms of Reference
(OHS45) include new and emerging risk as an agenda item and each committee shall
include new legislation, approved codes of practice and guidance under this agenda
item for discussion to approve action to address new requirements.
The company’s formal HS01-3 Horizon Scanning H&S Procedure managed by the
company’s Health and Safety Team shall be used to monitor new developments and
progress these into the health and safety management system procedure by
communicating them through the divisional Health and Safety Committees, 45001
Management Review Meetings and relevant management meetings. Horizon scanning
shall be on the agenda of monthly Risk Management Team Meetings in line with the
procedure to ensure that requirements are kept up-to-date.
Relevant information on legal and other requirements shall be communicated to other
company’s (and persons) working under the control of NCH via contract meetings and
partner health and safety meetings to promote best practice sharing.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS01-2

Register of Legislative & Procedure for Evaluation of
Compliance

HS01-3

Horizon Scanning H&S Procedure

OHS45

Health and Safety Committee Terms of Reference

6.1.4

Planning Action
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Health and Safety matters are integrated into the NCH business management systems in the
following ways:
1. The Health and Safety Policy, manual, policies and procedures and any relevant associated
documents are managed in accordance with ISO 9000: 2005 the organisations quality
management system.
2. The executive management team commission an annual report and health and safety
business plan.

6.1
OH&S objectives and planning to achieve them
6.2.1
OH&S objectives
The CE and Executive Management have ensured that health and objectives needed to
for the OHSMS and to meet requirements for service and customer satisfaction have
been established and maintained at relevant functions and levels within the Company.
In addition, these objectives will be measurable and consistent with the health and
safety policy including the commitment to continual improvement. The Company's
health and safety objectives can be found in the document OHS01: Policy Statement of
Intent, General Arrangements and Objectives 2021-23.

Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

OHS01

Policy, Statement of Intent, General Arrangements and
Objectives 2021-23

6.2.2

Planning to achieve OH&S objectives

Figure 2: Process for setting health and safety objectives
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When setting objectives and targets, our organisation ensures that they are consistent
with the needs and expectations of our interested parties, as defined in Section 4.2, and
to our corporate policies. In addition, technological options, financial, operational and
business requirements are considered.
Health and safety planning is an integral part of the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and the CE and executive management have identified, planned
and provided the resources needed to achieve the health and safety objectives and
ensure improvement of the system.

The Company applies planning to all its work resources and considers the
implementation of the contents of this Health and Safety Manual to meet ISO 45001to
be its primary health and safety plan.

6.3

Planning of changes

The Occupational Health and Safety Management System is planned and implemented
in order to meet our corporate objectives and the requirements of ISO 45001:2018. The
planning process involves establishing and communicating our policies, objectives and
associated operational procedures.
This document constitutes our overall plan for establishing, maintaining and improving
the Occupational Health and Safety Management System . For each instance of
management system planning, the output is documented and retained accordingly and
changes are conducted in a controlled manner. The management review and the
internal audit processes ensure that the integrity of the OHSMS is maintained when
significant changes are planned which may affect key processes. Whenever
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Occupational Health and Safety Management System changes are planned, Executive
management ensures that all personnel are made aware of any changes which affect
their process, and that subsequent monitoring is undertaken to ensure that OHSMS
changes are effectively implemented.
NCH operates a project management framework where all significant projects are
evaluated by a Project Board. As part of this process all projects are subject to a change
impact assessment.
Where changes may have relevance to health and safety matters, officers are required
to complete a Health and Safety Change Impact Assessment (OHS41).
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

Business
Transformation/PMO
Documents

Change Impact Assessment

OHS41

Health and Safety Change Impact Assessment

7

Support

7.1

Resources

7.1.1 General
The resources needed to develop, implement and continually improve the processes of
the Occupational Health and Safety Management System and to address and enhance
customer satisfaction have been determined and provided in a timely manner to ensure
requirements are met.
The Board and Executive Management Team (EMT) shall take ultimate responsibility
for health and safety and the effective implementation of the health and safety
management system.
The EMT shall demonstrate its commitment to health and safety and the
safety management system by:

health and

•
ensuring the availability of necessary resources to establish,
implement, maintain and improve the health and safety management
system;
•
acknowledging responsibilities and accountabilities within the
Health, Safety and Emergency Control Policy and delegating authorities to
facilitate effective health and safety management.
The company has appointed the Director of Corporate Services as the person with
responsibility and authority for ensuring that:
•

the health and safety management system is effectively established,
implemented and maintained;
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•

reports on the performance of the health and safety management
system are presented to the EMT for review and are used as the
basis for improvements of the health and safety management
system.

The identity and position of the appointed person shall be made available to all
employees via the Health and Safety Management System, the company’s regular
internal communication publication and the internal Intranet.
Through effective communication of the Health, Safety and Emergency Control Policy
and the Health and Safety Management System the company shall ensure that all
employees are aware of their health and safety responsibilities and take responsibility
for aspects of health and safety over which they have control, including adherence to
the company’s applicable health and safety requirements.
Through effective communication of the Health and Safety Policy and the Health and
Safety Management System the company shall ensure all those with management
responsibility are aware of the requirement to demonstrate their commitment to the
continual improvement of health and safety performance.
7.2 Competence

Personnel who are assigned responsibilities defined in the Health and Safety
Management System shall be deemed competent on the basis of applicable education,
training, skills, knowledge and experience. Where competence gaps are identified
through the Performance Development Review process they shall be addressed by the
relevant manager with appropriate information, instruction, training and supervision.
The company uses a health and safety training matrix as a guide to highlight job roles
and health and safety training needs. This should be used on induction and as part of
the Performance Review process to identify necessary health and safety training needs
and refresher training.
Health and safety training needs identified through the Performance Review process,
risk assessment or job specific requirements shall be communicated to the Learning
and Development section by the relevant manager for appropriate training to be
arranged.
All training arranged through the Learning and Development section is evaluated using
to company’s training evaluation form and the results are used by the Learning and
Development section to improve training delivery. All training records are stored
electronically for easy retrieval for the duration of the individual employee’s
employment.
Through management scrutiny, Human Resources (via recruitment) and the Learning
and Development section the company shall ensure that only suitably trained and
competent employees carry out safety critical job roles such as electricians and gas
engineers.
All apprentices shall receive appropriate in-house and external training and shadow a
suitably competent mentor.
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Through the implementation of this Health and Safety Management System managers
within the company shall identify information, instruction or training needs associated
with its health and safety risks and they shall ensure appropriate information, instruction
or training is provided or take other action to meet those needs.
Where practicable, all training arranged and carried out by the company shall take into
account differing levels of ability, language skills and literacy.
Staff training records are maintained to demonstrate competency and experience.
Managers are responsible for maintaining and reviewing the training records of their
teams to ensure completeness and to identify possible future training needs. Training
records are maintained as per iso 9001 and as per this manual.
7.3 Awareness
NCH shall ensure that employees are aware of the Health and Safety Policy, Health and
Safety Objectives, their contribution to the effectiveness of the Occupational Health and
Safety Management System (including benefits of improved performance), and
implications of not conforming to the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System requirements.
The company’s induction process shall make new employees aware of:
•
•
•

•

their general health and safety roles and responsibilities and the importance of
conformity with the Health, Safety and Emergency Control Policy,
Health and Safety Management System, relevant procedures and emergency
response requirements;
the actual and potential health and safety consequences of work activities,
inappropriate behaviour, and the health and safety benefits of improved personal
performance;
the potential consequences of departure from health and safety procedures.
Health and Safety inductions shall be repeated periodically (as a guide every 5
years).

The company induction shall be supplemented by a section specific induction carried
out by the relevant manager to include section specific health and safety risk
information, the safety measures they would be required to follow, the outcome of risk
assessments, emergency procedure information and, where necessary, specific
training.

7.4 Communication
The CE and Executive Management have defined and implemented processes for the
communication of Health and Safety requirements, objectives and accomplishments.
The main vehicle for communication to the Company is via the intranet, which includes
information relating to the Occupational Health and Safety Management System and
Company performance.
The delivery of this information provides a resource for improvement and the
involvement of people in achieving Health and Safety objectives, including one to one,
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and weekly team briefings, in-house memos, information on notice boards, audio-visual
and electronic media as necessary.
Health and Safety awareness will be supported by a wide variety of channels and levels
of consultation and participation as defined in the Communication, Consultation and
Participation Framework (OHS39). This framework describes the mechanisms for
internal (7.4.1) and external (7.4.2) communication.
7.4.1 Internal Communication
NCH communicates information internally regarding our OHSMS and its effectiveness,
through documented training, internal audit reports and continual improvement
processes. All managers are responsible for establishing regular formal and informal
communications as needed to convey to their employees the relevance and importance
of their activities; typically this information is conveyed through team meetings and
cross-functional improvement projects.
Communications regarding how employees contribute to the achievement of objectives
are also conveyed and reinforced during employee performance reviews. Issues
pertaining to our OHSMS that may be communicated internally include:1.
2.
3.
4.

Day-to-day operations and general awareness;
Health and Safety Policy;
Information on achieving objectives and targets;
Risk and opportunities.

Executive Management and their direct reports are responsible for communicating the
corporate policies as well as the importance of meeting, statutory and regulatory
requirements to employees within their respective departments. They ensure the Health
and Safety policy is understood and applied to the daily work of the organisation
through the establishment of measurable goals and objectives. Internal communication
occurs on an on-going basis and is achieved through various mechanisms as
appropriate:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Regular meetings and briefings;
Training sessions and training material;
Display boards and literature (emails, letters, etc.)
Website and intranet;
Product and process performance data analysis and audit results;
Targets, objectives, scorecards, KPIs, management system manuals and
procedures;
7. Corrective action and non-conformance reports;
8. Minutes of ad-hoc and scheduled meetings.
The company shall communicate health and safety hazard information and health and
safety management system requirements to the various management levels within the
company using the shared drive Health and Safety Management System folder.
Managers shall cascade the information down through section team meetings and oneto-one’s.
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The company’s Health and Safety Team shall communicate general and specific health
and safety information to managers using the company’s internal communication
channels’ and the Health and Safety section of the company’s internal Intranet site.
Specific health and safety information shall be communicated through the Health and
Safety Committee. Minutes and Action Plans for these meeting shall also be printed and
displayed on notice boards for those who do not have access to a computer.
The provision of health and safety information should improve awareness of health and
safety and involvement of employees to achieve health and safety objectives.
The company shall communicate health and safety hazard information and health and
safety management system requirements to contractors via contract meetings and
partner health and safety meetings. Visitors to NCH workplaces shall be issued with
visitor health and safety information or Local Site Rules for Contractors as appropriate
to their visit.
Where NCH receives communication regarding health and safety matters from external
interested parties these shall initially be addressed to the company’s health and Safety
team for a response in line with the company’s communications policy and
compliments, comments and complaints procedure. External health and safety
complaints will be referred through the company’s established Compliments, Comments
and Complaints Procedure (3C’s).
The Company shall use the established Health and Safety Committee Constitution and
Terms of Reference to ensure the effective participation of employees and their
representatives in hazard identification, risk assessment, incident investigation and the
development and review of health and safety policies and objectives.
Employees shall be informed about their participation arrangements and who is their
representatives on health and safety matters via email, internal communication
channels, the Intranet and notice boards.
The Company shall consult contractors, partners and neighbours regarding health and
safety matters that may impact on them through specific communications and, where
necessary, meetings.
7.4.2 External Communication
NCH determines the need to communicate information externally to our interested
parties, as defined in Section 4.2, regarding the effectiveness of our OHSMS.
The methods and minimum standards for external communication are contained in the
Communication, consultation and participation framework.

NCH ensures that all external communications are authorised prior to release. Where
required, advice appropriate to the context of the communication may be sought
concerning the content and dissemination of certain external communications.
Responses to external communications are recorded if they are transmitted by email or
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letter. In each case the response is retained and controlled in accordance with the
requirements of the documented information.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

OHS39

Communication Consultation and Participation
Framework.

OHS45

Health and Safety committee terms of reference

7.5 Documented Information
7.5.1 General
The Occupational Health and Safety Management System is based on the requirements
of ISO 45001and ISO 9001: 2005 which describes how the Company’s programme is
designed to ensure that customers’ quality requirements are recognized and that
consistent and uniform control of these requirements is adequately maintained. This
manual describes how effective control is established by the use of formal documented
processes and procedures to meet the criteria for both ISO 45001 and ISO 9001.
The Health and Safety Management System documentation shall include, but will
not be limited to:
• the Health and Safety Manual and Management System
• the Health and Safety Policy: Statement of Intent etc
• the Health and Safety Objectives
• the health and safety annual report
• quarterly EMT report with H&S updates
• Board reports that include health and safety issues
• Health and safety policies, procedures and associated documentation
• Risk assessments
• Accident and Incident reports and action plans
• The Health and Safety Committee constitution and terms of reference
• Health and Safety Committee meeting minutes
• Management Review Meeting minutes
• Induction health and safety information.
• Health and safety training records
7.5.2 Creating and updating
When creating and updating documented information, NCH shall ensure appropriate:
• Review and approval of documents for adequacy prior to initial release
• Periodic review, update and re-approval of existing documents as required
• Clear document identification, format, revision indication, and current revision
status.
7.5.3 Control of documented information
The Head of Health and Safety is responsible for the controlled internal distribution of
this manual, and changes thereto. The Health and Safety Manual is up to date at issue
OHSo2, Issue 1, May 2021

Page 29 of 42

Uncontrolled when printed

OHS02
to the company intranet and internet website. External organisations and personnel
have access to the latest revision of the Health and Safety Manual through the company
website. On update to the Health and Safety Manual all staff are informed via an
intranet news item.
Master copies of internal Health and Safety documents are held in the Document
Directory. The filenames of these documents include the identification and version
number of the document. All copies are controlled in that any printed out copies are
declared as uncontrolled.
Changes to the documents are undertaken by the relevant department managers, as
appropriate and the approved copies are placed in the Document Directory by the Head
Of Health and Safety. Changes are publicised by email and on the intranet.
Documents of external origin, which have been determined by the organisation to be
necessary for the Occupational Health and Safety Management System, are added into
the Document Directory and are recorded on the document control list.
Uncontrolled paper copies of this Health and Safety Manual are available on request,
but will also be marked ‘uncontrolled when printed’, and will not be kept up to date. All
documented information retained as evidence of conformity shall be protected from
unintended alterations.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

QMS-Procedure-01

Document Control

8

Operation

8.1

Operational planning and control

8.1.1 General
NCH establishes and implements documented plans and procedures that describe the
processes (Refer to Section 4.4) and the controls required for the provision of services
in awareness to the objectives, the potential for planned or unintended change, and the
risks and opportunities identified in Section 6.1. During this planning phase,
management or other responsible personnel identify the following parameters:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Objectives and requirements for the service;
Verification, validation, monitoring, inspection and test requirements;
Documented information to demonstrate conformity;
Documented information to demonstrate process effectiveness;
Necessary resources; or outsourced processes and their controls;
Criteria for process performance and product/service acceptance;
Potential consequences and mitigation to change affecting input requirements;
Resources necessary to support the on-going operation of the service;
Determining and keeping any necessary documentation information.
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The output of planning activity includes documented plans, objectives, resource
schedules, processes and procedures.

8.1.2

Eliminating Hazards and OH&S Risks

The Company’s established procedure for hazard identification, risk assessment
and the determination of necessary controls is documented in HS20 Health and
Safety Risk Assessment, this procedure takes into account:
• routine and non-routine activities;
• activities of all persons having access to the workplace (including
contractors and visitors);
• human factors, including behaviour and capability;
• identified hazards originating outside the workplace;
• infrastructure, equipment and materials at the workplace, whether
provided by the organisation or others;
• changes or proposed changes in the organisation, its activities, or
materials;
• modifications to the OH&S management system, including temporary
changes, and their impacts on operations, processes, and activities;
• applicable legal obligations relating to risk assessment and
implementation of necessary controls;
• the design of work areas, processes, installations,
machinery/equipment, operating procedures and work organisation.
The Company’s procedure for hazard identification and risk assessment shall be
proactive rather than reactive and provide for the identification, prioritisation and
documentation of risks, and the application of controls, as appropriate.
The Company acknowledges that change within the organisation can have a
detrimental health effect on employees and the implications of change shall
always be considered and assessed.
When determining controls the procedure shall stipulate that consideration should
always be given to the following hierarchy:
• elimination;
• substitution;
• engineering controls;
• administrative controls including information, instruction, training, signage
and warnings;
• personal protective equipment.
The company shall document the identification of hazards, risk assessments and
controls in line with the requirements of the risk assessment procedure. The
procedure also includes a formal review process to ensure information is kept
current and up-to-date.
For higher risk activities managers shall demonstrate they have planned work by
following the HS01a Plan Work Procedure and the Health and Safety Change
Impact Assessment Procedure, documenting the results as appropriate.
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Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS01a

Plan Work Procedure

HS20

Health and Safety Risk Assessment

8.1.3 Management of Change
The organisation manages the risks and opportunities of change at three different ways:
• Significant planned organisational change is assessed at a strategic level (see
6.3 planning for change)
• Planned Changes that impact on Health and Safety arrangements are assessed
(see 6.3 planning for change)
• Changes to Health and Safety arrangements
Changes to Health and Safety arrangements:
(based on an extract from HS20)
The organisation understands that hazard identification and risk assessment are not
one-off activities. Circumstances change over time; equipment is replaced, new
employees start work, working methods change and incidents take place.
Risk assessments must therefore be regularly reviewed and, where appropriate,
updated. The fact that assessments (and hazard identification sheets) have been
reviewed needs to be recorded, and this is done on form HS20D, and a copy sent to the
Health & Safety Team.
Managers must review risk assessments at any time when there is reason to suspect
that they are no longer valid, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

when it is suspected or known that the existing controls are ineffective or
inadequate
responding to the identification of new hazards
responding to changes that the company itself has made
responding to feedback from monitoring activities (audits) or the results of testing
of emergency procedures
changes proposed by corrective and preventive actions
an incident occurs.
the employment of young people (under 18’s).
an employee’s personal circumstances change so that they are more at risk (e.g.
someone becomes pregnant or needs to take medication which affects their
performance at work).

Annual reviews are carried out by groups according to a schedule managed by the
Health & Safety Team.
All reviews will actively involve union health and safety representatives to demonstrate
effective participation and consultation initiated by the relevant managers.
The Health and Safety Committee:
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An important feature of NCH´s health and safety management system is the
involvement of employees and employee representatives. The Health and Safety
Committee (H&SC) has an over-sight role, where various aspects of hazard
identification and risk assessment can be considered. The H&SC can direct teams to do
further work where they consider a risk assessment is unsuitable or ask for
consideration of different controls. The H&SC can also commission risk assessments or
research into hazards and controls where they believe a risk is not being addressed.
The H&SC can also consider any Health and Safety Change Impact Assessments and
direct further work arising from this process.
A risk assessment must be amended if any part of the assessment changes, even if the
change is reasonably minor. Remember to review any associated supplementary
control sheet, method statement or written work instruction. Employees and other
relevant interested parties must be informed of the amendments and how they affect
them.
The fact that a risk assessment has been reviewed does not necessarily mean that the
risk assessment needs to be changed; it will often be the case that the original
assessment is still suitable and sufficient. However, the fact that the assessment has
been reviewed must be recorded on form HS20D, regardless of whether or not the risk
assessment was amended. A copy of the completed review form should be sent to the
H&S.

Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS20

Health and Safety Risk Assessment

8.1.4 Procurement
Procurement, for the purposes of this management system encompasses:
•

•
•

The procurement of goods and services, and by extension any ancillary services
such as logistics and delivery. This includes purchase, lease, hire, partnership
working or any other such arrangement whereby goods or services are
permanently or temporarily procured for use by NCH.
The engagement of contractors and by extension any sub- contractors.
Third party suppliers or contractors who provide services on NCH property
whether on behalf of NCH or not.

The organisation assesses its Health and Safety responsibilities for Procurement as per
table 2.
Table 2: Health and Safety in Procurement
Type of Procurement
Health and Safety Arrangements
The OH&S requirements of goods are
Procurement of Goods
considered as per OHS27 Work
equipment and materials procurement
and inspection.
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Procurement of Services

The engagement of contractors
Delivery / Logistics / Visitors / Third party
suppliers

The OH&S requirements are established
as part of the procurement process and
included as part of the tendering process,
either through the specification or tender
pre-qualification.
The OH&S requirements are established
within the policy: HS05 CDM Regulations
OH&S requirements are communicated
either through specific instructions during
the procurement process or through
communication as per the Consultation,
Communication and Participation
Framework.

Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS20

Health and Safety Risk Assessment

HS05

CDM Regulations

OHS27

Work equipment and materials procurement and
inspection.

8.1.5 Emergency Preparedness and Response
The company has established an emergency control management system and
emergency response plan for the issues identified by the company as warranting
an emergency procedure. The procedures provide guidance to respond to such
emergency situations.
The company shall respond positively to actual emergency situations to prevent or
mitigate associated adverse health and safety consequences.
The company’s emergency response procedures shall take into account the
needs of the emergency services and, if it is considered they will be affected,
neighbours.
The company shall periodically test its procedure(s) to respond to emergency
situations and, where practicable, involving the emergency services and
neighbours as appropriate.
The company shall periodically review and, where necessary, revise its
emergency response procedures specifically after the occurrence of emergency
situations.
The emergency response procedures shall also form part of the company’s
Business Continuity Plans as part of the NCH Business Continuity Strategy and
Policy.
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Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

EC01

Emergency Control Management System

EC02

Emergency Response Plan

Emergency Control
Management System /
BCMS Originals

Business Continuity Strategy & Policy

9

Performance evaluation

9.1

Monitoring, measurement, analysis and evaluation
The organisation has established procedure HS01E: Performance
Measurement and Monitoring. The organisation shall follow the
performance measuring procedure to document and record performance
to identify successes and areas requiring corrective or improvement
action.
Performance monitoring shall take into account reactive and proactive
measures and be either qualitative or quantitative, appropriate to the needs
of the Company.
Equipment used to monitor or measure performance shall, where
appropriate, be calibrated and maintained to ensure accurate and
consistent results and records of calibration and maintenance shall be
retained and stored.

Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS01-E

Performance measurement and monitoring

9.1.1 General
The Executive Management Team has established a number of teams to lead and
support the performance evaluation of Health and Safety and the administrative
processes that support it (ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001).
EMT has overall executive responsibility for directing the organisation´s Health and
safety Performance.
The Health and Safety Team has general responsibility for the administration of the
organisation’s Health and Safety: This is in order to demonstrate the conformity and
continual improvement of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System.
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Relevant techniques and the extent of their use have been determined and the policies,
processes and procedures are outlined in this manual.
The Building Safety Team has specific responsibility for the administration of processes
and procedures that ensure the safety of the fabric of buildings held within the NCH
estate. The building safety team operate within the policies, procedures, processes
established within this OH&SMS.
The Business Transformation Team was established in order to implement the
monitoring, measuring, analysis and improvement processes of the administrative
policies, processes and procedures contained in ISO 9001.

9.1.2 Evaluation of Compliance
The Health and Safety Team shall evaluate compliance with applicable health and
safety legislation, ACOPs and guidance in accordance with the established
procedure HS01-2 Register of Legislative & Procedure for Evaluation of
Compliance and the established audit process.
Evaluation of compliance with legislation, ACOPs and guidance shall also be
carried out and recorded during health and safety inspections and other general
audits and the results shall be communicated to relevant managers and the Risk
Management Team. Health and safety inspections will be carried out in
accordance with procedure HS01f Health and Safety Inspection Process.
The results of legislative, ACOPs and guidance audits shall be documented and
stored electronically on the shared drive in the Health and Safety Management
System folder for easy retrieval.
9.1.3 Analysis and evaluation
In addition to the High Level objectives, a number of key performance indicators (KPIs)
have been established which support the main Health and Safety Objectives. These will
be used as a communication tool to demonstrate the improvements in overall
effectiveness of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System . The Head of
Health and Safety is responsible for ensuring that this data is collected, tabulated and
analysed, evidencing conformance of the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System . The data will be presented in a form for Management Review or other
management requirements.
Executive management and other managers and supervisors collect and analyse data
using appropriate statistical techniques to determine the suitability and effectiveness of
key Occupational Health and Safety Management System processes applicable to their
area(s) of responsibility and to identify opportunities for improvement. At a minimum,
data is analysed to assess achievement of the corporate level objectives and health and
safety requirements.
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A process is effective if the desired results are measurably achieved. Effectiveness is
measured in terms of health and safety performance, for instance: accident rates, time
lost to injury and reportable incidents, against established objectives and levels of
customer satisfaction
Control limits for process and product performance are expressed as objectives and
disseminated via documented information as appropriate. NCH undertakes corrective
action when the data shows a trend toward the defined control limit. Employees, who
utilise statistical tools to analyse; measure and verify outputs, are sufficiently competent
to ensure proper deployment of these techniques.
9.2

Internal audit

9.2.1 General
Nottingham City Homes plans and conducts internal quality audits at planned intervals
according to the Internal Quality Audit Procedure.
There is an internal quality audit plan all services. The Business Improvement and
Performance Manager is responsible for the production of the internal quality audit plan,
the organisation and co-ordination of the internal quality audit to ensure that the audit
criteria, scope, frequency and methods are defined, and that the following requirements
of Internal Quality Audit Procedure are met:
• Definition of audit responsibilities
• Definition of requirements for planning and conducting the audit, including followup activities
• Assurance of auditor independence
• Recording of audit results
• Communication of audit results to management
9.2.2 Health and Safety Audit Program
The Company shall conduct health and safety audits at planned intervals in
accordance with the established Health and Safety Audit Plan and Procedure.
The Health and Safety Audit Plan shall be developed by the HOHS and shall
address:
• the determination of health and safety audit criteria, scope, frequency
and methods;
• the selection of health and safety auditors;
• the responsibilities, competencies, and requirements for planning and
conducting health and safety audits, reporting results and retaining
associated records; and
• the conduct of health and safety audits to ensure objectivity and the
impartiality of the health and safety audit process.
The HOHS shall be responsible for planning health and safety audits based
on the results of risk management reviews, assessments of the company’s
activities and, where appropriate, the results of previous health and safety
audits to determine whether the health and safety management system:
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•
•
•

conforms to planned arrangements for health and safety management,
including the requirements of this ISO 45001 Standard; and
has been properly implemented and is maintained; and
is effective in meeting the company’s policy and objectives.

The HOHS and shall provide information on the results of health and safety
audits to relevant management meetings.
See also the NCH QMS-procedure-03: Internal Quality, Environmental and
Health and Safety Audits process

Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

QMS Procedure-03

Internal quality audits Environmental and

Health and Safety Audits process

9.3

Management review

9.3.1 General
The Management Review shall be undertaken on a regular basis by the Executive
Management team and must ensure its continuing alignment with the strategic direction
of NCH. The Head of Health and Safety shall ensure that over a 12 month cycle, all
requirements of the Management Review are undertaken in accordance with sections
9.3.2 and 9.3.3 of this document, including performance monitoring, systems changes,
internal Health and Safety audit, and verification of the Health and Safety Policy.
Attendees shall include Senior Management, and any other personnel may attend
where necessary to provide relevant input at the discretion and invitation of the Chair of
the Executive Management team. The Head of Health and Safety will report, at least
annually results, of external surveillance audits to the Audit Committee which is
attended by members of the Executive Management Team and Board. Details of
internal audits where non-conformance has been identified shall also be reported.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

QMS-Procedure-04

Management review

9.3.2 Management review inputs
The appointed management review team shall be convened as detailed in
the procedure HS01h and continually review the health and safety
management system to ensure its continuing suitability, adequacy and
effectiveness. The Management Review meetings shall include assessing
opportunities for improvement, the need for changes to the system and to
verify that the Health and Safety Policy and health and safety objectives
are being satisfied.
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The meetings shall be arranged and chaired by the Chief Executive (the
EMT appointed OH&SMS lead) supported by the HOHS and the Health
and Safety Team. Other senior personnel from across the Company shall
attend to provide relevant input.
Input items for the management review shall include, but are not limited to:
• results of health and safety audits and evaluations of compliance with
applicable legal requirements;
• the results of participation and consultation;
• health and safety performance of the company;
• the extent to which objectives have been met;
• status of incident investigations, corrective actions and preventive
actions;
• follow-up actions from previous management reviews;
• changing circumstances, including developments in legal and other
requirements related to health and safety; and
• recommendations for improvement.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS01H

Health and Safety Management Review Procedure

9.3.3 Management review outputs
The outputs from management review meetings shall be consistent with the
company’s commitment to continual improvement and shall include any decisions
and actions related to possible changes to:
• health and safety performance
• Health and Safety Policy and objectives
• resources
• other elements of the health and safety management system.
Records of the management review meetings shall be retained. Those involved in
the management review meetings shall consider the decisions and actions agreed
to determine how specific messages should be communicated but generally the
minutes and outcomes will be shared at H&S Committee meetings.

10

Improvement

10.1 General
It is a general principle of the NCH Occupational Health and Safety Policy and
Management System, that the organisation will monitor and evaluate key data and
performance information in relation to that system and through prioritisation and focus of
resources seek to continually improve that performance.
The data inputs for the improvement process include:
1. Risk and opportunity assessments;
2. Assessment of the changing needs and expectations of interested parties;
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3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

The legal compliance of processes and procedures;
The effectiveness of our OHSMS;
Changes in products, equipment and technological developments;
Internal and external audit results;
Corrective action and non-conformance rates;

NCH also ensures that opportunities for improvement from daily feedback on
operational performance are evaluated by the Head of Health and Safety which are
typically implemented through the corrective action system. Opportunities for
improvement from analysis of longer-term data and trends are evaluated and
implemented through the management review process and are prioritised with respect
to their relevance for achieving our quality objectives.
The overall effectiveness of the continual improvement program (including corrective
actions taken as well as the overall progress towards achieving corporate level
improvement objectives) is assessed through our management review process.
10.2 Incident, Nonconformity and corrective action
Incident investigation
The company shall follow the established Health and Safety Procedure HS02
Incident Reporting & Investigation to record, investigate and analyse incidents.
The aim is to determine underlying health and safety deficiencies, identify the
need for corrective action, identify opportunities for preventive action and identify
opportunities for continual improvement.
If the Risk Management Team aren’t involved in the investigation the results of
such investigations shall be communicated to the Risk Management Team and
relevant managers to be included in the relevant Health and Safety Committee
Meetings for discussion.
The results of incident investigations shall be documented and maintained by the
Risk Management Team and relevant managers.
The company shall follow the HS01G Health and Safety Audit Procedure for
dealing with actual and potential non-conformities, corrective actions and
preventive actions:
Within the audit procedure consideration shall be given to:
• identifying and correcting nonconformities and for taking action to mitigate
their health and safety impact on the company
• investigating nonconformities, determining their causes and taking action in
order to avoid their recurrence
• evaluating the need for action to prevent nonconformities and implementing
appropriate actions designed to avoid their occurrence
• recording the results of corrective actions and preventative actions taken
• reviewing the effectiveness of corrective actions and preventative actions
taken.
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Where the corrective action or preventive action identifies new or changed
hazards or the need for new or changed controls, the procedure shall require that
the proposed actions shall be risk assessed prior to implementation.
Actions taken to eliminate the causes of actual or potential nonconformities shall
be appropriate to the magnitude of the issue and commensurate with the health
and safety impact.
Where necessary, the Risk Management Team shall ensure that any necessary
changes are made to the health and safety management system documentation.

10.3 Continual improvement
NCH continually improves the effectiveness of its Occupational Health and Safety
Management System through the effective application of the corporate policies,
objectives, auditing and data analysis, corrective and preventive actions and
management reviews.
The continual improvement process begins with the establishment of our corporate
policies and objectives for improvement, based on objectives contained in our business
plan and customer targets and goals.
Customer satisfaction, internal audit data, process and product performance data, and
the cost of poor quality or risk control are then compared against objectives or KPIs to
identify additional opportunities for improvement.
The overall effectiveness of continual improvement programme, including corrective
actions taken, as well as the overall progress towards achieving corporate level
improvement objectives, is assessed through our management review process.
Supporting documentation:
Ref

Title and Description

HS02

Incident Reporting & Investigation

HS01G

Health and Safety Audit Procedure

HS01H

Health and Safety Management Review Procedure
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ITEM: 2.5

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
REPORT OF THE EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND
INCLUSION MANAGER

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

REVIEW OF PROGRESS AGAINST EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION
STRATEGY OBJECTIVES FOR 2019 - 2022
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report details the progress made against the objectives set out in the
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy for 2019 – 2022.
The strategy has three key themes:


Provide quality services to meet the needs of all citizens; and
improve customer satisfaction from residents with protected
characteristics (where this is below average customer satisfaction)



Offer employment opportunities fairly to all of Nottingham’s diverse
communities, with additional support for disadvantaged groups;
offering development and support to staff, ensuring that all
promotions are based on merit



Provide visible leadership in the City, promoting the value of
diversity.

1.2

This report also presents the annual Gender Pay Gap report for
consideration and approval.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Considers and comments on the progress made against the objectives
of the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2019 – 2022.

2.2

Determines if progress is consistent with the three key themes of the
strategy as outlined above.

2.3

Notes the proposed next steps to produce a strategy for
2022-2025.

2.4

Reviews and approves the Gender Pay Gap Report for 2020

3

REPORT
1

3.1

PROGRESS AGAINST THE AIMS OF THE EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
STRATEGY.

3.1.1

The Nottingham City Homes (NCH) Group Strategy on Inclusion, Equality
and Diversity was approved by the Board in July 2019 and can be found
here.
The key aims of the strategy are outlined below followed by details of the
progress against the aims.

3.1.2

Key Theme 1. Provide quality services to meet the needs all citizens; and
improve customer satisfaction from residents with protected
characteristics (where this is below average customer satisfaction)
We will:
 Improve our use of customer insight data to better understand the
individual needs and satisfaction levels across citizens
 Understand any disparities in levels of customer satisfaction between
groups with protected characteristics and average customer
satisfaction / identify actions which can reduce disparity
 Tackle worklessness and develop the confidence, skills and
knowledge of those tenants looking to gain meaningful employment by
creating more accredited training opportunities linked to our tenant
academy
 Support increased access to service areas such as adaptations for
people with disabilities, promoting older persons services, focussing on
youth engagement and under representation in tenant involvement
activities
 Continue to work towards eradicating modern slavery including support
for the “Make Nottingham a Slavery Free City” campaign
 Have a strong working relationship with Nottinghamshire Police and
the city’s Community Protection team to ensure Nottingham is a safe
place to live
 Work with Nottingham City Council (NCC) to develop our supported
housing offer for older people and those with disabilities and health
needs.

3.1.3

During the course of the Coronavirus pandemic we have adjusted our
level of contact with vulnerable tenants to ensure that they are receiving
the support they need.
Our priority was to contact all those in Independent Living Schemes and
any tenants with known vulnerabilities in our general stock.
For all those who live in our independent living schemes (ILS) we reassessed their needs in March 2020 along with specific risk assessments
for Covid-19 vulnerability.
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We identified approximately 5000 general needs households from our own
databases who may be more vulnerable during the pandemic due to age,
disability or ill health. This task was completed in September 2020.
We then extended our contacting to include further potentially vulnerable
people who live on their own or who live on their own with children under
the age of 10. We have completed over 3,500 successful contacts for this.
We know that 9% (5445) of our tenants have declared that they have a
disability and that 3% (1917) have opted not to disclose to us as to
whether they have a disability or not.
3.1.4

We have also offered digital training to tenants to help support those who
are unable to access usual services due to Covid-19 restrictions. People
who are typically digitally excluded are older persons, people with
disabilities and those who live alone. The training involves key skills such
as online shopping, accessing social and community groups, using
applications to speak with friends and family and registering for online
services.

3.1.5

Our Nottingham on Call (NOC) Service provides support 24 hours/365
days a year to vulnerable tenants and customers who have signed up to
the service. This enables us to support older persons and people with
disabilities and health conditions to live more independently.

3.1.6

Through NOC we offer a range of support packages and equipment
designed to meet the bespoke needs of individuals in their homes through
the use of assistive technology. More recently we have expanded the
offering to support people whilst they are out and about with the new GO!
Personal care alarm. This waterproof device allows you to contact the
NOC support team wherever you are to speak to someone – the built in
GPRS tracker allows the team to detect your exact location in case further
support is required.
Over the last 12 months the NOC team have installed 1548 package and
received more than 40,000 calls of which 1,000 of the calls were
considered critical.

3.1.7

NCH currently maintain 68 ILS for older people and people with disabilities
which provide 2,124 homes. The communal areas in the schemes have
recently reopened in line with Government guidance.
We’ve maintained our programme for refurbished the communal areas of
our ILS through our ‘Grander Designs’ to create stylish and contemporary
lounges for relaxation and socialising.

3.1.8

On each new build site we aim to achieve a minimum of 10% lifetime
homes to help those with mobility issues. Consideration is also given for
wheel chair access and level access showers.

3

3.1.9

NCH continues to meet the changing needs of our tenants through the use
of aids and adaptations to existing homes. This service has been
impacted by the Covid-19 restrictions as NCC are not undertaking home
visits or assessments but alternative procedures have been implemented
by NCH to mitigate some of the delays.

3.1.10 We work in close partnership with Nottinghamshire Police and the NCC’s
Exploitation and Modern Slavery team to achieve effective outcomes in
relation to modern slavery and human trafficking. Collaborative working is
also undertaken with other Councils and voluntary sector representatives
to undertake safety planning and problem solving.
3.1.11 NCH form part of a multi-agency who meet on a monthly basis at the
Serious Exploitation Risk Assessment Conference (SERAC) meetings to
discuss ongoing modern slavery case work. This enables NCH to take a
proactive role in tackling modern slavery and building networks within the
City of Nottingham.
NCH joined the Make Nottingham Slavery Free Campaign in 2018 and
continues to support this initiative. In addition, we have our in-house Eyes
Wide Open reporting system which allows our customer-facing employees
to feedback on any concerns they may have so that we can follow up with
the relevant actions.
3.1.12 We have a victim-centred approach to tackling hate crime/incidents. We
support tenants who are the victim of a hate crime or incident, agree on a
plan of action and keep them updated with regards to the progress of their
case. We utilise the interventions and tools in our anti-social behaviour
toolkit and work with partner agencies such as the Police and Community
Protection. We work with Community Protection to explore civil tenancy
enforcement options alongside criminal proceedings.
We are a strategic partner with the city Hate Crime and Community
Partnerships Board which focuses on improving community cohesion,
managing risk and harm to communities and reducing hate crime in the
City and delivering the city’s hate crime strategy action plan. We are also
key partners at the Nottingham Hate Crime Incident Performance Panel
that meets monthly to review and scrutinise hate crime reports to make
sure appropriate action has been taken in response to the incidents to
prevent repeat occurrences.
We encourage the reporting of hate crime by tenants and our employees
and support the annual Hate Crime Awareness Week and Nottingham
Together #Nottingham No Place for Hate campaign. We have contributed
to the development of a pathway to justice hate crime toolkit which is a
resource for both citizens and partner agencies.
Some of the activity we have planned on hate crime includes working with
NCC to expand the city’s hate crime champions scheme to NCH, support
the delivery of Operation Fossil which is a partnership operation to reduce
4

repeat victimisation in the neighbourhoods, work with Nottinghamshire
Police to link in with their new approach to restorative practice and explore
how this complements our community mediation service and work with
NCC to develop good practice on how social housing providers across the
city can tackle hate crime.
3.1.13 In order to deliver the strategic objectives in this theme we still need to
continue to develop more in depth analysis of customer insight data in
order to help us better understand the individual needs and satisfaction
levels across our tenants. STAR survey results and complaints data to be
included to identify any disparities in levels of customer satisfaction
between groups with protected characteristics.
The National Housing Federation have created a brand new data tool
which will allow us to compare our workforce data to the local communities
that we serve. We will use this to enable us to identify how representative
we are as an organisation in terms of our tenants and customers.
3.1.14 Key Theme 2. Offer employment opportunities fairly to all of Nottingham’s
diverse communities, with additional support for disadvantaged groups;
offering development and support to staff, ensuring that all promotions are
based on merit.
We will:
 Take positive action to increase the underrepresented groups across
the organisation
 Continue to use Future Leaders programme to positively recruit
participants
 Continue to champion Stonewall, Disability Confidence, Women in
Construction and the Social Housing Equality Framework using these
to benchmark our services
 Review our recruitment policies, and analyse recruitment data to seek
trends, taking action against any negative patterns
 Narrow the gender pay gap focusing on attracting more women into
construction and supporting women to progress to management and
senior management positions
 Prepare for reporting on the introduction of Ethnicity Pay Gap data
 Ensure succession and workforce planning are effectively embedded
 Train and develop our managers to manage equality and diversity
effectively in their work area and promote fairness, inclusion and
respect across the whole business
 Continue to invest in initiatives and programmes to support employee
wellbeing, identifying best practice from other organisations and
ensuring this is embedded across NCH
 Create a management information framework to monitor this strategy
 Continue to help residents into training, apprenticeships and
employment with NCH.
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Our actions to deliver against this theme over the last year are detailed
below.
3.1.15 The Employability Team continues to support positive action within
disadvantaged communities via apprenticeships, the Women in
Construction Campaign, and a range of employability feeder programmes.
Such programmes include the Kickstarter job placements, the Nottingham
Works 4 You support programme and the Ways 2 Work support
programme.
Our priority is to tackle worklessness and develop the confidence, skills
and knowledge of those tenants looking to gain employment. There is a
key focus on underrepresented and disadvantaged groups and those in
hard to reach areas.
3.1.16 The tenant and leaseholder involvement team are working hard to engage
with our tenants and provide a suite of training courses through the Tenant
Academy. For example, CV and Interview Skills, Deaf Awareness training,
volunteering management, healthy eating workshops and food safety Level
2 training.
3.1.17 Over 40% of the people who live in Nottingham are under the age of 25.
Therefore we have set up a number of workshops and projects specifically
aimed at 16 – 25 year olds. We continue to be committed to developing
our apprentices. However, due to Covid-19 restrictions and Government
guidelines we have supported the extension of our existing
apprenticeships. We intend to restart apprentice recruitment imminently.
3.1.18 NCH continue to invest in initiatives and programmes to support employee
wellbeing, with a specific focus on mental health. Numerous health and
wellbeing events have taken place and free MOT health checks have
been offered to all employees.
3.1.19 PAM Assist employee assistance programme is available to all employees
24/7 and a selection of employees and managers have been trained in the
following roles:
 Mental Health Champions
 TRIM practitioners
 Peer to Peer support
 Time to Change Campaign
 Mental health first aiders.
3.1.20 More recently we have introduced a range of resources to support our
employees with building resilience and protecting individuals mental health
and wellbeing.
3.1.21 NCH continues to use a variety of equality frameworks to ensure that we
create a diverse and inclusive workplace. Such frameworks include:
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Stonewall Workplace Equality Index – We are currently ranked at
number 54 in the Top 100 UK Employers list. The list is compiled
from the Workplace Equality Index – the UK’s leading
benchmarking tool for LGBT inclusion in the workplace



Disability Confident Employer - We are currently accredited at
Disability Confident Level 2. The accreditation is based on a selfassessment tool which focuses on how we attract, recruit and
develop people with disabilities



British Sign Language Charter – The Charter is set out by the
British Deaf Association. We continue to meet the criteria for the
five key pledges of the charter to improve access and rights for
Deaf people who use sign language.

3.1.22 More recently we have signed up to the Race at Work Charter which
means taking practical steps to ensure NCH is tackling barriers that ethnic
minority people face in recruitment and progression and that the
organisation is representative of communities, customers and clients and
British society today. There are five key principles of the charter which are:






Appoint an Executive Sponsor
Capture ethnicity data and publicise progress
Commit at Board level to zero tolerance of harassment and bullying
Supporting equality in the workplace is the responsibility of all leaders
and managers
Take action that supports ethnic minority career progression.

3.1.23 We continue to support our employee equality forums; Disabled
Employees and Carers forum (DECF), Ethnically Diverse Forum (EDF)
and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender+ Forum (LGBT+). The forums
have each recently had new EMT sponsors appointed along with new
terms of reference and action plans.
3.1.24 The forum Leads play a key role in feeding in to the wider NCH Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion Steering Group (EDISG) who meet every six
weeks. The EDISG is chaired by the Director of Corporate Resources and
includes representation from ALMO Board, Union, Customer Excellence
Panel, tenants and Managers from each of the three directorates of the
business.
3.1.25 NCH continue to fund places on the Future Leaders of Nottingham
Programme each year - this year we have funded six places. This unique
professional development programme is designed to make leadership in
Nottingham more diverse and representative of the communities it
represents.
3.1.26 The recruitment Policy has been refreshed along with the recruitment
training which has a key focus on unconscious bias. Recruitment data is
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currently under review to identify any disparities between gender, disability
and ethnicity.
3.1.27 Coronavirus – NCH have been extremely flexible and accommodating
during the Coronavirus pandemic around issues such as child care and
paid special leave. Risk assessments have been carried out for
employees who are classified as high risk and duties have been amended
for vulnerable employees or employees who are struggling mentally. For
those who are working from home and require additional equipment i.e.
chair, desk, monitor riser etc. we have delivered items to their home. We
continue to follow government guidelines to ensure the health and safety
of all employees.
3.1.28 In addition to the above, in order to deliver the strategic objectives of this
theme, we plan to:


Produce and publish an Ethnicity Pay Gap Report and a Disability
Pay Gap Report for the first time.



New EDI material is currently being designed which the EDI
Manager will deliver at employee inductions from July this year



We are in the process of designing separate EDI training for
managers which will be delivered through a combination of online
e-learning and a classroom based session later this year.



We are in the process of designing separate EDI training for
managers which will be delivered through a combination of online
e-learning and a classroom based session later this year.



Coaching and mentoring will be arranged to support internal
development and career progression for underrepresented groups.



Move from Disability Confident Employer Level 2 to Disability
Confident Leader Level 3 later this year.

3.1.29 Key Theme 3. Provide visible leadership in the City, promoting the value
of diversity
We will:
 Ensure we have a diverse Board representative of the City and
residents we serve
 Support public events such as Nottinghamshire Pride, Mela, and
Caribbean Carnival
 Be a Stonewall Diversity Champion, embracing those who identify
as LGBT+,
 Use the Social Housing Equality Framework as a benchmarking
tool, committing to a peer review over the lifetime of this strategy
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Have a zero tolerance on discrimination, train employees accordingly
and use disciplinary action where appropriate
Have a strong working relationship with Nottinghamshire Police and
the city’s community Protection Team and the city council to tackle
hate crime
Work with other housing providers in Nottingham and our contractor
partners to ensure the sector as a whole has a high profile leadership
role
Working closely with NCC to deliver shared goals and objectives.

Our actions to deliver against this theme over the last year are detailed
below.
3.1.30 We continue to support public events and engage with our communities
when it comes to Nottinghamshire Pride, Mela and Caribbean Carnival.
Although Covid-19 restrictions have prevented us from physically
celebrating, we have moved our events to an online platform.
3.1.31 We also continue to support key events such as LGBT History Month,
Black History Month and Disability History Month.
3.1.32 NCH have previously used the Social Housing Equality Framework
(SHEF). This is no longer available to use so we have replaced this with
the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG). The EFLG
Framework sets out four modules for improvement underpinned by a
range of criteria and practical guidance that will help NCH to implement
and deliver real equality outcomes for employees and the community. The
four modules are:





Understanding and working with your communities
Leadership and Organisational Commitment
Responsive Services and Customer Care
Diverse and Engaged Workforce

3.1.33 The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion training for all employees has
recently been refreshed and updated on the Learning Zone for employees
to complete as e-learning modules. The training includes powerful videos
and learning content to reflect current topical campaigns.
3.1.34 E-learning for Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) has also recently been
updated along with the guidance and EIA template form. This has been
promoted to encourage relevant managers to undertake EIAs in a timelier
manner and of a better quality. Improvements are being evidenced in this
area as a result.
3.1.35 We currently work in collaboration with the HDN Midlands Diversity Group
and more recently the NHF National Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Network to share experiences and best practice.
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We are also establishing links across wider housing organisations and
local equality groups specifically in relation to people with disabilities and
people from minority groups.
3.1.36 Next Steps to Develop EDI Strategy for 2022-25
Plans are underway to develop the new EDI Strategy with our objectives
for the next three years.
The strategy will be produced following consultation with our key
stakeholders and will be presented to a future Board meeting for
consideration and approval.
3.2

GENDER PAY GAP REPORT

3.2.1

NCH are legally required to report and publish a Gender Pay Gap Report
each year. Data is collected from the snapshot date of 5 April and the
following figures are calculated:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

percentage of men and women in each hourly pay quartile
mean (average) gender pay gap using hourly pay
median gender pay gap using hourly pay
percentage of men and women receiving bonus pay
mean (average) gender pay gap using bonus pay
median gender pay gap using bonus pay.

3.2.2

The NCH Gender Pay Gap Report for 2020 is attached as Appendix 1 for
consideration and approval. The deadline for publication of this report has
been extended to October 2021. Following Board approval, the report will
be published on the NCH website.

3.2.3

The analysis shows:


Our mean and median gender pay gaps have reduced over the last
few years and currently sit at 12.5 % and 17.6%.



Women occupy 22% of the highest paid jobs and 51% of the lowest
paid jobs at NCH. Women are under-represented in higher paid
roles.



Our pay structure no longer includes any bonus payments which
has eliminated the bonus pay gap.

3.2.4

The report outlines the steps we are taking to reduce the gender pay gap.

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

There are no direct financial implications for this paper.
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4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

This paper has been written in line with and in support of equalities
legislation including the Equalities Act 2010 (which includes the Public
Sector Equality Duty 2011 and Gender Pay Gap Information Regulations
2017) and the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

The Strategy is key to identifying and monitoring our progress to be an
inclusive organisation. There is a reputational risk and our strategy
supports strong tenant involvement and the work undertaken to improve
customer satisfaction for all of our tenants.

4.3.2

The Strategy is also key to ensuring good employee relations and
engagement across the organisation.

4.3.3

The Gender Pay Gap report identifies the positive improvements and
actions being taken. By taking steps to address the gender pay gap, NCH
mitigates the risks to its reputation as being a fair and inclusive employer.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES OBJECTIVES

5.1

This report is written in line with the our strategic goals per our Corporate
Plan:
1. To deliver the NCH Tenants’ Charter
2. To diversify and grow
3. To pursue organisational excellence

6

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out on the NCH Equality,
Diversity & Inclusion Strategy 2019 – 2022 and is available upon request.

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

Appendix 1: NCH Gender Pay Gap Report 2021

Contact officers:

Rebecca Dennis
Address: Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham NG2 3NJ
Tel: 0115 746 9464
E-mail: rebecca.dennis@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

Date: 17 JUNE 2021
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Gender Pay Gap Report
Executive summary
The gender pay gaps have continued to reduce at Nottingham City Homes over the
last few years. Our Mean pay gap is now 12.5 % which is 2.1% lower than the UK
national average (2020) and our Median pay gap is 17.6 which is 2.1% higher than
the national average.
We no longer pay bonus payments to our employees which has eliminated the
previous bonus pay gap between male and female colleagues.
We continue to address the underrepresentation of females within the construction,
repairs and maintenance section of the business and have a number of initiatives in
place to support this.
Our response to the Coronavirus Pandemic has been and continues to be extremely
flexible and accommodating around issues such as child care and paid special
leave. Risk assessments have been carried out for employees who are classified as
high risk and duties have been amended for vulnerable employees or employees
who are struggling mentally.
Background
In the UK, public, private and voluntary sector organisations with 250 or more
employees have to report on their gender pay gaps annually. The gender pay gap is
calculated as the difference between average hourly earnings (excluding overtime)
of men and women. Employers must report six different measures, as laid out in this
report, based on a snapshot of pay data on a set date set out by the Government
Equalities Office
This report details the breakdown of the gender pay gap within Nottingham City
Homes and how we have and intend to tackle our gender pay gap.
In the UK, the highest gender pay gaps exist within the Construction industry. We
are a housing management and maintenance company who have a high volume of
staff employed in construction trade roles, with these roles predominantly attracting
male employees.
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion at Nottingham City Homes
Under the law, men and women must receive equal pay for:
• the same or broadly similar work;
• work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation scheme; or
• work of equal value.
NCH is committed to the principle of equal opportunities and equal treatment for all
employees, regardless of sex, race, religion or belief, age, marriage or civil
partnership, pregnancy/maternity, sexual orientation, gender identity or disability. It
has a clear policy of paying employees equally for the same or equivalent work,
regardless of their sex (or any other characteristic set out above). As such, we:
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•
•
•

have spent significant time and resource harmonising pay, terms and
conditions of all employees for which the transitional pay period for those
affected has now ended.
carry out pay and benefits audits at regular intervals;
provide regular equal pay training for all managers and other staff members
who are involved in pay reviews; and evaluate job roles and pay grades as
necessary to ensure a fair structure.

NCH continues to make equality part of our everyday decision making, using
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) to meet the criteria of the Public Sector Equality
Duty and assess the impact on deliverables. We work to ensure our strategic
equality objectives are aligned to our corporate vision and goals in order to embed
equality and diversity into all aspects of our work and services. We have recently
refreshed all training and guidance for employees and managers who carry out EIAs
to ensure a consistent approach across the organisation.
There are currently three equality employee forums (Disability and Carers Forum,
Ethnically Diverse Forum and a Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender+ Forum)
which feed into our wider Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Steering Group.
Nottingham City Homes recognises that some women may face intersectional
discrimination or sequential multiple discrimination. This may occur when a person
suffers discrimination on multiple grounds such as race, sexuality, disability and
gender. We are therefore proud to say that we are Stonewall accredited as a Top
100 Employer for LGBT people and a Disability Confident Employer with Level 2
status. We have also recently signed up to the Race at Work Charter.
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion is embedded throughout our new recruitment policy,
ensuring that the best candidate is recruited on merit regardless of any protected
characteristic.
All of these initiatives have contributed to NCH being nominated for the Tenant
Participation Advisory Service (TPAS) Awards in 2019 and 2020 for ‘Excellence in
Employment, Skills and Training’. We are currently ranked within the Top 100
Apprenticeship Employers in the country by the National Apprenticeship Service.
Gender Pay Gap Analysis – 5 April 2020
The pay gap data in this report was collected on the snapshot date of 5 April 2020.
At this time there were 1000 people within the Nottingham City Homes workforce:
625 men and 375 women.
The number of female employees has increased since last year as illustrated in table
1.
Year

Male

Female

Total Employees

% of female employees

2018

606

338

944

35.8%

2019

606

358

964

37.1%

2020

625

375

1,000

37.5%

Table 1. Male vs Females Employees
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Calculating the mean: If we add together all the hourly pay rates that women earn,
divided by the number of women in our workforce, and then compare that with the
same calculation for men, we get the mean gender pay gap.

Mean Gender Pay Gap
£18.00
£16.00
£14.00
£12.00
£10.00
£8.00
£6.00
£4.00
£2.00
£0.00

£15.69

£13.74

Men
Women
When comparing mean (average) hourly pay, women’s mean hourly pay is 12.50%
lower than men’s.
Calculating the median: when we rank all of our people by their hourly pay, and
then compare what the woman in the middle of the female pay range received with
what the man in the middle of the male pay range received, we get the median
gender pay gap.

Median Gender Pay Gap
£16.00
£14.00
£12.00
£10.00
£8.00
£6.00
£4.00
£2.00
£0.00

£15.10

£12.44
Men

Women

When comparing median hourly pay, the women’s median hourly pay is 17.60%
lower than men’s.
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The mean and median pay gaps have both reduced since last year as illustrated in
table 2.
Year

Mean

Median

2018

16.7%

22.7%

2019

16.2%

25.6%

2020

12.5%

17.6%

Table 2. Mean & Median Percentages
Calculating the bonus pay gap: The bonus gap is the difference between the
bonus pay or one-off lump-sum payments (such as recognition awards) paid to
male relevant employees and that paid to female relevant employees, during the
year ending on 4 April 2020. Only relevant employees who did receive a bonus are
included in the calculation.
Bonus Pay Gap
Our bonus pay gap is now 0.0% as a result of our positive actions taken.

Proportion of males and females receiving bonus payments.
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

2018

2019
Male

2020

2021

Female

NCH pay quartiles: A pay quartile represents a quarter, or 25%, of the workforce,
ranked by pay. The pay quartiles are then broken down by gender.

Men

Women

Upper quartile

78%
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22%

Upper middle quartile

83%

17%

Lower middle quartile

58%

42%

Lower quartile

51%

49%

Women occupy 22% of the highest paid jobs and 51% of the lowest paid jobs. This
shows that women are under-represented in the upper quartiles of our organisation.
The pattern from the UK economy as a whole is reflected in the make-up of NCH
workforce, where the majority of administrative roles within its office are women,
while the majority of line manager and senior manager roles are held by men.

The gender pay gap in the UK has been declining slowly over time; over the last
decade it has fallen by approximately a quarter among full-time employees and by
just over one-fifth among all employees.
The UK mean average pay gap for 2020 is 14.6% and the median average is 15.5%.
NCH have a mean pay gap of 12.5 % which is lower than the national average and a
median pay gap of 17.6 which is slightly higher than the national average.
The average gender pay gap for housing organisations in 2018/2019 was 8.1% with
80% of housing organisations having a pay gap in favour of men (Inside Housing
Report 2019) . This also includes data from housing organisations without DLOs,
and which are unlike NCH in that regard. DLOs are closer to the construction sector
which is still predominantly male with a gender pay gap of 20.4%.
Due to the GPGR being suspended in 2020 and the deadline for 2021 being
extended for 6 months, we are awaiting more recent data to help us compare against
our peers.
Impact of Covid-19 on the gender pay gap
Despite the higher death rates of older men from COVID-19, women have been
taking a disproportionate, unequal share of the economic hardship caused by this
horrendous virus. Due to factors such as assuming a greater responsibility for
childcare and home-schooling in lockdown, women have been more likely than men
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to work fewer hours, be away from work temporarily or drop out of the labour market
altogether since the pandemic struck (CIPD, 2021 GPGR during CoVid-19, 2021).
NCH have been extremely flexible and accommodating during the Coronavirus
pandemic around issues such as child care and paid special leave. Risk
assessments have been carried out for employees who are classified as high risk
and duties have been amended for vulnerable employees or employees who are
struggling mentally. For those who are working from home and require additional
equipment I.e. chair, desk, monitor riser etc. we have delivered items to their home.

What is Nottingham City Homes doing to address its gender pay gap?
Nottingham City Homes Group is committed to promoting equality and inclusion
whilst embracing diversity in employment. We acknowledge that we are under
represented by women at the most senior levels in our organisation but already have
in place a number of initiatives to address this situation.
The steps that Nottingham City Homes has taken to promote gender
diversity in all areas of its workforce include the following:
•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

committed to identifying those with leadership potential from within the
organisation utilising leadership and management master classes, shadowing,
coaching and mentoring as tools to encourage women to develop skills and
knowledge to be able to successfully gain more senior roles.
our Learning Management System is accessible to all employees and
provides a suite of online training and development modules. Including
support for CV writing and interview skills.
run our in house Aspire to Manage course and continue to fund places for the
Future Leaders of Nottingham (FLN) programme.
Through our employee staff forums, recognised trade unions and the Equality,
Diversity & Inclusion strategic steering group, we encourage employees to
raise issues that they believe will contribute to greater gender equality and we
will work to break down any barriers where they may exist.
offered and delivered recruitment training to members of our employee
equality forums to widen the pool of people who sit on interview panels to
ensure panels are consistently diverse across all areas of the business where
possible.
Refreshed all mandatory equality, diversity and inclusion training for
employees and managers
revised its recruitment policy and provided training for any recruiting
managers to ensure fair decisions are made and individuals are aware of the
potential impacts of unconscious biases.
use gender neutral language throughout all recruitment communications
Inclusive recruitment marketing literature representative of diverse culture
(age/ethnicity/gender etc.)
The recruitment policy offers the opportunity for our staff, who do not fulfil the
entirety of the skills and knowledge for a more senior post, or post that utilises
different skill sets, to move into the post and be developed. This allows the
opportunity to diversify our teams by opening up post to people from none
traditional industries such as construction, and allows us to create a more
diverse demographic.
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•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

completed and implemented pay terms and conditions for its trade colleagues
aligning them with the rest of the organisation and removed all bonus
payments.
developed workforce planning workshops in Construction, Repairs and
Maintenance Services
implemented flexible working processes and policy to enable individuals to
better balance work and life commitments. These are partly aimed at
attracting more high calibre female employees into the workforce. Flexible
working also supports employees with caring responsibilities
continue our dedicated Women in Construction programme providing women
from our workforce and wider communities with valuable skills to help them
start or continue their careers in construction and related industries.
offered a range of employee benefits including child care vouchers and the
option to ‘buy’ additional leave for all employees
participated in a school-partnering scheme with local secondary schools, to
raise young people's awareness of the different career opportunities available
within the housing, and to help dispel any misperceptions and stereotypes
ensured proactive approach to encouraging diversity in our Board recruitment
campaign
committed to identifying high profile employees in the organisation for senior
roles as part of succession planning
developed guidelines for managers on supporting employees prior to, during
and on return from maternity and other parental leave.
continued the development of a Tenant Academy to target under
representative groups who are not in education, employment or training
(NEET)
taking on numerous work experience placements and apprentices as part of
our award winning apprenticeship scheme
Employed or are in the process of employing a number of apprentices across
Housing, Customer Service and Caretaking as well as trades apprentices
Continued use of a job evaluation scheme based on the job not the individual

These are all carried out at a time of reducing resources. None of these initiatives
will, of itself, remove the gender pay gap overnight. In the meantime, Nottingham
City Homes is committed to
reporting on an annual basis on what it is doing to reduce the gender pay gap and
the progress that it is making.
We are now in the planning stages of our next Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Strategy which will incorporate key objectives to improve our gender pay gap.
We acknowledge that we are progressing on our journey and will continue to
champion new approaches and initiatives to demonstrate our commitment to
reducing our gender pay gap.
I, Nick Murphy, Chief Executive Officer, confirm that the information in this statement
is accurate.
Signed
Nick’s Signature
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ITEM: 2.6

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE AND
COMPLIANCE

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

GOVERNANCE INFORMATION REPORT

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report sets out the matters requiring consideration and approval by the
Board since the last meeting.

1.2

The first round of Board recruitment has successfully attracted 15
Independent and two Tenant candidates with a wide range of skills and
experience. Recruitment for all vacancies is currently underway with Chairs of
the Arms-Length Management Organisation (ALMO) Board and Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee (ARCC) taking responsibility for their areas. The
Governance and Selection Committee (G&SC) is overseeing all other
recruitment.

1.3

The Governance Action Plan has focussed on risk management with a new
Risk Management Framework recently approved by ARCC and the first
Board Risk Register submitted to Nottingham City Homes Registered
Provider (NCH RP). Phase 2 of the project will mainly focus on the workings
of the Boards with key decisions to be made on Board tenure, which is being
reduced from nine years to six years, the role of Executive Directors on
Boards, Board skills, structures, and reporting.

1.4

At the National Federation of ALMO’s (NFA) recent Annual General Meeting
(AGM), Nottingham City Homes (NCH), along with Derby Homes and
Cheltenham Borough Homes, was confirmed as NFA Board Members for
another four years until 2025. Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall has been the NCH
representative on the NFA Board for the previous term, and Board are asked
to approve her appointment for the following term.

1.5

The Urgency Procedure was used on 7 April 2021 to appoint the Internal
Auditor service to Mazars for 2021-22, following the resignation of
Nottingham City Council (NCC) Internal Audit service.

1.6

Board are requested to consider how they want to conduct future Board and
Committee meetings when lockdown measures are lifted.

1.7

Details are provided of forthcoming events that may be of interest to Board
Members

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Notes the update on Board Member recruitment.

2.2

Notes the update on the Governance Action Plan.

2.3

Agrees for Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall be NCH’s representative on the Board
of the NFA.

2.4

Notes the use of the Urgency Procedure.

2.5

Agrees on how it wishes to conduct future Board and Committee meetings.

2.6

Notes the forthcoming events.

3

REPORT

3.1

BOARD RECRUITMENT UPDATE

3.1.1

We have had a strong response to our recruitment with a total of 15
Independent applications received from people with a wide range of skills and
experience. We have not yet engaged outside support with this. Most people
expressed an interest in the Group Board, but we also had strong
applications for NCH RP and ARCC. We have had two applications for our
ALMO Tenant Board vacancy. The following positions are currently vacant:
•
•
•
•
•

One Independent ALMO Board Member.
One Tenant ALMO Board Member.
Two Independent NCH RP Board members. NCH RP also needs to reappoint a member to the ARCC.
One Independent ARCC Member.
One Independent Group Board Member.

There is the potential to appoint two co-optees to each Board and Committee.
NCH currently has two co-optees on the Group Board.
3.1.2

ARCC recruitment was held on 20 May 2021. ALMO Board recruitment is
being held on 11 June. Recruitment for the Group Board and NCH RP
positions is being held between 7 May and 18 June.

3.1.3

Further vacancies will arise at the end of the Board year in September, and at
some point as a result of Board tenure reducing from nine to six years. This
will present further opportunities to make new appointments.

3.1.4

The Chairs of both the Group Board, NCH RP, and ARCC panels are to meet
once interviews have been concluded to agree on the best candidate to be
appointed to each vacancy.

3.1.5

Board are asked to note the Board recruitment update.

3.2

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

3.2.1

Board noted at its last meeting that a Governance Action Plan to implement
the outcomes from the DTP report on risk, the White Paper on Social
Housing, the National Housing Federation (NHF) Code of Governance 2020
and NCC Recovery Plan. This is being overseen by the G&SC with support
from ARCC.

3.2.2

The Plan has so far focussed on risk management with a draft Risk
Management Framework recently approved by ARCC. The first of the new
Board Risk Registers was recently reviewed by NCH RP and new Internal
and External Auditors have been appointed. In addition, a number of quick
wins have been achieved. A new one-page summary update sheet from other
Boards and Committees has been introduced for each meeting and there is
now a new electronic “Declarations of Interest” register.

3.2.3

Phase 2 of the project will mainly focus on the workings of the Boards. There
are key decisions to be made around Board tenure, which is being reduced
from nine years to six years, the role of Executive Directors on Boards, Board
skills and structures, and reporting. We will also be reviewing Board learning,
appraisals and support for the Chair. Further information and proposals will
be brought to the next meeting. Early Board Member involvement in these
activities is essential for us to achieve successful outcomes for the
organisation.

3.3

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF ALMO’S BOARD MEMBERSHIP

3.3.1

At the NFA’s recent AGM, NCH, along with Derby Homes and Cheltenham
Borough Homes, has been confirmed as NFA Board members for another
four years until 2025. At that point, NCH will have completed a total of eight
years on the NFA Board and will not be eligible for a further term.

3.3.2

Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall has been the NCH representative on the NFA
Board for the previous term, and Board are asked to approve her
appointment for the following term. The NFA representative will be expected
to providing feedback to the Group Board on regular basis.

3.3.3

Board are asked to agree for Sarita-Marie Rehman-Wall be NCH’s
representative on the Board of the NFA.

3.4

FUTURE BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

3.4.1

As part of our recovery back to business as usual, we need to consider how
we conduct our future Board and Committee meetings. A recent survey of
other housing organisations highlighted a preference for a mixture of face to
face and online meetings. Where face to face meetings take place there is
still an opportunity for people who can’t attend the meeting to join online via a
big screen.

3.4.2

There has been an increase in attendance at Board and Committee meetings
since the introduction of online meetings. At the time of writing we are also
awaiting a Government update on Step 4 of their roadmap out of lockdown.
This will have an impact on when face to face meetings can be re-introduced
into the workplace.

3.4.3

The next full Group Board Meeting and AGM takes place on Thursday 30
September 2021.

3.4.4

Board are asked to agree how they would like future Board and Committee
meetings to be conducted.

3.5

USE OF THE URGENCY PROCEDURE

3.5.1

On 7 April 2021, the NCH Group Urgency Procedure, as per section 2.10 of
the Group Standing Orders, was utilised. Board Members were consulted on
the request to approve the appointment of Mazars as the new Internal
Auditors.

3.5.2

All Group Board Members unanimously approved Mazars at the new Internal
Auditors

3.5.3

The Board are asked to note the use of the Urgency Procedure.

3.6

FORTHCOMING EVENTS

3.6.1

Attached at Appendix 1 is a twelve-month rolling calendar of events for Board
Members attention. This calendar contains a list of all meetings, training and
external events that Board Members may be interested in. Please let Tom
Moulsdale know if you are interested in any of the events listed.

3.6.2

Please note that due to the Covid-19 pandemic, events are likely to be virtual
at least for the next few months.

3.6.3

Board Members are also reminded to regularly log on the Learning Zone to
complete their outstanding On Line learning modules for both the GDPR and
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion modules. If Board Members have any
issues accessing the Learning Zone (link here) they are able to contact
jo.stewart@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk for help in accessing their training.

3.6.4

The Board are asked to note the forthcoming events.

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

None arising from the content of this report

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

All of the initiatives within this report are carried out to ensure compliance
with good practice and legislation including the Companies Act 2006 and
NCH’s Governance processes.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

There are no risks arising from this report.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES OBJECTIVES

5.1

The contents of the report will have a significant impact for NCH achieving its
corporate objectives, set out in the Corporate Plan and associated high level
corporate commercial, financial and business plans.

6

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
Yes (EIA attached)
No (this report does not contain proposals for significant changes to
process at this stage).
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BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED
TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

Appendix 1 - Forthcoming Events Calendar.

CONTACT
OFFICER:

DATE:
3 JUNE 2021

George Pashley
Head of Governance and Compliance
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NJ
Tel: 07710 066751
E-mail: george.pashley@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS, TRAINING AND FORTHCOMING EVENTS
NCH MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Month

Event

Who for

July

22 July - ALMO Board meeting commencing at
5.30pm via MS Teams
27 July- Governance and Selection Committee
meeting commencing at 10.00am
Tenant Award 2021 – July/August (subject to
Covid restrictions)

ALMO Members

1 September - ARCC meeting commencing at
5.30pm via MS Teams
8 September - NCHEL meeting commencing
2.30pm.
22 September - NCH RP Board meeting
commencing at 2.30pm via MS Teams and
AGM
23 September - ALMO Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm via MS Teams
30 September - Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm via MS Teams and
AGM

ARCC Members

4 November - Additional Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm via MS Teams, if
required

All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)
ARCC Members

G&SC Members
All

August
September

NCHEL Members
NCH RP Members

ALMO Members
All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)

October
November

December

January

9 November - ARCC meeting commencing at
5.30pm via MS Teams
17 November - NCHEL meeting commencing
2.30pm.
18 November - ALMO Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm 25 November - NCH
RP Board meeting commencing at 2.30pm
2 December - Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm

Provisional 20 January - ALMO Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm
Provisional 27 January - Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm

NCHEL Members
ALMO Members
NCH RP Members
All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)
ALMO Members
All Group Board
Members (all Board and

February

March

Provisional 8 February - ARCC meeting
commencing at 5.30pm
Provisional 21 February - NCHEL meeting
commencing 2.30pm.
Provisional 17 March- Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm

April

Provisional 28 April – Additional Group Board
meeting commencing at 5.30pm

May

Provisional 3 May – ARCC meeting
commencing at 5.30pm
Provisional 18 May - NCHEL meeting
commencing pm.
Provisional 19 May - ALMO Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm
Provisional 8 June - NCH RP Board meeting
commencing at 2.30pm
Provisional 14 June - ARCC meeting
commencing at 5.30pm
Provisional 23 June - Group Board meeting
commencing at 5.30pm

June

Committee Members
can attend)
ARCC Members
NCHEL Members
All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)
All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)
ARCC Members
NCHEL Members
ALMO members
NCH RP Members
ARCC Members
All Group Board
Members (all Board and
Committee Members
can attend)

External Training and Events

The NED Network is free to join and will meet fortnightly on Mondays, starting 10
May 4.00-5.00 pm. The Networks is only open to Non-Executive Directors and
Trustees of social housing organisations. Each session will be hosted by a NED,
discussing a topic relevant to their governance role. Details in the link below.
https://mailchi.mp/hact/hact-update-webinars-blogs-and-masterclasses2624925?e=cd446ee37d
NHF – Virtual event Fundamentals of Service Charges 29 June
https://servicecharges.housing.org.uk/fundamentals/aboutfundamentals?ProductId=P4972865
NHF – Virtual event Leaseholder and Tenant Service Charges 6 July
https://servicecharges.housing.org.uk/?ProductId=P4972770
CIH Annual Conference, Manchester Central 7 - 9 September
https://cih.org/events/housing-2021
NHF – Virtual event Treasury in Housing 29 September

https://treasury.housing.org.uk/?ProductId=P4977768
NHF – Virtual event Asset Management and Maintenance 12 -13 October
https://asset.housing.org.uk/?ProductId=P4742710
NHF – Virtual event Audit and Risk Conference 1 -2 December
https://auditandrisk.housing.org.uk/?ProductId=P4978218
If you are interested in any of these training, conferences or other events contact
Thomas.Moulsdale@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

ITEM: 3.1

NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
REPORT OF HEAD OF GOVERNANCE AND
COMPLIANCE

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

COVID -19 BUSINESS RECOVERY AND RE-INVENTION PLAN
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The report details the actions the Group has taken in relation to Covid 19, and the revised Coronavirus Recovery and Re-invention Plan. The
Government has issued a four step “Roadmap out of lockdown” at the
end of which it hopes to be in a position to remove all legal limits on social
contact. Step 4 will now be implemented on 19 July at the earliest as a
result of the emergence of the more transmissible Delta variant. The
implementation of Stage 4 is key to Nottingham City Homes’ (NCH) next
steps as it will inform guidance on working from home and on site.

1.2

Throughout the pandemic, NCH has strived to keep key emergency
services running, and has now brought the majority of its services back to
full or almost full capacity. We are currently focussing on returning to
office work through our “Better Ways of Working” project.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Notes the content of the report.

3

REPORT

3.1

NCH is working in the recovery phase of the coronavirus pandemic which
will include a return to office working in some capacity. A Recovery and
Re-invention Plan is attached at Appendix 1. The Government has issued
a four step “Roadmap out of lockdown”, at the end of which it hopes to
be in a position to remove all legal limits on social contact. Step 4 will
now be implemented on 19 July at the earliest as a result of the
emergence of the more transmissible Delta variant.

3.2

At the time of writing, we are still awaiting further Government guidance
on what a return to the workplace looks like, including rules on social
distancing and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). This will ultimately
determine our decisions on how to phase our own return to the office. In
the absence of the government advice, NCH would plan to meet its safety
obligations through continuing a COVID safe environment.

NCHF131 v2.0 date: 02.08.16

3.3

Over the period of the pandemic, NCH has taken a number of actions to
keep key services running and people safe. Early on we furloughed 90
employees under the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme where work had
been suspended or stopped as a result of Covid-19, such as in
Construction Repairs and Maintenance (CR&M) Commercial Services.
Where possible, we re-deployed people into other work areas. We also
had a number of people “shielding” i.e. who had been identified by the
NHS as clinically extremely vulnerable and who were asked to minimise
the risk of exposure to the virus.

3.4

Some measures adopted during lockdown have worked well and we
intend to embed them in future ways of working. These will have benefits
such as efficiencies, environmental benefits and more flexible options for
both staff and residents. Board will be updated on progress of the
Recovery and Re-invention Plan.

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

The considerable costs of Covid-19 in 2020/21 were absorbed within the
financial year and the outturn position. As part of this NCH received
Furlough Government grant of £426k.

4.1.2

Covid-19 and restrictions will continue to put pressure on budgets this
financial year and hence the 2021/22 budget included budget provision in
relation to PPE and cleaning totalling £241k. Reserves include a one-off
contingency of £434k which was earmarked, in the first instance, for
Covid-19 by EMT.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

NCH has applied with all Government legal and regulatory requirements
throughout the pandemic including those applying to the workplace, use
of PPE, social distancing and the wearing of face masks.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

Covid-19 has been identified as a key Company risk and updates are on
the Company’s management of the pandemic are reported to each Audit
Risk and Compliance Committee.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

Managing the Covid-19 pandemic effectively is line with our objective to
keep people safe in their homes and our aim to be a great place to work.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
Yes (EIA attached)

NCHF131 v2.0 date: 02.08.16

No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)
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BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

Various Government Guidelines applying to the pandemic which can be
found at Welcome to GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).
Appendix 1 - Recovery and Re-invention Plan.

Contact officers:

Date: 10 JUNE 2021

NCHF131 v2.0 date: 02.08.16

Name: George Pashley
Tel: 07962 395269
E-mail: George.pashley@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

NCH Reinvention & Recovery Plan - June 2021

APPENDIX 1

Guiding Principles
Nottingham City Homes is preparing to complete the recovery phase of the
coronavirus pandemic which will include a return to office working in some capacity
in the near future. The Government has issued a 4 step “Roadmap out of
lockdown”, at the end of which it hopes to be in a position to remove all legal limits
on social contact. Step 4 will be implemented on 19 July at the earliest.
NCH is currently managing the pandemic within the context of the Government’s
roadmap. We are working to three guiding principles:
•
•
•

To keep staff and residents safe
To keep a roof over people’s heads
To ensure the stability of the company for the future

It is envisaged that the Government will relax its current rules on working from home
at the end of the roadmap and this needs to be prepared for in advance. Currently
Government advice is for people to work from home where at all possible. While it is
not envisaged that everyone will return to the office on 19 July, some form of
increased return may be permitted at that time.
We have been flexible and accommodating during the Coronavirus pandemic around
issues such as child care and paid special leave. Risk assessments have been
carried out for employees who are classified as high risk and duties have been
amended for vulnerable employees or employees who are struggling mentally. For
those who are working from home and require additional equipment i.e. chair, desk,
monitor riser etc. we have delivered items to their home. We continue to follow
government guidelines to ensure the health and safety of all employees.
NCH continue to invest in initiatives and programmes to support employee
wellbeing, with a specific focus on mental health. Numerous health and wellbeing
events have taken place and free MOT health checks have been offered to all
employees.
PAM Assist employee assistance programme is available to all employees 24/7 and
a selection of employees and managers have been trained in the following roles:
• Mental Health Champions and first aiders
• Peer to Peer support
• Time to Change Campaign
More recently we have introduced a range of resources to support our employees
with building resilience and protecting individuals’ mental health and wellbeing. We
have encouraged people to take annual leave throughout the pandemic and given
people the opportunity to carry over an additional 5 days where necessary.
During the pandemic a number of risk assessments have been completed that have
allowed a significant amount of our services to run at pre-pandemic levels. Some
1

measures adopted during lockdown have worked well and we intend to embed
them in future ways of working. These will have benefits such as efficiencies,
environmental benefits and more flexible options for both staff and residents. The
current recovery and re-invention position of each service area is detailed below.
The Government is also lifting the moratorium on evictions imposed throughout
lockdown. This is expected to lead to an increase in housing demand and a rise in
homelessness.
Alongside this road map for recovery and reinvention we continue to vigorously
promote vaccinations for all staff and tenants as they become eligible.
1. Return to the office / introduction of hybrid working
Current Position
We are asking people to work from home where they can in line with Government
guidelines. Where site or home visits are required they are carried out within
guidelines set out in established risk assessments, with the correct level of PPE and
social distancing processes in place. A “Better Ways of Working” project is currently
managing arrangements for people to return to office working, including the terms
and conditions and training required for this to work successfully.
Lessons learned from Covid-19
•

Many services to customers have operated as effectively or even better with
formerly office based staff working from home. We have seen more flexibility
to respond to peak demands and quicker contact with residents on some
matters which would previously have entailed a home visit.

•

The vast majority of office based staff have told us that they would prefer to
work from home at least some of the time, with some preferring to work from
home all of the time

•

New technology such as Microsoft Teams has enabled work interactions and
team meetings to take place as normal, many of which are now better
attended

•

Some people will want to be in the office more frequently than others to
support their mental health and wellbeing

During the pandemic there has been a risk of developing a “them and us” view
between operational services who have continued to work on estates and in tenants’
homes, and those working from home. Working from home is perceived by some as
a significant benefit.
Next steps
For some people, the opportunity to get back to the office is exciting, for others it’s
daunting. We know that, based on the wide range of roles at NCH, a one size fits all
2

approach won’t work. The “Better Ways of Working” project is reviewing how our
new business model will
•
•
•

Provide the best services to our customers
Ensure staff engagement through required attendance at regular team
meetings and other occasions when colleagues can get together
Offer formerly office based colleagues flexibility and choice as to how they mix
working in the office, at home or elsewhere.

For former office based staff we are implementing home / office hybrid working. To
achieve this we will look wherever possible to balance people’s preferences for how
they want to work with the needs of each team in best serving our customers.
Our priority is to prepare our offices for some form of return by 19 July 2021. To do
this we will pilot hybrid working for an 8-12 weeks trial period
In addition we are also
•

Reviewing our approach and working practices for mobile and flexible working
to best support and manage an increased level of home working activity.

•

Providing training for managers and their teams aimed specifically at how to
manage and support hybrid and field working.

•

Investing in more conference facilities to allow conferences to take place
between meeting rooms and remote workers.

2. Repairs and Maintenance
Current position
Initially the response to the Covid-19 pandemic was to undertake emergency repairs
only. This resulted in circa 4,000 jobs being placed on hold with a view to completing
these when government guidance permitted. From early May 2020, in line with new
Government guidelines, NCH implemented a full Repairs and Maintenance service.
A set of comprehensive Risk assessments is being adhered to ensure the safety of
trade operatives, colleagues and tenants, but as a consequence productivity is
negatively impacted by circa 20%. In addition to this, the service has been further
impacted due to Covid related absences and the carrying over of leave from 2020/21
to this year, which has resulted in 485 days leave having been taken in the last four
months.
Repairs & Maintenance has experienced a 3% rise in works orders received in the
past six to eight weeks which has equated to circa 1600 additional repairs.
The above points have contributed to an increase in work in progress which has
resulted in additional days waiting for tenants when booking appointments for a
repair.
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Next steps
During 2020/21 a full review of the repairs service was undertaken that identified a
number of issues with current IT systems and working practices. A comprehensive
improvement plan is being produced that when delivered will ensure the service is
more resilient and responsive to changing demands on the working environment.
The areas that are being looked at for improvement are identified in the points below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Improvements to the Dynamic Resource Scheduling (DRS) system
Improvements to the Repairs Finder diagnostic system
Review of emergency repairs
Introduction of a real time customer satisfaction transaction survey
Video diagnostic for repairs roll out
3x3x3 text messaging system to improve communication
Implement Housing Online into the repairs service

To address the current waiting times for a repair appointment, we are increasing
trade resources by 15 FTE at an additional cost of circa £19k a week.
Work has commenced on an assessment of the impact of revising risk assessment
restrictions including PPE and social distancing when it is safe to do so. This work is
targeting areas where highest levels of productivity can be achieved. This will be
subject to revised government guidelines as we move out of Covid-19 related
restrictions.
Individual risk assessment and flow testing are available to ensure that the working
environment is safe and to mitigate risk.
2. Gas and Electrical Safety
Current position
All services are being delivered at pre-pandemic levels. We have focused on
delivering our legal requirements under gas safety legislation. We continue to work
with those tenants that we can access and we have full records of attempts made to
secure access, which fulfils our legal requirement. We currently have 100% gas
servicing compliance and have not pursued injunctions for the time being.
Electrical inspections (EICRs) have been transferred to the Asset Management
Building Safety Team, who have set up a specific electrical compliance team. This
team is focusing solely on improving compliance performance. Performance is
currently around 94% and slowly improving.
Next Steps
Work has commenced on an assessment of the revising risk assessment restrictions
including PPE and social distancing when it is safe to do so. This work is targeting
areas where highest levels of productivity can be achieved. New working
4

arrangements will be determined by the Government lifting current Covid-19
measures and restrictions.
Work is underway to improve the gas appointments first time non-access rate which
is slightly above the national average at 23%. We are reviewing our gas access
process and benchmarking against other similar organisations. This will improve first
time access performance whilst achieving a better customer experience throughout
the process.
For the Electrical Safety Team, there is a focus on difficult to access properties.
They are working with Housing colleagues to gain access including progressing to
legal action. In support of improving the performance, they are engaging differently
with our contractor Savills who deliver the service on behalf of NCH. The numbers of
overdue properties have now reduced from over 1800 to around 1350.
3. Capital Programme
Current position
All of our improvement works to council housing are now operating as usual. All
work undertaken internally by commercial services and externally by contractors has
recommenced. Sprinkler installations and the doors and windows re-commenced in
June 2020. Currently we have 29 NCH flats outstanding and 13 Leaseholders due to
access issues that are linked to Covid-19.
Next steps
Meetings with clients and contractors can now be conducted virtually, significantly
reducing travel time.
All services are now running normally. New working arrangements will be
determined by the Government lifting current Covid-19 measures and restrictions.
Workstreams that experienced slippage last year due to Covid-19, have been reprofiled for completion this financial year.
This year’s £41m capital programme and the overall five-year programme has taken
account of works that have been delayed due to Covid-19.
4. New Build
Current position
Our three live new build sites have reopened with safe working practices on site.
Our work on pipeline schemes has progressed pending formal NCC decisions. All
work is up to date and on track.
As an indirect result of the increase in homeowners undertaking refurbishment
works, extensions and DIY projects, there has been a significant increase in the
demand for building materials which has driven up the cost and restricted the
5

availability of materials from suppliers. As a result, there is an expected impact that
will be seen across the development sector as future projects are delivered that were
priced prior to the spike in the demand for materials.
Next Steps
We will look to catch up on our celebratory opening events for those schemes that
were completed during the Covid-19 pandemic. This will be when lockdown
restrictions are lifted further by the government.
5. Tenancy Sustainment
Current position
Throughout the duration of the pandemic we have committed that no-one will lose
their NCH tenancy because of coronavirus. We have taken practical steps such as
bringing forward two rent-free weeks and increasing the financial support and advice
available to our tenants. In line with Government requirements, we suspended all
serving of notices and enforcement activity. We have seen an increase in the
number of tenants claiming Universal credit and in the number of direct debit fails.
During the course of the pandemic we have reviewed our rent collection procedure
to maximise telephone, email and text contact with our residents and reduced the
number of notices we serve on tenants whilst still maximising rental income
The arrears at the end of May were £4,067,073, this is £1.1m up on the same point
last year. There are two major factors that have influenced the increase in debt,
firstly the significant increase in Universal Credit, and also the embargo on
enforcement action.
We currently have 7,247 active UC cases, at the beginning of April last year we had
4,596. This is an increase of 2,651 cases, and we know from the HouseMark data
that our increase in cases was significantly higher than the national average. Each
case equates to a five week delay in the payment of the housing cost element. At an
average rent of £85 per week, this number of cases results in £1,126,675 in delayed
rent payments. A recent RIEN best practice meeting highlighted that the data from
organisations nationally shows that it takes on average 9 months to bring a UC
cases back to its starting rent account balance from the beginning of a claim.
In addition to the increase in Universal Credit cases, we have had a large number of
rent verifications to complete, 4,407 this financial year. This has had to be done in
over-time because of the sheer number, and coupled with the additional new claims
the team did not have capacity to complete these during normal working hours.
Many people claiming UC are doing so for the first time and are not familiar with
claiming welfare benefits. The impact of the pandemic has meant that many of the
claimants are in the older age brackets. This means that more time is needed from
the UC team to support these claimants and ensure that they understand the
process and make a successful claim.
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This has also revealed many more “bedroom tax” cases. Many people have been
living in larger properties and paying the rent as they have been working. Now that
they are claiming benefits and on a reduced housing cost payment, the team has
had to support these cases with DHP applications. These applications can be very
time consuming and so puts more pressure on the team. A lack of the ability to visit
has also meant that the support is sometimes more difficult to provide, and again
puts pressure on resources.
Next steps
The introduction of new technology has meant that a number of rent team staff can
work from home, and attend site visits without having to attend the office. A number
of visits to tenants that were previously undertaken in-person will now be undertaken
virtually.
Next week we have our first evictions since February 2020. We only evict where
there is no alternative, and where people are choosing not to engage with us at all.
The total debt on the cases waiting to be evicted is approximately £130,000. In
addition we have 44 cases waiting to go through Court with a combined debt of
£135,000. The fact that we have not been able to take any enforcement action has
led to some tenants not paying when they are able to do so.
6. Voids and Lettings
Current position
We have followed Government advice and prepared some void properties available
only for letting to homeless households and certain other priority moves still deemed
essential. As a result, we have a backlog of over 300 empty properties some
requiring works before they are available for re-letting. We have experienced acute
problems caused by required social distancing when working in void properties, as
well as covid related staff absences.
EMT approved additional resources to help address these difficulties in the short
term.
Next steps
We now have over 70 properties ready for letting. The HomeLink team will prioritise
tenancies commencing in these homes.
Other actions include
• Open viewings for Lettings need to be re-established
• In person surgeries will be brought back into place – e.g. HomeLink and
Mutual Exchange
• Re-introduction of HomeLink Partnership Events
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• Re-introduction of Medical re-housing home visits (we are currently doing
these by phone so service is still delivered)
We will commission an end to end review of the voids process to help us get back on
track to meet our Corporate Plan targets.
7. Tenancy & Estate Management
Current Position
The full scope of Tenancy & Estate Management service continues to be delivered,
albeit in different ways. The team are continuing to work from home where they can
in line with Government guidelines and conducting home and site visits where
necessary.
Considerable TEM resource was focussed on contacting vulnerable tenants in the
general needs housing stock. We identified approximately 5000 general needs
households from our own databases who may be more vulnerable during the
pandemic due to age, disability or ill health. This task was completed in September
2020.
We then extended our contacting to include further potentially vulnerable people who
live on their own or who live on their own with children under the age of 10. We have
completed over 3,500 successful contacts for this.
During Covid-19 we have continued to use civil tools and powers, including civil
injunctions to tackle anti-social behaviour. The moratorium on evictions during covid19 ended as of the 31 May 2021 and evictions can now take place. We are using this
action as a last resort, where ASB is serious and persistent and all other
interventions have failed to improve behaviour.
We have maintained partnership working and an effective response to domestic
abuse and violence including through the specialist DAISY project.
Next steps
A Corporate approach to annual tenancy audits will help to identify and respond to
emerging tenant vulnerabilities and support needs.
The requirement to conduct some tenancy visits virtually during Covid-19 restrictions
increased officer capacity and improved response times to address tenant queries.
We will continue to undertake virtual home visits where possible, but always offer an
in-person meeting where required.
A blend of home, estate and office-based working has been effective and will remain.
We will
•

Reintroduce appointment-based service at Joint Service Centres
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•

Introduction of regular in-person and virtual housing surgeries

•

Management of a potential increase of anti-social behaviour and domestic
abuse cases

•

Retrain existing CommUnity Mediation volunteers and recruit and train new
volunteers.

•

Review of ASB/DA casework management in line with more tenant visits
being undertaken virtually.

•

Increased ASB legal support required from NCC which is currently being
discussed.

•

Seek funding sources to continue with the DAISY project

8. Estate and Caretaking Service
Current Position
We have continued to provide a full block caretaking service throughout the
pandemic, with enhanced cleaning regimes of touch points in our high-rise, low-rise
and Independent Living blocks.
As Government restrictions eased we recommenced estate-based work addressing
local priorities e.g. alleyway clearances, Days of Action and delivery of the Big
Spring Clean initiative.
Next steps
The Caretaking team have been quick to adapt to the use of technology for team
meetings and one to ones with limited requirement for the team to have access to
office accommodation.
9.Tenant & Leaseholder Involvement
Current Position
The majority of the involvement service continues to be delivered, albeit in different
ways, with the exception of the annual Tenant Fun Day. The team have continued to
support local community groups and involved residents to deliver initiatives, activities
and projects which have focused on the health and wellbeing of our residents
through our Make a Difference Fund.
Tenant Academy courses quickly moved to on-line delivery and continues to be
delivered virtually. We have delivered our annual Garden Competition and Tenant
and Leaseholder Awards and have adapted to the restrictions by safely delivering
doorstep presentations.
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Next Steps
The Tenant Fun Day was not delivered in 2020 and is under review to see if we can
deliver later in 2021.
The required move to delivery of Tenant Academy courses virtually increased takeup and attendance. We will therefore introduce a blend of classroom and virtual
Tenant Academy courses.
Doorstep presentations have been well received and we will continue in the future
where relevant
10. Independent Living
Current position
Our Independent Living Schemes are home to a higher concentration of vulnerable
residents who are more susceptible to the coronavirus including many who were
advised to shield. We have maintained regular contact with our ILS tenants and
ensured they are not left isolated without access to food and medicine, etc. We have
promoted the vaccination programme and supported tenants to access this.
We have recommenced the Grander Designs programme and re-opened communal
areas using the Government’s rule of 6 criteria.
Next steps
•

At the moment ILC’s are predominantly home working. This can present
difficulties with un-scheduled call outs. We were looking at trialling a
proportion of ILC’s based at Harvey Road every day to provide this function

Staff have been consulted and will be returning to face to face visits. Resident
meetings will also re commence if rules are relaxed on 19th July.
Opening up of communal areas completely, impacts on other communal spaces
such as kitchens and outdoors. All communal areas will be opened by 19th July and
subject to Government guidelines at that time.
11. Customer Service Centre
Current position
Our Customer Service Centre was transformed during the first 4 weeks of lockdown
with a new capability for our Customer Service Advisors to work from home. The
CSC has continued to offer a full service to our tenants throughout the pandemic.
Incoming call volumes returned to pre Covid levels from September 2020 and
service performance has seen a continuous improvement since that time as work
from home becomes the ‘norm’ and with the recruitment of new CSA’s to
establishment levels.
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Next steps
The introduction of new technology has provided the opportunity for employees to
work from home on a permanent basis without negative impact on performance or
service. This will enable us to consider:
•

A long term working and accommodation solution for CSC

•

A review of cost savings/rotas/opening hours based on new working
arrangements

•

Further service transformation planned including webchat, self-serve options,
repair diagnosis via video and maximising social media as a method of
customer contact.

12. Nottingham On Call
Current position
As with the CSC, our telecare staff can now answer calls remotely. We have also
successfully introduced self-installation of simple packages for new customers. We
will continue to actively promote NoC for vulnerable people and others who may be
isolated.
Flexible working will however have less of an impact in this area for the following
reasons
•

The Assistive Technology role is multi-facetted and includes installation,
repair and collection of equipment and mobile response to customers in their
homes – these functions are operationally difficult to manage from home
working.

•

Service demand is variable and staff resources are flexed on a daily and
sometimes hourly basis. This is easier to manage with staff based in a single
location. The service takes both OOH and care alarm calls and due to
conflicting VPN’s only one function can be delivered by those working from
home, considerably reducing service efficiency.

•

The risk associated with care alarm calls is increased when working at home
in isolation as other staff members including the team leader are not
immediately available to seek advice. However, home-based working does
offer advantages in dealing with contingencies and preventing escalating of
issues. This includes: targeted overtime for unplanned absence or other
emergencies, prevention of spread of infection (including self isolation),
management of conditions that may otherwise require absence from work.

Next steps
We will reintroduce our falls lifting services in July 2021.
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•

Work has commenced on a review of restrictions including PPE and social
distancing when safe to do so.

13. Commercial Services
Current position
All works streams within commercial services are now live and working under the
latest government and business guidelines. High Rise Living Accommodation are
being undertaken safely with communal areas now re-opened. Staff are reminded to
take lunch breaks in their vehicles to reduce human contact in communal areas.
Staff are currently working from home or from site offices with full PPE protection.
This reduces the amount of staff attending Harvey Road.
Next steps
Work has commenced on a review of risk assessment restrictions including PPE and
social distancing when safe to do so. This work is targeting areas where highest
levels of productivity can be achieved.
In future all sites will have WIFI and/or laptops to have built in 4G SIMs to ensure
easy working around Nottingham
There needs to be a quicker processes for obtaining company IT equipment when
we have new starters.
14. Accommodation Strategy
Current position
We are waiting for the Government to review its guidance on returning to the
workplace. We were already reducing our workplace footprint through measures
agreed by the Board. Bestwood Office has now closed and there will be reduced
footfall in the JSC offices with some employees relocating to the Harvey Road site.
Our “Better Ways of Working” Project is preparing our accommodation for a full
return to work on a phased basis over a period of time.
Next steps
•

The nature of our accommodation will change to introduce more flexible
working, including a booking system for people to use when visiting offices.

•

Review of communal areas such as reception and the canteen to decide on
when to re-open these parts of the building

•

An office equipment audit, and an evaluation of desk usage to accommodate
social distancing rules

•

Review of ventilation arrangements to ensure a smooth flow of air through the
building. This helps reduce the risk of the virus spreading
12

•

From a wellbeing perspective, allowing greater access to employees who are
struggling at home and would benefit from working in an office environment.

•

A review of the number of people who can work from each office and room

15. Financial Stability
Current position
There has been and will continue to be a financial impact on NCH and the housing
revenue account. Many tenants find themselves on reduced hours or without
employment which has an impact on rent collection. We have sustained additional
expenditure as a result of the coronavirus crisis, eg, on PPE. We continue to track
and quantify the financial impact on NCH and the HRA and report risks to ARCC.
We are also working with NCC and continue to lobby the Government to support
measures which will address any financial gap.
The considerable costs of Covid-19 in 2020/21 were absorbed within the financial
year with some of these supported by Furlough Government grant of £426k
received. Covid-19 costs have been estimated as being in excess of £3m including
additional expenditure, such as on PPE and materials, but most noticeably the
significant cost of unproductive or shielding staffing resources during restrictions,
costs to provide cover, lost income due to delays and the cost of safe working
measures. In the Property Services Commercial team the above has also impacted
on this area’s ability to generate the surpluses that we budgeted for.
Covid-19 and restrictions will continue to put pressure on budgets this financial year
and hence the 2021/22 budget included budget provision in relation to PPE and
cleaning totalling £241k. Reserves include a one-off contingency of £434k which was
earmarked, in the first instance, for Covid-19 by EMT.
The financial impact will continue to be monitored throughout the year and budgets
monitored accordingly. Updates will be provided to Board though the usual financial
reporting.
16. Governance
Current position
NCH Board Members have been kept closely informed and involved throughout
lockdown. Our Governance processes have been amended to allow virtual
meetings, we will continue with this practice until it is determined safe to reconvene
meetings in person. Arrangements have been put in place for Board to have
oversight of our actions, performance, financial monitoring and building safety
compliance going forward. Board also agreed to waive Standing Orders and make
all approvals electronically and to delegate the final execution of official documents
to the EMT, where necessary.
Next steps
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•

Board and Committee meetings have been better attended when done
virtually. Board members need to consider how they want to meet in future
and review Board activities to determine which are best done virtually and
face to face.

•

Consideration on whether to revert back to traditional ways of approving
documents or continue with electronic approvals.
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CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2021 REVIEW
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report sets out the progress against commitments made in our
Corporate Plan for 2018-21.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Notes the contents of the report.

3

REPORT

3.1

This report provides a comprehensive overview of progress against our
last Corporate Plan. Interim reports have been submitted to the Board and
this is the last such report. Similar reports will be provided for Board on the
new Corporate Plan over the next three years.

3.2

Our previous Corporate Plan covered the period 2018-2021. The
Corporate Plan was developed following extensive consultation with the
Nottingham City Homes (NCH) Board, employees, tenants and other key
interested parties. It sets out an ambitious programme of change to deliver
on our commitment to be an excellent housing provider.

3.3

During the lifetime of the plan there have been some significant events that
have shaped the way we think and operate. These include the impact and
changes resulting from the tragic fire at Grenfell, which has since shaped
the Social Housing White Paper and the review of building safety. There
was Brexit, which created uncertainty across the economy, and for
organisations such as NCH, there were doubts about how this might
impact on our supply chain and our ability to deliver the services in a timely
manner to our tenants. And finally there has been a global pandemic which
has created all manner of issues for organisations, tenants and the
economy generally. Any one of these would be challenging, but to face
three significant events as these at the same time is probably unheard of.

3.4

Our tenants continued to be impacted by welfare reform changes and the
roll out of Universal Credit (UC) has been a challenge for tenants, which in
turn has led to challenges for NCH both in collecting rent and also in
providing the support to tenants to help them through the financial
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challenges they face.
3.5

Despite this, NCH staff have worked tirelessly over the last three years to
deliver on the vision and ambition set out in the Corporate Plan of 2018
and as the accompanying report shows, there has been a huge response
to deliver on the commitments in the plan with almost 90% of all
commitments completed during the term of the plan. Where possible, we
are continuing to work on the remaining commitments to deliver these.

3.6

We achieved some notable landmarks during the three year plan such as:
• Achieving Landlord of the Year
• Delivering fire safety improvements across all our high-rise blocks
and showing our ambition to be a leader in providing a safe haven
for our tenants
• Supporting the Council to achieve its aim of being carbon neutral by
2028, rolling out our internationally-recognised, award-winning
Energiesprong programme across the city
• Managed over £92m of council investment in maintaining homes to
the Nottingham Plus standard.
• Building almost 300 new affordable homes for local people
• Establishing an ALMO Board made up predominantly of tenants,
giving them a real voice in decision making and pre-empting the
Social Housing White Paper’s commitment to listening to tenants
and supporting meaningful engagement
• Creating a specialist UC Team
• Maintaining services throughout the coronavirus pandemic
• Our repairs team installed sprinklers to the homes and communal
areas of our high-rise accommodation
• Achieved 89.7% overall tenant satisfaction at the end of the
Corporate Plan which is top quartile
• Satisfaction with opportunities to participate is 95.4%
• Collected over 100% of rent due.
A more comprehensive list of our achievements is contained within the
body of Appendix 1.

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1 None.
4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1 None.
4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1 Failure to deliver on our commitments set out in our Corporate Plan would
risk the Council having little confidence in our ability to deliver in the future
which impacts on our plans to support the Council to build more homes for
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example. Our tenants and leaseholders would suffer as a result of our
failure to deliver the services and support that we had promised and this
would have reputational risks and potentially lead to lower satisfaction.
5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

As this report covers the full breadth of our Corporate Plan it touches on all
aspects of our objectives.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan 2018-21 Review

Contact officers:

Date: 10 JUNE 2021

NCHF131 v2.0 date: 02.08.16

Name: Phil Saunders
Address: Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham
Tel:
E-mail:Philip.saunders@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

Corporate Plan 2018-21 Review
Introduction
The Nottingham City Homes Group seeks to deliver affordable homes and places where people want to live. The Group comprises Nottingham City Homes, and its subsidiaries NCH Registered Provider
and NCH Enterprises Ltd. The main NCH Company is a wholly owned local authority company limited by guarantee. The Group is a not-for-profit company, re-investing surpluses in the communities we
serve.
Our last Corporate Plan set out a vision to be the best social housing provider in the UK.

To deliver our vision we set out five goals:
•

To listen to our tenants and deliver an excellent housing service

•

To make all our estates great places to live

•

To build high quality, affordable new homes for local people

•

To diversify our services, re-investing in our communities

•

To be a great place to work.

Our previous Corporate Plan covered the period 2018-2021. At that time, Grenfell had happened in 2017 and there were significant challenges to the housing sector. As well as the focus on safety that
Grenfell generated, a wider debate about social housing emerged, which NCH tenants and residents participated in. As a result, Nottingham City Council and Nottingham City Homes took prompt action to
fit sprinkler systems in the City Council’s tower blocks, and worked with residents to bring about a new focus on safety.
NCH set out a challenging plan deigned to ensure that NCH was one of the best housing organisations in the country and to meet the challenges that would arise out of the Grenfell disaster. Further to
this, the country had decided to leave the European Union, which created uncertainty across the economy, and for organisations such as NCH, there were doubts about how this might impact on our
supply chain and our ability to deliver the services in a timely manner to our tenants. Throughout the Brexit transition process, we have sought assurances from our suppliers of goods and services to
mitigate against any issues that could have arisen.
Our tenants continued to be impacted by welfare reform change and the roll out of Universal Credit has been a challenge for tenants, which in turn has led to challenges for NCH both in collecting rent but
also in providing the support to tenants to help them through the financial challenges they face.
In 2020, we were faced with another huge milestone that was faced and is continuing across the world, the COVID pandemic. This has wreaked havoc to peoples’ lives, creating financial difficulties for
some and mental health issues for others whilst creating economic pressures on the economy, which are likely to exist for the long term. Housing has not been immune to the impact of this with pressures
on rent collection, undertaking repairs and letting homes, in particular during the first lockdown. The city’s retail and hospitality industries, as elsewhere, have been hit hard. Unemployment in Nottingham
nearly doubled during the course of the pandemic and by summer 2020, around 30% of all people employed in Nottingham were furloughed.

1

Despite this NCH staff have worked tirelessly over the last 3 years to deliver on the vision and ambition set out in the Corporate Plan of 2018. This document sets out in detail what has been delivered
against each of the commitments set out in the 2018-2021 Corporate Plan.

2

3

Our Key achievements
We were recognised as Landlord of the Year and a national
exemplar of housing management at the prestigious UK Housing
Awards, and also won awards for Outstanding Approach to Tenant
Engagement and Innovation of the Year. We organised a Tea
Party for tenants to celebrate this momentous achievement.

We entered the Stonewall Top 100, which is the UK’s leading
benchmarking tool for LGBT+ inclusion in the workplace.

We agreed a 30-year Partnership Agreement with Nottingham City
Council, allowing us to plan our service delivery and long-term
investment in council housing citywide.

We established an ALMO Board made up of tenants, so their voice We invested £2.4m in Grander Designs improvements, completing
is heard right at the heart of our decision-making processes.
work at 25 independent living communities transforming
communal buildings and shared gardens to create modern,
welcoming environments for older residents. We also completed
six scooter stores in that same period investing a further £264,000
in safe and secure scooter storage for our residents.
We continued to progress digital delivery to realise efficiencies and We continued to issue the popular Responsible Tenant Reward,
improve services for tenants, and launched our Housing Online
with the number of qualifying tenants increasing year on year from
self-serve portal.
2018 to 2020.

We delivered an £8.5m fire safety enhancement programme
across all our high-rise blocks, making Nottingham a lead city
nationally in assuring fire safety for its high-rise residents. We also
created a new Building Safety Team in response to the findings in
the Hackitt Report and the recommendations in the Social
Housing White Paper, to focus on safety in our high-rise blocks.
We made a commitment to supporting the Council to achieve its
aim of being carbon neutral by 2028, rolling out our internationallyrecognised, award-winning Energiesprong programme across the
city and starting to establish a ‘green fleet’ of electric vehicles. We
were also awarded the Gold Award by the Sustainable Homes
Index for Tomorrow (SHIFT) accreditation scheme, which
independently assesses how housing organisations perform
against challenging environmental targets.
We managed over £92m of council investment in maintaining
homes to the Nottingham Plus standard (which is over and above
the Government’s Decent Homes standard), fitting 1,006 kitchens,
1,157 bathrooms, and new doors and windows to 4,664
properties. This included an annual programme of heating
installation and systems upgrades to council homes with a value
of £3 million each year.

In partnership with the City Council, Opportunity Nottingham and
Framework Housing Association, we helped to tackle
homelessness through the Housing First initiative, and supported
more homeless families through our temporary accommodation
service keeping them out of expensive and unsuitable B&B
accommodation.
We built almost 300 new affordable homes for local people as part
of Building a Better Nottingham and acquired 160 homes to
provide at market rents through our NCH EL subsidiary.
More than 2,600 tenants attended a record-breaking Fun Day
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We established a specialist Universal Credit Team that works with
partners to help tenants access welfare support, sustain their
tenancies and manage their money.

NCH was a finalist in the UKHA Older Persons Landlord of the
Year category.

We opened our first extra care housing facility at Winwood
Heights, Nottingham’s award-winning new retirement village,
making Winwood Heights the city’s biggest retirement village.

We maintained services throughout the coronavirus pandemic,
including making almost 60,000 proactive phone calls to
vulnerable residents and delivering almost 40,000 emergency and
urgent repairs.

We became the only Nottingham-based organisation to be listed in Our repairs team installed sprinklers to the homes and communal
the Top 100 Apprenticeship Employers for 2020. We also
areas of our high-rise accommodation, making tenants feel safer
launched the Construction Skills Hub with partners across the city in their homes.
to develop opportunities for jobs in construction, and accessed
funding to deliver employment initiatives that support Nottingham
residents into employment and training. Our award-winning
Women in Construction programme celebrated its 5th birthday,
and we helped almost 900 people into jobs or training.
We let 3,366 homes to people on the housing register, and
introduced e-learning to give applicants advice on housing options
and to support them in managing their tenancy and their money.

NCH responds to over 130,600 repairs a year (on average almost
360 a day). We introduced new processes that enabled us to
respond faster to remedy issues causing condensation, damp and
mould to our residents’ homes.

We delivered a major citywide programme events to celebrate 100
years of council housing, and a joint project with the University of
Nottingham, featuring The Meadows, won a prestigious MOBIE
Home of 2030 Challenge award.
We opened the new build Strelley Court independent living

The NCH Corporate Plan 2021-24 was launched in 2021, and
includes the new NCH Tenants’ Charter, a set of commitments
arising from the requirements of the Social Housing White Paper
The unique Victoria Centre roof garden was officially opened in

promoting the services of NCH, NCC and partners.
We signed a new 30-year partnership agreement with Nottingham
City Council in 2020.
Innovative inspection techniques using drone technology are
trialled in Nottingham by NCH, and are showcased at a national
conference.
Independent Living staff supported Independent Living tenants to
access on-line vaccination appointments, potentially saving the
lives of some of our most vulnerable tenants.
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community which includes NCH’s 500th new build home.
The Hospital to Home initiative delivers record savings for all
partners involved – NCC, the NHS, and NCH – and is held up as a
national exemplar by the Chartered Institute of Housing.
Independent benchmarking of our services by HouseMark showed
that we are above average for all measures of tenant satisfaction,
and below the median cost for managing and maintaining our
stock, saving £7.2m per annum over average costs.
Nottingham on Call were one of the first organisations in the
country to offer a mobile care alarm, the NoC ‘Go’

2019.
NCH continued to deliver emergency repairs throughout the
coronavirus pandemic, and put systems in place to check in on its
most vulnerable tenants.
The project to install new lifts in all 13 high-rises managed by NCH
was completed in 2021.
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Summary of Corporate Plan commitments
Over the last 3 years, there has been significant progress in delivering against the Plan. The tables below show how successful NCH has been in meeting its objectives. Of 110 commitments made we
have completed 97 or over 88% of all commitments completed. Some of those, which have not been completed, have not been possible due to circumstances beyond our control, but we shall continue to
make progress wherever possible.
In the table on page 8 all actions that are complete are colour coded in green.

Achievements
completed

Work to be done

ASB/Safer Neighbourhoods

2

1

Asset Management

8

2

Building Safety

2

Business Transformation

4

Customer Insight

2

Employability

3

Energy

6

Estates & Caretaking

1

Executive

1

Finance

1

Business Area

Fleet & Facilities
Governance

1
3

Health & Safety

2

ICT

5

Independent Living Services

7

Lettings

6

Market Rent

3

Marketing

2

New Build

8

Organisational Development

1

Rents

4

Tenancy & Estate Management

1

7

3

13

Property Services

Tenant & Leaseholder Involvement

1

14

2
1

2018-2021 Corporate Plan Our commitment
We will play an important part in tackling
crime and anti-social behaviour

Plan
Page
No.
7

Owner

Complete?

What we have done

ASB/Safer
Neighbourhoods

Yes

As well as our partnerships and relationships with NCC and Crime & Drugs Partnership, TEM services reflect and influence the ward plans for each area of the city and TEM attend Neighbourhood Action
Team (NAT) meetings and Area Committee meetings. We take swift and effective enforcement action where there is crime or anti-social behaviour associated with our properties or our tenants. Our terms
and conditions of the tenancy agreement have been revised to strengthen ASB and crime clauses. We play a significant part in raising awareness through Hate Crime Awareness Week and by co-chairing the
city Hate Crime Panel. We have provided additional knife crime awareness and training to our teams including working together with partners to tackle emerging issues such as County lines, drug dealing and
Modern Slavery/Exploitation. Feedback on our ASB performance remains slightly below our ambitious target, however, it is higher than the year-end figure (83.8%) for 2019/20 therefore customer satisfaction
continues to show an upwards trend. It is positive to see that customer satisfaction continues to show an upwards trend, despite the challenges of COVID-19. The ability to undertake ASB work has been
restricted and affected by COVID-19 and therefore the service has had to adapt considerably in 2020/21. ASB cases have continued to be managed well and effectively and we are engaged in the local
partnership response through the ASB Tasking and Tensions meetings. We have also reviewed how best to increase satisfaction, resulting in regular training being implemented at team briefings and further
streamlining of processes, policies and internal documents. We are also progressing delivery of the Tackling ASB and Crime Strategy.
The DAISY project was established using Ministry of Justice funding, to adapt and manage domestic abuse work during the pandemic. The funding helped us to increase the intensity of our domestic abuse
service and adapt our ways of working to being remote and flexible. The funding allowed us to set up new systems, work remotely and create processes/mechanisms for closely monitoring cases, as well as
bringing in more domestic abuse expertise to help increase domestic abuse knowledge and awareness across the board at NCH. As a result, we can intensively support tenant survivors of domestic abuse,
including finding solutions that take into account the restrictions and complications of a pandemic.
NCH work closely with partners in the City including NCC and the police to make neighbourhoods safer. We have strong representation at all levels of the Crime & Drugs Partnership board and sub-groups.
Our data sharing process has recently been reviewed and updated to ensure it is GDPR compliant. SLA agreements are being re-drafted to further formalise and increase the efficiency of our partnership with
Community Protection (CP). We have regular Operational (fortnightly) meetings with CP and we have monthly ASB tasking and tensions meetings with the police and partners to ensure any issues are
progressed in a way that maximises resources and minimises risk, including obtaining the best outcome for victims. We attend monthly partnership meetings including Complex Persons Panel (CPP), SERAC
(Sexual Exploitation Risk Assessment Conference), Hate Crime Incident Performance Panel and we are working with Operation Fossil to reduce repeat victims of hate crime in the neighbourhoods.
Relationships with Nottingham Sanctuary and Priority families have been maintained by regular referrals and liaison. Understanding of Domestic Abuse within TEM is good and training has been given to
HPM's and new staff. An e-learning module on Domestic Abuse has been devised and will now be available for all staff. Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance (DAHA) accreditation is being investigated and the
Safer Neighbourhoods Housing Manager (SNHM) is conducting a self-assessment. Following this, a project team will be set up to enable this to be implemented as a company-wide initiative. Initial
assessment has shown that significant resource will need to be provided by a project team to achieve this action.
FURTHER ACTION - Complete corporate service review and action plan required.
We have invested over £80m since 2018. In addition to this we are still working to our Nottingham Plus standard which is over and above the Government standard. Over the next Corporate Plan, we will be
investing £112m in maintaining our homes.

We will continue to have a strong
working relationship with Nottingham
Police and Community Protection
Schemes to tackle crime, nuisance and
ASB
We will support and apply for
accreditation with the Domestic Abuse
Alliance and continue our work with
Nottingham's Sanctuary Scheme and the
Priority Families Programme
We will maintain the quality of homes by
maintaining the decent homes standard

29

ASB/Safer
Neighbourhoods

Yes

29

ASB/Safer
Neighbourhoods

No

22

Asset
Management

Yes

We will deliver a programme of
improvements in communal areas in
blocks of flats

22

Asset
Management

Yes

We have just completed the first ones at Winchester and Woodthorpe and started work at Ash View. This is a 3-year programme and is due for completion in 2023. The programme will be rolled out across the
remaining blocks over the coming years. With BMK being the next blocks to move to. Architects are drawing up the scope of works and drawings to support delivery by Property Services.

We will complete our programme of lift
renewal including Pine View, Willow
View and Victoria Centre
We will keep accurate and up to date
housing stock condition records and use
this to plan investment wisely, piloting
the Eseebase system which will digitize
records and look at the potential of
Smart Home technology
We will make sure that all our homes
meet EPC D as a minimum

22

Asset
Management

Yes

We have just completed all of our programmed lift renewals. Over the next period, we will be installing new lifts at Sutton House and Highwood House.

22 &
26

Asset
Management

No

We have looked at Eseebase and other alternatives and it has been decided to move the asset data from Keystone to Northgate so we are using one system.
FURTHER ACTION - This has just started and not all modules will be available straight away. A timeline is being drawn up with Northgate and ICT, so we can use the modules when they are available to NCH.

23

Asset
Management

No

We will offer hard standing and other car
parking solutions as well as rolling out
infrastructure to charge electric cars and
remodel underused garage sites to
provide other parking solutions.
Security at flats will be improved by
better entry and cctv monitoring systems

28

Asset
Management

Yes

Along with continuing to upgrade boilers, windows and doors, we have also delivered external wall insulation to c480 more homes and deep retrofits to 121 homes with 138 more on site and external funding
secured for 262 more. Currently we have 510 properties that fall below EPC D. This is largely due to the impact of NCC Buy Back properties that have been added to the stock portfolio, and which do not
currently achieve EPC D. This figure has also been impacted by delays to work now being undertaken as part of an energy efficiency programme, which will take place over the next twelve months. These
programmes will combine grant and match funding to ensure that we meet as a minimum EPC C across our stock by 2030. A large proportion of these reported below D properties have been included in either
the current heating upgrade programme or the schedule for 2021-22.
FURTHER ACTION - We will continue to invest in energy efficiency and to explore the most cost effective way of achieving our longer-term energy efficiency targets in line with the Council’s commitment to be
Carbon Neutral by 2028 and EPC C by 2030. We have realised during this Corporate Plan that it is more cost effective to consider how to get to Carbon Neutral now and EPC C by 2030, rather than invest to
achieve EPC D and then find it more expensive to achieve higher standards. By Sept 2021, we will deliver the Destination Zero project, which will allow us to test packages of different energy measures, which
can be applied incrementally, and will build this back into the capital programme.
We have fitted electric charging points at Winwood, Strelley Court. We have installed parking solutions across the city including driveway solutions. We have also assessed all of our garage sites and have
stared a demolition programme to remove unused garages and some of them are being used to build new houses. We will review the offer of hard standing and other car parking solutions as well as rolling out
infrastructure to charge electric cars and remodel underused garage sites to provide other parking solutions with NCC to find the most cost effective way of delivering this.

28

Asset
Management

Yes

We have installed new state of the art intercom systems and PA systems across our high-rise blocks and we have upgraded CCTV and door entry systems where required. We will review our older systems in
readiness for the 2025 digital switchover.

We will make sure our homes are safe
and meet all legislative standards
including annual gas servicing
We will enhance fire safety by fitting all
high-rise tower blocks with sprinklers
We will risk assess other properties to
identify where else sprinklers would be
beneficial
We will work with our residents to keep
our homes safe and manage the
Council's investment in additional fire
safety measures

22

Asset
Management

Yes

22

Asset
Management
Asset
Management

Yes

NCH have created compliance dashboards that show how we are performing against compliance. We have also created a Building Safety Policy that was signed off by the Board. We have not been able to
achieve our compliance target in relation to our 5-year EICR programme. To enable this to happen we have set up a dedicated team to ensure we meet this target. No access issues that are being dealt with
are hampering the programme. To be completed Jun 21.
All high-rise communal areas and flats have Sprinklers installed that are fully functional. The only outstanding ones are no access properties that we are working through.

Yes

We have risk assessed all of our low-rise properties and identified where sprinklers may be required. Continue to carry out yearly risk assessments to ensure our blocks are safe.

Building Safety

Yes

We have installed sprinklers and carried out fire risk assessments across all of our high-rise blocks. We have also upgraded fire doors to flats and communal areas, fire stopping; We have also fitted video
intercoms and PA systems to 13 blocks.

8

22

7

We will engage with the regulator as well
as residents to make sure we can drive
up safety, quality and service
We will measure how well we are doing
against our 5 goals
We will make sure our processes,
systems and data continue to meet
ISO9001 standards

10

Building Safety

Yes

16

Business
Transformation
Business
Transformation

Yes

We will improve our top ten performance
against all the KPI measures which are
important to our customers
We will be acclaimed for being
innovative and forward thinking in the
housing sector and have a structured
programme of continuous improvement
We will use customer insight knowledge
to improve what we do and deliver better
value for money.
We will use the 3C's process to improve
service quality and improve our
monitoring of it

26

Business
Transformation

Yes

46

Business
Transformation

Yes

7

Customer
Insight

Yes

24

Customer
Insight

Yes

We will help people into work through
learning and skills programmes.

7

Employability

Yes

We will maximise opportunities to help
residents into training and employment
and work with partnership agencies like
Nottingham Jobs, Future Advice Skills
and Employment and local schools,
colleges and universities as well as
using our own training and
apprenticeship programme
We will work with partners such as
Nottingham Jobs, Futures, CITB, the
DWP, schools and colleges to offer work
experience and recruit more local people

30

Employability

Yes

41

Employability

Yes

We will reduce fuel poverty and improve
energy efficiency, targeting properties
that will benefit the most

22

Energy

Yes

We will pilot a range of energy solutions
to deliver zero carbon '2050 homes'
including renewable energy, battery
storage and whole house retrofits.

23

Energy

Yes

Where we can we will make our energy
saving projects available across other
tenures
We will seek with the city council to
secure European Regional Development
Funding to deliver the Energiesprong
approach
We will reduce the energy and fuel we
use as a business.

23

Energy

Yes

23

Energy

Yes

23

Energy

Yes

We will secure the gold sustainability
standard for the housing sector - SHIFT
We will provide excellent street and
block cleaning, grounds and tree
maintenance services along with our
partners at NCC to ensure clean and
litter/graffiti free estates

23

Energy

Yes

27

Estates &
Caretaking

Yes

9

26

Yes

Re fire safety, there is on-going contact with Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service (NFRS) as required. A representative is invited to the monthly Fire Risk Management Group meetings.
We have limited engagement with residents during the Fire Risk Assessment process only. This process is an on-going rolling programme of consultation and involvement of the NFRS and will include the
new Building Safety Regulator when they are in place.
We monitor performance on a quarterly basis and the reporting has been extended to each Board. We have undertaken an analysis of our progress against the commitments across the 5 goals set out in the
Corporate Plan and we can demonstrate that NCH has delivered on the vast majority of the commitments made
We continue to review our processes in line with ISO9001. Internal Audit and external validation takes place regularly to determine compliance. A significant review was undertaken as part of the migration of
processes, procedures and forms to the new Corporate Filing System, with over 1000 documents transferred across to the new system, and all documents now maintained on the Corporate Filing System and
will be continually reviewed to ensure that they are fit for purpose.
Ten of the twelve measures reported to our ALMO Board are in either Quartile 1 or 2 when compared with all organisations nationally. Our key satisfaction measure, overall satisfaction has increased from
89% in 2018-19 to 89.7% at the end of 2020-21. Similarly, satisfaction with repairs is improving with 83.7% of tenants satisfied now. All 6 of our key satisfaction measures conducted via the STAR satisfaction
survey and conducted independently are in the top 2 quartiles nationally.
NCH has won a number of housing sector awards and accreditations since the start of the Corporate Plan, including Landlord of the Year. We have introduced new technology to deliver increased efficiency
and have undertaken reviews to support teams across the business including, damp and mould, doors and windows and stores. Our Customer Excellence panel has undertaken a number of reviews over the
course of this Corporate Plan, latterly a review of the complaints process, which has supported a root and branch review of our complaints process to meet the Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Code, and
more recently a review of Voids and Lettings.
We continue to use information from transactional surveys and feedback from these to service areas and 'you said we did' updates. This will be strengthened through the Annual Complaints Report and regular
ALMO Board Reports to identify trends and learning outcomes. Using the information we have we have contacted thousands of tenants throughout the pandemic to offer them support and our Independent
Living staff supported Independent Living tenants to access on-line vaccination appointments with the take up being commended by the Integrated Care Partnership.
We have reviewed and refined our Learning Outcomes log to ensure clear actions and learning are shared with teams and individuals and to look at ways to improve service delivery. Learning Log updates
have been rolled out across the majority of complaints, with the remaining minority being included as part of the COVID-19 recovery plan. Manual recording of learnings necessary at this stage, with
automation in progress. Learnings are recorded on all complaints either way. New Learning data integrated into quarterly complaints report as well as in the process of being included in monthly updates to key
business areas. Property Services actively using learnings to identify and tackle key causes of complaints. Our intention is to use their process as a model for other areas to take business-wide.
New Employability Strategy implemented in 2019. We have supported and engaged with over 2000 customers and helped over 700 into employment or training in 2018-21. We launched a School
Employability Offer following consultation with schools on how NCH can support their employability. We have delivered 40 work experience placements at NCH in 2019-20 when the team took on responsibility
for placements. They have since been on hold due to the pandemic. Continued partnership work with Nottingham Jobs and utilising Nottingham Jobs Fund when appropriate. Series of webinars introduced in
2020 due to the pandemic - engaged with over 400 people in 2020/21 across 56 workshops. Workshops vary from employability skills, wellbeing, industry insight talks and meet the employer sessions. We
have been awarded 10 Kickstart Job Placements through the Governments new scheme to create new jobs for unemployed 16-24 year olds. We have another 8 roles pending.
New Employability Strategy implemented in 2019. We have supported and engaged with over 2000 customers and helped over 700 into employment or training in 2018-21. We launched a School
Employability Offer following consultation with schools on how NCH can support their employability. We have delivered 40 work experience placements at NCH in 2019-20 when the team took on responsibility
for placements. They have since been on hold due to the pandemic. Continued partnership work with Nottingham Jobs and utilising Nottingham Jobs Fund when appropriate. Series of webinars introduced in
2020 due to the pandemic - engaged with over 400 people in 2020/21 across 56 workshops. Workshops vary from employability skills, wellbeing, industry insight talks and meet the employer sessions. We
have been awarded 10 Kickstart Job Placements through the Governments new scheme to create new jobs for unemployed 16-24 year olds. We have another 8 roles pending.

We worked in partnership with Nottingham College, Futures, NCC and CITB to deliver a £1m Construction Skills Fund project. The project engaged with over 700 people and has helped over 500 people to
become 'site ready' via training and employability support. It supported over 150 people into construction related jobs. We also became a delivery partner of Way2Work (ESF), working in partnership with NCC,
to help engage 675 unemployed city residents and support 160 into employment. Circa £400k of funding unveil February 2023. We have been awarded Nottingham Works 4 You (ESF) funding to support 1624year olds into employment or accredited training. Circa £120k of funding until December 2023. We are also working in partnership with Clarion Futures to deliver localised support to their residents in
Nottingham. They fund us £10k per year to do this. We launched Social Value (SV) Action Plans for our new build sites working directly with our contractors and development team. We are implementing SV
measures and monitoring through regular contractor meetings. We launched a Women in Construction Network for employers, training providers and organisations who can collectively drive WIC on a larger
scale.
We have completed energy projects at West Walk, The Courts, Winchester and Woodthorpe and commenced various other ones that will continue into the next Corporate Plan. Projects for the next period are:
• Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Demonstrator [SHDF] one of only 19 successful projects across the country will retrofit 104 properties in the Hoten Road area of Sneinton. The properties [68 houses
and 36 flats] currently have an average EPC rating of D/E and can suffer from damp and mould
• Under Green Homes Grant scheme GHG, we are able to retrofit 50 council homes with solid wall insulation across the Arboretum, Basford, Bulwell, Carrington, Colwick, Forest Fields, Hyson Green, New
Basford and Sherwood.
• Energiesprong Roll Out to 138 William Moss Cross Wall Homes across Nottingham
• A Whole House Retrofit project to 96 homes in Bakersfield and Mapperley
• A project to deliver an Energiesprong retrofit to 74 flats in the Eddlestone Drive area of Clifton [including 23 leaseholders]
We have piloted the Energiesprong model on the West Walk properties and have piloted a different approach on the Courts. Both have included a range of technologies, including batteries, solar panels and
private wire, as well as communal heating from either ground source heat pumps or returns from the main network. On the Camden Close we are piloting ground source heat pumps on an individual property
basis. The next phases will use air source heat pumps. Another approach called Destination Zero is being trialled using funding from the UK Government as part of the Whole House Retrofit project. This will
enable us to implement measures incrementally. This will also pilot an energy module, which includes heating, hot water, ventilation, energy storage and controls. Over the next 12 months, we also need to
carry out trials of heat pumps in different archetypes to help build our 2028 carbon neutral strategy. We are also rolling out the Energiesprong model to other properties to show how we can reduce cost by
using a different technology package, whilst still doing all of the work at once.
We have offered private landlords and tenants and owner-occupiers the chance to have works done whilst we are delivering Energiesprong works. However, the costs are currently prohibitive. We have been
taking part in an initiative run by the Green Finance Initiative, which is looking at financial instruments, which will incentivise and enable private sector take up. We are working with Nottingham Energy
partnership to develop options for local offers. During the next period we are working in collaboration with NCC to deliver the Local Authority Delivery scheme that will included private dwellings.
RDF funding has been secured for the Energiesprong roll out. BEIS funding has also been secured for a Whole House Retrofit Project. This includes Energiesprong solutions and 'Destination Zero' solution;
this will deliver net Zero housing using knowledge gained from Energiesprong and fitting this into current asset renewal program within NCH properties.

New Solar PV installations on NCH site - Harvey Road installed Jan 2019.This Array has generated 113.69MWH of electricity resulting in avoided carbon emissions of 29.059 Tonnes of CO2 and the
equivalent of planting 148 Trees, the cost of this electricity to purchase would have been £16,68Gas consumption at Harvey Road has decreased. Fuel consumption has decreased. Further work is required to
achieve carbon neutral standards. This could include further fabric measures, along with installing a new heating system for Harvey Road.
In 2018 NCH achieved the SHIFT Gold award.
House Mark app now fully launched across Tenancy & Estate Services. Caretaking team managers are using the reports to focus caretakers on continuous improvements in blocks. Housing Patch Managers
are using the app to feed into local estate action plans for improvements on estates. Service Level Agreements for Grounds Maintenance currently being developed by NCC. Escalation process reviewed to
empower front line teams to discuss and resolve local issues. STAR survey results improving. Process introduced to record work completed at Independent Living Schemes by NCC and NCH. Caretaking
satisfaction removed from STAR survey around 18 months ago with targeted surveys introduced across our high-rise blocks. Surveys completed at 12 of our high-rise blocks. Victoria Centre due to be
completed during April. Overall satisfaction 74%. Surveys to be conducted twice per annum moving forward. Target of 80% for 2021/22. All residents that have responded have been contacted. Target of 80%
for overall satisfaction agreed for 2021/22. 1 block has been assessed as 5 star but throughout the year, 3 blocks have achieved this rating but has not been maintained. There is extensive capital work

ongoing across a number of the high-rise blocks, which has affected the block assessments. However, it is expected that this work will have a major impact during 2021/22 on supporting NCH in achieving the
expected standards and improving the environment within the high-rise blocks. Work continues in the development of a grounds maintenance service level agreement in partnership with NCC. Satisfaction
with grounds maintenance currently at 75%, which is the same level as year 1 of the Corporate plan. The service was suspended by NCC between March 2020 and July 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
We continue to work with NCC on the development of a SLA. The service was subject to a joint report with NCC to ALMO board in Nov 2020 with a further report in March 2021 detailing updates on the actions
from the Nov meeting.
FURTHER ACTION - Stepped targets to achieve 5 star standards across our estates and blocks. High-rise living capital works commenced which will improve the internal areas of the high-rise blocks.
Improvements to pre inspection estate assessments and action plans will improve estate standards. Tenancy & Estate Management teams working with Property Services and Asset Management to identify
ways to proactively identify capital work schemes on estates through a 3-year cyclical model. HPMs liaising with involved tenants including street and block champions to establish means to provide regular
updates and capture local concerns. NCH are working with NCC to develop a SLA covering grounds maintenance, which will increase the control, and management NCH has in the management of our
estates. A 4th Caretaking team manager has recently been appointed which will allow for improved monitoring of work carried out on our estates and relationships with our partners.
Various options and approaches have been explored and Board have approved a standalone Registered Charity as the most likely vehicle to attract external donations. Charity Trustees have been selected
and include NCC and NCH tenants, trustees of other community charities, a local businessperson and the NCH Director of Housing.
(i) There have been delays caused by understanding the charitable vehicle most likely to deliver the outcomes sought, resource issues and seeking suitable trustees.
(ii) An informative initial meeting of the trustees has taken place on 15 April 2021. Work is ongoing to agree the charity name and charitable objectives/ purpose. Once these are agreed the trustees will
consider and sign off the draft Articles of Association and Governing Document that will enable submission of the application to the Charity Commission.
Formally established this approach in our new Sourcing Strategy. Approach is adopted though our service plan and procurement decisions and procedures.

We will explore the potential to create a
charitable arm for the benefit of
residents

39

Executive

Yes

Our approach to procurement will seek
to ensure value for money while helping
to support local businesses, local
employment and social enterprises
We will renew our fleet and move
towards electric and hybrid vehicles

34

Finance

Yes

46

Fleet & Facilities

No

We will have renewed our long term
partnership agreement with NCC,
defining with great clarity which housing
revenue account assets we are
responsible for managing
We will hold personal data securely and
fully comply with GDPR requirements
We will review our governance structure
and our boards ensuring listening to
residents is at the heart of what we do
We will achieve compliance with the new
health and safety ISO45001 standard
due in 2021
We will ensure everyone is trained in
Health & Safety and reduce the number
of incidents under our control. We will
see if our approach to asset safety
checks can use smart technology and
more efficient integrated crossorganisation solutions
We will have a digital offer, which works
for our customers while reflecting their
diverse needs, making sure as many of
our customers as possible have the
opportunity to be digitally active.
We will continue to work in partnership
with NCC's IT service to deliver ICT
improvements and provide staff with the
correct training and resources.
We will deliver mobile working solutions
across the business
We will seek to learn from and adopt
best ICT practice from elsewhere
considering new technology e.g. A.I,
drones or driverless vehicles
We want residents to be able to report
repairs online more easily and manage
appointments at their convenience

22

Governance

Yes

Following a fleet review, EMT have approved delaying the replacement of the fleet until 2022. Ten electric vehicles have been purchased in 2019/20 through a partnership with NCC.
FURTHER ACTION - A vehicle specification will be completed in 2021 to determine the number of vehicles required to support the requirements of the business, while embracing alternative fuel technologies.
There is a commitment to procure a greener fleet, however, enhancements in technology is required to match the demand, including range and load capacity
A 30-year Partnership Agreement was finalised in 2020 between NCC and NCH.

26

Governance

Yes

All NCH staff have annual GDPR training to ensure continuing compliance.

46

Governance

Yes

43

Health & Safety

No

An ALMO Board has been created with a tenant being the Chair of the Board. Tenants make up 60% of Board Members. We have agreed to review our Governance again to account for a recent external
review of our risk management processes, NCC's Recovery Plan, the new NHF Code of Governance and the recent White Paper on Social Housing. This work is being overseen by the Governance and
Selection Committee supported by the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee and is due for completion in March 2022.
Due to Covid-19, the transition deadline has been moved back to September 2021. The organisation is working towards achieving the transition from BS OHSAS 18001 to ISO 45001.
FURTHER ACTION - In the event that the revision is not complete by the original date of 11th March 2021, it will be completed before the revised deadline date of September 2021.

43

Health & Safety

No

Training provision is made available. There is currently difficulty with colleagues being scheduled to attend the training programmes. Regular training reports are provided to Property Services where the
majority of the bespoke training is targeted. Asset safety checks are managed by Asset Management.
FURTHER ACTION - COVID-19 restrictions have compromised the training programmes. It is hoped that training will resume in autumn 2021.

26

ICT

Yes

We have launched Housing Online to allow customers to check their rent balance, update their contact details and apply for housing. In the coming year we will start to offer repair booking.
A digital inclusion group has been set up that will meet every 6 - 12 weeks to look at additional activities to support our customers.

45

ICT

Yes

ongoing. All systems have been upgraded. All kit has been replaced to windows 10, and laptops provided to 99% of staff. All kit aligned to NCC strategy and bought using NCC commercial arrangements to
drive VFM. All mobiles now on EE taking advantage of new contract through NCC. Mobile phones have been replaced and all mobile phones have email. The intranet has been replaced and made available on
laptops and mobile devices. All staff now have IT equipment, whether it be a tablet or laptop / desktop. Learning Zone and Intranet updated to provide guides.

45

ICT

Yes

Mobile Working project delivered new tablets to trade colleagues and caretakers. Completed gas and electrical certification via electronic means for internal teams.

45

ICT

Yes

Attended events with HQN, HouseMark, Housing Tech to understand current trends. Working with suppliers to understand their roadmaps. We have spoken to other ALMOs and Housing Associations as well.

22

ICT

Yes

We will ensure all Independent Living
Schemes benefit from Grander Design
Improvements
We would like to explore
accommodation for older residents with
specific needs and designate certain ILS
'Pet Friendly'
We will make sure our ILS residents
have stimulating and rewarding
opportunities helping tackle isolation and
improve mental and physical wellbeing
We will complete the refurbishment at
Woodthorpe and Winchester Courts and
open our first extra care housing as part

22

Independent
Living Services

No

25

Independent
Living Services

Yes

NCH is committed to improving our self-service offer to tenants and encourage customers to use our online services as their preferred option. We are currently working on integrating our online repairs booking
software in order to directly interface with our repairs process instead of sending an email to the contact centre to raise manually. The upgraded ‘Interfinder’ system will enable customers to raise and book
non-emergency repairs appointments online (at their convenience) rather than having to go via the contact centre. Upgrading Interfinder and integrating with our repairs process is dependent on successfully
updating repair finder and it is anticipated that the repairs module within ‘Inter-finder’ will be activated by the end of July 2020.
A programme of works instituted. PS Commercial delivery partner.
FURTHER ACTION - All but 4 Independent living schemes had Grander Designs improvements. Works to these schemes were delayed by the Covid-19 pandemic and are now scheduled to complete in
Autumn 2021.
NCH already has pet friendly schemes where these properties have access to their own gardens (336 homes). Pet friendly schemes are being piloted in 4 courtyard schemes in the City comprising a further
72 homes. The pilot was evaluated in July 20 and a decision was taken to extend the pilot for a further year to enable more data on impact to be gathered. Further review of pilot in July 21.

25

Independent
Living Services

Yes

•
We have been providing a wide range of activities across our schemes which are engaging for residents and support those people who may be lonely, enabling them to meet people and get involved
in whatever suits them. We have also increased the range of activities in IL schemes – increased from a monthly average of 263 in 17/18 to 451 in 19/20 (activities suspended 20/21 due to covid)

25

Independent
Living Services

Yes

New build and refurbishments of towers complete. Extra care scheme operational.

10

of Winwood Heights retirement village
To help make Nottingham a SMART city
we will make full use of NOC new
assistive technology offer which will
demonstrably provide cost effective
solutions to the council and health
authorities
We will improve our marketing so that
local people who can benefit from AT
services are aware of what we offer
We will manage a hospital to home
service across greater Nottingham and
work with the council to create further
extra care provision, including short stay
beds

38

Independent
Living Services

Yes

Assisted Technology (AT) range expanded including digital alarms and NoC Go mobile alarm/falls detector of which we were one of the first organisations in the country to offer this service. AT is now
embedded into social care process - Activity Assessment forms part of process for determining appropriate care in high cost placements. Winter pressures initiative demonstrated actual savings to social care
of £116k - a 3:1 return on investment. Safer Walking pilot undertaken- evaluated as delivering savings if approach taken up by social care. Continue engagement with social care and health partners.
Continue evaluating new equipment solutions. NoC were one of the fist alarm receiving centres in the country to move to a joint digital/analogue operating system. We have expanded our services beyond
Nottingham ensuring that the high standard of service we offer is expanded into other areas such as at Jigsaw Homes and across the Ashfield District.

38

Independent
Living Services

Yes

38

Independent
Living
Services/Letting
s

Yes

We will explore the business case for
NCH operating its own in house care
service
We will manage an adaptions service on
behalf of the City Council

38

Independent
Living Services

Yes

External marketing support commissioned. Website completely redeveloped. Search engine optimisation undertaken resulting in exponential growth in website hits and large increase in self-referrals. Social
media and Google adverts commenced. Public demonstration event planned but deferred due to COVID-19 pandemic. Continue development of website and marketing approach targeting both 'users and
choosers' of service.. We have increased the number of NoC private users from 1599 at the start of the Plan to 2781 at March 2021 an increase of almost 75%.
Assessment beds available at Winwood Heights accessible directly by social care.
NCH manages a ‘Housing to Health’ Scheme, which is part of the Housing Options team, which is jointly funded by NCH and the CCG. The scheme has approved funding until April 2022 with a potential for a
further 12 months extension. The scheme provides a handholding service supporting Nottingham City citizens of any tenure who meet the scheme criteria into alternate suitable housing who are unable to be
discharged from Nottingham NHS beds or are at risk of readmission. The service operates across the Nottingham city and will support the ILS work, which is ongoing with the council to create further extra
care provision, including short stay beds. This partnership will assist in reducing costs to social care for high cost temporary residential/care home accommodation. Further discussions with Social Care. NoC
have supported the re-ablement and hospital discharge process through the provision of short-term assistive technology packages. An initial evaluation of the programme indicated that embedding Assisted
Technology in the re-ablement process provided a return on investment of 3:1 based on a reduction in the cost of care packages.
Business case produced. Not a viable proposition for NCH. NoC have supported Adult Social Care to establish the correct level of care provided in complex cases through use of Activity Assessment

38

Independent
Living Services

No

We will ensure empty homes are
refurbished and re-let efficiently, with
high levels of satisfaction from residents
moving in

22

Lettings

Yes

We will review the lettings and
allocations policy with NCC to make sure
the scheme is transparent, fair and
meets the needs of the local people.
We will improve the Homelink website
and make it easier for applicants to selfserve
We will support people on the housing
register with advice and assistance,
especially for people with additional
needs to find suitable properties

24

Lettings

Yes

Obstacles have been put in place to transfer, mainly around potential pension strain and cost of DFG work undertaken by NCH. Options appraisal undertaken by NCC, which NCH fed into. There were 2 viable
options for the location of the Agency moving forward; social care or NCH. As of February 21, social care had stated that they did not have the resources to take on the operation of the Agency.
FURTHER ACTION - It is the Council's decision as to whether to transfer the Agency.
• ART 2020/21 is 37.80 days
• Customer satisfaction to end Q.3 2020/21 is 97.6% for satisfaction with overall service and 90.59% for condition of home
• There have been challenges with works within voids due to COVID-19 with a significantly reduced workforce at the start of the pandemic, and capacity has continued to be impacted where staff are required
to self-isolate. Compliance with risk assessments has also affected the number of colleagues able to work in a property at one time.
• Void action plan is in place with additional resource through overtime, agency and contractors to increase voids completions and ensure that homes are let as swiftly as possible.
• Continued promotion of the customer satisfaction survey to increase completions. Identification of common trends to improve satisfaction where needed.
• The Allocations Policy has been reviewed and approved alongside NCC and was implemented on our IT systems in January 2021.

24

Lettings

Yes

• The new HomeLink website was launched in 2020 with improved content to support applicants and online forms to submit information and make enquiries.

24

Lettings

Yes

We will explore more what we can do for
people looking for one bedroom
accommodation

24

Lettings

Yes

We will encourage mutual exchange,
help residents affected by bedroom tax
downsize and free up larger size homes
for other families

24

Lettings

Yes

We will offer our residential management
service to other property owners and
explore establishing a private sector
leasing scheme and a social lettings
agency
We will develop sites for market sale,
low cost home ownership and market
rent
NCH Enterprises Ltd will grow the
market rent business, including
regenerating the Arboretum in
partnership with NCC
We will continue to improve the way we
keep staff informed
Our culture will make sure we value the
efforts our colleagues make and ensure
success is recognised and compliments
shared
We will deliver a substantial building
programme

35

Market Rent

Yes

• Monthly community surgeries have paused due to COVID-19, however guides produced and the HomeLink website has been developed to offer more advice and assistance and support is provided by
telephone
• HomeLink Support Officers support those who may meet criteria for priority housing on medical and social grounds
• Housing to Health team support with hospital discharge and preventing hospital admissions
• Dedicated worker support the Leaving Care team
• Step by step guides produced and training provided to Hostel support workers
• Promotion of mutual exchange and matches for under and over occupiers
• Mutual exchange surgeries to release properties (although on hold for the last year)
• Proactive communications and information, including use of HomeLink website for information on mutual exchanges
• Staff training to identify occupancy issues and support existing tenants with downsizing
• Priority for new build one bed flats to existing tenants who are downsizing
• Priority for new build houses to existing tenants who therefore release one bed accommodation
• Influencing the Development and Asset Management teams to build more one bedroom accommodation – forthcoming Tunstall and Softwood Mews new build have one bed flats and others in the pipeline.
• Improved promotion of mutual exchanges on the HomeLink website and dedicated officer to support tenants who are under or over occupying and reduces the need to apply for housing via HomeLink
• HomeLink Support Officers receive referrals to help people move into the right size property for their household’s needs, specifically tackling under occupation and overcrowding
• The Allocations Policy awards a higher band to applicants giving up high demand family type homes which are no longer needed, and support is offered to move into one bedroom general needs or
Independent Living flats
• Housing to Health team make a targeted approach to support moves into Independent Living and free up family homes.
• Priority for new build to existing tenants affected by the bedroom tax to free up larger homes
Currently we have worked to create a private sector leasing scheme that supports the need for additional Temporary accommodation for those in Housing Need. The team have also bid for the management of
various private housing developments for PRS. We continue to work with landlords to secure suitable properties that can be used for temporary accommodation.

34

Market Rent

Yes

We have acquired 58 new build apartments 'off the shelf' from Developers and are on site with the development of 21 new build apartments, which will complete in January 2022. The Meadows Police Station
development will be completed by Spring 2021.

39

Market Rent

Yes

We have completed the refurbishment of 10 apartments at Forest Road West. We have also entered into the lease and started on site on Phase 1 of the main Arboretum project, this will see the addition of 27
apartments to the market rent portfolio. Once transfer takes place of the 1st Phase of properties, Consultation with leaseholders and other stakeholders will take place along with the delivery of the work
programme. Planning will also take place for the 2nd Phase of properties, with the completion of leases etc. in line with the overall programme.

41

Marketing

Yes

42

Marketing

Yes

We have increased the membership of the staff Facebook page, and have launched a new intranet. We are currently reviewing the content and delivery platform for 'Round the Houses, the staff magazine, and
have introduced Frontline Focus, an email bulletin for frontline staff, in response to a request from them via trade unions.
We have developed a culture of recognition and congratulation on the staff Facebook page, which is seeing staff across the business complimenting colleagues and sharing success. We also continue to
celebrate success in 'Round the Houses in #NCH Heroes and Celebrating Success. We have an annual STAR Awards event which recognises the excellent work that employees do.

7

New Build

Yes

11

We continue to deliver a significant number of new homes with 319 completed since April 2018. As well as completions, we also have 430 properties due to start on site before March 2021.

We will deliver attractive, safe and
welcoming estates by working with our
partners in the City Council and others.
We are committed to building new
homes to a high quality with emphasis
on good design, construction standards,
energy efficiency and reasonable room
sizes
We will explore potential sites that make
use of underused or unused land and
assets on housing estates, and we will
review the arrangements for the storage
of residents belongings from abandoned
properties to free up sites we can build
on.
We will consider innovative opportunities
such as airspace developments that
build on top of existing structures
We will increase our capacity and
capability to deliver the planned
programme of new build developments
and recruit additional experienced
project and programme leaders
NCH RP will develop a constructive
relationship with Homes England and bid
for resources to support our new build
programme as well as bidding for
delivering Section 106 affordable
housing.
We will build using Building Information
Modelling as standard

27

New Build

Yes

We work with partners across the City Council including Regeneration, Urban Design, Planning, Public Realm etc. to ensure that our proposed schemes deliver against the commitment to deliver good quality
housing.

32

New Build

Yes

We continue to design homes that fit into the neighbourhood, are affordable and easy to run and have enough space for everyday life, including family meals, room for homework and plenty of storage. Our
approach to good design has been recognised with a number of awards including the Silver Award for 'Retirement Housing 37-43 Units' at the National Housing for Older People Awards 2019 for Strelley
Court.

33

New Build

Yes

We regularly review sites for potential development opportunities and will be developing 36 new flats at site of underused garages at Southchurch Court.

33

New Build

No

Whilst we have not yet identified a site where this might be considered, we remain open to the potential of delivering more new homes this way.

33

New Build

Yes

We have undertaken successful recruitment to increase capacity and capability, including the recruitment of a new Assistant Director of Development.

33

New Build

Yes

We are building a stronger relationship with HE including having regular quarterly review. We successfully secured grant funding to deliver 8 properties of move on accommodation.

34

New Build

No

We will make best use of off-site
manufacturing and / or modular build
solutions
Our new housing will be built to high
energy efficiency standards

34

New Build

No

We are looking to standardise our house types to increase efficiency and to provide greater cost certainty and life cycle costs. Our response will be shaped by the delayed changes to Building Regulations Part
L and the Future Homes Standard. Details of which are yet to be published.
FURTHER ACTION - We are working with NCC Energy Team to develop our specification to meet our carbon neutral ambitions. Our response will be shaped by the delayed changes to Building Regulations
Part L and the Future Homes Standard. Details of which are yet to be published.
We remain open to the use of off-site construction and modular solutions however; we are not actively seeking to introduce this on current sites.

23

New
Build/Energy

Yes

The Eastglade development will be an
eco-exemplar new community with the
homes developed being low carbon,
built using super-efficient construction
techniques
We will support Health and Wellbeing
programmes.

23 &
34

New
Build/Energy

Yes

7

Organisational
Development

Yes

We will target actions to make sure that
underrepresented and disadvantaged
groups benefit from services that meet
their needs.

14

Organisational
Development

Yes

All new starters will receive a high quality
NCH induction, annual appraisals and
regular one to ones

40

Organisational
Development

Yes

We will identify the future employment
needs of NCH and make sure we have
the right people with the right skills in
place
We will recruit, develop and retain
talented individuals and create entry
level jobs where possible, encouraging
career development from within
We will provide a state of the art training
facility at Harvey Road
We will recruit record levels of
apprentices and trainees, especially in

41

Organisational
Development

Yes

41

Organisational
Development

Yes

41

Organisational
Development
Organisational
Development

Yes

12

41

Yes

Whilst our new homes are built to achieve an EPC A rating, the new build team are currently reviewing options for the energy standard, which will be used in properties in the future to meet the new
Government Future Homes standard. Details of the Future Homes Standard have not yet been released and the changes to Building Regulations Part L (Conservation of fuel and power in new dwellings) has
been delayed. This was seen as the pre curser to the Future homes Standard.
This has become an NCC site not an RP site and due to affordability the scheme brief has been revised, and whilst meeting NCH specification, the Eco-exemplar design has been revised. Properties will be
delivered to NCH standard specification for new build homes.

NCH now have a comprehensive Health & Wellbeing programme in place which to date has delivered a number of initiatives including:
Health MOTs for Employees
Increased Physio sessions
Financial 'health checks' run by HSBC
Trained Mental Health Champions
Team specific health advice
Health and Well-being Roadshows
Additional initiatives including company-wide fitness events, involvement in national events e.g. men's health week and focus on nutrition and healthy living.
As part of our line manager forums, we will be rolling out specific sessions dedicated to upskilling managers on the best way and best options available to nurture the health and wellbeing of their team
members.
This is now part of the Equality, Diversity & Inclusion strategy and will be a key priority for the EDI Manager.
We are working to Improve our use of customer insight data to better understand the individual needs and satisfaction levels across citizens in regards to services, complaints and the STAR survey results.
We have increased access to service areas such as aids and adaptations for elderly tenants and people with disabilities. Specifically through our Independent Living schemes, new build sites and Nottingham
On Call services.
There is an action plan as part of the E&D Strategy to address this priority.
NCH induction is in place for all new starters. Appraisals all run through the learning management system and non-completion is reported to EMT level. A new appraisal and 1:2:1 form has been rolled out and
this is built into all management training and inductions. Managers are being given additional support in the form of forums and HR interactions to ensure that induction programmes are tailored to meet the
specific needs of new starters as well as ensuring that all appraisals are both meaningful, regular and person-centric. The HR Advisors and Senior HR Advisors are working with managers to build confidence
and competence to undertake meaningful 1-2-1's with their staff in order ensure issues are addressed early and positively.
Workforce planning is being carried out to identify future skills gaps in order to support talent pipelines into these areas. A range of initiatives are in place to support talent coming into NCH including the
apprenticeship scheme and use of the apprenticeship levy.

A number of our employees are enrolled on courses through the apprenticeship levy supporting internal career development. In addition, NCH have rolled out a leadership and management programme and
continue to support wider management programmes including Future Leaders. All employees receive an annual appraisal and 360-degree feedback was conducted with EMT and SMT. Succession Planning to
be completed in 2020. We are also currently looking at an offer for aspiring managers and are revising the coaching and mentoring scheme. 360-degree feedback will be rolled out to tier 2 and tier 3 managers
as part of the appraisal process.
The training station provides 2 fully equipped classrooms and 1 breakout room for internal and external training.
Since May 2017 when the apprenticeship levy was introduced
27 apprentices have completed a level 2 apprenticeship

construction

6 of these have progressed from level 2 to level 3
15 apprentices have been supported to complete a level 3 apprenticeship.
2021: We currently have 13 apprentices undertaking a level 2 apprenticeship, 16 apprentices undertaking a level 3 apprenticeship and one undertaking a level 7 apprenticeship.
We have supported 16 employees to gain an apprenticeship qualification between level 2 and level 4 and are currently supporting a further 11 employees to gain an apprenticeship between level 2 and level 7.
With further enrolments expected.
In 2020, the way employers are ranked into the top 100 apprenticeship employees list was changed. NCH entered and was ranked at number 30 in England.
This ranking changes yearly and takes into account: intake/completions and further development opportunities. Due to COVID-19 and the lack of availability of our historic apprenticeship routes, apprenticeship
recruitment opportunities have gone down during 2021.
Brathay challenge is no longer available to enter.
Sickness rates had fallen to 10 days per individual, per year and further work is continuing under a revised sickness absence policy. NCH have also employed a Health and Well-Being Lead who as part of
their role is assisting in supporting those off on long-term sickness back into work.

We will be in the Top 100 National
Apprentice Employers and demonstrate
our ambition by competing in the
Brathay Apprentice Challenge
We will have record low sickness rates
including initiatives that help staff back
into work as early as possible
We will make sure that our workforce
better reflects the diverse communities
we serve and every employee is treated
fairly
We will continue to be a Stonewall
diversity champion
We will work with the Disability Confident
Framework and Future Leaders of
Nottingham programme
We will address our gender pay gap and
report this on an annual basis
We will implement modernised repairs
and maintenance service standards
attending emergencies 24/7, establish a
new dedicated out of hours service and
respond to all other priority repairs at the
residents earliest convenience.
We will cross train our tradespeople in
order to deliver the maximum number of
repairs right first time.
We will review the provision and funding
of intruder alarms and the benefits they
bring
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Organisational
Development

Yes

43

Organisational
Development

Yes

44

Organisational
Development

Yes

44

Organisational
Development
Organisational
Development

Yes
Yes

We continue to support employee’s year on year to undertake the Future Leaders programme in order to enhance the development of underrepresented groups.
We continue to work with the Disability Confident Employer framework level 2 and are now in a place to prepare to move into the Disability Confident Leader level 3 status.

Organisational
Development
Property
Services

Yes

22

Property
Services

Yes

29

Property
Services/
Executive

No

For new residents we will explore the
potential to obtain a payment of rent in
advance, offer a range of payment
channels for all our customers and help
with early intervention if payments are
missed
We will support residents through
welfare reform particularly Universal
Credit
We will work with partner agencies such
as Nottingham Credit Union and Advice
Nottingham to help people manage
finances.
We will support the city council with the
Homeless Reduction act and ensure
NCH evictions do not add to the
council's homeless responsibilities and
do all we can to avoid using bed and
breakfast in all but exceptional
circumstances
Every resident will have at least one
Regular Tenancy personal visit over the
lifetime of this plan
We will have an effective partnership
with Derby Homes supporting our and
their Metropolitan Strategy

25

Rents

Yes

We are continuing to report on our gender pay gap and have put in place several actions to continue to reduce this. This work is ongoing through our EDI Strategy and the work we do through our Women in
Construction Campaign.
Service standards have been communicated to all colleagues and implemented.
All repairs trade colleagues now receive their work electronically, enabling a more flexible and agile service.
A new 'E-Team' was implemented from March 2020, which will be responsible for responding to all emergency jobs.
Work continues with key stakeholders (e.g. Business Transformation / CSC) to review processes and ensure customer journey is as streamlined as possible.
FURTHER ACTION - The proposal for a new dedicated out of hours team has been developed. Implementation has been delayed due to lack of interest via internal recruitment.
A revised proposal has been worked on through further consultation with Trade union to offer shift patterns similar to the current scheme to generate internal interest.
The expectation within Property Services is to ensure the maximum number of repairs are completed right first time. To enable this expectation, phase 1&2 of cross training was completed in 2019, which gave
attendees further craft skills to reduce the number of jobs that require an additional appointment for a different trade. 75% of trade colleagues have been cross-trained it was decided due to the pandemic and
the social distance rules that the rest of the training would take place once restrictions were lifted.
Property Services remain committed to maintaining the intruder alarms that have been installed. However, due to economic constraints, there are currently no plans to roll this scheme to more tenants.
FURTHER ACTION - A full review of Council levied service charges will be undertaken during 2021/22 to ensure costs are recovered, new funding opportunities explored and NCH budgets reflect the service
charge income generated. This review will consider how the service, maintenance and replacement of existing intruder alarms will be funded into the future, maximising eligibility for Housing Benefit and
Universal Credit Housing Costs where possible.
We now complete a pre-tenancy assessment for all applicants to measure their financial capability. As part of this process, we establish their level of disposable income and set a level of rent in advance to be
paid. We have collected over £78,000 in the first twelve months. We will continue to take rent in advance payments from new NCH tenants. We will also offer support through our Tenancy Sustainment Team
and Universal Credit Team to help residents manage their money and pay their rent when due. The Universal Credit Team gives specialist help to tenants to manage their Universal Credit claims.

25

Rents

Yes

25

Rents

Yes

36

Rents/Lettings

Yes

26

Tenancy &
Estate
Management
Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

As of end of March 2021 every resident has had a meaningful tenancy visit during the lifecycle of the corporate plan.

Yes

We will work with residents to deliver
resident led improvements in
neighbourhoods

27

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

We will make sure that residents have a
good understanding of their own repair

22

Tenant &
Leaseholder

Yes

TLI met with Derby Homes and shared strategies, involvement structures and projects. This work has helped to inform the development of the new TLI Strategy most specifically with regard to the NCH
Involvement Structure, the use of community facilities and independent living communal facilities and how we work with local partners to take a collaborative approach to supporting and working with
community groups and volunteers.
We are taking a task and finish style approach to service consultation, review and improvement – this works really well at Derby homes and is something that has already had an impact at NCH through the
recruitment of Involvement Pool members who sign up to take part in a number of volunteer roles including supporting the complaints panel and service scrutiny.
TLI are working closely with NCC, NCVS and other local social housing providers to get a better understanding of the needs of our communities to ensure that funding available gets to the right people and
delivers the best vfm for our residents in terms of positive impact on the community and the lives of our residents.
Following the review of the criteria and process for assessing our estates to make our estates even better places to live, we have worked closely with ACE inspectors to deliver the new 5 star estate
assessments that have driven estate action plans. All issues from the ACE assessment reports are entered onto a shared drive file that can be viewed by all department managers and revisits have shown
some tremendous improvements. Street and Block Champions, CEP, and local community groups are also involved in identifying issues as and when they see them and have support the development of
areas in need of improvement through a variety of initiatives including the development of green flag community gardens and our first green flag estate in Lenton for which we are awaiting the results of our
submission. We have continued to deliver the annual garden competition which celebrates and showcases the great work of many of our residents and community groups and inspires others living locally to
look after their gardens and communal green spaces. In 2020, we launched a love your home and garden campaign to encourage residents to share what they have been doing in their homes and gardens to
improve where they live and many residents got involved via social media, by sending in photos or by contacting us to tell us about their personal projects.
In collaboration with Property Services, we have delivered bespoke training courses and online tutorials (how to videos) through our Tenant Academy which are open to all residents and community volunteers
on how to do repairs, maintenance, DIY and decorating in their homes. NCH colleagues regularly attend and deliver interactive activities at events across the City to demonstrate how to repair and maintain

13

44

44
22

26

No

The Equality, Diversity & Inclusion strategy is in place to support this action. This will be monitored through various data sources including our gender pay gap and progressed through the Equality, Diversity &
Inclusion steering group and staff equality forums.
We have now signed up to the Race at Work Charter, which focuses on leadership, progression, and recruitment for black, Asian and minority ethnic employees. Regular statistics are now presented to the
E&D steering group to target initiatives in Employability, Recruitment and Development.
We are a Stonewall diversity champions and remain within their top 100 employers.

We have established a specialist Universal Credit Team in order to support tenants. The team is made up of seven Rent Support Officers (RSOs), with a Manager and Admin Officer. The RSOs are based in
the Job Centres for part of their time and DWP staff refer NCH tenants directly to them for help. We have reviewed all our processes in order to support tenants to claim Universal Credit and to ensure that our
income stream is protected. The Welfare Reform Project Board continues to oversee the work of the team and we work in partnership with other agencies to provide the best possible service to our customers.
We work closely with the Credit Union and Advice Nottingham to support tenants to manage their finances. We regularly refer people to Citizens Advice, Welfare Rights and St Anns Advice. We attend the
Advice Forum and Advice Liaison Meeting, both of these groups are made up of local advice agencies and enable us to work in close partnership. We will continue to work with all local partner agencies to
ensure that our tenants are fully supported. We attend the local Financial Resilience Partnership and contribute to its action plan. We also work with the DWP to fully support our tenants in receipt of Universal
Credit.
We have reduced the number of evictions carried out for rent arrears year-on-year over the period of the Corporate Plan. We have created the Eviction Prevention Policy in partnership with NCC and meet
every fortnight to review cases at risk of eviction. Support packages are put in place to ensure that as many families as possible are able to sustain their tenancies.
We are committed to supporting the council with minimising the use of B&B through a number of ways, including targeted lets to homeless families and increasing the supply of temporary accommodation. We
helped the council to achieve the target of zero families in B&B again for Christmas 2020.

responsibilities and use online 'how to'
videos and DIY training to equip them.

Involvement

homes. We have lots of information in NCH News to for those who do not want to attend a course or an event. This is included in the key outcomes within our TLI Strategy 2019 to 2022. We have delivered
structured training for Street and Block Champions to raise their own awareness and to support them to raise awareness amongst their neighbours about responsible repairs and the training available for
residents.

Residents will have a real say in how
services are delivered and will have
numerous ways of getting involved

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

We will support our street and block
champions and provide them with the
knowledge, skills and tools to help
improve their neighbourhoods

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

We will continue to support the
development and maintenance of local
Tenants and Residents Associations and
focus on supporting groups to find and
apply for wider funding streams, in
addition refreshing our own grant
funding for TRA's.
We will continue to support our
customers to learn through participation
in the tenant academy.

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

We will support the Benefit to Society
campaign that proactively challenges
misconceptions of social housing
residents.

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

NCH will support community events
including the Fun Day, Garden
Competition and Tenant Awards as well
as wider public events such as
Nottingham Carnival, Nottingham Pride
and Black History Month.
We will support customers to lead
healthier lives as part of the Fit in the
Community programme and work closely
with local partners/stakeholders.
We will work with the council to deliver
the valued Garden Assistance Service
and support NCC to deliver Green Flag
Awards on our estates
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Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

24

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

27

Yes

We will support residents who wish to
create community gardens and local
food growing initiatives

28

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement/Est
ates &
Caretaking
Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

We will have a focus on engaging young
people, supporting them to become
more involved with organisations like the
National Citizen Service, Police Cadets,
Scouts, Girl Guides and St John
Ambulance
We will continue to run the STAR awards
and nominate deserving colleagues for
accolades such as TPAS or UK Housing
Awards

30

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

Yes

We have also supported NCC Housing Aid team in the delivery of pre tenancy training demonstrating common repairs tenants will be expected to undertake themselves in their new homes.
Residents were involved in the development of both the NCH Corporate Plan and the Tenant and Leaseholder Involvement Strategy, which are both signed off by tenant Board members. Residents are
provided with a variety of ways to get involved in service review, scrutiny, development and improvement at all levels across the business. NCH have a new tenant led ALMO Board with space for up to 6
residents and currently all spaces are filled with 2 more on the waiting list - ALMO Board are supported to have an open dialogue with Group Board, EMT, SMT and are fully supported by our scrutiny function
CEP. Residents are encouraged to get involved doing as much or as little as they want as often as they want. We have recruited 2000 residents to our Involvement Pool so we can stay in contact with those
interested and offer many different ways - such Street and Block Champions, ACE Inspectors, Complaints Panel, Communications, Equality and Diversity, Service Scrutiny and many other service specific
consultation and engagement activities and events. We also work with local community groups, Tenants and Residents and partners to support the delivery of activities and events for local neighbourhoods
including green space projects.
We have worked with our Street and Block Champions to develop and deliver bespoke training courses, through community partners such as NCVS, for them to carry out their day-to-day role and develop new
and relevant skills to help them continue to make a difference for their communities and local neighbourhoods. Some of our Street and Block Champions have gone on to do different voluntary or paid roles
following the training and work experience they have received. Throughout the pandemic, we have maintained regular contact with our champions through our e-newsletter and telephone contact. We have
provided champions with access to a bespoke Eyes Wide Open process, which enables them to report issues through the option of a single online, or paper based form. This process is fully monitored by the
CSC and TEM to ensure all feedback requested a response fully understand the positive impact of the reporting. Plans are underway to provide champions with access to the HouseMark app for report and a
pilot study will take place with approximately 20 champions. There has been a stronger focus in the last 6 months of delivery to identify more block champions living in high-rise blocks to enable us to involve
residents more actively and transparently in the safety of their blocks and homes. We will continue to review the quality, delivery and effectiveness of the training and support to ensure that our residents can
maximise on their learning and get the support and guidance they need.
Over the life of the plan, we have provided circa £60k of funding for our residents and community groups to make a positive difference through applications to our MAD funding scheme. We have worked with
local Community Gardens such as Summerwood Community Garden (100 Trees Project and funding and Grow Cook and Play sessions), Bulwell Forest Garden (Grow Cook and Play and Yoga sessions),
Windmill Community Garden (season events and activities for families and individuals including wood carving and grow cook and eat sessions) and more recently initiatives delivered at St Anns Allotment. We
have supported many other local community groups and TRAs to continue to deliver activities that enhance the lives of our residents and make a difference for their community. Groups are supported by their
respective Tenant and Community Involvement Manager and have maintained regular contact and provided support throughout the pandemic delivering initiatives safely to our residents with the support of
community groups and volunteers. We have seen some great partnership delivery with Evolve, Pythian Club, Pocket Park in Broxtowe, AJ Sports, Parkgate Community Centre, NEMTRA and STOP TRA plus
many others.
We have increased attendance at needs led Tenant Academy Courses in the last few years from 440 per year to over 1,600 tenants (in excess of 2,300 attendees) in in 2019/20. A much wider variety of
courses have been delivered through working in partnership with internal stakeholders, such as our employability team, and external partners such as NCVS, sharing the cost of course provision wherever
possible. Throughout the pandemic, we have adapted the training programme to deliver existing and bespoke online training courses, such as Food Safety Level 2, as well as signposting our residents to free
courses delivered by other key partners across the city. To support the shift to digital training and to support residents in accessing online services we have undertaken a review of the digital inclusion to ensure
that our Tenant Academy offer to support digital inclusion is needs led and fit for the future. Over 1,150 digital skills surveys have been completed helping to identify additional support and further training
needs including referring residents to the ClickSilver Connections mentoring programme run by Business in the Community.
We are in full support of and linked into all initiatives nationally that support tackling the negative stigma associated with social housing residents such as Benefit to Society, Together with Tenants, and over the
last year through being part of an innovative steering group working collaboratively to share good practice and find new ways of working to broaden the approach across the whole sector including procurement
and contractors and all external partners and contractors who may come into contact with residents. We have worked with our involved residents and groups to constantly share positive life stories and
contributions with regular updates in our e-newsletter, NCH news, on social media channels and by recognising the contribution of our volunteers at our Annual Tenant Awards and other national and regional
awards such as TPAS, Colin Smith Memorial and Notts Live Heroes. Colleagues from across the company have been involved in identifying positive stories and outcomes from the consultation with and
involvement of our residents including service reviews and community delivery. Continue to fund annual tenant awards and further develop the use of social media to promote our residents as a benefit to
society.
All events have been delivered as promised with record-breaking attendance particularly at the 2019 annual fun day, which attracted a record crowd of 2500 residents. In 2020 we delivered the Tenant and
Leaseholder Awards, which received over 110 nominations across all categories - we delivered doorstep presentations to all shortlisted nominees which involved members of EMT, Board and Councillors. We
delivered the annual garden competition with the support of "Love your home and garden" campaign and again saw a record number of 90 entries. Doorstep presentation for the awards were delayed until
2021 but again were well received.
To date over £3,000 has been secured through corporate sponsorship to support the Tenant Awards and Garden Competition 2021.
We have continued to work with local partners to identify and promote a more active and healthier lifestyle and opportunities available through a variety of sporting and non-sporting activities such as Healthy
eating workshops run through the Tenant Academy and gardening being regularly signposted to residents. We have provided and delivered many family activity packs to a number of households and have
been actively involved in supporting a street Zumba initiative during lockdown which was a huge success. We are also part of the Green Social Prescribing strategic group and will continue to work closely with
local delivery partners to signpost our residents to activities that can improve their mental and physical wellbeing and help reduce loneliness and isolation.
We have been working in partnership with Parks and Open Spaces to identify and deliver green flag spaces on NCH Managed land. Our role has been to ensure that there is full community involvement in the
delivery and maintenance of the sites. Satisfaction with Garden assistance in 2018/19 was 74% and this had increased to 77% for 20/21, although the target was 86%. We continue to work with NCC to listen
to our tenants that use the scheme with to deliver continual improvements. The service was suspended between March and June 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. It was expected that the service would
be back on track by October 20, but this was not the case. The service was scrutinised by the ALMO Board in November 2020 and a follow up report on the actions raised was taken back to ALMO Board in
March 2021. The service level agreement has been reviewed and updated and await confirmation of agreed targets for the life of the new Corporate Plan before sign off is agreed.
We have supported many green initiatives across the City including the Just Grow project, which has worked in partnership with 3 key community gardens to deliver projects that improve local green spaces
and teach our residents to grow cook and eat more healthily. These sessions have proved to reduce loneliness and isolation of our more vulnerable residents and lifelong friendships and support have been
developed. We recently launch a new community garden - Fircroft, which is now in its development phase in terms of recruiting more volunteers - the first event has been delivered in February 2019 and was
well attended by local residents and families. This was delivered in partnership with the local school and FOSA. Throughout the pandemic, we have continued to provide support to all community gardens
across the City to deliver projects and initiatives to involve and engage local residents under the government restrictions. We have also supported a number of our independent living schemes to get involved
in looking after and developing their communal green space which has seen submissions for green flag awards at a number of sites.
We have supported The Windmill Community Garden to expand on their site, by linking them in with support from Community Rehabilitation Service to help with labour.
Through the delivery of the Engaging Young People Action Plan, we have developed positive working relationships with the National Citizen Service, Police Cadets and the Scouts. Promoting opportunities
across the City to get more of our younger residents involved. These key partners were invited to the annual fun day to promote opportunities and attend many other local events across the City to engage
positively with our residents.
We have supported AJ Sports and young people to tackle estate issues whereby young people have been involved in litter picking on their estates.

42

Tenant &
Leaseholder
Involvement

Yes

In 2018 we received national awards from UKHA and TPAS for our excellent approach to resident engagement and involvement - these awards are considered in the industry to be the best in the country
recognising the contribution of not only the TLI Team but all colleagues across the company who are committed to putting residents at the heart of everything they do. Our Tenant Academy and Events
Manager has taken a lead role in Your Forum and the delivery of the STAR awards with the support of the Communications and Marketing Team. There was a record number of nominations received in 2019
due to the creative internal communication and promotion of the importance of valuing our workforce in line with Best Companies priorities. The event was a huge success in 2019 and nominations are already
being received for 2020 with the opportunity to nominate never closing. The event was a huge success in 2019 with staff consultation currently underway to identify how the Night of 1,000 Stars 201 should be
delivered.
During the Pandemic, Bill Chambers was recognised for his lifetime achievements and came runner up in the TPAS Lifetime Achievement Award
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THE HOUSING REGISTER AND SUPPLY AND DEMAND 2020 ANNUAL
REPORT
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The purpose of this report is to give Board an overview of the supply and
demand of Nottingham City Council (NCC) and Nottingham City Homes’ (NCH)
social housing in the City and the impact this has on our customers. The report
will focus upon the current position and look back over the last calendar year. All
data relates to 2020. The report provides data on the trends and outlines the key
actions for 2021.

1.2

Demand for affordable housing remains high. While there are 334 fewer
households on the housing register (decreasing from 8877 to 8543 households
over the year), with a further decrease of 689 during the first four months of 2021
to 7854, this is due to the data cleansing exercise carried out as part of the
Allocations Policy implementation. We continue to receive up to 150 new
applications each week.

1.3

There continues to be an increased demand for one bedroom homes with 5518
singles and couples seeking housing, up by 288 from the previous year and
making up 65% of households on the housing register.

1.4

The housing stock contains double the number of three bedroom homes than
two bedroom homes but families with three or four children make up 9% of
households on the housing register compared to 25% of families with one or two
children.

1.5

During 2020 a total of 1,041 NCC and 21 Nottingham City Homes Registered
Provider (NCH RP) permanent homes were let. There were also 495 lettings of
NCH RP temporary accommodation to homeless households.

1.6

Homeless households were prioritised for permanent accommodation with 269
lettings taking place, an increase from 153 in 2019.

1.7

A total of 85 new build homes were let, of which 21 were NCH RP, having a
positive impact on supply, an increase from the 47 delivered in 2019. A further
40 former council owned homes were modernised and let following their
purchase from their owners as part of an acquisitions programme.

1.8

Approximately 80% of applicants are not current tenants and 20% are existing
NCC/NCH/NCH RP tenants wishing to move from their current accommodation.

1

1.9

NCH helped devise the new NCC Allocations Policy that was published in
January 2020 and Phase 1 of the project to implement changes to our IT
systems was successfully completed in January 2021. We are now working on
the changes required to implement Phase 2, including the financial and income
elements.

1.10

Our Housing First project, launched in 2019 to provide settled accommodation
and support to people with long histories of homelessness and rough sleeping,
continues to be a success with a further 29 properties being brought on line to
date since April 2020.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board :

2.1

Notes the contents of the report.

2.2

Provides feedback on the key actions suggested.

2.3

Provides suggestions for future annual reports.

2.4

Utilises the data to influence size and type of future new build homes.

3

REPORT

3.1

KEY TRENDS DURING 2020

3.1.1

There are 1,400 fewer households on the housing register compared to a year
ago. This is due to positive work on data cleansing prior to the implementation of
the Allocations Policy and a re-introduction of reviews where people are not
bidding, and not because of a reduction in demand. There were 5820 new
households approved to join the housing register in 2020 which is an increase of
120 from the previous year.
There has continued to be a focus to prioritise homeless applicants to support
NCC with homeless priorities, increasing due to Covid-19. While there was a
reduction in households presenting as homeless at the start of the pandemic,
referrals have now increased and some placements in bed and breakfast are
required, despite the increase in our supply of temporary accommodation. The
move-on of households from temporary accommodation into settled
accommodation, through direct offers, has prevented greater use of bed and
breakfast and it is anticipated that there will be an increase in households
presenting as homeless with the lifting of the national eviction ban. Whilst this
has been a positive step, it does have a negative impact on the homes available
for other households seeking housing and has led to a rise in Councillor
enquiries.
We have seen a reduction in demand for Independent Living (IL) over the last
year with older people being reluctant to move due to the pandemic, and not
viewing this as essential. HouseMark has reported this as a common theme
across the sector. We have an action plan in place to address this.

2

3.1.2

Table 1 - Changes in the housing register by priority band
Banding

Band B - homeless
Band A – urgent need
Band B - moderate need
Band C – singles/couples
who want to live
independently
Band D – older persons
Homelink Plus – registered
providers low demand
properties
Total applicants:

Housing
register
end 2018
353
1,050
1,453

Housing
register
end 2019
661
1,107
1,560

Housing
register
end 2020
561
1,261
2,183

2,861

3,499

3,066

1,516

1,522

1,468

707

528

4*

7,940

8,877

8,543

* From January 2021 HomeLink Plus ceased to exist as there are no longer
properties in low demand for Band A, B and C.
3.1.3

Excluding the HomeLink Plus applicants from 2019, the data shows proportional
increases within Bands A and B demonstrating the urgent housing needs for
many households.

3.1.4

Table 2 - Changes in housing register by household composition
Household type

Single
Couple
Family with 1 Child
Family with 2 Children
Family with 3 Children
Family with 4 Children
Family with 5 Children
Family with 6 Children
Family with over 6
Children
Unclassified(Pending
or later withdrawn)
Homelink Plus
Total applicants:

Housing
register
end 2018
3720
793
1,121
709
461
201
107
34
14
73
707
7,940

Housing
register end
2019
4368
862
1292
802
538
231
113
37
15

Housing
register end
2020
4597
848
1326
780
535
224
107
38
16

98

68

521
8,877

4
8,543

3.1.5

The data shows the family composition of people on the housing register with
over 65% of the applicants being singles and couples, up from 59% in 2019.

3.2

HOUSING STOCK
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3.2.1

The table below provides details of the current NCC/NCH Housing Stock as at
25 April 2019, 3 June 2020 and 26 May 2021
Property Type
Bungalow with 1 Bedroom
Bungalow with 2 Bedrooms
Bungalow with 3 Bedrooms
Flat with 1 Bedroom
Flat with 2 Bedrooms
Flat with 3 Bedrooms
Flat with 4 Bedrooms
House with 1 Bedroom
House with 2 Bedrooms
House with 3 Bedrooms
House with 4 Bedrooms
House with 5 Bedrooms
House with 6 Bedrooms
House with 8 Bedrooms
Maisonette with 1 Bedroom
Maisonette with 2 Bedrooms
Maisonette with 3 Bedrooms
Maisonette with 4 Bedrooms
Total

Total 2019

Total 2020

Total 2021

(Qtr.1)

(Qtr.1)

(Qtr.1)

1,046
1,233
84
7,562
802
40
3
8
4,580
9,428
481
15
1
1
18
373
82
3
25,760

1,039
1,230
83
7,525
766
37
2
8
4,513
9,234
466
15
1
1
18
368
76
3
25,385

1,038
1,231
85
7,549
767
38
3
12
4,533
9,174
468
16
1
1
19
362
77
3
25,377

3.2.2

The Housing stock reduced by eight during 2020 as a result of the Right to Buy
(RTB) with six bungalows and 155 houses sold. This is less than in 2019 where
190 homes were sold. It is likely that this reduction is due to the temporary halt
on moving home during the first lockdown.

3.3

DEMAND

3.3.1

Available properties are advertised weekly through the HomeLink choice based
lettings scheme. A snapshot of general needs properties advertised in the last
year shows the following high demand across homes in all areas. Demand has
increased further from 2019 where the highest number of bids per property was
under 300:
Bids Per
Property

Property Type

Area (Ward)

House 2 Bedrooms

Bulwell Forest

435

House 3 Bedrooms

Sherwood

403

House 2 Bedrooms

Bilborough

398

House 2 Bedrooms

Wollaton West

335

House 3 Bedrooms

Leen Valley

266

4

House 2 Bedrooms

Sherwood

259

House 2 Bedrooms

Basford

225

House 2 Bedrooms

Radford

216

House 3 Bedrooms

Bilborough

210

House 2 Bedrooms

Aspley

208

House 2 Bedrooms

205

Flat 1 Bedroom

Bulwell
Lenton &
Wollaton East
Castle

House 3 Bedrooms

Basford

190

House 3 Bedrooms

Radford

188

House 3 Bedrooms

St Anns

184

Flat 1 Bedroom

Bulwell Forest

181

Flat 1 Bedroom

Meadows

181

Flat 1 Bedroom

Aspley

169

House 3 Bedrooms

Aspley

168

Flat 1 Bedroom

Bestwood

167

House 3 Bedrooms

166

Flat 1 Bedroom

Bestwood
Lenton &
Wollaton East
Leen Valley

House 2 Bedrooms

Dales

157

Flat 1 Bedroom

Bilborough

153

House 2 Bedrooms

St Anns

151

House 3 Bedrooms

House 2 Bedrooms

201
198

164
161

3.3.2

There are currently 357 of our own tenants registered for re-housing looking to
downsize, down from 495 a year ago, and 552 that are living in overcrowded
conditions, up from 414. Looking at all of our tenants, as of 1 June 2021 there
are 1631 that are impacted by the bedroom tax. This is a reduction from 1920 a
year ago but only accounts for those who are in receipt of Housing Benefit as
Universal Credit does not provide us with this information. We are focused on
promoting mutual changes to address support with moves and give priority to
people on the housing register who are releasing high demand homes and who
are overcrowded.

3.4

WAITING TIMES

3.4.1

The tables below provide details of the average waiting times in months between
being placed in a band and a tenancy starting. As the waiting times for homeless
households and urgent management moves tend to be shorter, this impacts on
the averages and is not a realistic waiting time for most households on the
housing register. This also doesn’t account for those who have been waiting for a
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significant length of time but have yet to receive an offer. Regardless, the trend is
for an increased waiting time, demonstrating the increase in demand.

3.4.2

Property Type Name
Bungalow
Flat
House
Maisonette

2018
12
8
9
12

2019
13
8
12
8

Band
Band B homeless
Band A
Band B
Band C
Band D
Victoria Centre Applicants
– separate ‘waiting list’

2018
4
9
14
11
8
19

2019
5
11
18
11
10
19

2020
18
11
14
8

2020
6
12
21
19
16
17

The data below provides information about when those currently on the housing
register were placed in their current band.
Application Date

% of all applicants

2009 and older

0.61%

2010

0.29%

2011

0.36%

2012

0.68%

2013

0.63%

2014

1.85%

2015

3.51%

2016

8.98%

2017

17.41%

2018

21.90%

2019

25.53%

2020

18.24%

3.4.3

The new allocations policy has re-started reviews where applicants are not
bidding and these applications are closed. This has reduced the proportion of
applications pre-2015.

3.5

NEW APPLICATIONS

3.5.1

In total 5,820 new applicants were created during 2020, an increase of 120 from
the previous year and 320 from 2018.
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3.5.2

The new applications were:Applicant Type
Homeless List
General Rehousing List
Transfer Rehousing List
Homelink Plus
Total

Number
540
4,399
879
2
5,820

Percentage
9.28%
75.58%
15.10%
0.03%

3.5.3

The increase in applications were from homeless, going from 497 in 2019 to 540
in 2020, and for the general rehousing list, going from 4295 to 4399.

3.6

LETTINGS

3.6.1

During 2020 a total of 1,041 NCC/NCH properties were let of which 850 were
general needs and 191 were IL. This is a reduction of 11% in lettings compared
to 2019 where 1,171 properties were let. The reduction in lettings was due to the
low number of sign-ups we were able to carry out in the first lockdown – 100 less
than average during April and May 202 in line with government restrictions.
Average monthly sign-ups returned to the same volume as 2019/20 from June
2020.

3.6.2

Our Housing First project, launched in 2019, continues to be a success and has
expanded. We let the first 19 flats to former rough sleepers in the final quarter of
2019 and as of 1 June 2021 we now have 48 live tenancies. Of these, 11 flats
have been specifically purchased by NCH RP for this purpose. We recruited to
the second post of Housing First Project Lead in December 2019 and these
officers have been instrumental in making this project a success; the benefits of
having a dedicated and proactive single point of contact within housing, to
provide intensive housing management, has been recognised by the tenants,
support providers, and NCC and ensured funding for the second post was
secured. The majority of Housing First tenants are managing their tenancies well
with some engaging in support through our Tenant Academy and Employability
Team.

3.6.3

The letting of IL accommodation is seen as a priority. The number of voids as at
31 December 2020 was 59, an increase of 10 from the previous year, and the
number of ready to let homes is 41 as of 1 June 2021. At times there is limited
demand for some properties and there has been a wider impact in demand due
to the pandemic, with older people not viewing moving as essential and some of
our promotional activity being unable to take place. The actions taken to
increase demand are included later within the report at 3.8.13.

3.6.4

The types of properties let were:Lettings
Bungalow with 1
Bedroom

General
Needs
2020

General
Needs
2019

IL
2020

IL
2019

Total
2020

Total
2019

38

42

24

20

62

62

7

Bungalow with 2
Bedrooms
Bungalow with 3
Bedrooms
Flat with 1
Bedroom
Flat with 2
Bedrooms
Flat with 3
Bedrooms
House with 1
Bedrooms
House with 2
Bedrooms
House with 3
Bedrooms
House with 4
Bedrooms
House with 5
Bedrooms
Maisonette with 1
Bedroom
Maisonette with 2
Bedrooms
Maisonette with 3
Bedrooms
Total lettings:

3.6.5

57

57

2

4

2

0

305

363

161

27

28

1

1

59

58

4

2

226

466

589

2

0

29

28

1

0

0

1

1

0

0

1

0

1

0

177

193

0

0

177

193

198

212

0

0

198

212

15

8

0

0

15

8

1

0

0

0

1

0

2

0

1

0

3

0

20

16

0

0

20

16

5

2

0

0

5

2

850

924

191

247

1,041

1,171

0

The type of household properties were let to:
Household type
Single
Couple
Family with 1 Child
Family with 2 Children
Family with 3 Children
Family with 4 Children
Family with 5 Children
Family with 6 Children
Family with over 6 Children

Number
514
81
161
142
100
28
12
2
1

Percentage
49.38%
7.78%
15.47%
13.64%
9.61%
2.69%
1.15%
0.19%
0.10%

Compared to 2019, there was a slight reduction in the proportion of lettings to
single households and an increase in the proportion of lettings to families with
one, two and three children. This reflects the prioritisation of void work on homes
for homeless families.
3.6.6

The type of applicant properties were let to:
Applicant type
Homeless List
General Rehousing List
Transfer Rehousing List

Number
249
515
277

Percentage
23.92%
49.47%
26.61%

Compared to 2019, there was a slight increase in the proportion of homes let to
homeless families and to households on the transfer rehousing list. This reflects
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the priority for homeless families and for households needing to move for urgent
management reasons, and that lettings could only take place for people in these
categories during the first lockdown.
3.7

EQUALITY DATA

3.7.1

The Allocations Policy is shaped to ensure that it does not discriminate against
both individuals and groups and monitoring takes place to ensure that this is the
case. The HomeLink team supports vulnerable applicants to access housing
advice and link in with individuals and agencies to achieve this. The following
charts give examples of current patterns with regard to the number of applicants,
new applications and lettings taking place.

3.7.2

Age
Age

3.7.3

New Applicants %

18-24

Housing Register
%
12.83%

20.34%

New Lettings
%
14.51%

25-34

31.58%

33.97%

25.36%

35-59

36.28%

35.76%

39.96%

60-74

12.81%

7.11%

15.27%

75+

6.51%

2.82%

4.90%

New Applicants %

Female

Housing Register
%
55.20%

57.96%

New Lettings
%
54.08%

Male

44.79%

42.04%

45.92%

Other

0.01%

0.00%

0.00%

New Applicants %

No

Housing Register
%
91.76%

95.81%

New Lettings
%
90.49%

Yes

8.24%

4.19%

9.51%

Gender
Gender

3.7.4

Disability
Disability
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3.7.5

Ethnicity
Ethnicity

Census
2011 %

Housing
Register
%

New
Applicants
%

New
Lettings
%

A1 Indian

3.2%

0.68%

0.62%

0.58%

A2 Pakistani

5.5%

3.54%

3.71%

3.36%

A3 Bangladeshi

0.3%

0.33%

0.40%

0.19%

A4 Other Asian - RECORD OTHER DETAILS

2.1%

2.49%

1.96%

3.94%

B1 Black Caribbean

3.1%

6.40%

5.46%

5.76%

B2 Black African

3.2%

9.11%

8.33%

10.09%

B3 Other Black - RECORD OTHER DETAILS

1.0%

1.51%

1.51%

1.34%

C1 Chinese

2.0%

0.13%

0.14%

0.19%

C2 Other Ethnic Group - RECORD OTHER

0.7%

1.01%

0.89%

1.83%

M1 Mixed White and Black Caribbean

4.0%

5.93%

6.62%

5.96%

M2 Mixed White and Black African

0.7%

0.41%

0.60%

0.48%

M3 Mixed White and Asian

1.1%

0.62%

0.77%

1.15%

M4 Other Mixed - RECORD OTHER DETAILS

0.9%

0.53%

0.76%

0.19%

Other Ethnic Group - ARAB

0.8%

0.85%

1.07%

1.06%

Question Refused

2.41%

2.56%

2.79%

Unknown

1.31%

1.79%

1.63%

W2 White Irish

0.9%

0.67%

0.76%

0.67%

W3 Other White - RECORD OTHER DETAILS

5.1%

6.10%

7.89%

4.90%

White Eng, Scott, Welsh, N Irish, Britis

65.4%

55.71%

53.37%

53.41%

White - Gypsy / Irish Traveller

0.1%

0.27%

0.81%

0.48%

It can be seen that our allocations are broadly reflective of the ethnicity of the
population in Nottingham, with a slighter higher proportion of applicants being an
ethnic minority.
3.8

ACTIONS AND ACTIVITIES PLANNED FOR 2021

3.8.1

It is anticipated that the lifting of the eviction ban will lead to an increase in
Section 21 Notices and therefore an increase in homelessness and a
subsequent increased in demand for social housing. We are continuing to work
closely with NCC and the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) to support with
homelessness pressures and with new initiatives to increase the supply of both
temporary and permanent housing.

3.8.2

We successfully implemented Phase 1 of the Allocations Policy on our IT
systems in January 2021, with very few appeals regarding the change of Bands
and closure of non-active applications. We are now working on the changes
required to implement Phase 2 which includes the financial and income aspects.
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3.8.3

A Housing Options module for Northgate is being progressed alongside the
implementation of the Allocations Policy. This will involve applicants selfassessing whether they may qualify for housing before completing a full
application. For those unable to access the housing register, other advice will be
provided including private rent and mutual exchanges.

3.8.4

The new HomeLink website was launched in April 2020 and continues to receive
very positive feedback. This includes a ‘find out if you qualify’ calculator which
has been one of the most visited of the pages, and gives realistic advice on all
housing options.

3.8.5

The Housing First model has been identified as the successful solution for
ending rough sleeping and the benefits of secure accommodation have been
highlighted further through ‘Everyone In’ during Covid-19. We currently have 48
live Housing First tenancies across a range of funding streams we will continue
to expand our Housing First provision throughout this year with a funding for a
further 22 tenancies.

3.8.6

The Hospital to Home project continues to be a success and has rehoused a
further 91 applicants during 2020 with 30 of these bed blocking and 61 of these
being early intervention cases. During the height of the pandemic, the team
continued to work to assist applicants to be safely re-housed and prevent the
need for hospital stays, supporting the NHS and minimising risk to applicants.
The team continue to share best practice and promote the service, including
meeting with Alex Norris MP and speaking on webinars.
The team received an additional two years funding support from the Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) with effect 1 April 2021 to assist NCH in providing
the service.

3.8.7

Mutual Exchange continues to be an important and realistic option for tenants.
We started to hold promotional ‘speed dating’ events but these were placed on
hold due to Covid-19 and will re-start when it is safe to do so.
During 2020 a total of 267 exchanges took place. This is a reduction from 402 in
2019 and due to the temporary halt following government guidelines when they
were not deemed as successful. Mutual Exchanges re-started in August 2020
and there has been a surge in applications.

3.8.8

The HomeLink partnership remains in place to ensure one point of access for
social housing in the City and regular meetings take place with the partners to
ensure a joined up approach to housing provision. We have recently welcomed
a new partner, Platform Housing. Places for People have now left the
partnership as they were not utilising the Choice-Based Lettings (CBL) system
and NCC have had more success in securing a proportion of their homes
through direct nominations.
Our popular annual inclusion event was postponed in 2020 due to Covid but we
shared a well-received update newsletter with partners in the interim. We are
now planning for the event to take place in November 2021 and for this to
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celebrate 15 years of the HomeLink partnership, as well as other promotional
publicity to be shared during the summer.
3.8.9

We carried out monthly surgeries at Loxley House and other community based
venues up to the start of the pandemic. The surgeries are currently suspended
but the team are continuing to provide telephone support to those who need it.
The housing register has remained open to new applicants throughout the
pandemic unlike some Local Authorities, such as Leicester City Council, where it
was closed.

3.8.10

Work will continue to analyse the demand for housing and ensure this is factored
into new build developments when property ratios are being agreed. Work will
also continue to take place to consult local Councillors on their priorities for the
lettings policy for individual sites to address local issues.
We prioritise new homes for existing NCH tenants, which is turn makes another
home available for an applicant on the housing register. Within Local Lettings
Policies, we also prioritise one bed flats for tenants who are downsizing. The
provision of new build homes has a positive impact on the supply of housing in
the City, however as our own tenants move to some of the dwellings, this in turn
creates new voids and this can increase any void budget pressures. There are
robust processes in place to ensure that our own tenants are only able to move if
they are looking after their current property as per the terms of their tenancy
agreement.

3.8.11

Furnished tenancies were relaunched in October 2018 with a new supplier and
241 homes were furnished during 2020, and increase from 218 during 2019
despite a reduction in lettings. The Lettings Officers promote the option with all
prospective tenants and discuss wider furniture options such as charitable
organisation where appropriate.

3.8.12

Pre tenancy work has been in place for some time but we have enhanced this
with an online training package before housing applications can be made, and
prior to an offer of accommodation is confirmed. We are receiving positive
feedback on this from applicants, and will be able to fully embed this as an
automated part of the housing application once we implement the Northgate
Housing Options module.

3.8.13

We will continue to promote our IL accommodation to reduce the number of
voids. While historically we have had some schemes with low interest, this has
increased more widely due to a reluctance of older people to move during the
pandemic. We are anticipating that demand will increase with further easing of
restrictions and now that older people will have had two vaccines.
We have an action plan in place to address the reduction in demand and short
term actions/business as usual activity including:
• Refresh of scheme based promotional materials and enhanced photos for
schemes
• Regular review of hard to let homes to direct promotional activity
• Scheme based promotion to friends and family
• Long term voids prioritised through Hospital to Home
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•
•
•

Promotion to partner agencies including Age UK, Lifestyle Centre and
Adult Social Care
Open viewing to recommence when safe to do so
HPM promotion to support existing tenants to downsize.

There are also a number of longer term actions that are being considered:
• Review of provision with consideration to re-designation
• Review of the IL let-able standard with consideration to additional
decoration
• Housing Register Project – pilot with dedicated resource to support and
match housing register applicants to IL homes.
4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

There are project costs associated with the further changes to our IT systems to
implement Phase 2 of the Allocations Policy. Reserves of £7.7k are in place to
cover the requested contributions from the Housing Options budget.

4.1.2

The increase in IL voids impacts on void rent loss and also additional costs in
Council Tax and utility charges. The Council Tax budget was increased as part
of Priority Based Budgeting for this financial year, although this was assessed on
usual void levels pre-Covid.

4.1.3

There are associated costs required to implement some of the proposed actions
within the IL action plan and any substantive amount will be agreed through EMT
in the first instance.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

None – The NCC Allocations Policy is compliant with legislation, and audits in
place to ensure this is applied correctly.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

The continued shortage of affordable housing leads to increased numbers of
people living in inadequate accommodation, with detrimental impacts on
individuals, families and society.

4.3.2

The lack of one bedroom accommodation could result in NCH being unable to
meet the needs of a significant proportion of the housing register.

4.3.3

The high demand for social housing, coupled with the homeless agenda will
need to be kept under regular review to ensure a fair distribution of what is a
scarce resource.

4.3.4

The lack of available social housing can create a negative image of NCH from
those seeking housing and potentially wider. This could include individual
concerns, media stories as well as allegations that certain parts of the
community receive preferential treatment, e.g. persons from abroad.

13

4.3.5

The risks are managed by ensuring key messages about the supply of properties
and the demand for homes is well publicised within NCH publications and the
media. The allocations policy review has ensured that all competing pressures
on the housing register are considered and a balanced approach taken.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

To listen to our tenants and deliver an excellent housing service – to ensure that
we provide excellent services to our tenants and future tenants.

5.2

To build high quality, affordable new homes for local people – to ensure that the
properties built meet the needs of the housing register.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
The report outlines equality data and provides commentary.
Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?

6.1

No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)
7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO
IN COMPILING THIS REPORT
Allocations Policy

Contact officers:

Name: Cath Stocks
Address Harvey Road
Tel: 07939 284002
E-mail:catherine.stocks@nottinghamcityhomes.org.uk

Date: 1 June 2021
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Appendix 1
Case Studies
1. Ms A has been living in a two bedroom Council house and has under
occupied since her son moved out and impacted by the bedroom tax.
She had priority banding on the housing register due to releasing a
high demand home and is thrilled with her recent move to a one bed
new build house which is more affordable to maintain. This has also
released a much needed two bedroom home for another Nottingham
family.
2. Mr and Mrs B were evicted from their private rented tenancy when the
landlord decided to sell the property, and were placed in temporary
accommodation. Their children were struggling at school due to the
uncertainty and not feeling they had a secure home. The family have
now moved into a permanent Council house which they can make their
own and reports are that the children are now doing much better at
school.
3. Ms C has lived in a one bedroom Council flat for 7 years and has a 4
year old daughter. They were sharing a bedroom and there was
nowhere for her daughter to play outside. Ms C was successful in
bidding for a two bedroom new build home and moved in just before
Christmas. She was excited to bring her daughter up in a safe area
where there are other families and that her daughter now has her own
room – the garden was an added bonus.
4. Mr D was referred to the Housing to Health scheme after he had been
living in temporary accommodation for 18 months. He had been
serving in the Armed Forces but was discharged due to poor mental
health and several suicide attempts, and was now well enough to move
to independent accommodation but had been struggling to find this. Mr
D was supported to get priority on the housing register and successful
in bidding for a flat. The six month tenancy visit identified that due to
stable accommodation he was now working full time and feeling
optimistic about the future.
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ITEM: 3.4
NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES

REPORT OF THE POLICY AND PLANNING MANAGER

THE GROUP BOARD
24 JUNE 2021

NEW GOVERNMENT PROPOSALS AND EXTERNAL POLICY DEVELOPMENTS WITH
AN IMPACT ON NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES
1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report provides an update on key housing policy and information
announcements made over the recent period.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:

2.1

Notes the update and considers any relevant implications for the Nottingham
City Homes Group (NCH).

3

REPORT

3.1

KEY GOVERNMENT ANNOUNCEMENTS

3.1.1

Queen’s Speech 2021

3.1.1.1

The Queen’s Speech, given on 11 May as part of the State Opening of
Parliament, sets out legislative priorities for the forthcoming parliamentary
session. Although the speech was noted in the press for being comparatively
short, it placed an expected focus on economic recovery following the
coronavirus pandemic, as well as ambitions relating to ‘levelling up the UK’.
The speech included the following items of interest.

3.1.1.2

Planning Bill. Following 2020’s Planning White Paper “laws to modernise the
planning system, so that more homes can be built, will be brought forward”. It
is expected that the Bill will replace the current system of Local Plans with a
zonal system for different categories of land indicating the type, scale and
design of development to be permitted. The intention will be to decrease the
time developments go through the planning system. Existing systems for
funding affordable housing and infrastructure from new developments would be
replaced with a new ‘infrastructure levy’.

3.1.1.3

Building Safety Bill. This formed part of the 2019 speech, published in draft in
2020, but not yet introduced. The Bill will establish a building safety regulator
and a new regime of safety regulations and inspections, implementing reforms
recommended in the Hackitt review of building safety.

3.1.1.4

Renters reforms. Legislation has been expected for some time, but the
Speech announced a White Paper to set out proposed tenancy reforms.
Primarily relating to the private rented sector, this relates to the intention to
abolish Section 21 ‘no fault’ evictions, create a new lifetime tenancy deposit
model to help tenants change tenancy, and reforms to drive improvements in
standards in this tenure, including requiring private landlords to belong to a
redress scheme as well as measures to tackle criminal landlords.

3.1.1.5

Leasehold Reform Bill. Legislation to set future ground rents to zero, when
leaseholders extend their leasehold - which they will be able to do for a term of
990 years. This is primarily aimed at addressing concerns raised in relation to
new build houses being sold with onerous leasehold and ground rent charging
regimes.

3.1.1.6

Domestic Abuse – A new Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy will be
developed, as well as a Domestic Abuse Strategy (following the passing of the
Domestic Abuse Bill). These strategies will seek to better target perpetrators,
focus on prevention and support victims.

3.1.1.7

Skills and Post-16 Education Bill. Legislation is proposed to enable flexible
access to education and training throughout people’s lives via reforms of
student finance to allow citizens aged over 16 to access four years worth of
technical qualifications and academic education. A skills accelerator
programme will increase partnerships between employers and Further
Education colleges / training providers to meet local skills needs.

3.1.1.8

Reaching net zero carbon emissions by 2050. This objective was reiterated,
with the Speech indicating legislation to set binding environmental targets
including reducing carbon emissions by 78% by 2035 compared with 1990
levels. The Heat and Buildings Strategy and the Net Zero Strategy are
forthcoming. There will be an Environment Bill that will place a duty on
Ministers to ensure environmental considerations are central to policy
development.

3.1.1.9

Levelling Up Agenda. The Speech gave greater insight into government
objectives around levelling up, including the relationship with public services:
“It is about increasing and spreading opportunity, because while talent is
evenly distributed, opportunity is not. It is about improving health, education
and policing, particularly where they are not good enough. It is also about
strengthening community and local leadership, restoring pride in place, and
improving quality of life in ways that are not just about the economy.” It is
planned that a Levelling Up White Paper be produced later this year.

3.1.1.10

The sector welcomed a number of aspects of these proposals, in particular the
commitment to building safety legislation and the reiteration of reforms in the
private rented sector. It is felt that the social housing sector can have a
significant role to play in delivery of objectives, for example skills training and
carbon reduction. However, the Chartered Institute of Housing remarked on the
absence of a commitment to a social housing bill as well as noting that the
planning bill will have significant implications for affordable housing providers

and the provision of affordable housing given the proposal to replace Section
106 contributions with a new Levy.
3.1.1.11

The Queen’s Speech is available to view in full here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/queens-speech-2021
and supporting detail is here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/queens-speech-2021background-briefing-notes

3.1.2

Use of Receipts from Right to Buy Sales

3.1.2.1

The Government has now responded to the consultation it carried out in 2018.
The consultation had asked for views on changes to the rules around the use
of receipts from Right to Buy (RtB) sales. It was argued that the rules were too
restrictive and were unhelpful in terms of delivering replacement social
housing.
The timeframe for spending new and existing RtB receipts will increase from
three to five years; and the percentage cost of new homes that can be funded
by RtB receipts will be increased from 30% to 40%.

3.1.2.2

Sector comment welcomed these changes as helpful in granting a greater
degree of flexibility to assist in investing these funds in new homes, but felt that
an opportunity had been missed to look at other amendments, including to the
cost floor levels that could prevent new homes being sold for less than they
cost to build.
The National Federation of ALMOs said that “a braver approach could have
done much more to make the Right to Buy policy both sustainable for councils,
and equitable to everyone needing some help to buy their own home.”

3.1.2.3

Cllr Linda Woodings, Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage at
Nottingham City Council (NCC), said: “This news is welcome for Nottingham
because it will give us a more reasonable time to reinvest money we receive
from the sale of council houses into new affordable homes to ease the
pressure on our housing list…(however)… we also think that councils should
retain 100% of right-to-buy receipts for reinvestment in new homes where they
are needed.”

3.1.3

Social Housing Complaints Awareness Campaign

3.1.3.1

The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), along
with the Housing Ombudsman Service has launched this campaign to help
residents understand how best to complain to their social landlord should they
wish to do so. This campaign is designed to support the Charter for Social
Housing Residents set out in 2020’s Social Housing White Paper.

3.1.3.2

Information includes how best to complain, who to complain to and what further
options are available if residents are unhappy about responses to complaints
they have made.

3.1.3.3

Details are on this web page:
https://socialhousingcomplaints.campaign.gov.uk/

3.2

UPDATES ON MATTERS PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED

3.2.1

Planning White Paper: Local impact of revised housing need formula

3.2.1.1

At the last Board meeting, members were advised that the MHCLG had
announced a revised approach to allocating numbers of new homes at local
authority level. This would prioritise brownfield land and urban areas for
development, instead of earlier plans deemed to have put pressure on the
green belt.
The Government have since published a revised methodology that requires an
increase of 35% of new housing delivery that is "expected to be met by the
cities and urban centres themselves, rather than the surrounding areas". This
will apply to England’s 20 biggest cities and towns, including Nottingham.

3.2.1.2

For Nottingham, this increase would result in the need to provide an average of
an extra 402 new homes per year over and above the annual figure of 1,149
under the previous methodology.

3.2.1.3

Given the constrained nature of the city boundary, and therefore a shortage of
easily available undeveloped land, it is likely that this could increase pressure
to:
• use more employment sites for housing
• build at higher densities and build smaller homes
• use green space and undeveloped land
• increase city centre living and build taller buildings.
The new annual figure of 1,551 homes per annum is notably higher than has
been achieved on average over the last 10 to 20 years, raising a question
about how easy it will be to achieve these targets.

3.2.2

Domestic Abuse Bill

3.2.2.1

The Domestic Abuse Bill received Royal Assent on the 30 April 2021, passing
into law.
The Board have previously been advised of this Bill, which includes a new duty
on local councils to assess the need for accommodation-based domestic
abuse support in their area for all victims and their children, and categorises all
eligible homeless victims of domestic abuse as having priority need for
homelessness assistance.

3.2.3

Nottingham City Council (NCC) – Review of the Strategic Council Plan (20212023)

3.2.3.1

NCC is undertaking a review of the existing Council Plan (2019-23), in the light
of the impact of the coronavirus pandemic and the new context NCC is

operating in. The Plan has nine themed outcomes and NCH has been invited
to comment and contribute to the Better Housing theme. This theme includes
slight amendments to the definitions relating to Nottingham’s affordable homes
target, which is an area of activity the NCH Group works closely with NCC to
help deliver.
3.3

RECENTLY PUBLISHED REPORTS OF INTEREST

3.3.1

Resident Engagement on Safety - Social Housing Best Practice

3.3.1.1

The Government’s Social Sector Engagement Best Practice Group has
published this report about engaging residents with building safety. The group
is made up of social landlords and tenants and has worked to research and
recommend best practice in terms of engaging residents on safety issues, in
particular fire safety. The report includes three main themes:
• Information and understanding
• Landlords and residents’ responsibilities
• Action to take in the event of a fire.

3.3.1.2

The report can be accessed at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-social-sector-building-safetyengagement-best-practice-group-final-report

3.3.2

Housing Ombudsman Service: Framework on Systemic Issues

3.3.2.1

The Housing Ombudsman Service has published a new framework on
systemic issues, which sets out how the service will use information on
complaints it receives to check for systemic issues in the sector. This will be
designed to promote good practice and service improvement. However, the
Housing Ombudsman (HO) would potentially investigate systemic failures on
the part of landlords, based on analysis of complaint patterns. Such
investigations could result in recommendations for the landlord or the wider
sector.

3.3.2.2

The HO said: “For the first time we can look beyond individual disputes into the
wider and deeper issues responsible for generating complaints and seek to
address those in a range of ways.”
“Fundamentally, I want our use of these new powers to promote a culture of
learning and openness, allowing better insight into the root cause
of problems and sharing learning to drive better service delivery for all
residents.”

3.3.2.3

The Framework document is available here:
https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/HousingOmbudsman-Systemic-Investigations-Framework-.pdf

3.3.3

Nottingham Crime and Drugs Partnership Plan 2021-2024

3.3.3.1

The Crime and Drugs Partnership (CDP) has published its strategic plan, of
which NCH is a signatory. The plan highlights the following priorities to tackle
in the city:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Anti-Social Behaviour
Drugs & Alcohol
Hate Crime
Weapon Enabled Offending
Modern Slavery & Exploitation
Domestic & Sexual Violence & Abuse.

The plan sets out the partnership’s operating model, the CDP’s targets and the
performance and delivery framework.
3.3.3.2

The plan is published here:
http://www.nottinghamcdp.co.uk/
http://www.nottinghamcdp.co.uk/the-partnership-plan-201415/

3.4

CONSULTATIONS

3.4.1

Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans (PEEPs) in High-Rise Residential
Buildings

3.4.1.1

The Home Office has published this consultation following the
recommendations in the Grenfell Tower Inquiry Phase 1 report. The intention is
to implement Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans (PEEPs) through the Fire
Safety Order process.

3.4.1.2

The government states that their expectation is “that PEEPs in high-rise
residential buildings will help provide a tailored approach to evacuation for
those residents who would have difficulty self-evacuating in the event of a fire”.
The proposals would “place additional legal requirements on the Responsible
Person (which includes building owners and managers) and on those who
otherwise have control of the building” to prepare and keep up to date PEEPs
on any resident who self identifies as having difficulty evacuating the building.

3.4.1.3

The consultation document and related questions is available in full here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/personal-emergency-evacuationplans

3.4.2

Domestic Abuse Act housing regulations

3.4.2.1

The government is consulting on new duties to be placed on local authorities to
provide domestic abuse support in safe accommodation, following the passing
of the Domestic Abuse Act. This relates to the draft regulations and statutory
guidance connected with the Act.
With the Act requiring councils to fund relevant accommodation and support for
those fleeing domestic abuse, the consultation considers types of

accommodation that may be suitable, as well as proposed terms of reference
for the Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Boards that are required.
3.4.2.2

The consultation is published here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/domestic-abuse-support-withinsafe-accommodation-statutory-guidance-and-regulations-consultation/newduties-on-local-authorities-to-provide-domestic-abuse-support-in-safeaccommodation-in-england-consultation

4

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Financial Implications

4.1.1

NCH will keep any potential impact of legislation on budgets under review
during the year. The 2021/22 budget has set aside £114k for responding to the
White Paper.

4.2

Legal Implications

4.2.1

The legal implications arising out of future legislation and government policy
changes are considered as part of the implementation of those changes by the
NCH Group.

4.3

Risk Implications

4.3.1

None.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES’ OBJECTIVES

5.1

Ensuring that NCH Group is fully abreast of developments that affect the core
business of the organisation.

5.2

Consideration has been given to the topics listed in the report and where
appropriate, key implications are noted in the report.

6

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Has the equality impact of these proposals been assessed?
Yes (EIA attached)
No (this report does not contain proposals which require an EIA)

7

BACKGROUND MATERIAL AND PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED
TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT

7.1

A wide range of housing policy information and digests have been consulted in
the preparation of this report.
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Dan Lucas
Policy and Planning Manager
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Tel: 0115 746 9470
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